

### Anchorage School District

# WEST HIGH SCHOOL-ROMIG MIDDLE SCHOOL SITE IMPROVEMENTS

ITB 2024-812 ASD PROJECT No. 850042

**DATE ISSUED: February 22, 2024** 

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<u>Section</u>	<u>Title</u>	No. of Pages
DIVISION 0 - E	BIDDING AND CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS	
00020	Invitation to Bid	2
00100	Instructions to Bidders	13
00200	Project Schedule Milestone Dates	
00300	Bid Form	7
00500	Owner - Contractor Agreement Form	3
00610	Bid Bond Form	
00620	Performance Bond and Payment Bond	9
00630	Sample Forms and Certificates	40
00700	General Conditions of the Contract for Construction	
00800	Supplementary General Conditions to the Contract for Construction	6
00820	Wage Rates	1
DIVISION 1 - 0	SENERAL REQUIREMENTS	
01010	Summary of Work	4
01041	Project Coordination	
01045	Cutting and Patching	
01050	Field Engineering	
01060	Regulatory Requirements	1
01070	Abbreviations and Definitions	
01090	Referenced Specifications and Standards	3
01120	Alteration Procedures	2
01200	Project Meetings	3
01300	Submittals	
01311	Project Schedule	3
01340	Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples	5
01 35 45	Airborne Contaminant Control	
01370	Schedule of Values	2
01380	Construction Photographs	2
01400	Quality Control	
01410	Testing Laboratory Services	3
01420	Special Inspections	
01500	Temporary Facilities and Controls	
01502	Maintenance of Traffic	1
01580	Project Sign	
01600	Materials and Equipment	
01610	Delivery, Storage and Handling	
01630	Substitution and Product Option	
01700	Project Close-Out	
01710	Cleaning	
01720	Project Record Documents	
01730	Operating and Maintenance Data	
01750	Close-Out Forms	
01900	Utility Location Requirements	2

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<u>Section</u>	<u>Title</u> <u>No</u>	. of Pages
02050	Demolition	2
DIVISION 26 -	ELECTRICAL	
26 05 00 26 05 19 26 05 26 26 05 29 26 05 33 26 05 53 26 21 00 26 28 16 26 50 00	Common Work Results for Electrical  Low-Voltage Electrical Power Conductors and Cables  Grounding and Bonding for Electrical Systems  Hangers and Supports for Electrical Systems  Raceway and Boxes for Electrical Systems  Identification for Electrical Systems  Low-Voltage Electrical Service Entrance  Enclosed Switches and Circuit Breakers  Lighting	
DIVISION 27 -	COMMUNICATIONS	
27 05 28 27 10 00	Pathways for Communication Systems	
DIVISION 28 -	ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY	
28 23 00	Video Surveillance System	7
DRAWINGS		
G101	Cover Sheet Abbreviations & Notes	
Landscaping: L101 L102 L501	Key Plan & Soils Plan Landscape and Layout Plan Details	
Electrical: E101 E102 E103 E201 E301 E401 E402 E501	Electrical Legend Electrical Details Electrical Details Site Lighting Plan Site Power Plan Site Signal Plan West CTE Reference Plan Video System One-Line Diagram	

### INVITATION TO BID (ITB) NUMBER: 2024-812 West High School-Romig Middle School Site Improvements

Sealed bids will be received in accordance with the time schedule shown below by the Anchorage School District, Purchasing Department, located at 4919 Van Buren Street Anchorage, Alaska 99517 for West-Romig Site Improvements per the attached Instructions to Bidders, General Conditions, Technical Specifications, Drawings and Bid Form.

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST: Between \$100,000 - \$500,000

On-Site Visit: February 29, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. Local Time Pre-Bid Conference: March 1, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. Local Time March 14, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. Local Time

At the above indicated time, the bids will be opened publicly and read. Bids received by the Purchasing Department after the time fixed for opening of the bids will not be considered. Time of receipt will be as determined by the time stamp at the Purchasing Department.

### DOCUMENTS:

Prospective bidders may obtain copies of bidding documents at the Anchorage School District website <a href="http://www.asdk12.org/depts/purchasing/PurchasingBids.aspx">http://www.asdk12.org/depts/purchasing/PurchasingBids.aspx</a> Only electronic versions of this ITB are issued.

A copy of the current plan holder's list can be viewed at: <a href="http://apps.asdk12.org/depts/purchasing/meeting/Plan Holders/2024/812.xlsx">http://apps.asdk12.org/depts/purchasing/meeting/Plan Holders/2024/812.xlsx</a>

### NOTICE TO BIDDERS:

A bid bond in the amount of five (5%) percent of the total amount of the base bid will be required (cash, personal or business checks are unacceptable). The successful Contractor shall be required to furnish 100 percent performance and payment bonds.

The Anchorage School District reserves the right to reject any and all bids, and to waive any informalities or irregularities in bidding procedures.

### ON-SITE VISIT AND PRE-BID CONFERENCE:

An On-Site Visit will be held on February 29, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. Local Time at West High School, 1700 Hillcrest Drive, Anchorage, Alaska 99517. Please meet at the south-east corner of parking lot close to the project site.

A Pre-Bid Conference will be held March 1, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. Local Time at Anchorage School District, Purchasing Department, located at 4919 Van Buren Street Anchorage, Alaska 99517. Prospective Bidders who wish to participate by teleconference may participate by calling (907) 742-6750. The line will be available approximately 5 minutes prior the conference start time.

All Bidders are encouraged to attend the On-site Visit and Pre-Bid Conference. Major sub-bidders are also encouraged to attend.

The Anchorage School District is committed to providing reasonable accommodations, according to applicable state and federal laws, to all individuals with a qualifying disability. If you require a reasonable accommodation in order to participate in this or any other district process, please contact the Anchorage School District's Compliance/Equal Employment Opportunity Office at (907) 742-4132.

### **END OF SECTION**

### INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

### PART 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

- 1.01 Refer to the Invitation to Bid for information relating to time, date and place for receipt of bids and other pertinent bidding information.
- Anchorage School Board Policy 3515.5 prohibits a contractor whose employees or agents may have direct or incidental contact with Anchorage School District (the District) students from sending any employee or agent to district property who has been convicted of a sex offense under federal law or the law of any state and who is required to register as a sex offender under Alaska law or by court order, or who has been convicted of child kidnapping under federal law or the law of any state and who is required under Alaska law or court order to register on the Alaska Department of Public Safety Sex Offender/Child Kidnapper Central Registry. Board Policy 3515.5 requires contractors to certify in writing the contractor's knowledge of and compliance with Board Policy 3515.5. *Prior to executing a contract* for this project, the selected Contractor shall verify that no employee or agent who will be on district property is registered as a sex offender or child kidnapper in Alaska [Alaska Department of Public Safety "Sex Offender/Child Kidnapper Registry"] or in any other state. In addition, the contractor shall certify that, to its knowledge, no employee or agent is a convicted sex offender or child kidnapper. The required forms of certification are included in the bid documents.

### 1.03 LICENSE REQUIREMENTS

- A. The bidder shall include on the bid Form his current Business License number and expiration date from the State of Alaska authorizing him to engage in business to operate as a Business, Specialty or General Contractor, as well as his Federal Tax Identification number.
- B. The bidder shall provide a copy of his current State of Alaska Business License and Specialty or General Contractor license when requested in writing by the Purchasing Department.

### 1.04 BIDS

A. The bidder shall review all of the proposed contract documents to ascertain all of the requirements of the work.

### 1.05 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND SITE WORK

- A. The bidder shall examine carefully the site of the proposed work, the proposal, plans, specifications and contract forms before submitting a proposal. The submission of a bid shall be an admission that the bidder has made such examination and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the work and as to the requirement and accuracy of the plans, specifications, special provisions and terms of the contract.
- B. All documents furnished to any person, under any condition, remain the property of the Anchorage School District and shall be returned immediately upon request.
- C. Documents may be obtained upon the conditions set forth in the Invitation to Bid.

### 1.06 METHOD FOR CLARIFICATION

A. Any bidder in doubt as to the meaning of any part of the plans, specifications or other documents may submit a written request for an interpretation. The bidder submitting the

request will be responsible for its prompt delivery not less than seven (7) working days prior to the date set for opening of bids. Questions can be delivered as follows:

1. Fax: (907) 243-6293

Email: purchasing@asdk12.org
 Mail: Purchasing Department

4919 Van Buren Street Anchorage, Alaska 99517

4. Hours: 7:30 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

B. A written request for an interpretation, which in the opinion of the Purchasing Department requires a reply, will be answered by issuing an addendum to all plan holders prior to the bid opening. The Owner will not be responsible for any other explanation or interpretation of the plans, specifications or other documents made or given prior to the bid opening.

### 1.07 PREPARATION OF BIDS

A. Preparation and Submission:

Bids must be submitted on the forms furnished or copies thereof, and must be manually signed. In order to secure consideration, the bid must be submitted and sealed in an envelope on which contract identification is plainly marked on the outside. The bid form is included in the bidding documents. The envelope shall be addressed as indicated in the Invitation to Bid.

B. Form:

The bid may provide for a quotation of a price, or prices, for one or more items which may be lump sum bids, alternate prices, scheduled items resulting in a bid on a unit of construction, or a combination thereof. Where required on the bid form, bidders must quote on all items and they are warned that failure to do so shall disqualify the bid.

If erasures or other changes appear on the forms, each such erasure or change must be initialed by the person signing the bid.

C. Alternate Bids and Qualified Bids:

Bids may be rejected if they show any omissions, alteration of the forms, additions not called for, conditional or alternate bids not called for or irregularities of any kind.

### 1.08 BID GUARANTEE

- A. Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond with good and sufficient surety or sureties acceptable to the Owner. The Anchorage School District will require five percent (5%) of the total amount of the base bid as a guarantee (cash, personal, or business checks are not acceptable). Bid guarantees for the three (3) low bidders will be held until the contract is executed.
- B. All other bid guarantees will be returned within seven (7) days of the bid opening. Power of Attorney for the official signing of the bond for the surety company must be submitted with the bond.

### 1.09 ALTERNATES

A. The bidder shall include in the spaces provided on the "Bid Form" a bid for each alternate, if applicable.

B. The Owner may accept alternates in any order or number and include them in the contract award price.

### 1.10 UNIT PRICES

- A. The bidder shall include in the spaces provided on the "Bid Form" a bid for each unit price, if applicable.
- B. The Owner may accept any or all of these unit prices and include them in the contract award price.
- C. In the case of discrepancy in the extended price calculation(s), the unit price(s) will prevail.

### 1.11 BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS (TO BE INCLUDED IF THERE IS NO 2-STEP QUALIFICATION PROCESS)

- A. Before the bid is considered for award, the Owner reserves the right to request the bidder to complete within seventy-two (72) hours a bidder qualification form and/or a current financial statement prepared by a Certified Public Accountant. Bidder qualifications to be listed upon the qualification form will include, as a minimum, a listing of bidder's previous contracts of a nature similar to that being bid upon; a listing of bidder's staff, to include managerial, technical and laboring positions; summary of bidder's plan and equipment available for use in the execution of the contract; and a listing of the projects to which the bidder is obligated in the near future. The Owner reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder who fails to furnish promptly and properly all the information required in this paragraph.
- B. A bidder will be deemed to be unqualified to perform the contract if, after review and verification of the representations included on the qualification form submitted by the bidder, the following conditions appear:
  - 1. Bidder does not have sufficient prior experience (or an acceptable substitute thereof, as described below) with projects of a similar nature in technical, managerial and financial requirements to that in the present contract being bid.
    - a. Experience does not necessarily mean that the bidder is an established Contractor in the exact technical area for which the bid is submitted. In addition to such established contractors, newly established contractors will be considered qualified if they have shown on the bid qualification sheet form that they are staffed with sufficient technical, managerial and financial personnel with prior experience in the nature of construction for which the bids are invited, that bidder may adequately foresee and appreciate problems of such construction.
  - 2. Bidder does not have sufficient capability to undertake the obligations of the contract. A determination in this respect will be made when the Owner, upon review of the probable cash flow needs of the Contractor for this particular contract (to include payroll, cost of material and supplies, equipment rental costs and any other direct or incidental costs of the contract), determines that the Contractor does not have sufficient financial resources to enable him to satisfy his financial obligations under the contract. The Owner will consider all other pertinent financial data required by this clause and submitted by the Contractor. A determination that the bidder is unqualified will not be made under this paragraph unless the Owner

- has determined that the bidder cannot meet his financial obligations under the contract after having considered all sources of income available to the bidder.
- 3. The bidder does not have sufficient staff, equipment or plant available to perform the contract. The Owner's determination in this matter will be based upon that represented by the bidder in his completion of the Bidder Qualification documents discussed above.
- 4. The bidder has a consistent history of unsatisfactory performance of contracts of this or similar nature, regardless of whether such contracts existed between the Owner and the Contractor, or other parties and the Contractor.
  - a. A determination of this nature will not be made unless the Owner, after review and verification of the contractor's previous work experience, determines that the contractor's consistent, unsatisfactory performance has resulted from the contractor's failure rather than a failure to perform by the other party. The Owner will give the Contractor an opportunity to explain such nonperformance(s) before any final determination is reached. Contract disputes which are pending resolution before any duly authorized judicial or administrative body will not be considered in reaching this determination.
  - b. A determination of a "consistent failure to perform" will not be made unless the Owner is satisfied after review of the bidder's prior experience that the Contractor has repeatedly failed to satisfy his obligations under past contracts. For purposes of this clause, "consistent" will not be construed to mean in every contract, nor will it be construed to include "isolated instances" of failure to perform.
  - c. In reaching any determination of this nature, the Owner may consider statements of other parties to the prior unperformed contracts, as well as the representations of the Contractor on his "Bidder Qualification" form. However, in each instance, the Owner will advise the Contractor of such other statements considered before a determination that the bidder is not qualified, as made by the Owner.
- C. The bidder's representations concerning his qualifications will be construed as a covenant under the contract. Should it appear that the bidder has made a material misrepresentation on his "Bidder Qualification" form, the Owner shall have the right to terminate the contract for the Contractor's breach, and the Owner may then pursue such remedies as exist elsewhere under this contract, or as otherwise are provided at law or equity.
- D. A determination that a bidder is unqualified will be made by the Owner. Such determination will be made in writing and include a thorough discussion of why the bidder is deemed unqualified. A letter will be sent to the bidder deemed unqualified, stating the reasons for such determination, and the bidder's right to request a review of this determination by appeal to the Anchorage School District Board.
- E. Any bidder who is deemed to be unqualified may, as provided under existing Anchorage School District policy, appeal such determination to the Anchorage School District Board prior to contract award to another bidder.

### 1.12 RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS

### A. Time of Opening:

Bids shall be submitted prior to the time specified in the Invitation to Bid, and the exact date and time of receipt of bids will be recorded. Late bids will not be considered, but will be held unopened until the time of award and then returned to the bidder, unless other

disposition is requested or agreed to by the bidder. Time of bid receipt will be determined by the time stamp at the Purchasing Department, 4919 Van Buren Street, Anchorage, Alaska 99517.

### B. FAX/Telegraph/Telephonic/E-Mail Bids:

FAX/telegraphic/telephonic/e-mail bids will not be considered. Modification by FAX or telegraph of bids already submitted will be considered if received prior to the time fixed in the Invitation to Bid. FAX/telegraphic modifications shall not reveal the amount of the original or revised bid.

### C. Officer's Responsibility:

No responsibility will attach to any officer or agent of the Owner for the premature opening of, or the failure to open a bid not properly addressed and identified.

### 1.13 WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

- A. Bids may be withdrawn on written request received from the bidders prior to the time specified for opening.
- B. No bid shall be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days subsequent to the bid opening without the written consent of the Owner.

### 1.14 BIDDERS INTERESTED IN MORE THAN ONE BID

A. If more than one bid is offered by any party, by or in the name of his clerk, partner, or other person, all such bids will be rejected. A party who has quoted prices to a bidder is not thereby disqualified from quoting prices to other bidders, or from submitting a bid directly for the work.

### 1.15 BIDDERS PRESENT

A. At the time and place specified for the opening of bids, contents of the bids will be made public for the information of bidders and other parties.

### 1.16 REJECTION OF BIDS

A. The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids, and to waive any informalities or irregularities in bidding or award of the contract.

### 1.17 AWARD OF CONTRACT

A. Acceptance of Bid:

Following the opening and evaluation of bids, the Owner will determine the apparent low responsive bidder and, subject to its right under Paragraph 1.16 to reject all bids, decide whether to accept the apparent low responsive bid. The Owner's acceptance of the apparent low responsive bid will be through a written notice from a duly authorized representative of the Owner, and no other act of the Owner or its representative will constitute an acceptance of a bid. The notice shall be titled "Notice of Intent to Award Contract," and shall set forth pre-award procedures and requirements, if any, including procedures for approval and award of contract by the School Board.

B. Basis of Award

- 1. It is the Owner's intention to award a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, including alternates, base bid, and quantified unit prices accepted by the Owner at the time of award, if applicable.
- 2. Unit prices which are not quantified will not be included in the determination of the award.
- 3. The Owner reserves the right to award the alternates in any combination with the base bid and include them in the total award.
- 4. The District reserves the right to request the lowest bidder(s) whose bids are determined to be reasonably susceptible to award to review their previous bids with consideration of any additions, clarifications or modifications, submit revised bids for Best and Final Offers (bids). If Best and Final Offers are requested, selected offerors must submit revised bids on the forms provided by the District to be considered for evaluation and award. Bidders who do not submit a Best and Final Offers (revised bids), when requested, will not be considered for evaluation and award and their bids will be rejected and considered non-responsive.
  - a. For purposes of this ITB, bids that are "reasonably susceptible to award" means the three (3) lowest responsive and responsible bidders, unless, in the sole discretion of the District's Purchasing Senior Director, one or more of the three lowest responsive and responsible bidder(s) was not within the competitive range and to remain under consideration for award when evaluated with other bids or the District received one or more additional bids that are within the competitive range of the three lowest responsive and responsible bids such that the additional bid(s) may remain under consideration when evaluated with the other bids. This is a strict mathematical evaluation and may not be challenged on that basis except in the case of obvious arithmetic errors.

### C. Notification of Award to Bidders:

Following opening of bids and determination of the apparent low responsive bidder, the Administration will make public in the Purchasing Contracting Office each Notice of Intent to Award ten (10) calendar days prior to the scheduled award by the Board, except for purchases under \$100,000 which is three (3) business days. Bidders may, upon request to the Purchasing Office and/or Purchasing Contracting Office, review the bid tabulation summary prior to the scheduled Board award date.

### D. Amount of Contract

The amount of the contract shall be understood to be the lump sum as given in the bid form. Where prices are given on alternative items, only the amounts of the alternates accepted by the Owner will be included in the total.

### E. Execution of Contract:

By the Contractor: The bidder whose bid is accepted shall execute the contract and furnish the required bonding and insurance within five (5) days after presentation of the contract for signature. The contract shall be deemed to be executed by the successful bidder when two (2) originals of the contract, signed by an authorized officer of the corporation or company, and with each separately signed the bonds and insurances required herein, are received by the Owner. Failure or neglect to execute the contract, within the time specified or such extended period, if any, that the Owner may, in its sole discretion, authorize, shall constitute a breach of the agreement affecting the acceptance of the bid. The damages to the Owner for such a breach shall include loss from interference with the general Capital Improvements Program of the Owner, and other items whose accurate amount would be difficult or impossible to compute.

The amount of the bid guarantee of the successful bidder who fails or neglects to execute

the contract after proper notification of the acceptance of the bid shall be retained by the Owner as liquidated damages for such breach.

By the Owner: Upon receipt of the above-referenced two (2) Contracts executed by the Contractor, including all required bonds and insurance certificates, the properly authorized Owner representatives will execute the documents within ten (10) days. The contract shall be deemed to be completely executed when two (2) copies thereof, accompanied by the required bond, liability and other necessary insurance and signed by the Contractor, are executed by the Owner. All awards shall comply with the Anchorage School District Purchasing and Contracting Policy 3311. Awards of \$500,000 or more shall be presented to the School Board for their approval.

### 1.18 PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND

A. The successful bidder will furnish a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond in accordance with Section 00700, Paragraph 7.5.

### 1.19 INSURANCE

A. The successful bidder will furnish complete Certificates of Insurance, as required by the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions, in a form acceptable to the Owner.

### 1.20 NOTICE TO PROCEED

A. The Owner will issue a Notice to Proceed with the work within ten (10) days following the Owner's execution of the contract. The date of commencement of the work shall be the date established in the Notice to Proceed. The Owner will not be responsible for any costs incurred by the Contractor prior to the Notice to Proceed.

### 1.21 AGGRIEVED BIDDERS

### A. Protest:

- An interested party may protest a solicitation or a proposed award of a contract.
  - a. A protest as to the specifications and/or terms and conditions of a solicitation must be received by the Purchasing Senior Director at least five (5) calendar days prior to the due date of the bid or proposal; failure to protest as provided herein constitutes a waiver of any objection to the solicitation.
  - b. For construction projects and architectural/engineering design services, the protest of a proposed award of a contract must be received by the Purchasing Senior Director within ten (10) calendar days after issuance of the notice of intent to award, except that for purchases under \$100,000, the protest must be received within three (3) business days.
  - c. For goods or services, the protest of a proposed award of a contract must be received by the Purchasing Senior Director within seven (7) calendar days after issuance of the notice of intent to award, except that for purchases under \$100,000, the protest must be received within three (3) business days.
  - d. The protest must include the name of the person submitting the protest, the name of the bidder/proposer represented by that person, the specific action or bid/request for proposal contract award which is being protested, a detailed explanation of the reasons for the protest, and the relief requested.

- e. The aggrieved person must serve all other interested parties with its protest.
- 2. The Purchasing Senior Director shall stay the intended award of a contract unless the Purchasing Senior Director determines the award of the contract without further delay is necessary to protect the District's best interest.
- 3. The Purchasing Senior Director may, in his/her sole discretion, hold a hearing.
- 4. The rights and remedies granted by this section are not available for informal small purchases with an actual or potential value of less than twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000).
- 5. Failure to protest as provided herein constitutes a waiver of any objection to the solicitation and contract award.

### B. Appeal:

- A decision by the Purchasing Senior Director may be appealed to the Anchorage School Board.
- 2. Any appeal shall be filed with the\_Superintendent within five (5) days after the decision is received by the protester and must include the name of the person submitting the appeal, the name of the bidder/proposer represented by that person, and a detailed explanation of the basis for the appeal.
- 3. The aggrieved bidder/proposer must serve all other interested parties with its appeal.
- 4. The Superintendent may obtain an independent review of the appeal issues if the Superintendent determines such review will assist consideration of the appeal.
- 5. The independent review shall be conducted by a not directly involved District employee or an experienced but disinterested third party from outside the District.
- 6. Failure to appeal to the Anchorage School Board as provided herein constitutes a waiver of any objections to the solicitation and the contract award.

### C. Consideration of Appeal:

- 1. The decision being appealed and the findings from the independent review, if any, will be reported to the Board.
- 2. Upon consideration of the appeal and allowing interested parties an opportunity to address the issues on appeal, the Board may:
  - a. Award the contract as recommended, if applicable, indicating its reasons for rejecting the appeal;
  - b. Grant the appeal, indicating its reasons for granting the appeal, and determine an appropriate remedy consistent with AR3311.1(c).1 of Board Policy. The Board may award the contract at that meeting to some other bidder/proposer if it finds that a delay in making the award would adversely affect the District;
  - c. Stay any award of the contract to permit further consideration of the appeal, with action to be scheduled as soon as practicable, but in no event more than twenty (20) days after the stay as initiated;
  - d. Reject all bids/proposals.
  - e. Take such other action as appears appropriate and in the best interest of the District under the circumstances.

### D. Frivolous Protests:

1. Signature on Protest Constitutes Certificate

The signature of an attorney or party on a request for review, protest, motion, or other document constitutes a certificate by the signer that the signer has read the document, to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief formed after reasonable inquiry it is well grounded in fact and is warranted by existing law or a good faith argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law, and that it is not interposed for an improper purpose, such as to harass, limit competition, or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the procurement or of the litigation.

2. Sanctions for Violation

If a request for review, protest, pleading, motion, or other document is filed with the Purchasing Senior Director is signed in violation of Board Policy AR3311.1(c).1, the Board, may impose upon the person who signed it, a represented party, or both, an appropriate sanction, that may include an order to pay to the other party or parties the amount of the reasonable expenses incurred because of the filing of the protest, pleading, motion, or other paper, including a reasonable attorney's fee.

### 1.22 GUARANTEE SECTION

A. Whether or not there appears here or elsewhere herein specific reference to guarantees of all items of material, equipment or workmanship, they nevertheless shall be so guaranteed against defects for which the Contractor is responsible that may develop or become evident within a period of one (1) year from and after final acceptance of the work by the Owner. This guarantee shall be understood to imply prompt attention to any remedy of such defects as those mentioned above if and as they occur after the Contractor shall have written notice of their existence. If the defect, in the opinion of the Owner, is of such nature as to demand immediate repair, the Owner shall have the right to make them and the cost thereof shall be borne by the Contractor.

### 1.23 SUBCONTRACTORS

- A. All subcontractors proposed for the work must be acceptable to the Owner.
- B. The Owner reserves the right to request the proposed subcontractors to complete qualification forms and/or current financial statements prepared by a Certified Public Accountant.

### 1.24 MINIMUM WAGE RATES

A. Labor required for the construction of this project is subject to the minimum wage rates as provided in the General Requirements.

### 1.25 NON DISCRIMINATION

- A. No bidder/offeror on any District contract may illegally discriminate on the basis of sex, race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, changes in marital status, pregnancy, parenthood, physical or mental disability, Vietnam era veteran status, genetic information, or good faith reporting to the board on a matter of public concern in employment, provision of services, or otherwise.
- B. Any bidder/offeror submitting a bid or proposal of one hundred thousand (\$100,000) or more must certify that if awarded a contract on the basis of that bid or proposal, he/she as the contractor will not illegally discriminate against any member or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, changes in marital status, pregnancy,

parenthood, physical or mental disability, Vietnam era veteran status, genetic information, or good faith reporting to the board on a matter of public concern in employment, provision of services, or otherwise.

### 1. Notice of Compliance

- a. All successful bidders/offerors shall insure such non-discrimination.
- b. All successful bidders/offerors must agree to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notice setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination section and this section shall be deemed to be a part of every contract entered into by the District under these policies.

### 2. Minority Business Enterprises

- a. The District requires adherence to the Anchorage Municipal Code, relating to Minority Business Enterprises and will monitor and implement these policies through the District's Equal Employment Opportunity Director (EEO).
- b. It is the policy of the District that socially and economically disadvantaged minority businesses located within the Municipality of Anchorage be afforded an equitable opportunity to participate in District contracts.
- c. Any appeal from a decision of the Equal Employment Opportunity Director shall be to the Superintendent and, if not satisfied, to the Board.

### 1.26 ASBESTOS FREE MATERIALS

A. The bidder, by submitting a bid on this project, thereby certifies and guarantees to the Anchorage School District that any products or materials sold, used or installed under the terms of this contract will not contain any asbestos. In the event the product sold does not conform to the above standards, the buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the seller's option and at the seller's expense. Services performed by the seller which do not conform to the above standards must be corrected by the seller at the seller's expense or make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time.

### 1.27 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- A. The Contractor agrees to certify that Anchorage School District employees, School Board members, or a member of their household are not in conflict of interest with the contract and Board Policy as follows (AR3311.1(e).1 Disclosure and Waiver of Conflict of Interest):
  - No Board member, employee, or a member of their household, shall acquire, directly or indirectly, an economic interest in a District or Municipal contract, or engage in business with the District or the municipality, unless the contract is competitively solicited and other requirements of Section 3311 of Board Policy and section 1.15 of the Anchorage Municipal Code are met.
  - 2. The following acts and circumstances shall not be deemed to be in conflict with the performance of official duties if, at the earliest opportunity after having acquired such knowledge, the Board member or employee files a disclosure pursuant to AR3311.1(e).1 or requests and obtains a waiver pursuant to Board Policy AR3311.1(e).2:
    - a. Such person owns a sole proprietorship, or is a partner in a partnership, or is an officer, director, major shareholder (five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding shares) or has management control in a corporation that

- submits a bid, proposal or quotation to the District or attempts to enter or enters into a contract with the District;
- b. Such person has any significant (five percent (5%) or more) financial interest in any sale, lease or rental to the District of any service or property and such person has knowledge that the District intends to purchase, lease or rent the property or service;
- c. Such person wishes to sell or receive royalties on books or materials sold to the District for use in the school system for which the employee is the author:
- d. Such person is an employee who has been providing private services to a child who transfers to a new school or class or advances to a higher grade and the child becomes a student in the class being taught/aided by his/her provider.
- B. Board Members, District employees, and their household and/or immediate family members are required to comply with Board Policies and the Municipal Ethics Code by disclosing conflicts of interest.
  - When a board member, employee, or their household and/or immediate family member intends to do business with the District, the appropriate District and Municipal forms must be filed by the Board Member or District employee with the Municipal Clerk's Office and the Purchasing Department.

Note: Notice of Intent To Respond To Public Solicitation shall be filed with the Municipal Clerk's office in advance to allow a minimum of 7 calendar days to elapse between electronic publication by the clerk and the final date for submitting a response to the solicitation. The form may be obtained from the Municipality of Anchorage website, <a href="https://www.muni.org">www.muni.org</a>.

District *Disclosure* and *Request for Waiver* forms and instructions may be obtained from the Purchasing Bid Information link under Quick Links on the ASD website, <a href="https://www.asdk12.org">www.asdk12.org</a>.

- 2. The responsibility for complete and timely filing rests solely with the Board Member or District employee.
- Copies of all conflict of interest and ethics code documents should be submitted with your quote.

### 1.28 CONTRACT INDUCEMENTS

A. No payment, gratuity or offer of employment shall be made in connection with any contract, by or on behalf of the subcontractor to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order.

### 1.29 GOVERNANCE

A. This solicitation is an Invitation to Bid ("ITB") governed by applicable Anchorage School Board Policies, including Section 3311 of such Policies. Anchorage School Board Policies are available at

https://www.boardpolicyonline.com/?b=anchorage

Offerors should read this ITB carefully and review all instructions contained herein. Incomplete or incorrect bids may be rejected as not conforming to the essential

requirements of the ITB. Bids submitted on other than the prescribed forms contained in this ITB will be rejected. Bidders may copy the forms contained in the ITB for use in their bids, but substitute forms or formats are unacceptable. Electronic copies of the forms which bidders must submit as part of any bid, if any—if not provided with this ITB—may be obtained by contacting the Anchorage School District Purchasing Department. Forms shall not be altered except to supply requested bidder information.

### 1.30 APPRENTICESHIP UTILIZATION COMPLIANCE

- A. In order to be deemed a responsive bid/offer, bidders/offerors shall provide a signed notarized Apprenticeship Utilization Affidavit ("AUA") with their bid. ASD reserves the right to request the signed notarized AUA to be submitted within three (3) working days after bid submission. By doing this, bidders/offerors are confirming that they understand and agree that in all trades/crafts categories in which there is an Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Program, they will ensure that 15% of the aggregate hours in those trades' categories will be worked by apprentices, as mandated by Anchorage School Board Policy 3311.1.2. This applies to both prime contractor labor hours and subcontractor labor hours. By signing the AUA, bidders/offerors are confirming their understanding and agreement that ASD will request documentation to factually demonstrate compliance with the 15% Apprenticeship Utilization Policy ("AUP"), and conduct audits. Audits for smaller projects will be conducted every 30 days, larger projects will be audited every 90 days. In addition to providing documentation to ASD to confirm that 15% of the labor hours worked in trades/crafts categories that have Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Program has been done by certified apprentices enrolled in such programs, the prime contractor will provide documentation to confirm that the apprentices listed on the documentation submitted are currently in good standing in their Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Program. Attached to the solicitation will be the current version of the Federally Registered Alaskan Apprenticeship Programs, which was provided to ASD by the Federal Department of Labor.
- B. Forms used to demonstrate compliance during the contract administration period are found in Section 00630 Construction Forms.
  - 1. List of Federally Registered Alaskan Apprenticeship Programs
    - a. This list from the Federal Department of Labor will provide contractors with a list of Alaskan apprenticeship programs and crafts/trades categories that are subject to ASD's AUP.
  - 2. Apprenticeship Utilization Form
    - a. The Prime Contractor will list the crafts/trades categories required to complete the project that have Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Programs. This list will include all crafts/trades categories for both the prime and subcontractors.
  - 3. Apprenticeship Utilization Program Calculation Form
    - a. This form will be submitted by the prime contractors to demonstrate compliance with the apprenticeship utilization percentage for both prime and subcontractors on the project.

- b. Audits will be performed when the hours submitted by the prime's and/or subcontractor's certified payroll exceed 500 hours. Audits will continue as per the schedule unless the prime's and the subcontractor's certified payroll does not meet the minimum threshold of 500 hours. Prime and Subcontractors will be required to submit certified payrolls during periods where very little work is being performed. This will continue until the minimum threshold of 500 hours is met and warrants an audit. Audits will be conducted from Site Available to Contractors through Final Completion on all projects awarded by the District in excess of \$100,000 at the time of bid.
- 4. Penalty Table
  - a. This table lists the penalties for non-compliance with the AUP.
- C. Prime Contractors are required to meet with Purchasing to discuss forms and processes of Apprentice Utilization Program prior to start of work.

**END OF SECTION** 

### PROJECT SCHEDULE MILESTONE DATES

On-Site Visit	February 29, 2024
Pre-Bid Conference	March 1, 2024
Bid Opening	March 14, 2024
Notice to Proceed (anticipated)	May 20, 2024
Site Available to Contractor	June 28, 2024
Substantial Completion - Site	August 30, 2024
Final Completion	December 21, 2024
<u>Dates of Interest:</u>	
Spring Break Week School Ends for Students Teachers Last Day Memorial Day Independence Day Holiday Teachers First Day Students First Day Labor Day Indigenous Peoples Day Parent Teacher Conferences Thanksgiving Holiday	
Winter Vacation	December 23, 2024 – January 3, 2025

The Contractor shall be required to plan, schedule, execute and complete all work under the contract in accordance with the Project Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under this Section 00200. The above listed Project Schedule Milestone Dates for Substantial Completion and Final Completion may not be altered by the Contractor, either to schedule or to achieve early completion of the project, without the express written consent of the Owner.

The bidder's attention is drawn to the requirements of Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements entitled Project Schedule and to the Phasing Drawings for associated phasing information.

**END OF SECTION** 

Project	Title: West-Romig Site Improvements	Invitation to Bid Number: 2024 – 812
TO:	Anchorage School District 4919 Van Buren Street Anchorage, Alaska 99517	
FROM:		BIDDER
		ADDRESS
		CITY/STATE
		PHONE/FAX
		EMAIL
•		n individual, a company, a corporation, organized and, or a proprietorship, a partnership, or
	nture consisting of	
joint vei	nture consisting or	-
1.	BASE BID:	
	where work is to be executed, and having care currently exist, and having carefully examined addenda to such contract documents as listed agrees to provide all labor, materials, equipments as a such contract documents as listed agrees to provide all labor, materials, equipments.	cal conditions affecting the cost of the work at the place efully examined the site and building conditions as they if the proposed contract documents, together with any ed hereinafter, the undersigned hereby proposes and tent, transportation, supervision and other facilities as e work described by the aforesaid contract documents
		\$ (In Numbers)
	Said amount being hereinafter referred to a	s the base bid, base bid proposed, or lump sum.
2.	ALTERNATES:	
	the base bid. Additions and deductions shall in the undersigned may deem to be required to patternate, including allowances for overhead a	es for the stated resulting additions or deductions from nelude any modifications of work or additional work that perform by reason of the acceptance or rejection of any nd profit, and in accordance with the Project Schedule to hereof. The Owner reserves the right to award the them in the contract award price.
	A. None	
3.	UNIT PRICES:	

The following unit prices will be used at the discretion of the Owner for the addition or deletion of work

not reasonably implied or not included in the Contract Documents. Unit prices must include all labor, material, overhead, and profit for each unit of work. All unit price work will be processed by Request for Proposal followed by a Change Order to the Contract when quantities are verified and agreed upon.

Δ	N	OI	٦,	_
_	- 11			

- ALLOWANCES / ASSIGNMENTS:
  - A. None
- 5. ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

The undersigned appearing on adde	 receipt	of the	following	addenda:	(List by	number	and	date

### TIME OF COMPLETION:

The undersigned agrees to complete all work under this contract in accordance with the Project Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 hereof.

BID SECURITY:

A bid bond in the amount of five percent (5%) of the total amount of the base bid is attached in the sum of:

which is to become the property of the Owner in the event the Performance Bond and Payment Bond are not executed within the time set forth in paragraph 10 of this section, as liquidated damages for the delay and additional work caused the Owner.

- 8. The undersigned agrees that upon receipt of the notice of acceptance of his bid, he will execute the formal contract, and will deliver all proper bonds and proof of insurance coverage as may be required by the contract documents.
- 9. The undersigned agrees to accept the Assignment of the Bid Allowance as set forth in Section 01031, Bid Allowances.
- 10. The undersigned further agrees to execute the formal contract within ten (10) days from the date of the notice of acceptance of this bid, and in case the undersigned fails or neglects to appear within the specified time to execute the contract, the undersigned will be considered as having abandoned the contract, and the bid bond accompanying this bid will be forfeited to the Owner by reason of such failure on the part of the undersigned.
- 11. The undersigned further agrees to commence with the work under the contract in accordance with the date of commencement of the Work established in the Notice to Proceed.

- 12. The undersigned further agrees that the bid security may be retained by the Owner and that said bid guarantee shall remain with the Owner until the contract has been executed by the Owner.
- 13. The undersigned has checked all of the above figures, and understands that the Owner will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the undersigned in preparing this bid.
- 14. In submitting this bid, it is understood that the right is reserved by the Owner to reject any or all bids and waive any informalities and irregularities in connection therewith. It is agreed that this bid may not be withdrawn for a period of forty-five (45) days from the date and time of opening.
- 15. The undersigned declares that the person or persons signing this Bid Form is/are fully authorized to sign on behalf of the firm listed and to fully bind the firm listed to all the conditions and provisions thereof.
- 16. It is agreed that no person or persons or company other than the firm listed below or as otherwise indicated has any interest whatsoever in this bid or the contract that may be entered into as a result of the bid and that in all respects the proposal is legal and firm, submitted in good faith without collusion for fraud.
- 17. It is agreed that the undersigned has complied or will comply with all requirements of local, state and national laws, and that no legal requirement has been or will be violated in making or accepting this bid in awarding the contract to him and/or in the prosecution of the work required.
- 18. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

I certify no	memb	per of the	he So	chool E	3oard	or Distr	rict	employ	/ee	, or spou	se or	other	membe	er of	his/her
household	shall	have a	any u	ındisclo	osed i	nterest	as	noted	in	paragrap	h en	titled	Conflict	Of	Interest
(Section 00	0100).	By and	d for	the bid	lder:										

	Signature:					
19.	APPRENTICESHIP UTILIZATION AFFIDA	AVIT (FOR BIDS OVER \$100,000)				
	Pursuant to School Board Policy 3311.1.2, Use of Apprentices, I					
	the undersigned Principal for					
	on Solicitation	certify:				

- A. I understand that Anchorage School District ("ASD") School Board Policy 3311.1.2 states, "For capital maintenance and construction projects with an estimated total cost of more than \$100,000, the Anchorage School District shall require that no less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total hours worked on the project shall be performed by apprentices enrolled in a federally registered or State of Alaska-approved apprenticeship program. This requirement shall only apply to crafts for which an Alaskan federally registered apprenticeship program exists."
- B. I will ensure that apprentices employed by the prime and sub-contractors, in the eligible trades categories, will provide no less than fifteen percent (15%) of the aggregate labor hours of those eligible trades categories.
- C. I understand that if awarded a contract, ASD will audit the prime contractor at 30-day intervals for contracts from \$100,001 to \$5,000,000 and 90-day intervals for contracts exceeding \$5,000,000 and ASD reserves the right to audit at random intervals as needed.

- D. I understand ASD will conduct random site inspections to determine that employed apprentices are working at the project site.
- E. I understand that if I am awarded a contract ASD will require the following specific reporting requirements during the contract performance period to ensure that the 15% apprenticeship utilization requirement is met:
  - a. List of the apprentices the prime contractor intends to use to meet the utilization goal, and the Alaskan federally registered apprenticeship programs to which they belong (Apprenticeship Utilization Form);
  - b. List of the subcontractors that the prime contractor will use on this project;
  - c. List of the apprentices the subcontractor intends to use to meet the utilization goal required by the prime contractor, and the apprenticeship programs they belong to (Apprenticeship Utilization Form);
  - d. Submission of Apprenticeship Utilization Program Calculations Form, to be submitted by the prime contractor, at 30-day intervals for contracts from \$100,001 to \$5,000,000 and 90-day intervals for contracts exceeding \$5,000,000, consisting of a compliance spreadsheet, with supporting documents demonstrating compliance by both the prime contractor and all subcontractors, identifying the trades categories that are subject to the utilization requirement, apprentice employees used to meet the goals, and apprentice hours calculation showing compliance with the required 15% utilization when compared to total hours worked in the eligible trades categories.
- F. I understand a non-compliance penalty for projects from \$100,001 to \$5,000,000 will be assessed at each 30-day audit per the Penalty Table, if I am found to be non-compliant during the contract period.
  - a. Failure to comply at 1st 30-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice.
  - b. Failure to comply in a consecutive 2nd 30-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice.
  - c. Failure to comply in a consecutive 3rd 30-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice.
  - d. Failure to comply in a consecutive 4th 30-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice, and may result in a finding of non-responsibility on future bidding. (This penalty will repeat for any future non-compliance.)
- G. I understand a penalty for projects exceeding \$5,000,000 will be assessed at each 90-day audit, if I am found to be non-compliant during the contract period.
  - a. Failure to comply at 1st 90-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice.
  - b. Failure to comply in a consecutive 2nd 90-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice.
  - c. Failure to comply in a consecutive 3rd 90-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice.
  - d. Failure to comply in a consecutive 4th 90-day audit will result in a penalty per the Penalty Table, which will be deducted from the prime contractor's invoice, and may result in a finding of non-responsibility on future bidding. (This penalty will repeat for any future non-compliance.)
- H. <u>Application of the Penalty Table:</u>

a. Advancement of penalties in the Penalty Table will only be assessed for consecutive non-compliance. If the contractor gets back into compliance, any future non-compliance will be assessed at the beginning step of the Penalty Table, per the applicable contract threshold category.

### I. <u>Lack of Apprentice(s) availability:</u>

- a. If a contractor is awarded a contract but cannot meet the apprenticeship utilization requirement, and fail an audit, the contractor will have the opportunity to request a waiver from the apprenticeship utilization requirement. A waiver will only be granted if the contractor can factually demonstrate that the cause was from a lack of available apprentices in eligible trades categories.
- J. ASD will provide the List of Alaskan Federal Registered Apprenticeship Programs, which contains the crafts/trades categories within those federally registered programs. Once per year, ASD will receive the updated List of Alaskan Federal Registered Apprenticeship Programs from the Federal Department of Labor to capture any new Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Programs that have been added, or to capture any that have been dissolved or discontinued. The List of Alaskan Federal Registered Apprenticeship Programs provided to ASD by the Federal Department of Labor will be posted on ASD's website, as contained in the solicitation, so contractors have access to it.

### K. Definitions:

- a. Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Programs are programs approved by the Federal Department of Labor, US DOL Office of Apprenticeship.
- b. **Eligible Trades Categories** are the crafts/trades categories that fall under an Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Program. Eligible Trades Categories will be the categories measured for aggregate project hours and apprentice hours to establish the apprenticeship utilization percentage.
- c. The List of Alaskan Federal Registered Apprenticeship Programs is a current list provided by ASD to contractors that shows the Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Programs and the eligible trades categories under those programs. That current list will be the list in effect and in force during the issuance of the solicitation. Any changes to the list will affect future solicitations and will not be retroactive to prior solicitations.
- d. **Random Site Inspections** are defined as non-scheduled site inspections, in which ASD's representative will visit the project site to establish if apprentices are physically on-site. ASD will provide a minimum of 24 hours' notice to contractors prior to the site inspections.
- e. **Consecutive Non-Compliance** is when a contractor consecutively fails to meet the required apprenticeship utilization percentage. If a contractor fails an audit, but then passes the next audit, any future non-compliance will be addressed at the first step of the Penalty Table per the contract values in the table.
- f. The Measurement of Aggregate Apprenticeship Utilization Hours is defined by the following. Compliance will be audited at 30-day intervals for projects from \$100,001 to \$5,000,000, and 90-day intervals for projects over \$5,000,000. Each 30 or 90 day audit period will be measured independently for aggregate apprenticeship utilization hours. If a contractor does not meet the 15% apprenticeship utilization requirement in an audit period, a penalty will be assessed, per the penalty table. However, the deficiency in percentage of apprenticeship utilization hours, will not be carried forward from one audit period to the next. Contractors will only be required to meet the 15% apprenticeship utilization requirement in each audit period, which will be measured independently. In addition, if the aggregate hours for all audit periods for the entire project are

- 15% or greater, any previously assessed penalties for non-compliance in an audit period will be rescinded.
- g. **Finding of non-responsibility:** If ASD determines a contractor to be non-responsible, they will not be permitted to bid on ASD projects.

20, at	, Alaska.
Signature:	
Printed Name:	
, being first duly swor	n, say that I am the agent for and
said company to do so;	that I have read the same, know
rth therein are as I truly	believe.
Signature:	
day of	, 20, at
•	for:
My Commission Expi	ires:
·	
acting License Number:	:
, 20	
	Printed Name:

### CORPORATE SEAL

### **ENCLOSURES**:

1. Bid Guarantee (in the form and amount specified or required, include Power of Attorney For Surety)

**END OF SECTION** 

### OWNER - CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FORM

### REFERENCE:

- 1. The form of agreement between the Owner and the Contractor shall be the form bound herein.
- 2. The Agreement shall be executed in duplicate.

## CONTRACT NO. XXCXXXX WEST-ROMIG SITE IMPROVEMENTS ITB 2024-8XX ASD PROJECT NO. 850042

	Board Memo No.: <u>N/A</u>
	Date of Contract: Date of Contract
Company Address City, State, Zip	(_) Sole Proprietorship (_) Partnership (_) Incorporated in the State of Alaska
OWNER:	ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT, ANCHORAGE ALASKA
CONTRACT FOR	R: ITB WEST-ROMIG SITE IMPROVEMENTS

Amount of Contract: Amount of Contract in words Dollars and No Cents

Base Bid: \$xxx,xxx.xx
Additive Alternate 1: \$xxx,xxx.xx
Siemens Allowance: \$xxx,xxx.xx
Total: \$xxx,xxx.xx

Statement of Work: The Contractor shall furnish all labor, equipment and materials and perform the work above described for the amount stated in strict accordance with Contract Documents, all of which are made a part of this Contract and designated as follows:

### CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- I. This Contract, consisting of two (2) pages.
- II. Section 00620 Performance Bond and Payment Bond, consisting of nine (9) pages, dated (date of contract) and attached Power of Attorney for Surety.
- III. Contractor signed Bid Form, Section 00300 and signed Addendum/a consisting of four (4) or five (5) pages.
- IV. Alaska Sex Offender/Child Kidnapper Registry Contractor Certification consisting of one (1) page.
- V. Certificates of Insurance.
- VI. Invitation to Bid (number) Project Manual dated (date) and all Drawings are hereby incorporated by reference as if in full text.

In the event of a conflict between any of the Contract Documents and the provisions of any purchase order of materials or service request issued in connection with this Contract, the provisions of the Contract Documents shall prevail.

Work shall be started in accordance with the Notice to Proceed. Time being of the essence, work shall be completed in accordance with the Project Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 thereof.

The ASD Project Manager for this Contract is: Linyi Long Cell (907) 242-4786, Office (907) 348-5244 and email address: long\_linyi@asdk12.org.

The attached performance and payment bond is in due form according to law, and is hereby approved.

OWNER – CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FORM
Division 0
Section 00500

	Date:
Anchorage School District Attorney	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto hage hereof.	have executed this Contract as of this date entered on the first
ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT	CONTRACTOR BUSINESS NAME
David Whiting, Date Senior Director of Purchasing/Warehouse	Contractor Signature Date
	Contractor Print Name and Title
	Corporate Seal
JL Account Code(s): 85118-5200	
	D OF CONTRACT
Ef	ND OF SECTION

### **BID BOND FORM**

R	F	F	F	R	F	N	C	F	•

1. If the Bid Guarantee is submitted on Bond Form, the Bid Bond shall be the form as bound herein.

### **BID BOND**

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT that we, _	as
_	Contractor
PRINCIPAL, andSurety	a corporation duly organized under the laws,
the amount of 5% of the Base Bid Amount for paym	DBLIGOR authorized to transact surety business in the ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT, as OBLIGEE, ir lent whereof PRINCIPAL and SURETY bind ourselves d assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these present
WHEREAS, the PRINCIPAL is herewith submitting	its proposal for
formal contract, and give a good and sufficient bond	PRINCIPAL will, within the time required, enter into a I to secure the performance of the terms and conditions erwise, the PRINCIPAL and SURETY will pay unto the
OWNER	CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
Anchorage School District 4919 Van Buren Street	Solicitation No.:
Anchorage, Alaska 99517	Location:
CONTRACTOR	SURETY
Name:	Name:
Address:	Address:
City/State:	Citv/State:

day of, 20	
PRINCIPAL	SURETY
Contractor Name	Corporate Surety Name (Seal)
By:Signature	By:Signature
Typed Name and Title	Typed Name, Attorney-in-fact
WITNESS AS TO PRINCIPAL	
Note: Attach Power of Attorney for Surety Signator	or.

END OF SECTION

### PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND

R	F	F	F	R	FI	N	C	F	•

1. The Performance Bond and Payment Bond shall be the forms as bound herein.

### **CONSTRUCTION PERFORMANCE BOND**

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT	that we,as
	Contractor
PRINCIPAL, andSurety	, a corporation duly organized under the laws
of the State of, as State of Alaska, are held and firmly boun the amount	SURETY/OBLIGOR authorized to transact surety business in the d unto the ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT, as OBLIGEE, in
of	
	Dollars
(\$), for payment vexecutors, administrators, successors and	whereof PRINCIPAL and SURETY bind ourselves, our heirs, d assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these present.
This Construction Performance Bond ("B ensure the faithful performance of the Co	ond") is entered into by and between the undersigned parties to nstruction Contract listed below.
OWNER	CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
Anchorage School District	Solicitation No.:
4919 Van Buren Street	Location:
Anchorage, Alaska 99517	
BOND	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
Number:	Number:
Date:	Date:
Amount:	Amount:
CONTRACTOR	SURETY
Name:	Name:
Address:	Address:
Citv/State:	Citv/State:

# PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND Division 0 Section 00620

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereur	nto have caused the execution here	of of two (2) original
counterparts as the day of	, 20	
PRINCIPAL	SURETY	
Contractor Name	Corporate Surety Name	(Seal)
Signature	Signature	
Typed Name and Title	Typed Name, Attorney-in	-fact
WITNESS AS TO PRINCIPAL		

Note: Attach Power of Attorney for Surety Signator.

#### CONSTRUCTION PERFORMANCE BOND TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1. The CONTRACTOR and the SURETY, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to the OWNER for the complete and proper performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- If the CONTRACTOR completely and properly performs all of its obligations under the Construction Contract, the SURETY and the CONTRACTOR shall have no obligation under this Bond.
- 3. If there is no OWNER Default, the SURETY's obligation under this Bond shall arise after:
  - a. OWNER has declared a CONTRACTOR Default under the Construction Contract pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract; and
  - b. The OWNER has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Sum to:
    - i. The SURETY in accordance with the terms of this Bond and the Construction Contract; or
    - ii. A contractor selected to perform the Construction Contract in accordance with the terms of this Bond and the Construction Contract.
- 4. When the OWNER has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the SURETY shall promptly (within thirty (30) days) and at the SURETY's expense elect to take one of the following actions:
  - a. Arrange for the CONTRACTOR, with consent of the OWNER, to perform and complete the Construction Contract (but OWNER may withhold consent, in which case the SURETY must election option 4b, 4c or 4d, below); or
  - b. Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or through independent contractors; or
  - c. Obtain bids from qualified contractors acceptable to OWNER for a contract for performance and completion of the Construction Contract, and, upon determination by OWNER of the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by OWNER and the contractor selected with OWNER's concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified SURETY equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract; and, if the SURETY's obligations defined in Paragraph 6 exceed the Balance of the Contract Sum, then the SURETY shall pay to OWNER the amount of such excess; or
  - d. Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and, with reasonable promptness under the circumstances and after investigation and consultation with OWNER, determine in good faith the amount for which it may then be liable to OWNER under Paragraph 6 for the performance and completion of the Construction Contract and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefore to OWNER with full explanation of the payment's calculation. If OWNER accepts the SURETY's tender under this paragraph 4.d, OWNER may still hold SURETY liable for future damages then unknown or unliquidated resulting from the CONTRACTOR Default. If OWNER disputes the amount of the SURETY's tender under this paragraph 4.d, OWNER may exercise all remedies available to it at law to enforce the SURETY's liability under paragraph 6.

- 5. If the SURETY does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 4, then the SURETY shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond ten (10) days after receipt of an additional written notice from OWNER to the SURETY demanding that the SURETY perform its obligations under this Bond. At all times OWNER shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to OWNER at law or under the Construction Contract including, without limitation, and by way of example only, rights to perform work, protect work, mitigate damages, or coordinate work with other consultants or contractors.
- 6. The SURETY's monetary obligation under this Bond is limited by the amount of this Bond. Subject to these limits, the SURETY's obligations under this Bond are commensurate with the obligations of the CONTRACTOR under the Construction Contract. The SURETY's obligations shall include but are not limited to:
  - a. The responsibilities of the CONTRACTOR under the Construction Contract for completion of the Construction Contract and correction of defective work;
  - b. The responsibilities of the CONTRACTOR under the Construction Contract to pay liquidated damages, and for damages for which no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages caused by non-performance of the Construction Contract, including but not limited to, all valid and proper back charges, offsets, payments, indemnities or other damages;
  - c. Additional legal, design professional and delay costs resulting from the CONTRACTOR Default or resulting from the actions or failure to act of the SURETY under Paragraph 4.
- 7. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than OWNER or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors.
- 8. The SURETY hereby waives notice of any change, alteration or addition to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations, including changes of time. The SURETY consents to all terms of the Construction Contract, including provisions on changes to the Contract. No extension of time, change, alteration, modification, deletion, or addition to the Contract Documents, or of the work required thereunder, shall release or exonerate SURETY on this Bond or in any way affect the obligations of SURETY on this Bond.
- 9. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under the Bond shall be instituted in the Superior Court for the State of Alaska, Third Judicial District.
- 10. Notice to the SURETY, OWNER or the CONTRACTOR shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the front page.
- 11. Any provision in this Bond conflicting with any statutory or regulatory requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein.
- 12. Definitions.
  - a. Balance of the Contract Sum: The total amount payable by OWNER to the CONTRACTOR pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract after all proper adjustments have been made under the Construction Contract, for example, deductions for progress payments made, and increases/decreases for approved modifications to the Construction Contract.
  - b. Construction Contract: The agreement between OWNER and the CONTRACTOR identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.

- c. CONTRACTOR Default: Material failure of the CONTRACTOR which has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Construction Contract, including but not limited to, the provisions of Article 14 of the General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
- d. OWNER Default: Material failure of OWNER, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the CONTRACTOR progress payments due under the Construction Contract or to perform other material terms of the Construction Contract, if such failure is the cause of the asserted CONTRACTOR Default and is sufficient to justify CONTRACTOR termination of the Construction Contract.

## **PAYMENT BOND**

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT that we, _	as
	Contractor
PRINCIPAL, andSurety	a corporation duly organized under the laws
of the State of, as SURETY/0 state of Alaska, are held and firmly bound unto the the amount	OBLIGOR authorized to transact surety business in the ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT, as OBLIGEE, i
of	Dollars
executors, administrators, successors and assigns,	between the undersigned parties to ensure the faithful
OWNER	CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
Anchorage School District	Solicitation No.:
4919 Van Buren Street	Location:
Anchorage, Alaska 99517	
BOND	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
Number:	Number:
Date:	Date:
Amount:	Amount:
CONTRACTOR	SURETY
Name:	Name:
Address:	Address:
City/State:	Citv/State:

# PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND Division 0 Section 00620

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereun	to have caused the execution herec	of of two (2)
original counterparts as the day of	, 20	
PRINCIPAL	SURETY	
Contractor Name	Corporate Surety Name	(Seal)
Signature	Signature	
Typed Name and Title	Typed Name, Attorney-in-	fact
WITNESS AS TO PRINCIPAL		

Note: Attach Power of Attorney for Surety Signator.

#### PAYMENT BOND TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The condition of this obligation is such that if the PRINCIPAL shall promptly make payment to all Claimants who furnish labor or materials in the prosecution of the Work provided for in the Construction Contract, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect.

This Bond has been furnished to comply with Alaska Statute 36.25.010, and to allow enforcement rights pursuant to Alaska Statute 36.25.020. Any provisions in this Bond conflicting with said statutory requirements shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirements shall be deemed incorporated herein.

The SURETY hereby waives notice of any change, alteration or addition to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations, including changes of time. The SURETY consents to all terms of the Construction Contract, including provisions on changes to the Contract. No extension of time, change, alteration, modification, deletion, or addition to the Contract Documents, or of the work required thereunder, shall release of exonerate SURETY on this Bond or in any way affect the obligations of SURETY on this Bond.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### SAMPLE FORMS AND CERTIFICATES

#### A. GENERAL

#### A.01 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

A. Comply with the contract conditions requirements and specified administrative procedures in closing-out work.

#### A.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

- A. Section 01700: Project Close-Out
- B. General and Supplementary General Conditions

#### A.03 APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

A. Use Anchorage School District Form 100, 100A, 100B, and 100C attached herein.

#### A.04 CERTIFICATION OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

A. Use Anchorage School District Form 101 attached herein.

#### A.05 CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DEBTS AND CLAIMS

A. Use Anchorage School District Form 102 attached herein.

#### A.06 RELEASE ON CONTRACTS

A. Use Anchorage School District Form 103 attached herein.

#### A.07 CONSENT OF SURETY COMPANY TO FINAL PAYMENT

A. Use Anchorage School District Form 104 attached herein.

### A.08 CONSENT OF SURETY TO REDUCTION IN OR PARTIAL RELEASE OF RETAINAGE

A. Use Anchorage School District Form 105 attached herein.

#### A.09 CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

A. The contractor's Certificate of Insurance shall be on an industry standard form with, as a minimum, the categories and clauses on the Accord form with contractual clauses for contract number and description, subrogation waiver, additional insured and cancellation notification.

#### A.10 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

A. Contractor's requests for information shall be on Anchorage School District request for information forms.

#### A.11 PRIME CONTRACT POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER (PCO)

A. Proposals will be executed on Anchorage School District PCO forms.

#### A.12 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

A. The Contractor shall submit a notarized Certificate of Compliance, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.

#### A.13 WARRANTY OF WORK

A. The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a notarized Warranty of Work after Final Payment, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.

#### A.14 AHERA EXCLUSION DOCUMENT

A. The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a signed AHERA Exclusion Document, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.

#### A.15 PRIME CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER (PCCO)

A. Change Orders/Contract Modifications will be executed on Anchorage School District PCCO forms.

#### A.16 CONTRACTOR'S QUALITY CONTROL REPORT (CQC)

A. The Contractor shall complete the CQC Report in accordance with Section 01400.

#### A.17 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR NOTICE OF WORK

A. The Contractor shall furnish to the Department of Labor a Notice of Work prior to start of construction.

#### A.18 DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE TAX CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM

A. For projects funded through the Department of Education (debt reimbursement or DEED grants), the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a Tax Clearance Request Form approved by the Department of Revenue, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.

### A.19 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR TAX CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM

A. For projects funded through the Department of Education (debt reimbursement or DEED grants), the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a Tax Clearance Request Form approved by the Department of Labor, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.

#### A.20 SUBMITTAL CONTROL FORM

A. Submittals will be executed on Anchorage School District Submittal Control Forms.

## A.21 STATE OF ALASKA SEX OFFENDER/CHILD KIDNAPPER REGISTRY CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

A. Contractor certifies contractor is familiar with and is in compliance with Anchorage School Board Policy 3515.5, that no employee or agent of contractor who will be on district property is registered as a sex offender or child kidnapper in Alaska [Alaska Department of Public Safety "Sex Offender/Child Kidnapper Registry"] or in any other state in which the

employee or agent previously lived or worked, and that, to contractors knowledge, no employee or agent is a convicted sex offender or child kidnapper.

# A.22 STATE OF ALASKA SEX OFFENDER/CHILD KIDNAPPER REGISTRY SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

A. Subcontractor certifies subcontractor is familiar with and is in compliance with Anchorage School Board Policy 3515.5, that no employee or agent of subcontractor who will be on district property is registered as a sex offender or child kidnapper in Alaska [Alaska Department of Public Safety "Sex Offender/Child Kidnapper Registry"] or in any other state in which the employee or agent previously lived or worked, and that, to subcontractors knowledge, no employee or agent is a convicted sex offender or child kidnapper.

# A.23 STATE OF ALASKA SEX OFFENDER/CHILD KIDNAPPER REGISTRY SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

A. Sub-subcontractor certifies sub-subcontractor is familiar with and is in compliance with Anchorage School Board Policy 3515.5, that no employee or agent of sub-subcontractor who will be on district property is registered as a sex offender or child kidnapper in Alaska [Alaska Department of Public Safety "Sex Offender/Child Kidnapper Registry"] or in any other state in which the employee or agent previously lived or worked, and that, to sub-subcontractors knowledge, no employee or agent is a convicted sex offender or child kidnapper.

#### A.24 LIST OF FEDERALLY REGISTERED ALASKAN APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS

A. This list from the Federal Department of Labor will provide contractors with the list Alaskan apprenticeship programs and crafts/trades categories that are subject to ASD's AUP.

#### A.25 APPRENTICESHIP UTILIZATION FORM

A. The Prime Contractor will list the crafts/trades categories required to complete the project that have Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Programs. This list will include all crafts/trades categories for both the prime and subcontractors.

#### A.26 APPRENTICESHIP UTILIZATION PROGRAM CALCULATION FROM

A. This form will be submitted by the prime contractors to demonstrate compliance with the apprenticeship utilization percentage for both prime and subcontractors on the project.

#### A.27 PENALTY TABLE

A. This table lists the penalties for non-compliance with the AUP.

	Contract #: Application #: Application date: Period to:	00.08 - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	lamounts shown on the face of this Application supplied in full accordance with ons, substitutions, afferations, and/or additions; for which previous pay applications were approved; it is currently due. Signature of Authorized Representative)	I certify that the work completed as shown e Contract Documents, and Signature of Architect)	ASD Project Manager)
ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT	Project Name: ITB/RFP No.: Name of Contractor: Address:	(a) Original contract amount (ASD 100A) (b) Net Change by Change Orders (ASD 100B) (c) Adjusted contract amount to date (a+b) (d) Work Completed to Date (ASD 100B) (e) Materials Stored (ASD 100B) (f) Total Completed and Stored To Date (d+e) (g) Less: amount retained in accordance with contract terms (h) Net amount eamed on contract work to date (f-g) (i) Less: amount of previous payments (ASD 100B) (i) CURRENT PAYMENT DUE (h-1) (k) Balance to Finish (c-h)	According to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that all items and amounts shown on the face of this Application for Payment are correct, that all work has been performed and/or material supplied in full accordance with the requirements of the referenced Contract, and/or duly authorized deviations, substitutions, afterations, and/or additions; that payment has been made for all materials received and work performed for which previous pay applications were approved; that no part of the "Balance Due This Payment" has been received and that it is currently due.    By   Contractor   Contr	CERTIFICATION OF ARCHITECT  According to the best of my knowledge and belief, and based on on-site observations, I certify that the work completed as shown on ASD 100B has progressed as indicated, the quality of work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Contractor is entitled to payment of the Current Payment Due shown above.    Signature of Architect   Date   Date	

ASD 100 (1/15)

Froject Name:   Application ## App			Summary	ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Summary of Original Contract, Change Orders, and Payments	HORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT ginal Contract, Change Orders, and	d Payments	
Original Contract   Period to:   Description   Change Orders   Payments   Balance	Project Nam	<u></u>				Contract #:: Application #:	
No.   Description   Change Orders   Payments   Balance	Name of Co	ntractor:		Original Contract		Application date: Period to:	
No.         Description         Change Orders         Payments         Balance           Image: Contract & Payments         Balance         Balance           Image: Contract & Payments         Balance         Balance           Image: Contract & Payments         \$0.000         \$0.000           Image: Contract & Payments         \$0.000         \$0.000						Contract	
\$0.00	Date	9	Description	Change Orders	Payments	Balance	Comments
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$0.00							
\$		TOTAL	CHANGE ORDERS				
	TOT	AL CONTE	RACT & PAYMENTS		\$0.00		

			ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYNENT Detail of Schedule of Values and Work Completed	ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT ail of Schedule of Values and Work Comp	) T mpleted				
Project Name: ITB/RFP No.: Name of Conti	Project Name: ITB/RFP No.: Name of Contractor:					CC App Applica	Contract #:: Application #: Application date: Period to:		
A	8	ပ	٥	В	ш	ອ		Ξ	Т
Item	Description of Work	Scheduled Value	WORK CO From Prior	WORK COMPLETED Prior This Period	Materials Presently Stored (Not in D or	TOTAL Completed and Stored to Date	(O÷O)	Balance to Finish	
			Application (D+E)		E)	(D+E+F)	+	1	Т
								- ' '	
								\$	
						- ' - %	i0/AIQ#	- ·	
								•	
						, A U	i0/\IO#	, P A	
						9 69		9 69	
						\$	_	\$	
						· ·	#DIV/0I	· ·	
							_		
						e es	10/AIC#	e e	
						- - -			
							#DIV/0		
						n 4		e e	
						5			
							i0/\IC#		
						n 6		n 4	
						- \$			
					_	- \$	#DIV/0i	- \$	_
ASD	ASD# 100B (1/15) Continuation								
	Sch. of Values/ Work Completed						of De	Page 1 of Detail Schedule	

		ă	ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Detail of Schedule of Values and Work Completed	ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT ail of Schedule of Values and Work Com	) T mpleted				
ProjectName: ITB/RFP No.∷ Name of Contl	Project Name: TB/RFP No.: Name of Contractor.					Co Appli Applicat F	Contract #:: Application #: Application date: Period to:		
A	8	ပ	Q	В	4	ຶ		Ŧ	
Item	Description of Work	Scheduled	$\times$	COMPLETED	Materials Presently	TOTAL Completed	%	Balance to	Γ
		Value	From Prior	This Period	Stored (Not in D or	and Stored to Date	(G ÷ C)	Finish	
			Application (D+E)		E)	(D+E+F)		(C + G)	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	,
						S	#DIV/0i	es ·	
						· ·	#DIV/0i	\$	
						5	#DIV/0i	9	
						· S	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- - -	#DIV/0i	•	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- S	#DIV/0i	\$	
						•	#D/\/D#		
						<u>.</u>	#DIV/0i	٠ ده	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	- 8	_
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						S	#DIV/0i	8	
							#DIV/0i	•	
						· ·	#DIV/0i	- S	
						- - -	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- 8	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	•	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- \$	#DIV/0i	•	_
						- \$	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- S	#DIV/0i	\$	
						- 8	#DIV/0i	\$	
	TOTAL CONTRACT	. \$	- \$	- \$	- \$	\$		- \$	Ţ

Page 2 of Detail Schedule

ASD# 100B (1/15) Continuation Sch. of Values/ Work Completed

		AMOUNT STORED AT END OF THIS PERIOD			- \$
ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Schedule of Stored Materials	Contract #:: Application #: Application date: Period to:	DESCRIPTION			TOTAL STORED MATERIALS
ANCHORAGE APPLICAT		VENDOR			
	Project Name: ITB/RFP No.: Name of Contractor:	INVOICE #			

ASD 100C (1/15) Continuation Stored Material

### **CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION**

Project:			Contract Number:
Contractor:			Contract Date:
Architect: _			Date of Issuance:
Owner:	ANCHORAGE SCHOOL 1301 Labar Street Anchorage, Alaska 9951	-	
Project Des		as been reviewed and fou	nd to be substantially complete. The
date of Subs	tantial Completion is hereby	established as:	
	f Date of Substantial Comp substantial completion of the		by the Owner when the work is
substantially	complete in accordance with	and defined in the Contra	act Documents.
Architect is a	·	to include any items or su	and verified and amended by the ch list does not alter the responsibility ntract Documents.
	tor will complete or correct thubstantial completion.	e work on the list of items	appended hereto within 30 days from
·	ibilities of the Owner and the		e, heat, utilities, and insurance shall
project as su		rdance with the Contract I	the Owner hereby accepts the Documents, the Owner hereby elects
		at	a.m./p.m. on
Owner: ANC	HORAGE SCHOOL DISTRI	————· Эт	
Ву:		itle:	Date:
Architect:			
Ву:		itle:	Date:
Contractor: _			
By:	·	itle:	Date:

# CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DEBTS AND CLAIMS ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, by the terms of a contract d Anchorage School District, and	ated	entered into by the for the construction of
performed, and for all known indebtnes	hereby certifies, ions for all materials and equipment, and claims against the Contractors	construction, that, except as listed below, he has paid furnished, for all work, labor, and services or for damages arising in any manner in the District or his property might in any way
EXCEPTIONS:		
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal of the		hereunto set this
, at	day of	
<u>,</u>	8	
	Ву	
	being first duly sworn,	say that I am the agent for and executed
the foregoing under authority of said com	pany to do so; that I have read the s	same, know the contents thereof, and the
matters set forth therein are as I truly bel	ieve.	
	Ву	
Subscribed and sworn to before me this		day of
a.	, at	•
Nota	ry Public in and for	
	Commission Expires	State of the second sec

ASDF Form 102

# RELEASE ON CONTRACT ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, by the terms of a contract dated	entered into by the Anchorage School
District, and	for the construction of
it is provided that: "Neither the final payment nor the remaining retained p provide the Owner (1) with a waiver and release of liens Contractor"	
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises an undersigned Contractor of the amounts due under the cothe sum	
of \$	Dollars,
(Numbers) (In W	/ords)
the undersigned Contractor hereby releases and forever property, particularly that real property known as the	discharges the Anchorage School District including its
of the Anchorage School District, of and from all manner claims, and demands whatsoever, in Law and in equity, title to all material, supplies and equipment installed or in premises, together with all improvements and appurtenant	under or by virtue of said contract, and warrants good ncorporated in the project and all work delivered to the
free of any claims, liens or encumbrances. Neither the un material or labor for any work covered by this Contract ha thereon, except:	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the signature of the undersign	ed Contractor has been hereunto set this
day of, 20, at	, Alaska.
Signature:	
•	
Printed Name:	<del></del>
I,, being fithe foregoing under authority of said company to do so; and the matters set forth therein are as I truly believe.	irst duly sworn, say that I am the agent for and executed that I have read the same, know the contents thereof,
Signature:	
Subscribed and sworn to before me thisday of	
	Dr
My Commission Expire	es: ASD Form 103
	7.02 100

# CONSENT OF SURETY COMPANY TO FINAL PAYMENT

PROJECT:	PROJECT NUMBER:
CONTRACTOR:	CONTRACT DATE:
TO: Anchorage School District	
In accordance with the provisions of indicated above:	the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as  (Surety Company)
	on bond of
	(Contractor)
Contractor shall not relieve the Suret District, Owner as set forth in said Su and all valid claims of sub-Contractor will be satisfied by Contractor or Sure	Company has hereunto set its hand this
Attest	Name of Surety Company Signature of Authorized Representative
	Title

ASD 104

# CONSENT OF SURETY TO REDUCTION IN OR PARTIAL RELEASE OF RETAINAGE ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROJECT:	PROJECT NUMBER:			
TO: Anchorage School District	CONTRACT DATE:			
CONTRACTOR:				
In accordance with the provisions of the Contr the:	ract between the Owner and the Contractor as indicated above			
	(Surety Company)			
	on bond of			
	(Contractor)			
as follows:  The surety agrees that such reduction in or passurety of any of its obligations to ANCHORA	artial release of retainage to the Contractor shall not relieve the GE SCHOOL DISTRICT, OWNER			
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Surety Compar	ny has hereunto set its hand this			
	day of .			
	Name of Surety Company			
Attest	Signature of Authorized Representative			
	Title			
ASDF Form 105				

DUCER			ONLY AN HOLDER.	ND CONFERS NOT THIS CERTIFICATION	UED AS A MATTER O O RIGHTS UPON TH ATE DOES NOT AME OFFORDED BY THE PO	IE CERTIFICATION OF THE CERTIF
			INSURERS	AFFORDING COV	ERAGE	NAIC#
RED			INSURER A:			TIALO II
			INSURER B:			
			INSURER C:			
			INSURER D:			4
VERAG	I Ee		INSURER E:			
HE POLIC NY REQU AY PERT DLICIES.	CIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BEL JIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITIO 'AIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDE	OW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE I N OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHEI D BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED AY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAIL	R DOCUMENT WIT HEREIN IS SUBJEC	TH RESPECT TO WI	NCH THIS OFFITIEIDATE A	MAY BE ISSUED
ADD'L INSRD	TYPE OF INSURANCE	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY	POLICY EXPIRATION DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMIT	rs
GE	NERAL LIABILITY				EACH OCCURRENCE	s
	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY		1	N. Carlotte	DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	S
_	CLAIMS MADEOCCUR				MED EXP (Any one person)	\$
					PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	\$
					GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$
	POLICY PRO- LOC				PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$
AL	ITOMOBILE LIABILITY	**			COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT	\$
	ANY AUTO	Alia.			(Ea accident)	•
	ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS	4	2		BODILY INJURY (Per person)	\$
	HIRED AUTOS					
	NON-OWNED AUTOS				BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	s
4				•	PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident)	\$
GA	RAGE LIABILITY	Z			AUTO ONLY - EA ACCIDENT	\$
	ANY AUTO		10.00		OTHER THAN EA ACC	\$
		***************************************			AUTO ONLY: AGG	s
EX	CESS ! UMBRELLA LIABILITY				EACH OCCURRENCE	\$
	OCCUR CLAIMS MADE				AGGREGATE	\$
_	7					\$
	DEDUCTIBLE					\$
WORKER	RETENTION \$ RS COMPENSATION				WC STATU- OTH-	\$
AND EMP	PLOYERS' LIABILITY PRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE Y/N				TORY LIMITS   ER	
OFFICER	/MEMBER EXCLUDED?				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	\$
If yes, de	scribe under > PROVISIONS below				E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	
OTHER	2 YO VIOLOSTO BEIOW				E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$
			· ·	7		
RIPTION	OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICL	ES / EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSE	MENT / SPECIAL PROV	VISIONS		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
RIFICA	TE HOLDER		CANCELLA		0.	
			1		ED POLICIES BE CANCELLED B	
					R WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL	
			1		R NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT FA	
			1		Y OF ANY KIND UPON THE IN	SURER, ITS AGENTS
			REPRESENTAT	TIVES.		

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

#### **IMPORTANT**

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

#### DISCLAIMER

This Certificate of Insurance does not constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative or producer, and the certificate holder, nor does it affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed thereon.



Anchorage Facilities Maint	School Distric	t		REQUEST FOR INFORMATION No.
1301 Labar Street Anchorage, Alaska		Phone Fax:	(907) 348-5215 (907) 348-5227	
TITLE:				DATE:
PROJECT:				Project No.:
ГО:				
REQUEST:				
ANSWER:				
Answered By:	Printed Name			
	Signature		Date	
Notification must	authorization to p be given in accordan ny change to the Contra	ce with Contra	any work inv	olving additional cost and / or time.  ny clarification, variation or Architects/Engineer
ANCHORAGE S Reviewed By:	CHOOL DISTRICT US	SE ONLY:	Is this Request for	or Information associated with an Request for Proposal? Yes No
Signed: Project M		Date:		Request for Proposal #



PCO #XXX

Capital Planning & Construction 1301 Labar St Anchorage, Alaska 99515 Phone: (907) 348-5264 Fax: (907) 348-5227

Project:

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #XXX: Name				
TO:	FROM:			
PCO NUMBER/REVISION:	CONTRACT:			
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:	CREATED BY:			
STATUS:	CREATED DATE:			
REFERENCE:	PRIME CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER;			
FIELD CHANGE:	CHANGE ORDER REQUEST:			
LOCATION:	ACCOUNTING METHOD:			
SCHEDULE IMPACT:	PAID IN FULL:			
CHANGE REASON:	TOTAL AMOUNT:			
CHANGE REASON:	TOTAL AMOUNT:			

### Within seven (7) days, submit an itemized proposal.

Provide labor, material, equipment, and supervision necessary to complete changes to project as represented by the documentation indicated below. The quoted price shall include all direct and indirect costs (additive and deductive) associated with and resulting from this work, per the General Conditions of the Contract. Provide lump sum proposal properly itemized and supported by sustaining data to permit evaluation. The quoted price shall be considered full compensation and include all delay, impact, and actual cost associated with the resulting changes from this extra work.

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)

ATTACHMENTS:

APPR	OVAL				
Ву:			By:		
	Project Manager	Date		Contractor	Date
Ву:			By:		
	Construction Supervisor			Senior Director of CP&C	
Date:			Date:		
	Required if amount exceeds \$10,000			Required if amount exceeds \$50,000	

Capital Planning & Construction

page 1 of 1

#### CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

No final payment shall be made until the Contractor shall file with the Owner, prior to acceptance of the work, a notarized Certification of Compliance in the following form:

The Contractor does hereby certify that all work has been performed and materials supplied in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications and Contract Documents for the above work, and that:

No less than the prevailing rates of wages as ascertained by the governing body of the Contracting Agency has been paid to laborers, workmen and mechanics employed on this work;

There have been no unauthorized substitutions of Subcontractors; nor have any subcontracts been entered into without prior notice having been submitted to the Owner prior to the start of such subcontracted work;

No subcontract was assigned or transferred or performed by any Subcontractor other than the original Subcontractor, without prior notice having been submitted to the Owner together with the names of all Subcontractors:

All claims for material and labor and other paid service performed in connection with these specifications have been paid;

All monies due the State Industrial Accident Fund, the State Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund, the State Tax Commission, Hospital Associations and/or others have been paid.

In WITNESS WH	HEREOF, the under	rsigned has signe	d and sealed	I this instrument this
	day of		, 20	
	(Fii	rm Name)		
	(S	ignature)		
	<b>(</b> Ti	itle)		
(Attest)				
(SEAL IF BIDDE	R IS A CORPORA	TION)		

As determined necessary, evidence of compliance may be required to be submitted with and made a part of this Certificate of Compliance.

#### WARRANTY OF WORK

Prior to Final Payment, the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a Warranty of Work in the following form:

The Contractor does hereby warrant all work and materials to be in full and complete accordance with the Contract Documents and Agreement between Owner and Contractor, and requirements appertaining thereto; that all work and materials are free from any and all defects and imperfections, and fully suitable for the use and purposes for which each and every part is intended. The Contractor also agrees that, should any defect develop or appear which the Project Manager or Owner's Representative finds was Not caused by improper use, the Contractor shall promptly, upon demand, fully correct, substitute and make good any such defective material without any cost to the Owner and will save the Owner harmless against any claim, demand, loss or damage by reason of any breach of this warranty.

The period of this warranty shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion.

In WITNESS WHERE, the undersigned has signed and sealed this instrument this

The warranty shall continue to be in full force and effect for the period of one (1) year, except for those items for which a longer period of warranty is specifically stated in the Warranties for work in Technical Sections of the Specifications.

Warranties for work stated in Technical Section shall continue in full force and effect for the respective periods expressly stated.

	,	5 5	
	day of		, 20
		(Firm Name)	
		(Signature)	
		(Title)	
(Attest)			
(SEAL IF BIDDE	R IS A CORI	PORATION)	

## **AHERA Exclusion Document**

Contractor's Verification of Asbestos-Free Construction

ct:	Project Number:
ractor:	Date:
Anchorage School District Facilities Coordinator, AHERA LEA Designated Person	
e best of our knowledge, no asbest roject.	os-containing building materials were installed in
Signature of Authorized Representative	ve
Title	
	Anchorage School District Facilities Coordinator, AHERA LEA Designated Person  e best of our knowledge, no asbest roject.  Signature of Authorized Representative





Capital Planning & Construction 1301 Labar St Anchorage, Alaska 99515 Phone: (907) 348-5264

Project:

Fax: (907)	348-5227			
Pri	ime Contrac	t Change Order # <mark>XX</mark> )	<mark>(</mark> :	
TO:			FROM:	
DATE CR	EATED:		CREATED BY:	
CONTRA	CT STATUS:		REVISION:	
DESIGNA	TED REVIEWER:		REVIEWED BY:	
DUE DAT	E:		REVIEW DATE:	
CONTRAC	CTUAL TION DATE:			
SCHEDULE IMPACT:			EXECUTED:	
CONTRACT FOR:			TOTAL AMOUNT:	
DESCRIP	TION:			
ATTACHN	MENTS:			
CHANGE COR#	ORDER REQUESTS II	I THIS CHANGE ORDER:	scription	Cost
			TOTAL:	\$ 0.00
CHANGE	ORDER LINE ITEMS:	reason		1 ,
Original co	intract sum			\$
Previously	authorized change ord	ers		\$
Previous o	ontract amount			\$
	ange order amount			\$
New contra	act sum			\$
Demont of	original contract sum			

Contractor DATE Senior Director of Purchasing/Warehouse DATE

Capital Planning & Construction

page 1 of 1

CONTRACTOR'S Q	UALITY CONTROL REPORT (CQC)	DATE	REPORT NO.		
CONTRACT NO. AN	ID NAME OF CONTRACTOR	DESCRIPTION AND LOCAT	ION OF THE WORK:		
WEATHER CLASSIF	FICATION:		CLASSIFICATION:		
CLASS A	No interruption of any kind from weather cond previous shifts.	itions occurring on this or	CLASS		
CLASS B	Weather occurred during this shift that caused work.	a complete stoppage of all	TEMPERATURE:  MAXMIN		
CLASS C CLASS D CLASS E	Weather occurred during this shift that caused Weather overhead excellent or suitable during stopped due to results of previous adverse we Weather overhead excellent or suitable during stopped due to previous adverse manner.	shift. Work completely eather.	PRECIPITATION: INCHES		
OTHER	Explain.				
CONTRACTOR/SUBCONTRACTORS AND AREA OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK PERFORMED TODAY: (Attach list of items of equipment either idle or working as appropriate.)					
g					
h					
WORK PERFORMED TODAY: (Indicate location and description of work performed. Refer to work performed by prime and/or subcontractors by letter in Table above. )					
	SULTS OF INSPECTION: (Indicate whether P-Fnpleted or deficiencies with action to be taken.)	Preparatory, I-Initial, or F-Follo	w-up and include		

3. TESTS REQUIRED BY PLANS AND/OR SPECIFICATIONS PERFORMED AND RESULTS OF TESTS:
4. QUALITY CONTROL REPORTS (items requiring special inspections):
5. VERBAL INSTRUCTIONS RECEIVED: (List any instructions given by Owner on construction deficiencies, retesting required, etc., with action to be taken.)
6. REMARKS: (Cover any conflicts in plans, specification or instructions: acceptability of incoming materials; offsite surveillance activities; progress of work, delays, causes and extent thereof; days of no work with reasons for same.)
CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION: I certify that the above report is complete and correct and that all material and equipment used, work performed and tests conducted during this reporting period were in strict compliance with the contract plans and specifications except as noted above.  CONTRACTOR'S APPROVED AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Department of Labor and Workforce Development Labor Standards and Safety Division Wage and Hour Administration www.labor.state.ak.us/lss/lss.htm		NOTICE OF WORK  Filing Fee Required  Project name  Specific site description  Contract awarding agency  Address		
<ul> <li>This form must be typed or printed in ink.</li> <li>Fill in all blanks or form will be returned for correction (see Please allow a minimum of 10 working days for processing the processing of the processing days for pr</li></ul>				
DAITED VOLID DAY #				
ENTER YOUR FAX #_ AND LIST YOUR MAILING ADDRESS BELOW				
Contractor, company or agency name, address, city, state & ZIP + 4		City	State ZIP + 4	
		Contract awarding agency contact person Phone #		
		Location and city where work is to	be performed	
			Do you intend to use subcontractors?	
Primary contractor (has contract with the public agency)			Contract #	
List all contractors & subcontractors (Attach extra sheet if necessary)		Type of work	Amount of subcontract	
CERTIFICATION: I hereby certify that the above information is correct. Enclosed is the filing fee computed		Total value of subcontracts	s	
at 1% of the total amount of all my subcontractors on this project. This amount includes the contract value for the primary contractor. I understand that the maximum fee I	+ Value of work performed by primary contractor Amount subject to fee		s	
am required to pay is \$5,000. I further certify that all			\$	
contractors shall be made aware of the requirements of AS 36.05.010110 and AS 36.10.007990 before working.			Multiply by .01	
	Total fee enclosed = ROUND FEES TO NEAREST DOLLAR		\$	
Signature Date		For Dept. Use Only		
Title  Fax # Phone #  For Dept. Use Only	Receive	t: Check Number: Date By: Date Confirmation	ste:	
Accepted:	Visa MC Project Name  DOLWD Project #			
Department of Labor and Workforce Development	Wage & Hour date-stamped copy of this form will serve as temporary receipt.			

### How to expedite the processing of your form:

Acceptance of this notice will be based on the information provided by the primary contractor.

#### ERRORS THAT CAUSE REJECTION

No fee included or incorrect amount. If total contract amount is less than \$25,000 no filing fee is required. Contract amounts paid to owner/operators with no employees are exempt from the fee. The maximum total filing fee for any one project is \$5,000.00.

Missing – Enter the "time and materials" if applicable. The exact dollar amount will be required on the Notice of Completion to be filed when the project is done.

Missing – The name of each subcontractor and the amount or estimated amount of the subcontract is required. Enter the "time and materials" if applicable. The exact dollar amount will be required on the Notice of Completion to be filed when the project is done.

Missing - Notice of Work must be signed by an authorized representative.

#### FILING INSTRUCTIONS

If there is not enough space to list all contractor/subcontractor information, attach additional sheets.

A Wage and Hour Administration (WH) date-stamped copy of this form will serve as a temporary receipt, while the acceptance of fees is processed. WH will mail or fax the accepted copy of this notice to the organization provided on the front of this form. Make a copy for your records. This will serve as your notice that the fees paid have been accepted by WH.

For questions call the nearest WH office:

Juneau: (907) 465-4842 Anchorage: (907) 269-4900

,

Fairbanks: (907) 451-2886

For more forms, see www.labor.state.ak.us/lss/lssforms.htm

Submit the notice and the appropriate filing fee to:

Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Wage and Hour Administration
P.O. Box 107021
Anchorage, AK 99510-0721

If no fee is required, you may fax the notice to (907) 269-4915

## Alaska Department of Revenue TAX CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM

NESN:	
lailing Address;	
City/State/Zip Code:	
hereby authorize the Alaska Do	cpartment of Revenue to release to
(Nani	se of Department or Agency)
Departments St	rature on fax elearance:
whose facsimile number or emai	Laddress is
confirmation that all taxes, pena	alties and interest due the Department of Revenue have been
paid and that there are no outstan	iding amounts due.
Signed:	
Printed Name:	
Title*:	
	on behalf of a corporation/LLC/partnership, must be signed by an
Send completed form by email	to the Department of Revenue at DOR.tax.accounting@alaska
D	DEPARTMENT USE ONLY
	s current on all taxes, penalties and interest due und ith the Alaska Department of Revenue.
	not current on all taxes, penalties and interest due viding with the Alasha Department of Revenue.
and is not in good star	
Department of Reven	tué Representative Date



## Department of Labor and Workforce Development

Division of Employment and Training Services Employment Security Tax

P.O. Box 115509 Juneau, AK 99811-5509 Relay Alaska (In state): (800) 770-8973 or 7.1.1 Relay Alaska (out of state): (800) 770-8255 Toll free: (888) 448-2937 Phone: (907) 465-2787 Fax: (907) 465-2374

## Tax Clearance Request Form for Contractors

Date of request:
Business name of the contractor a Tax Clearance is being requested for:
Business address:
Business contact phone number:
Federal Identification Number:
Alaska Employer Account Number:
Specific time period a tax clearance is being requested for (i.e. beginning and ending date of a submatrast agreement):
Subcontract project name:
Name and address of the person this Tax Clearance is to be returned to:
Comments or additional information:
For agency use only:
☐ Tax Clearance is granted
Tax Clearance is not granted (please have employer audict the department)
No account on file, liability unknown (phase base employer contact the department)
Employer has stated no employees, Tax Clearance not required.
Agency representative signature:
Agency representative title:

We are an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. <a href="labor.alaska.gov/estax">labor.alaska.gov/estax</a>

Rev. 8/2018

### **Submittal Control Form**

Project Title:			Project No: Contract No:
Contractor: Address:		Submittal	
Contact: Felephone: Fax:			New Submittal Resubmittal
Submittal is as Specified?	Yes	No	
2. Revision Number:			
3. Submittal Control No.: 4. Description:			
5. Spec. Section/Dwg Ref.: Number of Copies:			
Remarks:			
Remarks:			
Remarks:			
Remarks:  Review is for general design or an	rangement only. I	Not for quality, c	limension or fit.
	rangement only. I		limension or fit.
Review is for general design or an			limension or fit.
Review is for general design or an			limension or fit.
			limension or fit.

## STATE of ALASKA SEX OFFENDER/CHILD KIDNAPPER REGISTRY CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Article 1, Subparagraph 1.0	2, of the Instructions to Bidders,
Specification Section 00100, I	the
undersigned Principal for	on
Solicitation No, certify:	
<ol> <li>that I, either personally or through researched the State of Alaska Sex Offer confirm that no employee or agent with District property in connection with the connection.</li> </ol>	ender/Child Kidnapper Registry to ho may enter Anchorage School
<ol> <li>that I have required all subcosubcontractors to certify, or will require sub-subcontractors to certify, that they re Offender/Child Kidnapper Registry to co who may enter district property in connect the Registry. I will provide all such certification.</li> </ol>	esearched the State of Alaska Sex onfirm that no employee or agent ection with the contract is listed in
<ol> <li>To my knowledge, no employed contractor or sub-sub-contractor of bidde in connection with the contract is: (a) kidnapper registry of any other state; or, child kidnapper.</li> </ol>	listed in the sex offender/child
<ol> <li>I have read district Board Policy will comply with Board Policy 3515.5 employee or agent who is a sex offen property, as that term is defined in Board.</li> </ol>	der or child kidnapper to district
By:Signature	Printed Name
Title:	
Dated:	

Revised April 4, 2018

## STATE of ALASKA SEX OFFENDER/CHILD KIDNAPPER REGISTRY SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Article 1, Subparagr	
Bidders, Specification Section 001	100, 1 the
undersigned Principal for Solicitation No	certify:
<ol> <li>that I, either personally or me, have researched the State Kidnapper Registry to confirm that enter Anchorage School District contract is listed in the Registry.</li> </ol>	of Alaska Sex Offender/Child at no employee or agent who may
2. that I have required all subsubcontractors to certify, or will r of their sub-subcontractors to cert of Alaska Sex Offender/Child Ki no employee or agent who r connection with the contract is provide all such certifications to the subcontract of the contract of the contract is provide all such certifications to the subcontract of the contract	equire all subcontractors and any ify, that they researched the State dnapper Registry to confirm that may enter district property in listed in the Registry. I will
that if my company enters work as a Subcontractor for	s into an agreement to perform
General Contractor for the district	under Solicitation No
my company will not allow any	
the State of Alaska Sex Offend	
perform work on or at the Project	site.
By:	
By: Signature	Printed Name
Title:	
Dated:	
	Revised April 21, 2015

## STATE of ALASKA SEX OFFENDER/CHILD KIDNAPPER REGISTRY SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Article 1, Subparagr	aph 1.02, of the Instructions to
Bidders, Specification Section 001	100, I the
undersigned Principal for	
Solicitation No,	certify:
<ol> <li>that I, either personally or me, have researched the State Kidnapper Registry to confirm that enter Anchorage School District contract is listed in the Registry.</li> </ol>	of Alaska Sex Offender/Child at no employee or agent who may
2. that if my company enters work as a Sub-subcontractor forSubcontractor for the General C Solicitation No, m worker whose name appears Offender/Child Kidnapper Regist Project site.	a Contractor for the district under my company will not allow any on the State of Alaska Sex
Ву:	D: 4 127
Signature	Printed Name
Title:	
Dated:	

Revised April 21, 2015

ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LIST OF ALASKAN FEDERALLY REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS

Program Number Program Name	Program Name	Program Status Address	Address	Occupation Title
AK000990003	ABC of Aloska, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Avenue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	CARPENTER
AKD00030002	ALASKA ACOUSTICAL	Registered	902 Warren Street KETCHIKAN AK 99901	CARPENTER
AKOOOSSOOOI	Alaska Carpenters Training Trust	Registered	8751 King Street Anchorage AK 99515	CARPENTER
A VOOG 12E 007	Collins Construction, Incorporated	Suspended	LLSI W. Nugget Avenue Wasilia Ak 99054	CARPENIER
AK000125897	Finished Works, LLC	Kegistered	P.O. BOX 5.21/91 Big Lake AK 9955.2	CARPENIER
AK001/801/	H CONSTRUCTION, LLC	Registered	15581 Feling Circle Palmer AK 99545	CARPENIER
AKOOOR1120	Mondariest Costruction Inc	Registered	2000 CSTREET, SOTTE 2B AINCHORAGE AN 99505 P.O. Boy 6235 Ketchikan AK 99901	CARPENTER
AKD00030009	YUKON-KUSKOKWIM DELTA APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM	Registered	P.O. BOX 869 BETHEL AK 99559	CARPENTER
AKOOOSSOOOI	Aloska Carpenters Training Trust	Registered	8751 King Street Anchorage AK 99515	CARPENTER, INTERIOR SYSTEMS (Alternate Title: Interior Systems Carpenter)
AK000550001	Alaska Carpenters Training Trust	Registered	8751 King Street Anchorage AK 99515	CARPENTER, PLEDRIVER
AK000780017	Alaska Trowel Trades JATC	Registered	825 East 8th Avenue, Suite 10 Anchorage AK 99501	CEMENT MASON
2019-AK-72685	Rady Concrete Construction, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 82061 Fairbanks AK 99708	CEMENT MASON
AK000990003	ABC of Aloska, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Averue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORER
AK001940006	Alaska Laborers JATC	Registered	17805 OLD GLENN HWY CHUGIAK AK 99567	CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORER
2017-AK-497	Kock-n-Koad Construction, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 1188 Petersburg AK 99833	CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORER
AK00114/691	Wolverine Supply, Inc.	Registered	5099 E. Blue Lupine Drive Wasilla AK 99654	CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORER
ANDOLISS904	Tukon River Towning, LLC	Registered	P.U. Box 128 Emmonak Ak 99581	CONSTRUCTION CRAFT LABORER
AKOOOOOOO	ALASKA TEAMSTER-EMPLOYER SERVICE TRAINING TRUST	Registered	520 East 34th Avenue, Suite 201 ANCHORAGE AK 39503	CONSTRUCTION DRIVER
2017-AK-450	After House Touch & Blood	Registered	1.O. DOX 1100 Fetel Study AN 93033	DIESEL MECHANIC
A VOOD 103514	Arter mours inter & Preet	Registered	450 Ocean Dock Dand Application AV 00501	DIESEL MECHANIC
2017-AK-69477	Posk Oilfield Service Company - Bristol Ray Industrial	Registered	5015 Business Park Rivd Suite 4000 Anchorage AK 99503	DIESEI MECHANIC
AKD00102656	R. Tricking, L.C.	Registered	1221 East 71st Avenue Anchorage AK 99518	DIESELMECHANIC
2017-AK-469	907 Electric	Registered	11134 June Agnes Circle Eagle River AK 99577	ELECTRICIAN
AK000990003	ABC of Aloska, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Averue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	ELECTRICIAN
AKD01080586	AC Electric, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 1761 Seward AK 99664	ELECTRICIAN
AK001145734	Access Electric & General Trades, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 670856 Chugiak AK 99567	ELECTRICIAN
AKD01167701	Agape Electric	Registered	P.O. Box 7601 Nikiski AK 99635	ELECTRICIAN
AK000780015	ALASKA JOINT ELECTRICAL APPRENTICESHIP & TRAINING TRUST	Registered	5800 B STANCHORAGE AK 99518	ELECTRICIAN
AKD00113542	Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium, Division of Environmental Health & Engineerin	Registered	4500 Diplomacy Drive, Suite 454 Anchorage AK 99508	ELECTRICIAN
AK001102776	Alaska's Wiremen	Registered	39535 Fox Trail Road Soldotna AK 99669	ELECTRICIAN
AK000145920	Ala-Wa, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 385 Unalaska AK 99685	ELECTRICIAN
m .	Alpine Electric	Registered	13901 East Moyen Ruelle Court Palmer AK 99645	ELECTRICIAN
	Amped Electric, Inc.	Registered	3400 International Street Fairbanks AK 99701	ELECTRICIAN
Т	ANCHOR ELECTRIC	Registered	5362 COMMERCIAL DRIVE JUNEAU AK 99801	ELECTRICIAN
2010 AV 72630	Arice Soil Blourers ciecuity, ILC	Registered	10500 Oceall view Drive Juriedu AN 99801	GECTRICIAN
AKD01060013	AUKE BAY ELECTRIC	Registered	P.O. BOX 210194 ALIKE BAY AK 99821	EECTRICAN
AK001040025	BEAR ELECTRIC, INCORPORATED	Registered	2008 Perkins Drive FAIRBANKS AK 99709	ELECTRICIAN
2018-AK-71428	Bering Straits Development Company	Registered	P.O. Box 1008 Nome AK 99762	ELECTRICIAN
AK000145915	Bootleg Electric, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 871301 Wasilla AK 99687	ELECTRICIAN
AKD01103401	Brickwell, Incorporated	Registered	11425 Avion Street ANCHORAGE AK 99516	ELECTRICIAN
AKD00080231	Buness Electric, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 66 Wrangell AK 99929	ELECTRICIAN
AK001135727	Cache Maintenance	Registered	1295 Aloha Street North Pole AK 99705	ELECTRICIAN
AK001145732	Capstone Electric, LLC	Registered	22356 Whispering Birch Drive Chuglak AK 99567	ELECTRICIAN
AK001050009	CHANNEL ELECTRIC, INC.	Registered	1155 COPPER RIDGE LANE KEI CHIKAN AK 99901	ELECIRICIAN
AKD00168011		Registered	1285 Overhill Prive Faithanks AX 99209	FIECTBICIAN
AKD00102662	DAS Electric, LLC	Registered	18207 Stillwater Drive Eagle River AK 99577	ELECTRICIAN
AK002179210	Eberline Building and Supply	Registered	35775 Walker Street North Soldotna AK 99669	ELECTRICIAN
AKD00168016	Encore Electric, LLC	Registered	5640 B Street Anchorage AK 99518	ELECTRICIAN
AK001147686	Evans Electric	Registered	P.O. Box 1343 Kotzebue AK 99752	ELECTRICIAN
AK000103517	Fadility Contractors, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 2034 Cordova AK 99574	ELECTRICIAN
AK000158004	Frontier Electrical Services, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 3030 Valdez AK 99686	ELECTRICIAN
AKD01103398	Fuchs Electric, Incorporated	Registered	9400 Vanguard Drive, Suite A Anchorage AK 99507	ELECTRICIAN
AK000158000	G2 Construction, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 10690 Fairbanks AK 99701	ELECTRICIAN
AK001114703	Glacier Electric	Registered	P.O. Box 112002 Anchorage AK 99511	ELECTRICIAN
AKD0115/696	GRS CONTROLS	Registered	P.O. Box Speed North Pole An 99/US	ELECTRICIAN
AKDOD091957	Harla Graens Creek Mining Company	Registered	D O Box 32199 Lineau & 99801	FIFTRICAN
2017-AK-68590	Hometown Connection. Inc	Registered	P.O. Box 439 Skapway AK 99840	ELECTRICIAN
2019-AK-73036	Huffer Electric Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 2229 Soldotna AK 99669	ELECTRICIAN
AK001070010	ICE SERVICES, INCORPORATED	Registered	2606 C STREET, SUITE 2B ANCHORAGE AK 99503	ELECTRICIAN
AK001091697	Icicle Seafoods, Incorporated	Registered	411 N. Nordic Drive Petersburg AK 99833	ELECTRICIAN
AKD00060009	INLET ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS, LLC	Registered	P.O. BOX 202109 ANCHORAGE AK 99520	ELECTRICIAN
AK000158001	Integrated Communication Designs, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 111551 Anchorage AK 99511	ELECTRICIAN
AKUMICOOSS	Integrity Electric, Inc.	Registered	35955 Kyan Lane soldoma An 99009	ELECTRICIAN

ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LIST OF ALASKAN FEDERALLY REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS

		NEWSTA	EDENALLI REGISI ERED APPRENI ILESHIP PR	CMIKADO
Program Number	Program Name	Program Status	Address	Occupation Title
1	Intelligent Design, LLC	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
AK001070022	JA ELECTRIC, INCORPORALED	Registered	P.O. BOX 3123 SOLDOINAAK 99689	ELECTRICIAN
Т	NAKLOVIK HOMINGS	Positioned	AVENUE AINCHORAGE AN 99307	ELECTRICIAN ELECTRICIAN
	NO Electric Incompreted	Registered	AV 00511	ELECTRICIAN
		Dogistorod	1524 Town Way & Kensi Ak 00611	FIECTRICIAN
	Maddox Floring	Registered	P.O. Box 2226 Seward AK 99664	FIFCTRICIAN
٥	Mainline Electric	Suspended	P.O. Box 212602 Anchorage AK 99521	ELECTRICIAN
	Marathon Electric, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 927 Seward AK 99664	ELECTRICIAN
AK001147461	Mark IV Enterprises	Registered	951 E. Creekside Drive, #9 Wasilla AK 99654	ELECTRICIAN
AK000070010	MAT-SU MECHANICAL, INC.	Registered	1265 EAST LOLLY CIRCLE WASILIA AK 99654	ELECTRICIAN
5	Mattingly Electric, LLC	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
П	MIDNIGHT SUN ELECTRIC	Registered	267 West Rockwell Avenue SOLDOTNA AK 99669	ELECTRICIAN
	MIRANDA ELECTRIC, INCORPORATED	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
AK000145924	Marse Construction	Registered	7362 West Parks Highway, #189 Wasilla AK 99623	ELECTRICIAN
2017-AK-69670	New Hope Apprenticeship Training	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
AK001125637	Nordic Electric, LLC	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
AK001050016	North Wire, LLC	Registered	1120 E. Huffman Road, Suite 24, Box 695 Anchorage AK 99515	ELECTRICIAN
2017-AK-69477	Peak Oilfield Service Company - Bristol Bay Industrial	Registered	5015 Business Park Blvd., Suite 4000 Anchorage AK 99503	ELECTRICIAN
AK000060013	PITCHER ELECTRIC, INC.	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
AK001125710	Power & Light, Incorporated	Registered	ge AK 99518	ELECTRICIAN
l	Premier Electric	Registered	P.O. Box 874362 Wasilla AK 99687	ELECTRICIAN
L	Prism Design & Construction	Registered	P.O. Box 870162 Wasilla AK 99654	ELECTRICIAN
AK000113539	Puffin Electric. Inc.	Registered	3808 Ben Walters Lane Homer AK 99603	ELECTRICIAN
	Ray Electric. Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 55007 North Pole AK 99705	ELECTRICIAN
L	Renewable Energy Systems	Registered	1698 Airport Way Fairbanks AK 99701	ELECTRICIAN
AK001040007	RISING SON ELECTRIC SERVICES, LLC	Registered	36784 Eklutna Lake Road Chueiak AK 99567	ELECTRICIAN
ı	Safe-T-Way Electric. Incorporated	Registered	6208 Mackay Street Anchorage AK 99518	ELECTRICIAN
90	Salmon River Electric	Registered		FIFCTRICIAN
	SITKA FLECTRIC COMPANY	Registered	KA AK 99835	ELECTRICIAN
L	Soundough Specialty Contractors	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
AK001157697	Spectrum Services	Registered	35867 Driftnetter Street Kenai AK 99611	ELECTRICIAN
2017-AK-69038	Stevens Electric	Registered	9630 Musketball Circle Anchorage AK 99507	ELECTRICIAN
L	Steve's Electrical	Registered	2741 Enineers Cutoff Road Juneau AK 99801	ELECTRICIAN
	SUMNER ELECTRICAL ENTERPRISE, ILC	Registered	6801 Hollywood Road Wasilla AK 99654	ELECTRICIAN
AK000168009		Registered	815 East 82nd Avenue, Suite 200 Anchorage AK 99518	ELECTRICIAN
AK001010001	TEC PRO, LTD.	Registered	816 Whitney Road ANCHORAGE AK 99501	ELECTRICIAN
AK000080228	Tesla Electric, LLC.	Registered	1760 Abbott Road Anchorage AK 99507	ELECTRICIAN
AK000103508	The Electrician, LLC	Registered	607 Old Steese Highway, Suite B, PMB 402 Fairbanks AK 99701	ELECTRICIAN
AK000145917	Thomas and Sons Electric	Registered	P.O. Box 955 Craig AK 99921	ELECTRICIAN
AK001113408	Trident Seafoods Corporation	Registered	P.O. Box 220427 Anchorage AK 99522	ELECTRICIAN
AK001147688	Trinity Electric, LLC	Registered	801 E. 82nd Avenue, B-14 Anchorage AK 99518	ELECTRICIAN
AK001167706	TS Construction, Incorporated	Registered	3230 Cool Cacy Drive Fairbanks AK 99701	ELECTRICIAN
AK000092469	Vannoy Electric	Registered	5007 W. Reliance Rd. Wasilla AK 99623	ELECTRICIAN
	WESTERN POWER ENGINEERING	Registered	0.1	ELECTRICIAN
П	WESTWARD SEAFOODS, INCORPORATED	Registered	9692	ELECTRICIAN
AK001125265	Will Curtis	Registered	1465 Richardson Hwy Valdez AK 99686	ELECTRICIAN
-	WOODWORTH ELECTRIC	Registered	1200 Queets Cirde HOMER AK 99603	ELECTRICIAN
	YUKON-KUSKOKWIM DELTA APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM	Registered		ELECTRICIAN
l	Zone Eleαric	Registered	-	ELECTRICIAN
ı	TEC 000 ITO	Dogistorod	of Switchers Board ANCHORAGE AV 00001	ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN
AKOOOSOOO	INTERNATIONAL LINEON OF ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTORS LOCAL 19 JAC	Registered	110	ELECTRONIC SISTEMS LCCITICORY
AK001030005	GRAND PROSPECT CORPORATION	Sucondad		FIODRIAVER
AKODOMOOOT	International Union of Painters and Allied Trades local 1959 IATC	Registered	DRAGE AK 99518	FLOOR LAYER
AK000145918	The Great Alaskan Flooring. Inc.	Registered		ELDOR LAYER
AK000990003	ABC of Alosko, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Avenue. Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	GAZIER
AK000490001	International Union of Painters and Allied Trades Local 1959 JATC	Registered	5821 Arctic Boulevard, Unit B ANCHORAGE AK 99518	GLAZIER
AK000990003	ABC of Alaska, Inc.	Registered	AK 99518	HEATING & AIR-CONDITIONER INSTALL/SERVICER
	ALASKA SÇ/SE SHEET METAL WORKERS JATC	Registered	П	HEATING & AIR-CONDITIONER INSTALL/SERVICER
	ANCHORAGE ALASKA AREA PIPE TRADES LOCAL #367 JATC	Registered	617 WEST POTTER DRIVE ANCHORAGE AK 99518	HEATING & AIR-CONDITIONER INSTALL/SERVICER
	ALASKA OPERATING ENGINEERS/EMPLOYERS TRAINING TRUST	Registered		HEAVY DUTY MECHANK (Altemate Title: Heavy Construction Equipment Mechanic)
	TECK ALASKA, INC.	Registered	(99	HEAVY EQUIPMENT MECHANIC
	ABC of Alaska, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Avenue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	NSULATION WORKER
AK000710001	AK HEAT & FROST INSULATORS & ALLIED WORKERS JATC	Registered	P.O. Box 203212 Anchorage AK 99520	WSULATION WORKER
ı	Alaska Industrial Insulation & Fireproofing, incor	Registered	Т	INSULATION WORKER
П	Aloska Carpeniers Iraining Irast	Registered	8/51 And Street Androrage An 99515	LATHER (Attendate Tide: Lathing Specialist)
П	אסרטן אופאט, וווכ	ned steren	1	THE EVEL ON ITO WEATURE USING COLOUR EVEL ON

ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LIST OF ALASKAN FEDERALLY REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS

		ALASNAIN	ALASNAIN FEDERALLT REGISTENED APPREINTLESHIP PROGRAMIS	SMEADO
Program Number	Program Name ALASKA JONT EJECTRICAL APPRENTICESHIP & TRAINING TRUST	Registered 5800 B 5	Address STANCHORAGE AK 99518	Occupation Title LINE MAINTAINER (Alternate Title: Line Worker)
AK000730004	ALASKA OPERATING ENGINEERS/EMPLOYERS TRAINING TRUST	Registered	P.O. BOX 0989 PALMER AK 99645	LINE MAINTAINER (Afternate Title: Line Worker)
AK001080980	Alaska Power & Telephone	Registered	P.O Box 34195 Juneau AK 99803	UNE MAINTAINER (Alternate Title: Line Worker)
AK000040002	Alaska Village Electric Cooperative, Inc.	Registered	4831 Eagle Street Anchorage AK 99503	UNE MAINTAINER (Alternate Title: Line Worker)
AK000870008	CITY & BOROUGH OF SITKA - ELECTRICAL DEPARTMENT	Registered	105 JARVIS STREET SITKA AK 99835	UNE MAINTAINER (Alternate Title: Line Worker)
AK000135905	City of Unalaska	Registered	P.O. Box 610 Unalaska AK 99685	UNE MAINTAINER (Alternate Title: Une Worker)
AK001060005	CLITOF WRANGELL-WRANGELL MUNICIPAL LIGHT & POWER	Registered	1054 Case Avenue WKANGELL AK 99929	UNE MAINITAINER (Alternate I rite: Une Worker)
	North Slove Borough Power & Light	Registered	P.O. Box 350 Barrow AK 99723	LINE MAINTAINER (Alternate Title: Line Worker)
1	Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 350 Dilling ham AK 99576	UNE MAINTAINER (Alternate Title: Line Worker)
	ALASKA OPERATING ENGINEERS/EMPLOYERS TRAINING TRUST	Registered	P.O. BOX 0989 PALMER AK 99645	LUBRICATION SERVICER MATERIAL DISPOSAL TECHNICIAN
ш	ALASKA JOINT ELECTRICAL APPRENTICESHIP & TRAINING TRUST	Registered	5800 B STANCHORAGE AK 99518	MAINTENANCE MECHANIÇ TELEPHONE
	ALASKA WORKS PARTNERSHIP, INC.	Registered	1413 HYDER ST ANCHORAGE AK 99501	MAINTENANCE REPAIRER, BUILDING
	Goose Creek Correctional Center	Registered	P.O. Box 877790 Wasilla AK 99687	MAINTENANCE REPAIRER, BUILDING
_	Hilland Mountain Correctional Center	Registered	9101 Hesterberg Road Eagle River AK 99577	MAINTENANCE REPAIRER, BUILDING
	Mildurod Competition Contra	Registered	P.O. BOX 2109 SEWARD AK 99564	
AKOO1910012	TECK ALASKA INC	Registered	BLDG 10, CHOOSACH AVENUE REINALAN S9811	MACHANIC INDICATION TRUCK
	Alexka Carpenters Training Trust	Registered	8751 King Street Anchorage AK 99515	
	TECK ALASKA, INC.	Registered	3105 LAKESHORE DR., BUILDING A, STE 101 ANCHORAGE AK 95	MILLWRIGHT
AK000990003	ABC of Alaska, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Avenue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	OPERATING ENGINEER
	ALASKA OPERATING ENGINEERS/EMPLOYERS TRAINING TRUST	Registered	P.O. BOX 0989 PALMER AK 99645	OPERATING ENGINEER
	Wolverine Supply, Inc.	Registered	5099 E. Blue Lupine Drive Wasilla AK 99654	OPERATING ENGINEER
- 1	ABC of Alaska, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Avenue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	PAINTER (Construction)
AKOOOOOOO	International Union of Painters and Allied Trades Local 1959 JATC	Registered	301 Antic Boulevard, Unit B ANCHURAGE AN 99518	PAIN I EK (CONSTRUCTION)
	ANCHORAGE ALASKA AREA PIPE TRADES LOCAL #367 JATC	Registered	501 Arcit State Avenue, State 100 Americande An 39316 617 WEST POTTER DRIVE ANCHORAGE AK 99518	PIPE FITTER (Construction)
	Fairbanks Area Plumbers & Pipefitters JATC	Registered	1978 BURGESS AVENUE FAIRBANKS AK 99709	PIPE FITTER (Construction)
AK000660001	JUNEAU PLUMBERSJATC	Registered	1751 ANKA STREET JUNEAU AK 99801	PIPE FITTER (Construction)
	Alaska Trowel Trades JATC	Registered	825 East 8th Avenue, Suite 10 Anchorage AK 99501	PLASTERER
	907 Heating and Plumbing	Registered	P.O. Box 220032 Anchorage AK 99522	PLUMBER
AK000990003	ABC of Aleska, Inc.	Registered	301 Arctic Slope Averue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518	PLUMBER
AK000103507	Al Fish Plumbing II.C	Registered	11805 Green Road Anchorage AK 99516	PLIMBER
AK000125896	Alaska Clearwater Mechanical, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 709 Willow AK 99688	PLUMBER
AK000113542	Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium, Division of Environmental Health & Engineeri	-	4500 Diplomacy Drive, Suite 454 Anchorage AK 99508	PLUMBER
AK001050011	ALASKA PLUMBING & HEATING	Registered	P.O. Box 210240 Auke Bay AK 99821	PLUMBER
AK001103393	All American Plumbing & Heating	Registered	9509 Antler Way Juneau AK 99801	PLUMBER
AK000135908	All-Star Plumbing & Heating, LLC	Registered	11320 Bearpaw Street Anchorage AK 99516	PLUMBER
AKOOTE TOO	ALWAYS ON CALL MOUNTAIN MECHANICAL CORPORATION	Registered	6427 MENTRA STREET ANCHORAGE AN 99518	PLUMBER
AK000490002	ANTHER ESCO, INC. ANCHORAGE ALASKA AREA PIPE TRADES LOCAL #367 LATC	Registered	617 WEST POTTER DRIVE ANCHORAGE AK 99518	PLUMBER
AK000070016	ANCHORAGE PLUMBING & HEATING, INC.	Registered	7640 King Street ANCHORAGE AK 99518	PLUMBER
ш	APEX PLUMBING & HEATING SERVICES, LLC	Registered	19087 E. Jessica Ann Street Sutton AK 99674	PLUMBER
	Arctic Chain Plumbing & Heating, Inc.	Registered	1200 East 76th Avenue, Unit 1220 Anchorage AK 99518	PLUMBER
	Arak Plumbing & Heating, LLC	Registered	2125 Richardson Highway, Suite #2 North Pole AK 99705	PLUMBER
2019-AK-72300	Beckley Mechanical Company	Registered	2125 Richardson Highway North Pole AK 99705	PLUMBER
	Bollerman Plumbine & Heating, Inc.	Registered	6800 lonesome Drive Palmer AK 99645	PLIMBER
	BOWMAN MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS, INC	Registered	11701 Toy Drive ANCHORAGE AK 99515	PLUMBER
L	Central Mechanical, Incorporated	Registered	311 N. Sitka Street Anchorage AK 99501	PLUMBER
AK000092207	Cirde Plumbing and Heating, Inc.	Registered	2317 Raspberry Road Anchorage AK 99502	PLUMBER
AK001135717	D.H. Plumbing & Heating, Incorporated	Suspended	7741 King Street Anchorage AK 99518	PLUMBER STANDER
AK002167 700	Dawson Construction Incorporated	Registered	645.25 PLIZIMAN AVE Homer AK 99603	PLUMBER
AK001870004	Densul MECHANICAL INC.	Registered	995 RILEY COURT FAIRBANKS AK 99701	PLUMBER
AK001167702	Discount Mechanical, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 233694 Anchorage AK 99523	PLUMBER
AK001080585	Eavrs Plumbing & Heating, LLC	Registered	1208 Lakeshore Drive Homer AK 99603	PLUMBER
AK001040029	ENCORE MECHANICAL, INC.	Registered	P.O. BOX 1788 PALMER AK 99645	PLUMBER
AK001135726	Extreme Heating & Air, Incorporated	Registered	16805 Farm Avenue Eagle River AK 99577	PLUMBER
AK001510002	Fairbanks Area Plumbers & Pipefitters JATC	Registered	1978 BURGESS AVENUE FAIRBANKS AK 99709	PLUMBER
AK000145926	Fedor's Plumbing & Heating, LLC	Registered	5902 Cordova Street Anchorage AK 99518	PLUMBER
-	Funk Services	Registered	P.O. Box 672188 Chugiak AK 99567	PLUMBER
AK00013549	H and M Mimbine & Heating Inc	Registered	P.O. Box 522257 Fairbanks Ak 99706	PLIMBER
	HARDROK PLUMBING AND HEATING. LLC	Registered	4740 E. FATTIC DRIVE WASILLA AK 99654	PLUMBER
AK001050004	неятсо, шс	Registered	17141 N. EAGLE RIVER LOOP ROAD EAGLE RIVER AK 99577	PLUMBER
	Homer Plumbing and Heating	Registered	581 Mountain View Drive Homer AK 99603	PLUMBER

ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LIST OF ALASKAN FEDERALLY REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS

			בסבונטבבו וובסוסו בוובס טון וובואווסבסוווו	
Program Number	Program Name University Machinelian Intermedian Committee	Program Status	Address	Occupation Title
AK001070010	ICE SERVICES. INCORPORATED	Registered	257 East 4th Avenue, Suite 1 Annual age An 35501 2606 CSTREET, SUITE 28 ANCHORAGE AK 99503	PLUMBER
AK000168010	Icy Strait Plumbing and Heating	Registered	tre	PLUMBER
AK001103402	Intelligent Design, LLC	Registered	11741 Timberlane Drive Anchorage AK 99515	PLUMBER
2018-AK-72080	IOLA Enterprises dba Runstrom Plumbing & Heating	Registered	HC 89 Box 8182 Talkeetna AK 99676	PLUMBER
AK001081636	JGH Plumbing & Heating, Incorporated	Registered	P.O. Box 3385 Palmer AK 99645	PLUMBER
2018-AK-69772	John White's Plumbing & Heating	Registered	5327 Kenai Spur Highway Kenai AK 99611	PLUMBER
AK000092650		Registered	1311 Mill Bay Road Kodiak AK 99615	PLUMBER
AK000060005	JOURNEYMAN PLUMBING & HEATING, INC.	Registered	51315 SEA QUEST DRIVE KENAL AK 99611	PLUMBER
2017-AK-69607	Kasilof Plumbing & Heating	Registered	26547 S. Cohoe Loop Kasilof AK 99610	PLIMBER
AK001157698	Kiwi Mechanical	Registered	Box 2132 Cordova AK 99574	PLIMBER
AK001050012	KNIK PLUMBING & HEATING	Registered	4915 W. 84TH AVENUE ANCHORAGE AK 99502	PLUMBER
AK000060017		Registered	P.O. BOX 4148 KODIAK AK 99615	PLUMBER
AK001147687	Larry's Quality Heating & Plumbing, Inc.	Registered	2531 Barrett Avenue Juneau AK 99801	PLUMBER
AK000080234	Lewis Mechanical, Inc.	Registered	13240 View Heights Way Anchorage AK 99516	PLUMBER
AK000050011	M&J PLU MBING & HEATING, INC.	Registered	ness Par	PLUMBER
AK000070010	MAT-SU MECHANICAL, INC.	Registered	1265 EAST LOLLY CIRCLE WASILLA AK 99654	PLUMBER
2017-AK-68589	Monkey Wrench Mechanical	Registered	P.O. Box 73441 Fairbanks AK 99707	PLUMBER
AK00113541	Moore Heading & Air Conditioning	Registered	1801 East Dowling Road Anchorage AK 9950/	PLUMBER
AKOO1091696	North Country States Incorporated	Registered	2307 F Turker Road #40 Anchorage AK 99507	BILIMBER
AK000145928		Registered	P.O. Box 669 Haines AK 99827	PLUMBER
AK001070004	PARAGON PLUMBING & HEATING, INCORPORATED	Registered	3400 MACARTHUR STREET FAIRBANKS AK 99701	PLUMBER
AK000000005	PARKHU RST MECHANICAL	Registered	P.O. BOX 1806 Palmer AK 99645	PLUMBER
AK001050006	PARTUSCH PLUMBING & HEATING	Registered	8301 SCHOON STREET ANCHORAGE AK 99518	PLUMBER
AK001060010	PLEASANTS PLUMBING & HEATING	Registered	P.O. BOX 33051 JUNEAU AK 99803	PLUMBER
AK001167705	Pollard Construction	Suspended	P.O. Box 32811 Juneau AK 99803	PLUMBER
AK000092200	Portwinde Plumbing and Heating, Inc.	Registered	1500 Alaska Way Fairbanks AK 99709	PLUMBER
AK001103394	Premier Mechanical, LLC	Registered	2011 Millbay Road, #2 Kodiak AK 99615	PLUMBER
AK00116/700	Red Hot Mechanical, Incorporated	Registered	11/23 Old Gleen Highway, Suite 10/ Eagle River AK 995 / /	PLUMBER
ANDOLI 45/55	Dock Cold Dismission & Hearing	Poristored	DO BOY 074416 Wasilla AV 00697	N30MIT N3
2017-AK-652	≥l č	Registered	86 Garland Court Ketchikan AK 99901	BILIMBER
AK000168008	Scottie's Plumbing	Registered	P.O. Box 72789 Fairbanks AK 99707	PLUMBER
AK000080237	Scott's Heating & Plumbing Services, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 3132 Kodiak AK 99615	PLUMBER
AK001040017	STATEWIDE MECHANICAL, LLC.	Registered	22750 MCMANUS DRIVE CHUGIAK AK 99567	PLUMBER
AK000081122	Sundance Construction Company, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 561 Kasilof AK 99610	PLUMBER
AK000092651	Superior Mechanical, Inc.	Registered	P.O. Box 82409 Fairbanks AK 99708	PLUMBER
2018-AK-71943	Tauman Mechanical Plumbing & Heating, LLC	Registered	730 W. 88th Avenue Anchorage AK 99515	PLUMBER
AK001070021	VALLEY MECHANICAL CONTRACTING, INCORPORATED	Registered	6673 E TEX-AL DRIVE WASILLA AK 99654	PLUMBER
2019-AK-73100	Waterworks Mumbing & Heating	Registered	P.O. BOX 19/4 SOldoura AN 99009	PLUMBER
AKOOOOSOOO	VUICON-KUSKOKWIM DEITA APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM	Registered	P.O. BOX 869 RETHEL AK 99559	PLIMBER
AK000092654	Ketchikan Indian Community	Registered	615 Stedman Street Ketchikan AK 99901	RESIDENTIAL CARPENTER
AK000113537	Nicholas Construction, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 599 Ward Cove AK 99901	RESIDENTIAL CARPENTER
AK000135904	Yukon River Towing, LLC	Registered	P.O. Box 128 Emmonak AK 99581	RESIDENTIAL CARPENTER
AK000050004	A & K ELECTRIC	Registered	1545 CROSSON AVENUE FAIRBANKS AK 99701	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
2007-00/80015	BIS MEIGHT OF THE APPRENTICESHIP & TRAINING TRUST	Registered	S800 B STANCHORAGE AK 99518 D O Boy 84044 Esirbanks AK 99708	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK000145927	Bristol Bay Housing Authority	Registered	P.O. Box 50 Dillingham AK 99576	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK000103513		Registered	P.O. Box 4357 Palmer AK 99645	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK000135907		Registered	P.O. Box 875769 Wasilla AK 99687	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK000103511	Fonov Construction and Electric, LLC	Registered	2155 North Biltmore Court Wasilla AK 99654	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK001145733	Gardner Electric Company, LLC	Registered	4183 Aspen Avenue Juneau AK 99801	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK001147692	Marty Wise Floring	Registered	528 ZZI H AVENDE PAIRBAINS AK 99701	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
2017-AK-69670	New Hope Apprenticeship Training	Registered	2471 West Trapline Drive Wasilla AK 99654	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK001060007		Registered	P.O. Box 872963 Wasilla AK 99687	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK000060013		Registered	P.O. BOX 877871 WASILLA AK 99687	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK001040007	RISING SON ELECTRIC SERVICES, LLC	Registered	36784 Eklutna Lake Road Chuglak AK 99567	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
AK001103400	Solid Ground Electric	Registered	13811 Savage Drive Eagle River AK 99577	RESIDENTIAL WIREMAN
-	Aloska Carpeners Training Trust	Kegistered	8/51 King Street Androrage AK 99515	SCAPPOLL ERECTOR
	ABLOJ AKOKO, INC. ALACKA SCICE SHEFT METAL WORKERS LATE	Registered	301 Arctic Stope Avenue, Suite 100 ANCHONAGE AN 39518	SHEET METAL WORKER
ш	DENALI MECHANICAL, INC.	Registered	995 RILEY COURT FAIRBANKS AK 99701	SHEET METAL WORKER
AK001530001	FAIRBANKS AREA SHEET METAL WORKERS JATC	Registered	1260 AURORA DRIVE FAIRBANKS AK 99709	SHEET METAL WORKER
- 1	Valley Mechanical Contractors, Inc.	Registered	6673 E. Tex-Al Drive Wasilla AK 99654	SHEET METAL WORKER

ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LIST OF

	ALASKAN	ALASKAN FEDERALLY REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS	ROGRAMS
r Program Name	Program Statu	Address	Occupation Title
ABC of Alaska, Inc.	Registered	gistered 301 Arctic Slope Avenue, Suite 100 ANCHORAGE AK 99518 SPRINKLER FITTER (Existing Title: Pipe Fitter)	SPRINKLER FITTER (Existing Title: Pipe Fitter)
ANCHORAGE ALASKA AREA PIPE TRADES LOCAL #367 JATC	Registered	617 WEST POTTER DRIVE ANCHORAGE AK 99518	SPRINKLER FITTER (Existing Title: Pipe Fitter)
Fairbanks Area Plumbers & Pipefitters JATC	Registered	1978 BURGESS AVENUE FAIRBANKS AK 99709	SPRINKLER FITTER (Existing Title: Pipe Fitter)
ALASKA IRONWORKERSJATC	Registered	8141 SCHOON STREET ANCHORAGE AK 99518	STRUCTURAL STEEL WORKER (Alternate Titles: Iranworker or Structural Iranwarker)
ALASKA TEAMSTER-EMPLOYER SERVICE TRAINING TRUST	Registered	520 East 34th Avenue, Suite 201 ANCHORAGE AK 99503 SURVEYOR ASSISTANT INSTRUMENT	SURVEYOR ASSISTANT INSTRUMENT
ALASKA JOINT ELECTRICAL APPRENTICESHIP & TRAINING TRUST	Registered	5800 B STREET ANCHORAGE AK 99518	TREE TRIMMER (Line Clearance)
ALASKA TEAMSTER-EMPLOYER SERVICE TRAINING TRUST	Registered	520 East 34th Avenue, Suite 201 ANCHORAGE AK 99503 TRUCK DRIVER, HEAVY	TRUCK DRIVER, HEAVY
River Valley Workforce Institute, Inc.	Registered	325 Mount Support Road Lebanon NH 03766	WELDER, COMBINATION
TECK ALASKA, INC.	Registered	3105 LAKESHORE DR, BUILDING A, STE 101 ANCHORAGE AK 95 WELDER, COMBINATION	9WELDER, COMBINATION

itio-employer consentine chi

## ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPRENTICE UTILIZATION FORM

Project Name:	
Solicitation Number:	
Contractor:	
Prime Contractors	
<ol> <li>Please list crafts/trades that will be used to c Registered Apprenticeship programs.</li> </ol>	omplete this project and have Alaskan Federally
<ol><li>Please list the apprentices and correspondir the prime contractor to complete this pro- supplemental sheets.</li></ol>	ng apprenticeship programs that will be used by ject. If more space is needed, please attach
APPRENTICE'S NAME	APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM
Page	1 of 2

Please list the subcontractors that will be u	used on the project.
	ding apprenticeship programs that will be used by oject. If more space is needed, please attach
APPRENTICE'S NAME	APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM

Page 2 of 2

## ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT APPRENTICESHIP UTILIZATION PROGRAM CALCULATIONS FORM

CONTRACTOR NAME:		CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX			AUDIT PERIOD
CONTRACTOR ADDRESS:		Contractor Check Box 3	Sub-contractor □ B	heck ox 2	
LIST OF POTENTIAL ELIGIBLE TRADES CATEGORY	NUMBER OF AGGREGATE HOURS WORKED BY ALL WORKERS ON THE PROJECT IN TRADES-CRAFTS CATEGORY	NUMBER OF AGGREGATE APPRENTICE HOURS WORKED BY ALL WORKERS ON THE PROJECT IN TRADES-CRAFTS CATEGORY			
CAPENTERS					
CEMENT MASONS					
ELECTRICIANS					
ELEVATOR WORKERS					
INSULATION WORKER					
LABORERS					
MILWRIGHTS					
OPERATING ENGINEERS					
PAINTERS					
PLUMBERS					
SHEET METAL WORKER					
SPRINKLER FITTER					
SURVEYORS					
TRUCK DRIVER					
TOTAL AGGREGATE HOURS					
					NUMBER OF
ELIGIBLE TRADES CATEGORY	ALASKAN FEDERALLY REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM	APPRENTICE'S NAME	DATE RANGE OF APPRENTICE GOOD STANDING STATUS START DATE	DATE RANGE OF APPRENTICE GOOD STANDING STATUS END DATE	HOURS WORKED THIS AUDIT PERIOD BY APPRENTICE
			,		
1					

#### **PENALTY TABLE**

	\$:	100,0	01 TO \$500,000				
1ST NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	500.00				
2ND CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY	′)	\$	750.00				
3RD 30-DAY CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE		\$	1,000.00				
4TH CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	1,000.00	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN FUTURE BIDDING			
FURTHER CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE EXCEEDING 4TH NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	1,000.00	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN FUTURE BIDDING			
\$500,001 TO \$1,000,000							
1ST NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	750.00				
2ND CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY	<b>'</b> )	\$	1,500.00				
3RD CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY	)	\$	2,500.00				
4TH CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY	)	\$	5,000,00	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN FUTURE BIDDING			
FURTHER CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE	_	7	3,000.00	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN			
EXCEEDING 4TH NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	5,000.00	FUTURE BIDDING			
	\$1		01 TO \$3,000,0				
1ST NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)	<u> </u>	\$	1.000.00				
2ND CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)	′)	\$	2,500.00				
3RD CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY		\$	5,000.00				
4TH CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY		\$	·	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN FUTURE BIDDING			
FURTHER CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE	,		,	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN			
EXCEEDING 4TH NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	7,500.00	FUTURE BIDDING			
	\$3,	000,0	01 TO \$5,000,0	00			
1ST NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	1,500.00				
2ND CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY	<b>'</b> )	\$	3,000.00				
3RD CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY	)	\$	7,500.00				
4TH CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY	)	\$	10,000.00	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN FUTURE BIDDING			
FURTHER CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE				AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN			
EXCEEDING 4TH NON-COMPLIANCE (30-DAY)		\$	10,000.00	FUTURE BIDDING			
OVER \$5,000,000							
1ST NON-COMPLIANCE (90-DAY)		\$	2,500.00				
2ND CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (90-DAY	<b>'</b> )	\$	5,000.00				
3RD CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (90-DAY	)	\$	8,000.00				
4TH CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE (90-DAY	)	\$	10,000.00	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN FUTURE BIDDING			
FURTHER CONSECUTIVE NON-COMPLIANCE EXCEEDING 4TH NON-COMPLIANCE (90-DAY)		\$	10,000.00	AND FINDING OF NON-RESPONSIBILITY IN FUTURE BIDDING			

END OF SECTION

## GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION Division 0 Section 00700

#### GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION

#### REFERENCE:

The General Conditions shall be GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT, ANCHORAGE, ALASKA, bound herein.

#### SUPPLEMENTS:

Supplements may modify, change, delete, or add to these General Conditions. Where any article of the General Conditions is modified or any paragraph deleted, or any subparagraph or clause thereof is modified, or deleted by supplements, the unaltered provisions of such article, paragraph, subparagraph or clause shall remain in effect. The General Conditions and the Supplementary General Conditions are applicable to all of the Work under this Contract and shall apply to the Contractor and all Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and Material Suppliers and Vendors.

# GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION Division 0 Section 00700

#### TABLE OF ARTICLES

AR <sup>*</sup>	TICLE	PAGE
1	THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	00700 2
2.	ARCHITECT	00700-7
3.	OWNER	00700-10
4.	CONTRACTOR	00700-14
5.	SUBCONTRACTORS	00700-25
6.	WORK BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS	00700-28
7.	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	00700-30
8.	TIME	00700-34
9.	PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION	00700-38
10.	PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY	00700-46
11.	INSURANCE	00700-48
12.	CHANGES IN THE WORK	00700-52
13.	UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF THE WORK	00700-60
14.	TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT	00700-62

#### ARTICLE 1

#### CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

#### 1.1 DEFINITIONS

1.1. 1 The following terms as used in this Contract are defined as follows:

"Architect / Engineer or A/E": The design consultant of the Owner.

"Construction Manager": Supervises the construction phase of construction projects for the Anchorage School District Facilities Department.

"Contract": The Agreement between Owner and Contractor and the referenced Contract Documents stated therein.

"Contractor": The person, firm, or corporation contractually responsible to the Owner to provide the services called for by this Contract. Such entity may also be referred to as Managing General Contractor, General Contractor, or Prime Contractor.

"Days": Calendar days unless otherwise noted.

"Direct Cost": A direct cost is any cost that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost objective, i.e., with this contract, or an item of extra work, or change order under the contract.

"Senior Director of Capital Planning & Construction": Manages the Operations of the Anchorage School District Capital Planning & Construction Department.

"Furnish": Supply and deliver to the project including the cost to supply and deliver.

"Indirect Cost": An indirect cost, collectively called overhead, is any cost not directly identified with a single, final cost objective, but identified with two or more final cost objectives or an intermediate cost objective.

"Install": Build into the Work, ready to use in a complete, finished, and operable system, including the cost to install.

"Owner": The Anchorage School District, its Anchorage School Board of Education, the Superintendent of the Anchorage School District, and its employees.

"Project Manager": The person designated by the Senior Director of Capital Planning & Construction as the Owner's representative for this Contract, responsible for the day-to-day coordination between the Owner and the Contractor.

"Provide": Furnish and install for a complete, finished, and operable system.

"Reasonable Cost": A cost is reasonable if, in its nature or amount, it does not exceed that which would be incurred in a competitive market.

"Shop Drawings, Setting Drawings, Manufacturer's Printed Information and Submittal (collectively known as "Submittals")": The Contractor's information consisting of drawings, catalogs, illustrations, calculations, and other data delivered to the Owner for the purpose of assuring the Owner, prior to execution of that part of the Work, that the prescriptive element, component, subsystem, or service to be provided generally conforms with the

Contract. The Contractor is responsible to the Owner for the accuracy and completeness of the Submittals.

"Subcontractor": A person, firm, or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform any of the work.

"Work" or "Project": The finished product required by the Contract Documents together with the means and methods as determined, by the Contractor, to achieve the finished product.

#### 1.1.2 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of the Owner-Contractor Agreement, the Drawings, the Project Manual, and all Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a directive for change in the work pursuant to Section 12.1.2 or (2) a change order pursuant to Section 12.2.6.

#### 1.1.3 THE CONTRACT

The Contract is the sum of all the Contract Documents. This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification as defined in Subparagraph 1.1.2.

#### 1.1. 4 THE WORK

The Work comprises the completed construction required by the Contract Documents and includes all labor necessary to produce such construction, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in such construction.

#### 1.1.5 THE PROJECT

The Project is the total construction, of which the Work performed under the Contract documents may be the whole or a part.

#### 1.1.6 SCHOOL BOARD

Board of Education of the Anchorage School District, Anchorage, Alaska.

#### 1.1. 7 BIDDER

Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation or combination thereof, formally submitting a bid for the work contemplated, or any portion thereof, acting directly or through an authorized representative.

#### 1.1.8 MUNICIPALITY

Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska.

#### 1.1.9 PROPOSAL

#### 1.1.9.1 BID PROPOSAL

The written proposal of the Bidder on the form furnished by the Owner for the Work contemplated, and which is required to be signed by the Bidder.

#### 1.1.9.2 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

The offer of the Contractor submitted on the prescribed form from the Project Manager to perform the work and furnish labor, material and all other costs at the prices quoted by the Contractor for proposed changes in the work.

#### 1.1. 10 SPECIFICATIONS

The products, directions, requirements, explanations, terms and provisions pertaining to the various features of the Work to be done and the manner and method of performance. The specifications include such directions, requirements and explanations as appear on the drawings and as may otherwise be defined.

#### 1.1. 11 PROJECT SITE

The geographic location of the Project as indicated on the Drawings.

#### 1.1. 12 PROJECT MANUAL

The Project Manual includes the Bidding and Contract Requirements, Project Schedule Milestone Dates, General and Supplementary Conditions, Wage Rates, the Specifications and project drawings incorporated by reference.

#### 1.1. 13 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Request for Information. Written interpretations necessary for the proper execution or progress of the Work, in the form of drawings or otherwise, will be issued with reasonable promptness by the Project Manager. The Contractor may make written request to the Project Manager for such interpretations. Such interpretations will be consistent with and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents.

#### 1.2 EXECUTION, CORRELATION AND INTENT

- 1.2.1 The Contract shall be signed in doubles by the Owner and Contractor, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all or which shall constitute one and the same instrument.
- 1.2.2 By executing the Contract, the Contractor represents that he has visited the site, familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 1.2.3 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work. Except as otherwise specifically provided, the Contractor shall furnish all labor, tools, implements, machinery, supplies, materials, and incidentals, and shall do all things necessary to perform and to complete the Work. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one shall be as binding as if required by all. Work not covered in the Contract Documents will not be required unless it is consistent therewith and is reasonable inferable therefrom as being necessary to produce the intended results. Words and abbreviations which have well-known technical or trade meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings unless otherwise specifically defined herein.
- 1.2.4 The organization of the Specifications into division, sections and articles, and the arrangement of Drawings shall not control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be performed by a trade.

- 1.2.5 If any portion of the Contract Documents shall be in conflict with any other portion, the various documents comprising the Contract Documents shall govern in the following order of precedence:
  - 1.2.5.1 The Owner-Contractor Agreement;
  - 1.2.5.2 Modifications;
  - 1.2.5.3 Addenda:
  - 1.2.5.4 Section 00800 Supplementary General Conditions;
  - 1.2.5.5 Section 00700 General Conditions of the Contract for Construction;
  - 1.2.5.6 Specifications embodying all other sections in the Project Manual;
  - 1.2.5.7 Drawings: as between schedules and information given on Drawings, the schedules shall govern; as between written dimensions given on Drawings and scaled measurements, the written dimensions shall govern; as between large-scale Drawings and small-scale Drawings, the larger scale shall govern;
  - 1.2.5.8 Performance Bond, Labor and Material Payment Bond;
  - 1.2.5.9 Bid/Proposal Form:
  - 1.2.5.10 Instructions to Bidders/Proposers;
  - 1.2.5.11 Invitation to Bid/Request for Proposal;

All such conflicts shall be reported, in writing, to the Project Manager. Schedules, lists, indexes, tables, inventories, written instruction, written descriptions, summaries, statements, classifications, specifications, written selections, or written designations, although appearing on the Drawings, are deemed to be and are "Specifications" as defined by this Subparagraph 1.2.5. The principles as set forth herein shall not alter the provisions of Subparagraph 1.2.3.

In the event there is a conflict between or among any provisions within one of the component parts of the Contract Documents, the higher standard or more stringent requirement shall govern.

- 1.2.6 The Contractor agrees that nothing contained in the Contract Documents or any contract between the Owner and the Architect shall create any contractual relationship between the Architect and the Contractor, any Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, Material Suppliers or Vendors. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that this Contract is not intended to create, nor shall any provision be interpreted as creating, any contractual relationship between the Owner or Contractor or any third parties.
- 1.2.7 Any material or operation specified by reference to published specifications of a manufacturer, a society, an association, a code, or other published standard, shall comply with requirements of the listed document and project specifications; or as between referenced documents, the more stringent code or performance requirements shall govern. The Contractor, if requested, shall furnish an affidavit from the manufacturer certifying that the materials or products delivered to the Project meet the requirement specified.

#### 1.3 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS

- 1.3.1 All Drawings, Specifications and copies thereof furnished by the Owner are and shall remain its property. They are to be used only with respect to this Project and are not to be used on any other project.
- 1.3.2 The Owner will provide conformed drawings and specifications incorporating Addenda items into the Contract Documents. A reasonable number of reproduced sets will be provided to the contractor without charge.

**END OF ARTICLE 1** 

#### ARTICLE 2

#### ARCHITECT

#### 2.1 DEFINITION

- 2.1.1 The Architect is the person or organization lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing architecture identified as such in the Owner-Contractor Agreement, and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender. The term Architect means the Architect and his engineers, whether under contract or within his own organization, or his authorized representative.
- 2.1.2 The term Architect is interchangeable with the term Project Architect, and is exclusive of the services of the Asbestos Abatement Architect.
- 2.1.3 The Asbestos Abatement Architect is not a part of the Architect's organization.

#### 2.2 SERVICES OF THE ARCHITECT

- 2.2.1 The Architect will provide certain services as hereinafter described.
- 2.2.2 Should errors, omissions, or conflicts in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents provided by the Architect be discovered, the Architect will prepare such amendments or supplementary documents and provide consultation as may be required.
- 2.2.3 The Architect and his consulting engineers (including but not limited to the structural, mechanical, and electrical disciplines) will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction to familiarize themselves generally with the progress and quality of the Work and to determine in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise provided in the Owner-Architect Agreement, the Architect and his consulting engineers will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspection or observations to check the quality or quantity of the Work, but they shall make as many on-site inspections and observations as may reasonably be required to fulfill their obligations to the Owner. On the basis of such on-site observation, the Architect and his consulting engineers shall endeavor to guard the Owner against defects and deficiencies in the Work of the Contractor.
- 2.2.4 The Architect will render written field reports to the Project Manager in the form required by the Project Manager relating to the periodic visits and inspections of the Project required by Subparagraph 2.2.3.
- 2.2.5 The Architect will not be responsible for and will not have control or charge of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, and he will not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect will not be responsible for or have control or charge over the acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the work.
- 2.2.6 The Architect shall at all times have access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress. The Contractor shall provide safe facilities for such access so the Architect may perform his functions under the Contract Documents.
- 2.2.7 The Project Manager will consult with the Architect regarding the Contractor's Applications for Payment and both shall sign the Applications for Payment as provided in Subparagraph

9.4.

- 2.2.8 As required, the Architect will render to the Project Manager interpretations necessary for the proper execution or progress of the Work, with reasonable promptness and in accordance with any time limit agreed upon.
- 2.2.9 All communications, correspondence, submittals, and documents exchanged between the Architect and the Contractor in connection with the Project shall be through or in the manner prescribed by the Project Manager.
- 2.2.10 All interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents.
- 2.2.11 The Architect's decision in matters relating to artistic effect will be final if consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents and approved by the Project Manager.
- 2.2.12 If the Architect observes any Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents, the Architect shall promptly report in writing this observation to the Project Manager. The Architect will prepare and submit to the Project Manager punchlists of the Contractor's Work which is not in conformance with the Contract Documents. The Project Manager will transmit such punchlists to the Contractor.
- 2.2.13 The Architect will review and take appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for conformance with the design concept of the Work and for general compliance with the Contract Documents. Such action shall be taken in no more than twenty-one (21) days of receipt unless otherwise authorized by the Project Manager.
- 2.2.14 The Project Manager will establish with the Architect procedures to be followed for review and processing of all Shop Drawings, catalog submittals, project reports, test reports, maintenance manuals, and other necessary documentation, as well as requests for changes and applications for extensions of time.
- 2.2.15 The Architect will prepare technical documentation for Change Orders when directed by the Project Manager.
- 2.2.16 The Architect and the Project Manager will conduct inspections to determine the dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion, and will issue a final Certificate of Substantial Completion.
- 2.2.17 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, or the Owner-Architect Agreement, the Architect will prepare a set of reproducible record prints of Drawings showing significant changes in the Work made during the construction process, based on neatly and clearly marked-up prints, Drawings, and other data furnished by the Contractor.
- 2.2.18 In case of the termination of the employment of the Architect, the Owner may appoint an architect against whom the Contractor makes no reasonable objection whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former architect, or the Owner may have the Project Manager assume all of the services of the Architect thereafter.

#### 2.3 ASBESTOS ABATEMENT ARCHITECT

2.3.1 Solely with regards to asbestos abatement, the Asbestos Abatement Architect shall be afforded the same rights and authority as hereinbefore allowed the Architect.

2.3.2 The Architect is not a part of the Asbestos Abatement Architect's organization.

#### 2.4 SEPARATE ARCHITECT, ENGINEER OR ARCHITECT/ENGINEER

- 2.4.1 Unless otherwise noted in the Contract Documents, the Separate Architect, Engineer or Architect/Engineer, as defined by the Supplementary General Conditions, Document 00800, shall be afforded the same rights and authority as hereinbefore allowed the Architect.
- 2.4.2 The Contract Documents, when applicable, shall define the portion of the Work relating to the services of the Separate Architect, Engineer or Architect/Engineer.

**END OF ARTICLE 2** 

#### ARTICLE 3

#### **OWNER**

#### 3.1 DEFINITIONS

- 3.1.1 The Owner is the Anchorage School District acting through its legally constituted officials, officers, employees, or agents and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender. The term Owner means the Owner or its authorized representative or agent.
- 3.1.2 The Asbestos Abatement Consultant is under separate Agreement with the Owner. Communications protocol between the Contractor and the Asbestos Abatement Architect shall be as established by the Project Manager.

#### 3.2 PROJECT MANAGER

- 3.2.1 The Project Manager will be the Owner's representative and agent to the Contractor with respect to the Project during construction and until the issuance of the final Certificate for Payment. The term Project Manager is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender. The Owner's communications with the Contractor and the Architect will be through the Project Manager, who will have full authority to act on behalf of the Owner with regard to all aspects of the Project except that the Owner must approve all Change Orders and payments to the Contractor. The Project Manager's actions with regard to this project will be as an agent and representative of the Owner.
- 3.2.2 The Project Manager is not authorized to revoke, alter, change, relax, or release any requirements of the Contract, nor to approve or accept any portion of the Work not executed in accordance with, nor to issue instructions contrary to, the Contract Documents.
- 3.2.3 Nothing contained within the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between the Project Manager and the Contractor.

#### 3.3 INFORMATION, SERVICES AND RIGHTS OF THE OWNER

- 3.3.1 The Owner, through the Project Manager, will provide administration of the Contract as hereinafter described.
- 3.3.2 The Owner and the Project Manager shall at all times have access to the Work whenever it is in preparation or progress. The Contractor shall provide safe facilities for such access.
- 3.3.3 The Owner and the Project Manager shall not be responsible for or have control or charge of the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work and will not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Project Manager will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, any Subcontractors, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work.
- 3.3.4 The Project Manager shall have authority on behalf of the Owner to condemn or reject Work when, in the Project Manager's opinion the Work does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever, in the Project Manager's reasonable opinion, it is considered necessary or advisable to insure the proper implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, the Project Manager shall have the authority to require special inspection or

- testing of any Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contracts Documents, whether or not such Work be then fabricated, installed, or completed.
- 3.3.5 The Project Manager will have authority to require additional inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Subparagraph 7.7.3, whether or not such Work be then fabricated, installed, or completed. However, neither the Project Manager's authority to act under Subparagraphs 3.3.4 and 3.3.5, nor any decision made by the Project Manager in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Project Manager to the Contractor, any Subcontractor, any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the work.
- 3.3.6 The Project Manager shall have the authority and discretion to call, schedule, and conduct job meetings to be attended by the Contractor, and representatives of his Subcontractors, and Material Suppliers, and Vendors and the Architect, to discuss such matters as procedures, progress, changes, problems, claims and scheduling.
- 3.3.7 The Project Manager will establish procedures to be followed for processing all Shop Drawings, catalogs, and other project reports, and other documentation, test reports, and maintenance manuals.
- 3.3.8 The Project Manager will review all requests for changes and shall implement the processing of Change Orders, including applications for extension of the Contract time.
- 3.3.9 Project scheduling shall occur as set forth in Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements, entitled "Schedules and Reports". The Owner and the Project Manager will not be responsible for the failure of the Contractor to plan, schedule, and execute the Work in accordance with the Contractor's accepted schedule or the failure of the Contractor to meet the Project Schedule Milestone Dates as set forth under Section 00200 hereof or the failure of the Contractor to schedule and coordinate the Work of his own trades and Subcontractors, and Material Suppliers and Vendors, or the failure of the Contractor to coordinate and cooperate with other separate contractors.
- 3.3.10 The Project Manager, in consultation with the Architect, will review and process all Applications for Payment by the Contractor, including the final Application for Payment.
- 3.3.11 The Owner and the Project Manager will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, or any Subcontractor, or Material Supplier and Vendor, or any contractor's, subcontractor's or Material Supplier's and Vendor's agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work.
- 3.3.12 The Owner shall, if requested by the Contractor, furnish all existing and available surveys describing the physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project.
- 3.3.13 Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall pay for necessary easements required for permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing facilities. The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and coordinating the securing of easements, inspections and approvals for permanent structures and all associated work.
- 3.3.14 Information or services under the Owner's control shall be furnished by the Owner with reasonable promptness to avoid delay in the orderly progress of the Work.
- 3.3.15 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be furnished, free of charge, all copies of Drawings and Specifications, and such supplemental

documents as are reasonably necessary for the execution of the Work.

3.3.16 The foregoing rights are in addition to other rights of the Owner enumerated herein and those provided by law.

#### 3.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS

- 3.4.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform other work at the project site(s) with his own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with portions of other work on the site.
- 3.4.2 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and the execution of their Work, and shall coordinate his Work with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.
- 3.4.3 A pre-construction conference will be held with the Contractor, Project Manager, and other contractors performing work at the project site, for the purpose of coordinating work in areas where more than one contractor may be working. The time of the meeting will be established by the Owner's Representative prior to the Contractor commencing his work.
- 3.4.4 The Contractor shall attend additional coordination meetings, as requested by the Owner's Representative.

#### 3.5 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP OR TO SUSPEND THE WORK

- 3.5.1 If the Contractor fails to correct defective Work as required by Paragraph 13.2 or fails to carry out the Work or supply labor and materials in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner, through the Project Manager, by a written order may order the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the Project Manager to stop the Work on behalf of the Owner shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Project Manager to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity.
- 3.5.2 The Project Manager may order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any part of the Work for such period of time as he may determine to be appropriate for the convenience of the Owner.
- 3.5.3 Upon receipt of any such suspension order, the Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize incurring costs allocated to the Work covered by the order during the period of Work suspension.
- 3.5.4 If the performance of all or any part of the Work is suspended, or delayed, or interrupted by the Owner or the Project Manager pursuant to Subparagraph 3.5.2, the Contractor may make application for an adjustment in contract time and contract sum pursuant to Paragraph 12.2, and Division 1, Section 01311, Paragraph 2.03, respectively. No such adjustment shall be made if the performance of the Work is suspended by the Owner pursuant to Subparagraph 3.5.1.

#### 3.6 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK

3.6.1 If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within seven (7) days after receipt of written notice from the Project Manager to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, after seven (7) days following receipt by the Contractor of an additional written notice and without prejudice to any other remedy he may have,

make good such deficiencies and may further elect to complete all Work thereafter through such means as the Owner may select, including the use of a new Contractor. In such a case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the cost of correcting such deficiencies, including additional Owner administrative and legal costs, and compensation for the Architect's and the Project Manager's additional services made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.

#### 3.7 AUDIT

- 3.7.1 The Owner shall have access to the Contractor's books, accounts, records, invoices and other records and documents pertaining to the Project at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting and auditing such. The Contractor shall provide to the Owner his daily manpower and equipment reports for all Subcontractors and any and all information requested or required by the Owner to validate or verify an Application for Payment, claim for cost or a requisition. The Contractor shall have no right to additional compensation or time in the event a requisition is delayed due to the inability of the Owner to validate or verify an Application for Payment due to the failure or refusal of the Contractor to allow such inspection or audit or to provide such requested information.
- 3.7.2 The Contractor shall maintain all data and records pertinent to the Work performed under this Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and shall preserve and make available all data and records until the expiration of three (3) years from the date of final payment under this Contract, or for such longer period, if any, as is required by applicable statute, pending litigation, or by other articles of this Contract. The Owner and its authorized representatives shall have access to all such data and records for such time period to inspect, audit and make copies thereof during normal business hours.
- 3.7.3 The Contractor covenants and agrees that it shall require that any Subcontractor and any Sub-Subcontractor utilized in the performance of this Contract shall permit the authorized representatives of the Owner to similarly inspect and audit all data and records of said Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors relating to the performance of said Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors under this Contract for the same time period specified above.

**END OF ARTICLE 3** 

#### **ARTICLE 4**

#### CONTRACTOR

#### 4.1 DEFINITION

4.1.1 The Contractor is the person or organization identified as such in the Owner-Contractor Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender. The term Contractor means the Contractor or his authorized representative, who shall have the authority to bind the Contractor in all matters pertinent to this Contract.

#### 4.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

4.2.1 Before placing his proposal to the Owner, and continuously after execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and shall at once report to the Owner, through the Project Manager, any error, inconsistency or omission he may discover, including any requirement which may be contrary to any law, ordinance, rule, regulation or order of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work. By submitting his proposal or bid for the Contract and the Work under it, the Contractor agrees that the Contract Documents appear accurate, consistent, and complete insofar as can reasonably be determined. If the Contractor has reported in writing an error, inconsistency or omission, has promptly stopped the affected work until otherwise instructed, and has otherwise followed the instructions of the Owner, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner for any damage resulting from any such errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work at any time without Contract Documents and, where required, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples for such portion of the Work.

#### 4.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

- 4.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using his best skill and attention. He shall be solely responsible for and have control over all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract.
- 4.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees, Subcontractors, and Material Suppliers and Vendors, and their agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the work.
- 4.3.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved from his obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents either by the activities or duties of the Architect or the Project Manager in their administration of the Contract, or by inspections, tests or approvals (or the lack thereof) required or performed under Paragraph 7.7 by persons other than the Contractor.
- 4.3.4 Independent of this Contract, the Owner has undertaken a long term asbestos abatement program by which the Owner intends to properly document the existence of asbestos-contained materials and the lawful removal of ACM by qualified asbestos abatement contractors or subcontractors in accordance with the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) and the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Reauthorization Act (ASHARA). As part of this asbestos abatement program, the Owner has employed a private consultant to locate asbestos-containing materials present in the Owner's facilities. A copy of the AHERA report as it relates to the facility which is involved in this Contract can be obtained from the Owner by contacting the Project Manager.

- 4.3.4.1 Before starting the Work or any Section of the Work, the Contractor shall inspect or, if using a Subcontractor for a Section of the Work, shall cause his Subcontractor to inspect all preparatory work, including that performed prior to the commencement of the Work under this Contract, for the presence of suspected asbestos-containing materials.
- If the Contractor or his Subcontractor encounters any asbestos-containing 4.3.4.2 material or suspected asbestos-containing material -- whether such material is identified in the AHERA report or the private consultant's report or not -- the Contractor shall bring it to the immediate attention of the Project Manager by timely written notice. Such notification shall be considered timely if received by the Project Manager within two (2) days after the discovery of the asbestoscontaining material or suspected asbestos-containing material by the Contractor or by a Subcontractor if the Contractor uses a Subcontractor to perform that Section of the Work. If the Contractor does not give timely notice of the presence of asbestos-containing material or suspected asbestos-containing material, the Contractor will not receive additional compensation for delay caused by the necessity of the Owner to stop work and abate asbestos-containing material during the course of the Work. Failure of a Subcontractor to report the presence of asbestos-containing material or suspected asbestos-containing material to the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities hereunder.
- 4.3.4.3 If the Contractor, or his employees, agents or subcontractors intentionally or negligently disturbs or removes, or causes to be disturbed or removed, all or a portion of asbestos-containing material, the Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the School District and the Project Manager from and against any claims, damages, losses and expenses, and alleged claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from any cleanup/decontamination work, medical treatment, or legal action arising or resulting from said intentional or negligent disturbance or removal of asbestos-containing material.
- 4.3.5 The Contractor shall make all necessary arrangements and so conduct the Work that all parts of the same will be carried out simultaneously and harmoniously and that the work of installing the various sections or items of same shall not interfere with or retard the progress of other Work.
- 4.3.6 If it becomes necessary at any time during the progress of the Work to move materials and/or equipment which have been temporarily located or stored, the Contractor shall move them or cause them to be moved, at his expense. Care shall be taken that no part of the Work shall be overloaded at any time.
- 4.3.7 The Contractor shall furnish all required information to ensure continuity between various sections of the Work and to avoid delay and obviate defects on any part of the whole Work, all as approved by the Owner.
- 4.3.8 Any damage caused by the handling or installation of materials or equipment, or the carrying out of any portion of the Work must also be made good by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Project Manager.
- 4.3.9 The Contractor shall compare all the various drawings, and shall install Work in a manner to provide for all clearances and finishes indicated thereon. Work under each trade shall be arranged to clear piping, equipment, etc., of all other trades.
- 4.3.10 The Contractor shall inform himself fully regarding any peculiarities and limitations of the

- space available for the installation of the material. He shall see that all equipment, such as valves, or other appliances necessary to be reached from time to time for operations and maintenance are made readily accessible.
- 4.3.11 The construction of the Work may develop conditions that render impracticable the location of equipment as shown or noted. In such cases, before installing his Work, the Contractor shall call the condition to the attention of the Project Manager for resolution.
- 4.3.12 It shall be the Contractor's sole responsibility to so coordinate the Work that chases or other recesses in walls shall be provided where required, and that reasonable clearance between the work of various trades shall be maintained. The layout for openings and chases through walls, floors, and partitions, etc., shall be arranged in advance of the actual construction and the work carried out without unnecessary and superfluous cutting, etc., after the Work has been completed.
- 4.3.13 Dimensions shall be verified by the measurements of the buildings and the property, and the Contractor shall be responsible for all of his work fitting in place in a satisfactory and workmanlike manner.
- 4.3.14 The Contractor has carefully examined, in detail, all of the Drawings and Specifications and the time established for completion of the Work, and he accepts them as adequate to meet the requirements specified.
- 4.3.15 The Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating the work performed by any artist in connection with the project's ornamentation with the construction of this project, so that there shall be no unnecessary delay or interference in connection with said construction.
- 4.3.16 The Contractor shall coordinate and generally supervise the Work of this Contract and shall coordinate his Work with Work performed under Separate Contracts by mutual arrangement and agreement with the Contractors for those Contracts and the Project Manager. Unresolved disputes will be finally resolved by the Project Manager, subject to approval of the Owner, and the dispute resolution provisions of Subparagraph 12.5.

#### 4.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS

- 4.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the execution and completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, and any applicable building permit, conditional and final certificate(s) of occupancy, code or statute, whether specifically required by the Contract Documents or whether their provision may reasonably be inferred as necessary to produce the intended results, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.
- 4.4.2 The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among his employees and shall not employ on the Work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him. The Project Manager may, by notice in writing, require the Contractor to promptly remove from the site of the Work any employee or worker the Project Manager deems incompetent, careless or otherwise objectionable including violation of District Policies relating to alcohol, illegal drugs, or firearms on District property.
- 4.4.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that the Work is completed in a skillful and workmanlike manner.

#### 4.5 WARRANTY

- 4.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and the Architect that all materials and equipment furnished under this Contract will be new unless otherwise specified, and that all Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. All Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved and authorized, is defective. If required by the Project Manager or the Architect, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. This warranty is not limited by the provisions of Paragraph 13.2.
- 4.5.2 The warranties set forth in this Paragraph 4.5 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents shall survive final acceptance under Paragraph 9.9.

#### 4.6 TAXES

4.6.1 The Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes for the Work or portions thereof provided by the Contractor which are legally enacted at the time bids are received, whether or not yet effective.

#### 4.7 PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES

- 4.7.1 Except as specifically provided in Subparagraph 3.3.13 the Contractor shall secure and pay for (1) all permits and governmental fees, licenses and inspections necessary for the proper execution of the Work which are legally required at the time the bids are received, and (2) all permits and governmental fees, licenses and inspections from any agency or department of the Municipality of Anchorage that would be necessary for the proper execution of the Work or legally required at the time bids are received just as if the Work were performed and the Project located within the Municipality of Anchorage. The Municipality of Anchorage shall be considered a "public authority bearing on the performance of the Work" and a "public authority having jurisdiction" for purposes of this Contract.
  - 4.7.1.1 The Anchorage School District has paid for the Municipality of Anchorage's Building Plan Review and Building Fee Permit. Contractor shall obtain permit upon notice from Project Manager.
- 4.7.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all such laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work.
- 4.7.3 If the Contractor performs any Work knowing it to be contrary to any such laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work, and does so without reasonable notice to the Project Manager, the Contractor shall assume full responsibility therefore and shall bear all costs attributable thereto.
- 4.7.4 Notification, coordination and completion of the installation of all required utilities, whether temporary or permanent, is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The Owner shall not be responsible for any damage or delay caused by any party's inability to perform installations in the time frame desired by the Contractor.

#### 4.8 ALLOWANCES

4.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items covered by these allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons as the Owner may direct, but the Contractor will not be required to employ persons against whom he makes a reasonable objection.

- 4.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:
  - 4.8.2.1 These allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor, less any applicable trade discount, of the materials and equipment required by the allowance delivered at the site, and all applicable taxes;
  - 4.8.2.2 The Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for the original allowance shall be included in the Contract Sum and not in the allowances:
  - 4.8.2.3 Whenever the cost is more than or less than the allowance, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize changes, if any, in handling costs on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses.

#### 4.9 SUPERINTENDENT

- 4.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance full-time at the Project Site during the progress of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and all communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor. If requested by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall provide a management chart and a list of personnel in a number stipulated by the Project Manager which shall comprise the superintending staff. In such event, all references to the superintendent elsewhere in the Contract Documents shall mean the superintending staff.
- 4.9.2 The superintendent shall be in attendance at the Project Site not less than eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week, unless the job is closed down due to a general strike or conditions beyond the control of the Contractor or until termination of the Contract in accordance with the Contract Documents. The superintendent shall not be employed on any other project during the course of the Work.
- 4.9.3 In the event any of the following conditions shall exist, the Contractor shall require that his superintendent be at the Project Site not less than ten (10) hours per day, six (6) days per week:
  - 4.9.3.1 Should Substantial Completion not be accomplished on schedule.
  - 4.9.3.2 Should Final Completion not be accomplished on schedule.
  - 4.9.3.3 Should the Contractor's progress schedule indicate the Contractor to be fourteen (14) or more days behind schedule at any time during construction up until thirty (30) days prior to scheduled Substantial Completion.
  - 4.9.3.4 Should the Contractor's progress schedule indicate the Contractor to be seven (7) or more days behind schedule at any time during the last thirty (30) days prior to scheduled Substantial Completion.

#### 4.10 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

4.10.1 The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Project Manager for the Owner's review and acceptance a construction schedule pursuant to and in accordance with Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements entitled "Project Schedule."

#### 4.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE

4.11.1 The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to record all changes made during construction, and approved Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples. These shall be available to the Project Manager and the Architect and shall be delivered to the Project Manager upon substantial completion of the Work.

#### 4.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

- 4.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the Contractor or any Subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of the Work.
- 4.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, diagrams, and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product or system for some portion of the Work.
- 4.12.3 Samples are physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards by which the Work will be judged.
- 4.12.4 The Contractor shall review, approve and submit using the ASD Procore Construction Management Program, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the work of the Owner or any separate contractor, all Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples required by the Contract Documents, or subsequently by the Project Manager. The Contractor's Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples submissions shall be coordinated and consistent with the Contractor's Project Scheduling obligations under Division 1, Section 01311 of the Contract Documents. Shop Drawings and Samples shall be properly identified as specified, or as the Project Manager may require. At the time of submission, the Contractor shall inform the Architect in writing of any deviation in the Shop Drawings or Samples from the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 4.12.5 By approving and submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, the Contractor represents that he has determined and verified all materials, field measurements, and field construction criteria related thereto, and that he has checked and coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall adhere to any supplementary processing and scheduling instruction pertaining to Shop Drawings which may be issued by the Project Manager.
- 4.12.6 The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for any deviation from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect's approval and Project Manager's review of Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples under Subparagraph 2.2.14 unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect and Project Manager in writing of such deviation at the time of submission and the Architect and Project Manager have given written approval to the specific deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved from responsibility for errors or omission in the Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples by the Architect's approval of or Project Manager's review thereof.
- 4.12.7 The Contractor shall promptly make corrections required by the Architect and shall resubmit the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings or new Product Data or Samples. The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples, to revisions other than those requested by the

Architect on previous submittals. Resubmittals necessitated by required corrections due to Contractor's errors or omissions, or less than complete submittals as required by the specifications, shall not be cause for extension of Contract Time.

- 4.12.8 The Contractor shall keep on the job at all times copies of approved Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples which bear the review stamp of the Architect/Engineer.
- 4.12.9 The review of Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples by the Architect and Project Manager shall not relieve the Contractor from his responsibility to coordinate the work of the Subcontractors.
- 4.12.10 The review of Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples by the Architect and the Project Manager shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities to construct the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 4.12.11 The review of Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples by the Architect shall not be construed as an approval of the quantities of materials or confirmation of dimensions.
- 4.12.12 In preparing a schedule for delivery of materials the Contractor shall allow reasonable time for the approval, including resubmissions due to Contractor's errors and omissions, of Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples.
- 4.12.13 When Shop Drawings, Cuts, or Brochures are forwarded to the Architect by the Contractor for approval, a copy of the Contractor's letter of transmittal with project name, Contractor's name, number of drawings, title and other pertinent data covering each transaction is to be mailed to the Project Manager. The Architect and his consulting Engineers shall follow the same procedure when it is necessary for them to return or transfer Shop Drawings, Cuts or Brochures either between themselves or to the Contractor for changes, corrections or resubmittal, so that the Project Manager can record and follow procedure for each transaction to finality.
  - 4.12.13.1 Pursuant to and consistent with the Contractor's Project Schedule development obligations under Division 1, Section 01311 of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings, Product Data and Sample submission schedule information to the Architect and Project Manager. The Contractor shall submit, and the Architect and Project Manager will review, the Contractor's submittals in accordance with the Contractor's accepted Preliminary and Detailed Project Schedules, as required under Division 1, Section 01311 of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall submit no Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples which do not comply with the Contract Documents.
  - 4.12.13.2 No portion of the Work requiring a Shop Drawing, Product Data or Sample submission shall be commenced until such submission has been reviewed, and approved, by the Architect in accordance with Subparagraph 2.2.13. All such portions of the Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals.
  - 4.12.13.3 No claim for delay shall be allowed the Contractor on account of failure of the Architect to furnish drawings or approval of Shop Drawings and Samples until at least twenty-one (21) days after submission to the Architect.
- 4.12.14 Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples shall be dated and shall bear the name of the Project; a description or the names of equipment, materials and items; and complete identification of locations at which materials or equipment are to be installed.

- 4.12.15 In submitting for approval the use of any material or device as the equal of some other material or device specified by name, the Contractor shall submit a sample of the material specified and also a sample of the material proposed to be submitted as the equal thereof, together with any supporting data necessary to reasonably allow the Architect and the Project Manager to review the material.
- 4.12.16 In case of devices, samples of which cannot readily be submitted, catalogs and other data, shall be submitted.
- 4.12.17 Any material or device proposed to be substituted shall not be deemed acceptable except by written communication from the Architect and Project Manager.
- 4.12.18 All Work for which samples are required to be submitted and approved shall be executed and performed in conformity with the said approved samples.

#### 4.13 USE OF SITE

- 4.13.1 The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably encumber the building or site with any materials or equipment.
- 4.13.2 The Contractor shall coordinate all of his operations with and secure approval from the Project Manager before using any portion of the site.
- 4.13.3 All Work or materials of every description subject to injury during the course of the Work shall be fully protected from damage from any source. In any event, should any Work or materials under this Contract, become damaged in any way or manner the Contractor shall repair and perfect the same at his own expense, and when the entire Contract is completed, the building and premises shall be delivered to the Owner without defects. Any damage which may be caused by the installation of any portion of the Work covered by these specifications and conditions, or by the Contractor shall be satisfactorily made good and repaired by the Contractor without cost to the Owner.
- 4.13.4 The Contractor shall provide and maintain all lights, footways, guards, fences, gates, etc., for the proper protection of the public, and shall comply with all municipal rules, regulations, ordinances and laws, relating to the prosecution of his work.
- 4.13.5 The Contractor shall properly and carefully shore up or otherwise support all live water, sewer and gas pipes, electric wires, free-standing walls, conduit, etc., which may be encountered.
- 4.13.6 The Contractor shall furnish for his use, throughout the entire construction all scaffolding, ladders, decking or runways as needed to perform the Work under this Contract.
- 4.13.7 The Contractor shall construct elevators, cranes and other rigging, concrete lifts, etc., as required for his Work.
- 4.13.8 All such construction shall be carried out as required by the code or authority having jurisdiction. No cranes or other heavy equipment shall be located or moved in such manner as to damage or strain the framework or any part(s) of the proposed building and/or existing building.
- 4.13.9 As construction proceeds, the Project Manager may deem it necessary to have the Contractor move trailers, fences, stored materials, etc., to facilitate the construction. Upon written notice from the Project Manager, this will be done without additional cost to the

Owner.

- 4.13.10 When school is in session the Contractor will be restricted to the areas which do not interfere with school operations. These areas shall be safety and security fenced to not impact school operations. Additional areas may be utilized upon concurrence of the Project Manager. The Contractor shall minimize his impact on the educational program while his work is in progress. Workers must stay out of school while school is in session. All work in the existing school can only take place during the hours approved by the Project Manager
- 4.13.11 The Contractor must maintain interior building fire exits through the construction areas and maintain these exits during all school operation hours, to the satisfaction of the Authorities having Jurisdiction. These exit routes may not be modified without concurrence of the Project Manager and the School Principal.
- 4.13.12 The Contractor must maintain fire equipment access routes open to site and buildings. According to UFC 10.502 fire equipment access and water supplies shall be installed and made serviceable prior to and during the time of construction. This is the Contractor's responsibility to coordinate.
- 4.13.13 The Contractor shall keep the boilers operational while the average outside temperature is below 60° F while the school program is in operation or at any time temperature is below 40° F, to protect facility utility systems.

#### 4.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING OF WORK

- 4.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting or patching that may be required to complete the Work or to make its several parts fit together properly.
- 4.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger any portion of the Work or the work of the Owner or any separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering any work, or by excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter the work of the Owner or any separate Contractor except with the written consent of the Owner and of such separate Contractor. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner, or any separate contractor his consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work.
- 4.14.3 Existing structures and facilities including but not limited to building, utilities, topography, streets, curbs, walks, etc., that are damaged or removed due to required excavations or other construction work, shall be patched, repaired or replaced by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Project Manager, the owner of such structures and facilities, and authorities having jurisdiction. In event the local jurisdictional authorities require that such repairing and patching be done with their own labor and materials, the Contractor shall abide by such regulations and pay for such work.
- 4.14.4 Whenever, for the convenience of work, an oversized opening has been provided, it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor requesting and requiring such opening to eventually fill unused portions of such openings with the appropriate material and with special attention to penetrations of firewalls. Such repair shall be in accordance with Paragraph 4.14.1.

## 4.15 CLEANING UP

4.15.1 The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by his operations. At the completion of the Work he shall remove all his waste materials and rubbish from and about the Project as well as all his tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials.

4.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up during or at the substantial or final completion of his Work, the Owner may do so as provided in Paragraph 6.3 and the costs thereof shall be charged to the Contractor.

## 4.16 COMMUNICATIONS

4.16.1 The Contractor shall forward all communications to the Architect or the Owner through the Project Manager, except as described under Paragraph 4.12.13.

## 4.17 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

4.17.1 The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. He shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and shall save the Owner harmless from loss on account thereof, except that the Owner shall be responsible for all such loss when a particular design, process or the product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is specified, but if the Contractor has reason to believe that the design, process or product specified is an infringement of a patent, he shall be responsible for such loss unless he promptly gives such information to the Project Manager.

## 4.18 INDEMNIFICATION

- 4.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall, at his sole cost and expense, indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Owner, the Municipality of Anchorage and their Board or Assembly members, administrators, representatives, and employees, and the Project Architect and its agents, representatives, and employees from and against all claims, actions, judgments, costs, liabilities, penalties, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, which arise out of or result from the performance of the Work, and which are:
  - 4.18.1.1 Attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to, pollution of, or destruction of property (other than the Work itself) including the loss of use resulting therefrom; and
  - 4.18.1.2 Caused by the default of the Contractor, or by any act, whether negligent or wrongful, or omission of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, Material Supplier or Vendor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.
- 4.18.2 In any and all claims against the Owner or the Municipality of Anchorage or their Board or Assembly members, administrators, representatives or employees, and the Project Architect and its agents, representatives, and employees by any employee of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this Paragraph 4.18 shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor and Subcontractor under worker's compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

# 4.19 PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO SIGN DOCUMENTS

4.19.1 The Contractor, within five (5) days after the Notice to Proceed shall file with the Project Manager a list of all persons who are authorized to sign documents such as contracts,

modifications, schedules, certificates, and affidavits on behalf of the Contractor and to fully bind the Contractor to all the Conditions and provisions of such documents, except that in the case of a corporation he shall file with the Project Manager a certified copy of a resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation in which are listed the names and titles of corporation personnel who are authorized to sign documents on behalf of the corporation and to fully bind the corporation to all the conditions and provisions of such documents. This person, or at least one of these persons, shall be available to meet in Anchorage, Alaska, with the Owner or his representative(s) to discuss, negotiate and/or resolve any Change Order or other Modification to the Contract or any other matter needing resolution by the parties as determined at the sole discretion of the Owner within forty-eight (48) hours after receipt of written notice, at no additional cost to the Owner.

## 4.20 CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE WORK

- 4.20.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for taking all steps necessary to ascertain the nature and location of the Work and the general and local conditions which can affect the Work or the cost thereof. Failure by the Contractor to fully acquaint himself with conditions which may affect the Work, including, but not limited to conditions relating to transportation, handling, storage of materials, availability of labor, water, roads, weather, topographic and subsurface conditions, multi-prime contract conditions, applicable provisions of law, and the character and availability of equipment and facilities needed prior to and during the execution of the Work, shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities under the Contract Documents and shall not constitute a basis for an adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time under any circumstances. The Owner assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representation about conditions affecting the Work made by any of his officers, employees, representatives, or agents prior to the execution of the Contract, unless such understandings or representations are expressly stated in the Contract Documents.
- 4.20.2 Until final acceptance by the Owner, the Contractor shall be in complete control of and fully responsible for the Work.
- 4.20.3 The Contractor shall give to the proper authorities all required notices relating to the Work in his charge, and shall be responsible for all acts and events which are violations of the law or which would be violations of the law had the Work been performed or the Project located within the Municipality of Anchorage.
- 4.20.4 Wherever herein mention is made of any article, material or workmanship to be in accordance with the laws, ordinances, building code, Underwriter's Code, and A.S.T.M. Specifications or similar expressions, the requirement of these laws, ordinances, etc., shall be construed as the minimum requirements of these Specifications, and all articles, materials and workmanship required by these laws, ordinances, etc., shall be provided by the Contractor without any additional cost to the Owner.
- 4.20.5 Where the requirements of the laws, ordinances, etc., are mandatory, they shall govern.
- 4.20.6 Where the requirements of the Specifications call for higher grade or are not in conflict with the laws, ordinances, etc., the Specifications shall govern.
- 4.20.7 In case of any apparent conflict between the Specifications and such laws, ordinances, etc., the Contractor shall immediately call the attention of the Project Manager (in writing) to such conflict for decision, before proceeding with any work which may involve such conflict.

#### SUBCONTRACTORS

#### 5.1 DEFINITION

- 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person, organization or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform any of the Work. The term Subcontractor is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender and means a Subcontractor or his authorized representative. The term Subcontractor does not include any separate contractor or his subcontractors.
- 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform any of the Work. The term Sub-subcontractor is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative thereof.
- 5.1.3 Nothing contained in the Contract Documents is intended to, nor shall it create, any contractual relationship between the Owner, the Project Manager, the Architect, or any of their agents, employees, or representatives and any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor.

## 5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK

- The Contractor, in compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, shall 5.2.1 furnish to the Project Manager in writing the names of the persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed for each of the principal portions of the Work. The Project Manager will within ten (10) days of receipt of such information reply to the Contractor in writing stating whether or not the Owner, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity. Failure of the Project Manager to reply within a reasonable time shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection. The Contractor understands and agrees that no contractual agreement exists for any part of the Work under this Contract between the Owner and any of the Contractor's Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors. Further, the Contractor understands and agrees that he alone is responsible to the Owner for all of the Work under this Contract and that any review of Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors by the Owner or Project Manager will not in any way make the Owner responsible to any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor, nor responsible for the actions or failures of any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor.
  - 5.2.1.1 Within ten (10) days after the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall furnish to the Project Manager, in writing, for acceptance by the Owner, a list of names of the Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and Material Suppliers and Vendors, proposed for the principal portions of the Work.
  - 5.2.1.2 Within thirty-five (35) days after Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager, copies of Purchase Orders or other satisfactory evidence of purchase for all major materials.
- 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with any such proposed person or entity to whom the Project Manager has made reasonable objection under the provisions of this Subparagraph.
  - 5.2.2.1 The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom he has a reasonable objection. There shall be no entitlement to additional compensation based upon the Project Manager's reasonable objection made

under this Section.

- 5.2.3 If the Project Manager has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity, the Contractor shall submit a substitute to whom the Project Manager has no reasonable objection.
- 5.2.4 The Contractor shall make no substitution for any Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the Project Manager makes reasonable objection to such substitution.
- 5.2.5 During the course of the Project the Contractor must notify the Project Manager in writing regarding any changes in any Work by any Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, Material Supplier or Vendor.

# 5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

- By an appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor 5.3.1 shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by the terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which the Contractor, by these Documents, assumes toward the Owner. Said agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that the subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the Contractor-Subcontractor agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by these Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with his Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the Subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound by this Paragraph 5.3, and identify to the Subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed Subcontract which may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Each Subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such Documents available to his Sub-subcontractors, Material Suppliers or Vendors.
- 5.3.2 In addition to Sub-Contractual agreement in Paragraph 5.3.1, the Contractor shall allow the Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, Material Supplier or Vendor to notify the Project Manager due to failure of payment, unwarranted retainage or deductions of payment or unwarranted lateness of payment.
- 5.3.3 As a condition precedent to the acceptance of the Contractor's proposed Preliminary and Detailed Project Schedules by the Project Manager, each major Subcontractor shall in writing, with the submission of said schedules by the Contractor, confirm that they have reviewed the Contractor's proposed Project Schedules, and that each concurs with the activity breakdowns, durations, cost loading, and logic as relates to each major Subcontractor's scope of the Work and the incorporation of said Work into the Contractor's proposed Preliminary and Detailed Project Schedules, as prescribed under Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements of the contract documents.

#### 5.4 PREPARATORY WORK

5.4.1 Before starting work, the responsible Subcontractor shall carefully examine all preparatory Work that has been executed to receive his Work. He shall check carefully, by whatever means are required, to ensure that his work and adjacent related Work will finish to proper contours, planes, and levels. He shall promptly notify the Contractor and the Project

# GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION Division 0 Section 00700

- Manager of any defects or imperfections in preparatory Work which will, in any way, affect satisfactory completion of his Work. Absence of such notification will be construed as an acceptance of preparatory work and later claims of defects therein will not be recognized.
- 5.4.2 Each Subcontractor is required to follow the provisions of 4.3.4 relating to asbestos abatement.
- 5.5 PAYMENTS TO SUBCONTRACTORS, SUB-SUBCONTRACTORS, AND MATERIAL SUPPLIERS AND VENDORS
  - 5.5.1 If the Project Manager withholds a Certificate for Payment for any cause which is the fault of the Contractor and not the fault of a particular Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, and Material Supplier and Vendor, the Contractor shall pay that Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, Material Supplier and Vendor on demand, made at any time after the Certificate for Payment should otherwise have been issued, for his work to the extent completed, less any retained percentage.
  - 5.5.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, and Material Supplier and Vendor a just share of any insurance monies received by the Contractor, and he shall require each Subcontractor to make similar payments.

#### WORK BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

#### 6.1 OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS

- 6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform work related to the Project with his own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other work on the site under these or similar Conditions of the Contract.
- 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other work on the site, the term Contractor in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.
- 6.1.3 Upon transfer of such separate contracts to a General Contractor, if the Owner so desires to transfer such contracts, the Contractor shall be obligated to the conditions as outlined by Paragraph 6.3. of these Conditions.

## 6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY

- 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and the execution of their Work, and shall connect and coordinate his Work with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.
- 6.2.2 If any part of the Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the Work of the Owner or any separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with the Work, promptly report to the Owner any apparent discrepancies or defects in such other work that render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor to so inspect and report in writing to the Owner shall constitute an acceptance of the Owner's or separate contractors' work as fit and proper to receive his Work, except as to defects which may subsequently become apparent in such work by others.
  - 6.2.2.1 In addition to inspection as to defect, the Contractor, if so deemed necessary by the Contractor, shall measure or inventory work already in place or stored and shall at once report, in writing, to the Project Manager any conflicts between the executed Work and the Contract Documents the Contractor has signed his name thereto.
  - 6.2.2.2 Upon notification from the Owner that a part of the Work furnished under this Contract is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately initiate action to correct the Work.
  - 6.2.2.3 If the Contractor fails to install his Work in a timely manner, the Owner through the Project Manager may authorize other Contractor(s) to perform their Work out of proper sequence. All extra Work necessary to properly interface with the other Contractor(s)' Work will be accomplished by this Contractor at no additional cost to the Owner.
- 6.2.3 Any costs caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be borne by the Contractor.
- 6.2.4 Should the Contractor wrongfully cause damage to the Work or property of the Owner, or to other Work on the site, the Contractor shall promptly remedy such damage as provided in Subparagraph 10.2.5.

- 6.2.5 Should the Contractor wrongfully cause damage to the work or property of any separate contractor, the Contractor shall upon due notice promptly attempt to settle with such other Contractor by agreement; or otherwise to resolve the dispute. If such separate Contractor sues or initiates a proceeding against the Owner, the Project Manager and/or the Architect on account of any damage alleged to have been caused by the Contractor, the Owner shall notify the Contractor who shall defend such proceedings at his own expense, and if any judgment or award against the Owner, the Project Manager, and/or the Architect arises therefrom the Contractor shall pay or satisfy it and shall reimburse the Owner, the Project Manager and/or the Architect for all attorneys' fees and court or other costs which the Owner, the Project Manager and/or the Architect have incurred.
- 6.2.6 In the event there is more than one contractor engaged on the Project, each such contractor shall be responsible to the other for damages to work, injury to any person or persons, or for any loss, cost, claims, or damages arising out of or in connection with the Work required by this Contract or any loss, cost, expense, or damage caused by the Contractor's neglect or failure to finish or satisfactorily complete his part of the Work within the time prescribed. In all events, the provisions of Paragraph 4.18 shall be applicable.
- 6.2.7 Whenever the Contractor receives items from another Contractor or from the Owner for storage, erection or installation, the Contractor receiving such items shall give receipt for items delivered, and thereafter will be held responsible for care, storage and any necessary replacing of item or items received.
- 6.2.8 The separate contractors shall establish and maintain communication throughout the course of their Work to assure maximum coordination of the Work performed by each. This includes the approvals of the Work of each as required by proper coordination.

## 6.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM DISPUTED WORK

6.3.1 If a dispute arises between the Contractor and separate contractors as to their responsibility for cleaning up as required by Paragraph 4.15 or for accomplishing coordination or doing required cutting, filling, excavating or patching as required by Paragraph 4.14, the Owner may carry out such Work and charge the cost thereof to the contractors responsible therefor as the Owner shall determine to be just.

# 6.4 EQUIPMENT OR WORK NOT IN CONTRACT (NIC)

6.4.1 When certain items of equipment and other work are indicated as "NIC" (Not In Contract), or to be furnished and installed under other contracts, any requirements for preparation of openings, provision of backing, etc., for receipt of such "NIC" work, information will be furnished upon written request of the Contractor who shall properly form and otherwise prepare his Work in a satisfactory manner to receive such "NIC" work.

# 6.5 CUTTING AND PATCHING UNDER SEPARATE CONTRACTS

6.5.1 Each Contractor shall be responsible for any cutting, fitting and patching that may be required to complete his Work except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall not endanger any human life or portion of the Work performing any cutting, excavating or otherwise altering the Work or any part thereof.

#### MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

#### 7.1 GOVERNING LAW

7.1.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located.

## 7.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

7.2.1 The Owner and the Contractor each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall not assign the Contract or sublet it as a whole without the written consent of the Owner, nor shall the Contractor assign any monies due or to become due to him hereunder, without the previous written consent of the Owner.

## 7.3 WRITTEN NOTICE

7.3.1 Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual or member of the firm or entity or to an officer of the corporation for whom it was intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last business address known to him who gives the notice.

## 7.4 CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES

- 7.4.1 Should the Contractor suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the Owner or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, claim shall be made in writing to the Owner, through the Project Manager, within twenty (20) days after the first observance of such injury or damage; otherwise, the Contractor shall have waived any and all rights he may have against the Owner, the Project Manager, the Architect, or their employees, representatives or agents.
- 7.4.2 Decisions of the Project Manager shall be rendered as provided for under the Contract Documents, but no decision of the Project Manager shall deprive the Owner or the Contractor of any form of redress which may be available under the laws of the State. Any decision of the Project Manager shall be final and binding on the Contractor in the absence of written notice of protest from the Contractor received by the Owner by registered mail, within fifteen (15) days of the date of the decision of the Project Manager. The Owner shall have sixty (60) days from the date of receipt of a formal protest within which to investigate and make reply.

# 7.5 PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND

7.5.1 Prior to the execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner, on forms acceptable to the Owner, surety bonds in the amounts and for the purposes provided in this Paragraph 7.5. Each bond must be signed by both the Contractor and the Surety. The current power of attorney for the person who signs for the surety company, indicating the monetary limit of such powers, must be attached to the bonds. The Contractor shall pay all premiums and cost thereof and incidental thereto. Such bonds shall be made payable to the Owner. The surety (or sureties) shall be corporate surety(ies) licensed to transact business in Alaska and acceptable to the Owner. Each bond shall be in an amount equal to the Contract Sum. The effective date of the bond shall be on the execution date of the

contract.

- 7.5.2 The "Performance Bond" shall be so conditioned as to assure the faithful performance by the Contractor of all Work under said Contract, within the time limits prescribed, including any maintenance provisions, in a manner that is satisfactory and acceptable to the Owner; that all materials and workmanship supplied by him will be free from original or developed defects; and that should original or developed defects or failures appear within a period of one year from the date of final acceptance of the Work by the Owner, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, make good such defects and failures and make all replacements and adjustments required, within a reasonable time after being notified by the Owner to do so. This bond shall be maintained by the Contractor in full force and effect during the performance of the Work of the Contractor and for a period of two (2) years after the date of final acceptance of the Work by the Owner.
- 7.5.3 The "Payment Bond" shall be so conditioned as to inure to the benefit of persons furnishing materials for or performing labor upon the Work. This bond shall be maintained by the Contractor in full force and effect until the Work is completed and finally accepted by the Owner, and until all claims for materials, labor and subcontracts are paid.
- 7.5.4 Should any surety or sureties upon said bonds become insufficient or be disqualified from doing business in Alaska, the Contractor shall renew said bond or bonds with good and sufficient sureties, acceptable to the Owner, within ten (10) work days after receiving notice that the surety or sureties are insufficient and/or disqualified. Should any surety or sureties be deemed unsatisfactory at any time by the Owner, notice will be given the Contractor to that effect, and he shall forthwith substitute a new surety or sureties satisfactory to the Owner. No further payment shall be deemed due or will be made under this Contract until the new sureties shall qualify and be accepted by the Owner.
- 7.5.5 In the event of any change order resulting in the performance of additional work in connection with the Work, the amounts of such bonds shall be increased by the cost of such additional work or materials or fixtures to be incorporated into the Project.

## 7.6 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

- 7.6.1 The Contractor's duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.
- 7.6.2 Except as may be specifically agreed in writing, the failure of the Owner, the Project Manager, or the Architect to insist in any one or more instances upon the strict performance of any one or more of the provisions of this Contract, or to exercise any right herein contained or provided by law, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the performance of such provision or right(s) or of the right to subsequently demand such strict performance or exercise such right(s), and the rights shall continue unchanged and remain in full force and effect.
- 7.6.3 The Contractor agrees that he can be adequately compensated by money damages for any breach of this Contract which may be committed by the Owner and hereby agrees that no default, act, or omission of the Owner, the Project Manager or the Architect, except for unauthorized failure to make payments as required by the Contract Documents, shall constitute a material breach of the Contract entitling the Contractor to cancel or rescind the provisions of this Contract or (unless the Owner shall so consent or direct in writing) to suspend or abandon performance of all or any part of the Work. The Contractor hereby waives any and all rights and remedies to which he might otherwise be or become entitled, save only his right to money damages.

#### 7.7 TESTS

- 7.7.1 If the Contract Documents, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction require any portion of the Work to be inspected, tested, or approved, the Contractor shall give the Architect and Project Manager timely notice, but not less than seventy-two (72) hours, of its readiness so the Architect and the Project Manager may observe such inspection, testing or approval. The Contractor shall bear all costs of such inspections, tests or approvals except as provided in subparagraph 7.7.2. Notification, coordination and execution of all inspections and tests required by the Contract Documents or by the governing building department shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The Owner shall not be responsible for any damage or delay caused by any Party's inability to make required inspections in the time frame desired by the Contractor.
- 7.7.2 Special Inspection and testing as required in accordance with IBC section 1704 shall be coordinated by the Contractor and the Owner shall bear all costs of Special Inspections or approvals. The Special Inspector, designated by the Owner, shall observe the Work assigned for conformance with the approved design drawings and specifications. The Project Manager may order additional Special Inspections, testing, or approval, as required by the authority having jurisdiction by providing notice to the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide notification and coordination for additional Special Inspections as provided in subparagraph 7.7.1. If such special inspection or testing reveals a failure of the Work to comply (1) with the requirements of the Contract Documents, or (2) with respect to the performance of the Work, with laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction, the Contractor shall bear all costs thereof, including compensation of the Owner's administrative and legal expenses, and for the Architect's, the Project Manager's, and the Special Inspector's additional services made necessary by such failure.
- 7.7.3 Inspections and Tests required to establish compliance with the Contract Documents, as provided for in the Contract Documents, will be made by a qualified, independent testing agency approved by the Owner. The cost of the services of such agency will be paid by the Contractor, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. When the initial tests indicate non-compliance with the Contract Documents, any subsequent retesting occasioned by non-compliance shall be performed by the same agency and the costs thereof borne by the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide facilities for such access to the Work in order that the agency may properly perform its functions. Representatives of the testing agency shall have access to the Architect, Project Manager, or Owner at all times.
- 7.7.4 Inspections or testing performed exclusively for the Contractor's convenience shall be the sole cost and responsibility of the Contractor.
- 7.7.5 The independent testing agency, employed as specified in the Technical portion of these specifications, shall prepare the test reports, logs, and certificates applicable to the specific inspections and tests and shall deliver, immediately or within forty-eight (48) hours, as applicable, the specified number of copies of same to the designated parties. Other required certificates of inspection, testing or approval shall be secured by the Contractor and delivered by him to the Project Manager and the Architect, in such time as to not delay progress of the Work or final payment therefor.
- 7.7.6 If the Architect, the Project Manager or the Special Inspector is to observe the inspections, tests or approvals required by the Contract Documents, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction or that are required to establish compliance with the Contract Documents, he will do so promptly and, where

- practicable, at the normal place of testing.
- 7.7.7 Unless otherwise stipulated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay for all utilities required for testing of installed equipment of all of his Work and work of each Subcontractor furnishing equipment. Labor and supervision required for making such tests shall be provided at no additional cost to the Owner.
- 7.7.8 Owner may provide Quality Assurance testing. Contractor shall provide knowledgeable support personnel and cooperate fully with Owner's designated representative in conducting all Quality Assurance tests. If project fails tests, Contractor shall make all necessary corrections to meet test criteria and pay the Owner for all costs associated with additional tests.

## 7.8 ALTERNATES

- 7.8.1 Alternates may be either additive or deductive.
- 7.8.2 Alternates, if taken, may be taken in any sequence.
- 7.8.3 The Contractor shall include in his bid, or bid proposal, a bid for all alternates listed in the Bid Form. These alternates shall include the Contractor's net cost of the labor, materials, overhead and profit, and equipment necessary to perform or delete, the Work as outlined by such alternates.

## 7.9 UNENFORCEABILITY OF ANY PROVISION

7.9.1 If any provision of the Contract is held as a matter of law to be unenforceable, the remainder of the Contract shall be enforceable without such provision.

# 7.10 NO WAIVER BY OWNER

7.10.1 The failure of the Owner in any one or more instances to insist upon the strict performance of any of the terms of this Contract or to exercise any option herein conferred, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of the right to assert or rely upon such terms or option on any future occasion.

## 7.11 ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

7.11.1 The Contractor shall not assign the responsibilities of this Contract, either as a whole or in part, nor assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder, without previous written consent of the Owner.

#### TIME

#### 8.1 DEFINITIONS

- 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, the Contract Time is the period of time allotted in the Contract Documents for Substantial and Final Completion of the Work as defined in Subparagraph 8.1.3, including authorized adjustments thereto.
- 8.1.2 The date of execution of the Contract Agreement between the Owner and Contractor shall be subsequent to School Board Approval and the Contractor's satisfactory submittals to the Owner of the Certificate of Insurance, the Performance Bond and the Payment Bond as noted in the Invitation to Bidders. The Owner will issue a Notice to Proceed no later than ten (10) days from execution of the Owner-Contractor Agreement by both Owner and Contractor. The date of commencement of the Work shall be the date established by the Notice to Proceed. The Owner shall not be responsible for any costs incurred by the Contractor prior to the Notice to Proceed.
- 8.1.3 The Date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof is the Date certified by the Project Manager and Architect when the Work or a designated portion thereof is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so the Owner can fully occupy and utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for the use for which it is intended, with all of the Project's parts and systems cleaned and operable as required by the Contract Documents. Only incidental corrective work and any final cleaning beyond that needed for the Owner's full use may remain for Final Completion.
- 8.1.4 The term day as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically designated. All dates shall mean 12:01 a.m. of the indicated day unless otherwise stipulated.
- 8.1.5 The term "working day" as may be used in the Contract Documents shall mean any day not otherwise defined herein as a non-working day.
- 8.1.6 The term non-working day as may be used in the Contract Documents shall mean Sunday, a recognized holiday, a day on which the Contractor is specifically required to suspend construction operations or a day on which a suspension order is in effect. Recognized holidays shall be: New Year's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Eve (half day), and Christmas Day. When any of the above days fall on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be counted as a holiday. When any of the above days fall on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be counted as a holiday.
- 8.1.7 The term "Beneficial Occupancy" is interchangeable with the term Substantial Completion.

# 8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION

- 8.2.1 All times stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.
- 8.2.2 The Contractor shall begin the Work on the date of commencement as defined in Subparagraph 8.1.2. He shall carry the Work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion and Final Completion in accordance with the Project Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 hereof.
- 8.2.3 Attention is directed to the fact that the Work is urgently needed by the Owner and that time is of the essence; for this reason, it shall be agreed that the Contractor shall

substantially complete all Work under the Contract in accordance with the Project Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 hereof and, that he will complete the contract in all its details for final acceptance as specified after Substantial Completion.

### 8.3 DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME

- 8.3.1 The Contractor shall be entitled to extensions in the time required for performance of the Work as specifically provided in the Contract. Except as otherwise specifically provided under Paragraph 3.4., 12.1, or 8.3.5, the Contractor shall not be entitled to payment or compensation of any kind from the Owner for direct, indirect, impact or consequential damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration because of hindrance or delay or loss of labor or equipment efficiency or productivity arising out of any hindrance, interference, obstruction, disruption or delay from any source or cause whatsoever, whether such hindrance, interference, obstruction, disruption or delays be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, or avoidable or unavoidable.
- 8.3.2 The Contract Time may be adjusted only for changes pursuant to Paragraph 12.1, suspension of Work pursuant to Paragraph 3.4. and delays pursuant to Subparagraph 8.3.3.
- 8.3.3 Types of delay shall be defined as follows:
  - 8.3.3.1 Actions or inactions of the Owner, or events for which the Owner has assumed contractual responsibility, which would independently delay the date of Substantial Completion beyond the current contractually established date of Substantial Completion shall be designated as Compensable delays.
  - 8.3.3.2 Events which are outside the control of, and without the fault or negligence of either the Owner or the Contractor, which would independently delay the date of Substantial Completion beyond the current Contract Completion Date shall be designated as Excusable delays, as follows:
    - 8.3.3.2.1 Labor disputes and strikes (including strikes affecting transportation), that do, directly and critically affect the progress of the Work; however, any extension of Contract Time on account of an individual labor strike shall not exceed the number of days of said strike.
    - 8.3.3.2.2 Acts of God, tornado, fire, hurricane, blizzard, earthquake, typhoon, or flood that damage completed work or stored materials.
    - 8.3.3.2.3 The Contract Time will not be extended due to normal inclement weather. Unless the Contractor can substantiate to the satisfaction of the Owner that the weather actually encountered by the Contractor was unusually severe considering the full term of the Contract Time using a ten (10) year average of accumulated record mean values from climatological data compiled by the U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration for the locale of the Project and that such alleged substantially greater than normal inclement weather actually delayed the Work or portions thereof which had an effect upon the Contract Time, the Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time.
    - 8.3.3.2.4 Acts of the public enemy, acts of the state, federal or local

government in its sovereign capacity, and acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the Owner relating to the Project.

- 8.3.3.3 Actions or inactions of the Contractor, or events for which the Contractor has assumed contractual responsibility, which would independently delay the date of Substantial Completion beyond the current Contract Completion Date shall be designated as Non-excusable delays.
- 8.3.3.4 Concurrent delay is any combination of the above three types of delay occurring on a calendar date, except in cases where the combination consists of two or more instances of the same type of delay occurring on a calendar date.

A delay to the Contractor caused by the acts of another contractor under contract to the Owner will be classified as a compensable delay to the extent said delay meets the requirements of compensable delay as set forth under Subparagraph 8.3.3.1. Also, it is the Owner's belief that the definitions of delay as included in this paragraph comply with all applicable law in the State of Alaska.

- 8.3.4 Any claim for extension of time shall be made in writing to the Project Manager not more than seven (7) calendar days after commencement of the delay; otherwise it shall be waived. The Contractor shall also provide an estimate of the probable effect of such delay on the progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay only one claim is necessary. Any event, action, inaction, or other cause which may give rise to a delay shall constitute a basis for adjustment in:
  - 8.3.4.1 Contract Time, only if it can be demonstrated that the date of Substantial Completion will be delayed beyond the current Contract Completion Date and that the delay is classified as only a Compensable, Excusable, or Concurrent Delay. The Contract Time shall be adjusted by Change Order pursuant to the requirements of Paragraph 8.3 and Division 1, Section 01311; or
  - 8.3.4.2 Contract Amount, only if it can be demonstrated that the Contractor's timerelated costs to complete the Work will be increased and the delay is classified as only a Compensable Delay. The Contract Sum shall be adjusted by Change Order pursuant to the requirements of Subparagraphs 8.3 and 12.3.
- 8.3.5 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of this Contract. The failure of the Contractor to complete the Work in conformance with the Contract shall result in damages suffered by the Owner due to delays in completion of the Work.
  - 8.3.5.1 If the Contractor fails to substantially complete the Work in conformance with the Contract Documents and the Owner nevertheless permits the Contractor to continue performance of the Work, such permission shall neither modify nor waive the Owner's right to assess and collect, and the Contractor's obligation to pay liquidated damages.
  - 8.3.5.2 The Owner shall be entitled to claim against the Contractor for any liquidated damages incurred. The Owner cannot anticipate at this time what liquidated damages may occur or what the per diem cost of these damages might be. Determination of liquidated damage details will be a matter of proof should the issue arise.

8.3.5.3 The Owner shall recover said liquidated damages by deducting the amount thereof from any monies due or that may become due the Contractor. In the event the remaining balance due the Contractor is insufficient to cover the full amount of assessed damages, then the Contractor or his Surety shall pay the amount due and the Owner shall be entitled to any and all rights and remedies available to it in law or equity to recover same.

## 8.4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLETION

- 8.4.1 The Contractor shall furnish such manpower, materials, facilities and equipment and shall work such hours, including night shifts, overtime operations and Sundays and holidays, as may be necessary to insure the progress and completion of the Work in accordance with the accepted and currently updated progress schedule. If Work actually in place falls behind the currently updated and accepted progress schedule and it becomes apparent from the current schedule that the Work will not be completed in accordance with the Contract Time, the Contractor agrees that he will, as necessary, take some or all of the following actions at no additional cost to the Owner, as required to substantially eliminate the schedule slippage deficiency:
  - 8.4.1.1 Increase manpower in such quantities and crafts as will substantially eliminate in the opinion of the Project Manager the schedule slippage deficiency;
  - 8.4.1.2 Increase the number of working hours per shift, shifts per working day, working days per week, or the amount of equipment, or any combination of the foregoing sufficiently to substantially eliminate, in the opinion of the Project Manager the schedule slippage deficiency; and,
  - 8.4.1.3 Reschedule activities to achieve maximum practical concurrence of accomplishment of activities.
- 8.4.2 The Project Manager may require the Contractor to submit a recovery schedule in accordance with Section 01311 of the Specifications, demonstrating his program and proposed plan to make up the slippage in scheduled progress and to ensure completion of the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract. If the Project Manager finds the proposed plan not acceptable, he may require the Contractor to submit a new plan. If the actions taken by the Contractor or the second plan proposed are not satisfactory, the Project Manager may require the Contractor to take any of the actions set forth in this Paragraph 8.4 without additional cost to the Owner, to make up the slippage in scheduled progress.
- 8.4.3 Failure of the Contractor to substantially comply with the requirements of this Paragraph 8.4 may be considered grounds for a determination by the Owner, pursuant to Clause 14.1, that the Contractor is failing to prosecute the Work with sufficient diligence to ensure its in accordance with the Project Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 hereof.

#### PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

## 9.1 CONTRACT SUM

9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Owner-Contractor Agreement and, including authorized adjustments thereto, is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

## 9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

9.2.1 Before the first Application for Payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner, through the Project Manager, a schedule of values allocated to the various portions of the Work, as set forth in Division 1, Section 01370 of the General Requirements entitled "Schedule of Values" and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect, Project Manager and the Owner may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, Owner, or Project Manager, may be used as a basis for the Contractor's Applications for Payment except as otherwise noted under Division 1, Section 01311. The Schedule of Values shall be prepared in such a manner that each major item of work and each subcontracted item of work is shown as a single item on the Application and Certificate of Payment.

## 9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

- 9.3.1 Prior to the date for each progress payment established in the Contract Documents, the Contractor, in accordance with Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements entitled "Project Schedule," shall submit to the Project Manager an itemized Application for Payment, notarized if required, supported by such data substantiating the Contractor's right to payment as the Project Manager and the Architect may require, and reflecting retainage, if any, as provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents. The form of Application for Payment shall be Anchorage School District Forms 100, 100A, 100B and 100C and the computer-produced Cost Report updated in accordance with Division 1, Section 01311.
- 9.3.2 If the Project Manager finds that satisfactory progress is not being made, he may require retainage of up to 10% of the total amount earned on all subsequent progress payments. This retainage may be released at such time as the Project Manager finds that satisfactory progress is being made.
- 9.3.3 Payments may be authorized by the Project Manager at his discretion, on account of materials or equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the site by the Contractor. Payments for materials or equipment stored on the site shall only be considered upon submission by the Contractor of satisfactory evidence that he has acquired title to such material, that it will be utilized on the Work under this Contract and that it is satisfactorily stored, protected, and insured or that other procedures satisfactory to the Project Manager that will protect the Owner's interests have been taken.
- 9.3.4 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work, materials and equipment covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner either by incorporation in the construction or upon the receipt of payment by the Contractor, whichever occurs first, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances, hereinafter referred to in this Article 9 as "liens"; and that no Work, materials or equipment covered by an Application for Payment will have been acquired by the Contractor, or by any other person performing Work at the site or furnishing materials and equipment for the Project, subject to an agreement under which an interest therein or an encumbrance thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise

imposed by the Contractor or such other person.

## 9.4 APPROVAL OF PAY APPLICATION

- 9.4.1 The Project Manager will, after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, and within the time set forth in Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements entitled "Project Schedule," either approve the Application for its full amount or notify the Contractor in writing of his reasons for withholding approval, in whole or in part, as provided in Subparagraph 9.6.1.
- 9.4.2 The submission and acceptance of the Contractor's Preliminary and Detailed Progress Schedules and monthly updates thereof as required by Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements entitled "Project Schedule," shall be an integral part and basic element of the application upon which progress payments shall be made. If in the judgment of the Project Manager the Contractor fails or refuses to provide information required to accomplish a complete Project Schedule Update or revision thereto as specified under Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements, the Contractor shall be deemed to have not provided the information necessary to enable the Project Manager and the Architect to properly evaluate the Contractor's progress, and shall not be entitled to progress payments until it has furnished the information necessary for a complete Project Schedule Update or revision thereto as specified herein to the satisfaction of the Project Manager.
- 9.4.3 The signing of an Application for Payment will constitute a representation by the Project Manager and the Architect, based on their observations at the site and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that the Work has progressed to the point indicated: that. to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests required by or performed under the Contract Documents, to minor deviations from the Contract Documents correctable prior to completion, and to any specific qualifications stated in their Certificate); and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, by approving an Application for Payment, the Project Manager and the Architect shall not thereby be deemed to represent that either has made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work or that either has reviewed the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or that either has made an examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used the monies previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

## 9.5 PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- 9.5.1 After an Application for Payment has been approved, the Owner shall make payment within thirty (30) calendar days.
- 9.5.2 The Contractor shall promptly pay each Subcontractor (including suppliers, laborers, and material-men) performing labor or furnishing material for the Work, upon receipt of payment from the Owner, out of the amount paid to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor's Work, the amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting the percentage actually retained, if any, from payments to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor's Work. The Contractor shall, by an appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, also require each Subcontractor to make payments to his Subsubcontractors in similar manner.
- 9.5.3 The Owner may, on request and at his discretion, furnish to any Subcontractor, Subsubcontractor, or Material Supplier and Vendor, if practicable information regarding the

- percentages of completion or the amounts applied for by the Contractor and the action taken thereon by the Project Manager on account of Work done by such Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, or Material Supplier or Vendor.
- 9.5.4 Neither the Owner, the Project Manager, nor the Architect shall have any obligation to pay or to see to the payment of any monies to any Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.
- 9.5.5 No approval for a progress payment, nor any progress payment, nor any partial or entire use of occupancy of the Project by the Owner, shall constitute an acceptance of any Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 9.5.6 The Contractor agrees to keep the Work and the site(s) on which Work is to be performed free and clear of all liens and claims of liens on materials furnished pursuant to the Contract Documents. Contractor hereby waives any right it may have in connection with the Work to file any liens, mechanics or otherwise. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract Documents, if any such lien is filed or there is any reason to believe that any lien may be filed at any time during the progress of the Work or within the duration of this Contract, the Owner may refuse to make any payment otherwise due to Contractor or withhold from any payment due the Contractor a sum sufficient in the opinion of the Owner to pay all obligations and expenses necessary to satisfy such lien or claim and completely indemnify the Owner against any such lien or claim unless and until Contractor shall thereof, if any, has been satisfied, discharged and released of record or that the Contractor has caused such lien to be released or record if and as provided by law pending the resolution of any dispute between Contractor and the person filing such lien; and if such evidence is not furnished by Contractor to the Owner within a period of five (5) days after demand to do so, the Owner may discharge such indebtedness and deduct the amount required therefore, together with any and all losses, costs, damages and attorney's fees suffered or incurred by the Owner from any sum payable to Contractor under the Contract Documents. Final payment to Contractor may be withheld until the Work and the site(s) on which the Work is to be performed are free and clear of any and all liens for rights thereto arising because of Work performed or materials furnished under the Contract Documents. This Subparagraph 9.5.6 shall be specifically included in all subcontracts and purchase orders entered into by Contractor.
- 9.5.7 No reference to a claim or claims of lien or to the Owner's right to withhold payments to the Contractor or to discharge the Contractor's debts to Subcontractors, in Subparagraph 9.5.6, or elsewhere in the Contract Documents, shall be interpreted as a waiver of the Owner's right to exemption pursuant to AS 09.38.015(c) or any requirements with regard to the filing of claims of lien as set forth in AS 34.35.

## 9.6 PAYMENTS WITHHELD

9.6.1 The Architect and the Project Manager may decline to approve an Application for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the Owner, if in their opinion they are unable to make representations to the Owner as provided in Subparagraph 9.4.3. If the Project Manager and the Architect are unable to make representations to the Owner as provided in Subparagraph 9.4.3 and to certify payment in the amount of the Application, they will notify the Contractor as provided in Subparagraph 9.4.1.

If the Contractor, Project Manager and the Architect cannot agree on a revised amount, the Project Manager will promptly approve the Application for Payment for the amount for which he is able to make such representations to the Owner. The Project Manager may also decline to certify payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or

subsequent observations, he may nullify the whole or any part of any approval of an Application for Payment previously issued to such extent as may be necessary in his opinion to protect the Owner from loss because of:

- 9.6.1.1 Defective work not remedied.
- 9.6.1.2 Third-party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims,
- 9.6.1.3 Failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or equipment,
- 9.6.1.4 Reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum.
- 9.6.1.5 Damage to the Owner or another contractor,
- 9.6.1.6 Reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time,
- 9.6.1.7 Failure or refusal of the Contractor to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, including scheduling, project management, or coordination requirements,
- 9.6.1.8 Liens filed for any portion of the Work, or
- 9.6.1.9 Failure or refusal of the Contractor to fully comply with Division 1, Section 01311 of the General Requirements entitled "Schedules and Reports".
- 9.6.2 When the above grounds in Subparagraph 9.6.1 are removed, payment shall be made for amounts withheld because of them.

## 9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT

9.7.1 If the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven (7) days after the date established in the Contract Documents any amount certified by the Architect and the Project Manager, then the Contractor may, upon seven (7) additional days' written notice to the Owner and the Architect, stop the Work until payment of the amount not in dispute has been received. The Contractor shall not refuse or fail to diligently proceed with the Work pending the resolution of any amount(s) in dispute unless agreed to by the Owner.

## 9.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

9.8.1 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a designated portion thereof which is acceptable to the Owner, is substantially complete as defined in Subparagraph 8.1.3, the Contractor shall prepare for submission to the Project Manager a list of items to be completed or corrected. The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. When the Architect and the Project Manager on the basis of an inspection jointly determine that the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will then prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion which shall establish the Date of Substantial Completion, shall state the responsibilities of the Owner and the Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, correction of punchlist items and damage to the Work, and insurance, and shall fix the time within which the Contractor shall complete the items listed therein. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall

- commence on the Date of Substantial Completion of the work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion. The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and the Contractor for their written acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate.
- 9.8.2 Upon Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof and upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Project Manager and the Architect, the Owner shall make payment, reflecting adjustment in retainage, if any, for such Work or portion thereof, as provided in the Contract Documents.
- 9.8.3 The acceptance of Substantial Completion payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Contractor except those previously made in writing and identified by the Contractor as unsettled at the time of the Application for Payment for Substantial Completion, and except for the retainage sums due at final acceptance if any.

## 9.9 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT

- 9.9.1 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect and the Project Manager will promptly make such inspection and, when they find the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, they will jointly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, and on the basis of their observations and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor, as noted in said final Certificate, is due and payable. The final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that the conditions precedent to the Contractor's being entitled to final payment as set forth in Subparagraph 9.8.2 have been fulfilled.
- 9.9.2 Neither the final payment nor the remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Work is free and clear of any and all liens and the Contractor submits to the Owner (1) an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which the Owner or his property might in any way be responsible, have been paid or otherwise satisfied. (2) consent of surety, if any, to final payment and (3), if required by the Project Manager, other data establishing payment or satisfaction of all such obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the Project Manager. If any Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify him against any loss. If any such lien or claim remains unsatisfied after all payments are made. the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all monies that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien or claim, including all costs and reasonable attorney's fees. The Owner may withhold from the final payment any sum that the Owner has reason to believe may be needed to satisfy any lien, claim or threat of lien arising from the Work. The Owner may deduct from the final payment an amount equal to any costs, expenses and attorneys' fees incurred by the Owner in removing or discharging any liens arising from the Work.
- 9.9.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor, or by the issuance of change orders affecting final completion, and the Owner so confirms, the Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Project Manager and the Architect, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if bonds have been furnished as provided in Paragraph 7.5, the written consent of the surety to the

payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Project Manager prior to certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.

- 9.9.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Owner against the Contractor except those arising from:
  - 9.9.4.1 Unsettled liens, and claims against the Owner, the Project Manager, or the Architect, or their employees, agents, or representatives,
  - 9.9.4.2 Faulty or defective Work appearing after Substantial Completion,
  - 9.9.4.3 Failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
  - 9.9.4.4 Terms of any warranties contained in or required by the Contract Documents,
  - 9.9.4.5 Liquidated damages due the Owner for the Contractor's delay in completion, or
  - 9.9.4.6 Damages incurred by the Owner resulting from lawsuits brought against the Owner, the Project Manager, the Architect, or their agents, employees or representatives because of failures or actions on the part of the Contractor, his Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, Material Suppliers and Vendors, or any of their employees, agents or representatives.
- 9.9.5 The acceptance of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Contractor except those previously made in writing and identified by the Contractor as unsettled at the time of the final Application for Payment.
- 9.9.6 Final Completion includes, but is not limited to, the Contractor obtaining an unconditional Certificate of Occupancy from the governing building official.

#### 9.10 OWNER'S RIGHT TO OCCUPY INCOMPLETE WORK

- 9.10.1 Should the Project, or any portion thereof, be incomplete for Beneficial Occupancy or Final Completion at the scheduled date or dates, the Owner shall have the right to occupy any portion of the Project. In such an event, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any extra compensation on account of said occupancy by the Owner or by the Owner's normal full use of the Project, nor shall the Contractor interfere in any way with said normal full use of the Project. Further, in such an event, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any extra compensation on account of the Owner's occupancy and use of the Project, nor shall the Contractor be relieved of any responsibilities of the Contract including the required times of completion. Such occupancy by the Owner would not, in itself, constitute Beneficial Occupancy nor Final Completion.
- 9.10.2 If the Owner exercises his rights under the foregoing and occupies the full project, then there shall be no liquidated damages due to delay on account of failure on the Contractor's part to provide Beneficial Occupancy from that date forward. This provision does not affect, however, any damages due to delay that would be assessed for any period of time between the scheduled date of Beneficial Occupancy and the date of any such actual occupancy. Further, this provision would have no effect on actual damages assessed on account of late Final Completion.

#### 9.11 RETENTION AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

## 9.11.1 Inspection.

The Anchorage School District, or any of its duty authorized representatives, shall have the right to examine all project records and documents, including without limitation, all books, correspondence, reports, analyses, instructions drawings, receipts, vouchers, memoranda, and all financial and accounting books, records, and data and all other documents of both the Contractor and the Contractors, Subcontractors and any Subsubcontractors which are directly pertinent to this specific Contract for the purpose of making an audit, examination, reproduction, excerpts, or transcriptions. All required records shall be retained by the Contractor and its first tier Subcontractors for three (3) years after the Owner makes final payments and all other pending matters are closed.

#### 9.11.2 Retention and Maintenance.

The Contractor shall keep and maintain in safe condition full and accurate records of all costs incurred and items billed and all other project records and documents relating to performance, communications, and correspondence in connection with the performance of the Work under this Contract, which records and documents shall be open to review, examination or audit by the Owner or its authorized representatives during performance of the Work and until three (3) years after Final Payment and all other pending matters are closed.

#### 9.11.3 Subcontractor Records.

The Contractor shall make it a condition of all subcontracts and sub-subcontracts relating to the Work under this Contract that any and all Subcontractors and sub-subcontractors will keep accurate records of costs incurred and items billed in connection with their work and that such records shall be open to review, examination, reproduction or audit by the Owner or its authorized representatives during performance of the Work and until three (3) years after Final Payment under the subcontract and all other pending matters are closed.

## 9.11.4 Availability.

The Contractor shall make available at its business office upon request at all reasonable times the materials described in this Article including materials of both the Contractor and its first tier Subcontractors, for review, examination reproduction or audit for a period of three (3) years after Final Payment under this Contract and all other pending matters are closed.

## 9.11.5 Termination.

If this Contract is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the Work terminated shall be made available for three (3) years after any resulting final termination settlement.

## 9.11.6 Claims and Appeals.

Records pertaining to any settlement, mediation, arbitration, litigation or appeals of claim submitted pursuant to Paragraphs 12.4 or 12.5 or otherwise arising from or relating to the performance of Work under this Contract shall be made available until such settlement, mediation, arbitration, litigation, or appeals are finally concluded. Such documents or records shall be made available to the Anchorage School District or its duty authorized representatives within thirty (30) days of the Anchorage School District's request.

### 9.11.7 Subcontracts.

The Contractor shall include the provisions of this Article in all first tier Subcontracts so as to be binding on all first tier Subcontractors.

# 9.11.8 Cost or Pricing Data.

If the Contractor has submitted cost or pricing data in connection with the pricing of any change order or modification to this Contract - unless the pricing was based on—

9.11.8.1 adequate price competition, or
 9.11.8.2 established catalog or market price of commercial items sold in substantial quantities to the general public; or
 9.11.8.3 prices set by law or regulation -

the Anchorage School District or a representative who is an employee of the Anchorage School District, shall have the right to examine and audit all books, records, documents, and other data of the Contractor, including computations and projections, related to negotiating, pricing, or performing the change order or modification, in order to evaluate the accuracy, completeness, and currency of the cost or pricing data.

## PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

#### 10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS

10.1.1 The Owner, the Project Manager, the Architect, or their agents, employees or representatives are not responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures utilized by the Contractor, or for safety precautions and programs in accordance with the Work. The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work.

## 10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

- 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
  - 10.2.1.1 All employees on the Work and all other persons who may be affected thereby;
  - 10.2.1.2 All the Work and all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, under the care, custody or control of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors; and
  - 10.2.1.3 Other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.
- 10.2.2 The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from damage, injury or loss.
  - 10.2.2.1 The Contractor shall contact the State Historic Preservation Office (907-269-8700) immediately, should cultural or paleontological resources be discovered as a result of performing the Work.
- 10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and progress of the Work, all reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent utilities.
- 10.2.4 When the use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment is necessary for the execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise the utmost care and shall carry on such activities under the supervision of properly qualified personnel.
- 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy all damage or loss to any property referred to in paragraphs 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Material Supplier or Vendor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under paragraphs 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable to the acts or omissions of the Owner, Project Manager or Architect or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to his obligations under Paragraph 4.18.

- 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor's superintendent unless otherwise designated by the Contractor in writing to the Owner through the Project Manager.
- 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not load or permit any part of the Work to be loaded so as to endanger its safety.
- 10.2.8 Following the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor is required to obtain facility keys and the security system access code from ASD Operations Department and obtain the facility keys by contacting the Project Manager.
  - 10.2.8.1 A unique security code will be assigned to the Contractor. The ASD Operations office, 1301 Labar, will assign the code and provide access training.
  - 10.2.8.2 The Contractor's signature on the key receipt acknowledges liability for the Owner's loss or damage due to unauthorized access with the facility key(s) and/or access code issued to the Contractor. The Contractor's Superintendent is solely responsible for opening and closing of the facility.
  - 10.2.8.3 Lost or stolen key(s) issued to the Contractor are to be reported immediately to the Project Manager. A written report shall be required for each incident.
  - 10.2.8.4 Upon completion of the Project and prior to final payment, the Contractor will return all key(s) to the Project Manager. The following per facility charges will apply to any key not returned to the Project Manager.

Facility Type	<u>Charge</u>
Elementary School	\$5,000
Junior High/Middle School	\$7,000
Senior High School	\$10,000
Other ASD Facilities	\$5,000

## 10.3 EMERGENCIES

10.3.1 In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at his discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of emergency work shall be determined as provided in Article 8 for Time, and Article 12 for Changes in the Work.

#### **INSURANCE**

#### 11.1 GENERAL

11.1.1 Before signing this Contract, or commencing work on any project or allowing any Subcontractor to commence work, the Contractor shall obtain all insurance required under this section. The Contractor shall maintain this insurance until Final Acceptance. Proof of Insurance will be required prior to performing work under the warranty. The Contractor shall file with Owner as verification of insurance, an original signed certificate of insurance showing the type and amounts of insurance, the policy number, and expiration date. The Contractor shall provide copies of each insurance policy if requested by the Owner. The Contractor shall purchase insurance from companies reasonably acceptable to the Owner and authorized to do business in the State of Alaska, possessing a Best's policyholder's rating of A- or better and a financial rating of not less than VII.

## 11.2 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

11.2.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain during the life of this Contract, Workers' Compensation Insurance for all employees who will work on this project and if any work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the Subcontractor to provide similar Workers' Compensation Insurance for employees. Such workers' compensation insurance shall meet the statutory requirements of the State of Alaska.

#### 11.3 PUBLIC AND EMPLOYER LIABILITY INSURANCE

11.3.1 The Contractor and his Subcontractors, if any, shall purchase and maintain such Public and Employer Liability Insurance as will protect the Contractor against loss which may result from claims for damages from operations under this Contract, whether such operations be those of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or any person directly or indirectly employed by them. Such liability insurance shall have a scope of coverage at least as broad as the current ISO form # CG 0001 (occurrence version) for General Liability and the current ISO form # CA 0001 for Automobile Liability, and in minimum limits specified in Paragraph 11.3.2.

#### 11.3.2 Public and Employer Liability Insurance Requirements

11.3.2.1 Commercial General Liability

Combined Single Limit \$1,000,000 Annual Aggregate \$2,000,000

11.3.2.2 Comprehensive Auto Liability

Including all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles. Combined Single Limit \$1,000,000 each accident

11.3.2.3 Employer's Liability Insurance \$1,000,000 limit

# 11.3.3 Umbrella Liability

11.3.3.1 The Contractor shall maintain an umbrella liability policy according to the following:

Projects < \$10 million construction cost – \$5,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate.

Projects > \$10 million construction cost – \$10,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate.

This requirement does not apply to Subcontractors.

11.3.3.2 Umbrella liability insurance shall be maintained in effect until final acceptance by the Owner of the completed construction, and for products liability and completed operations liability, a minimum of two years thereafter.

## 11.4 BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE

- 11.4.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain an all risk Builder's Risk policy on all construction projects. The Builders Risk coverage shall be in an amount equal to the initial contract, plus any contract modifications, and the cost of materials supplied or installed by others. Perils insured must be all physical loss and will include earthquake, flood, testing and startup, resultant damage from errors in design, plans or specifications, and transit and offsite storage.
- 11.4.2 A loss insured under Subparagraph 11.4.1 shall be adjusted by the Insurer, or by the Contractor as Fiduciary, and made payable to the Contractor as Fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to requirements of any applicable mortgagee clause and of Subparagraph 11.4.5. The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor a just share of any insurance monies received by the Contractor, and by appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, shall require each Subcontractor to make payments to his Sub-subcontractors in similar manner.
- 11.4.3 The Owner and Contractor shall waive all rights against each other for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by insurance obtained pursuant to this Paragraph 11.4 or any other property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance held by the Contractor as Fiduciary. The Contractor shall require, by appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, similar waivers in favor of the Owner and the Contractor by Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors. With respect to the waiver of rights of recovery, the term Owner shall be deemed to include, to the extent covered by property insurance applicable thereto, his consultants, employees, agents and representatives, including the Project Manager. The Contractor waives as against any separate Contractor described in Article 6 all rights for damages caused by fire or other perils in the same manner as is provided above as against the Owner. The Owner shall require, by appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, similar waivers in favor of the Contractor by any separate Contractor and his Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors.
- 11.4.4 If required in writing by any party in interest, the Contractor as Fiduciary shall, upon the occurrence of an insured loss, give bond for the proper performance of his duties. He shall deposit in a separate account any money so received, and he shall distribute it in accordance with a court order or award. If after such loss no other special agreement is made, replacement of damaged work shall be covered by an appropriate Change Order.

- 11.4.5 The Contractor as Fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of the parties in interest shall object in writing within five (5) days after the occurrence of loss to the Owner's exercise of this power, and if such objection is made, the matter shall be decided by a court of competent jurisdiction or as parties in interest otherwise agree. The Contractor as Fiduciary shall, in that case, make settlement with the insurers accordingly.
- 11.4.6 If the Owner finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion thereof, such occupancy shall not commence prior to a time mutually agreed to by the Owner and Contractor and to which the insurance company or companies providing the property insurance have consented by endorsement of the policy or policies. This insurance shall not be canceled or lapsed on account of such partial occupancy. Consent of the Contractor and of the insurance company or companies to such occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld.

## 11.5 CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 11.5.1 Each insurance policy required in this section will be evidenced by a certificate of insurance which contains the following:
  - 11.5.1.1 Notice of cancellation to the Anchorage School District in accordance with Alaska Statutes 21.36.220 and .260.
  - 11.5.1.2 Contract number.
  - 11.5.1.3 Project location.
  - 11.5.1.4 Waiver of Subrogation. All policies, except where prohibited, will include a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the District.
  - 11.5.1.5 Additional Insured. All policies except Workers Compensation and professional liability will note the District as an additional insured.

## 11.6 OWNER'S RIGHT TO INSURE

11.6.1 In the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or fails to provide the insurance required under the Contract Documents, or if such insurance is canceled for any reason, the Owner shall have the right, but not the duty to procure the same, and the costs thereof shall be deducted from monies then due or thereafter to become due the Contractor.

## 11.7 ADDITIONAL INSURANCE

11.7.1 If not covered by the above insurance, the Contractor must obtain additional Insurance for items stored off-site or in transit. Payments for materials stored off-site will not be made unless Contractor provides documentation of valid insurance coverage for same.

# 11.8 ASBESTOS ABATEMENT SUBCONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

11.8.1 After the Intent to Award Notification, the low bidder shall submit an insurance binder of insurance certificate provided by the proposed asbestos abatement subcontractor's insurance company stating that upon execution of the Contract the types and amount of insurance required elsewhere in these specifications will immediately become effective.

The asbestos abatement subcontractor is required to carry a minimum of \$1,000,000 of General Public Liability Insurance with no exclusion for asbestos abatement.

# 11.8.2 Comprehensive General Liability Minimum Limits

Bodily Injury and Property Damage \$2,000,000 per occurrence Premises Operations Independent Contractors Products - Completed Operations Contractual Liability Broad Form Property Damage - Lloyds Form Explosion, Collapse, and Underground Personal Injury

# 11.8.3 Comprehensive Auto Liability

Including all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles Combined single limit per accident \$1,000,000

#### CHANGES IN THE WORK AND CONTRACT SUM AND TIME

#### 12.1 CHANGES IN THE WORK

- 12.1.1 The Owner may, at any time, without notice to the sureties, make any change in the Work within the general scope of the Contract, including, but not limited to changes:
  - 12.1.1.1 In the Specifications or Drawings;
  - 12.1.1.2 In the method or manner of performance of the Work;
  - 12.1.1.3 In the Owner-furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services or site; or
  - 12.1.1.4 Directing acceleration in the performance of the Work for reasons other than delays caused by the Contractor.
- 12.1.2 All such changes in the Work shall be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents and shall be authorized in one of the following manners:
  - 12.1.2.1 Field Directive. The Project Manager may issue a written Field Directive to the Contractor that directs a change in the Work. If the Contractor believes that the requested change will increase the Contract Time or Contract Sum, he must notify the Project Manager in writing prior to implementing the change.
  - 12.1.2.2 Information Bulletin. The Architect may issue an Information Bulletin to the Contractor that clarifies or modifies the plans or specifications. If the Contractor believes that the clarification or modification of plans or specifications will increase the Contract Time or Contract Sum, he must notify the Project Manager in writing prior to implementing the change.
  - 12.1.2.3 Request for Information (RFI). The Contractor may submit a RFI to the Project Manager or Architect using the ASD Procore Construction Management Program to request clarification of plans or specifications or to point out areas of apparent conflict or other concerns relating to the Work. The response to the RFI by the Architect or Project Manager may clarify or modify the plans or specifications. If the Contractor believes that the clarification or modification of plans or specifications will increase the Contract Time or Contract Sum, he must notify the Project Manager in writing prior to implementing the change.
  - 12.1.2.4 Request for Proposal (RFP). The Owner may issue an RFP to the Contractor that directs a change in the Work and requests the Contractor's evaluation of the impact of the change on Contract Time or Contract Sum. If the Contractor believes that the Work required by the RFP will increase the Contract Time or Contract Sum, he must notify the Project Manager in writing prior to implementing the changes.
- 12.1.3 Except as provided in Subparagraph 12.1.2, no order, statement or conduct of the Owner, Project Manager or Architect shall be treated as a change or entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment hereunder. No oral agreement of any kind shall be construed as a Change Order.
- 12.2 AMENDING CONTRACT SUM OR TIME

- 12.2.1 If any change under Paragraph 12.1 causes an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost or the time required for the performance of any part of the Work under the Contract, including Work not affected directly by the change, an equitable adjustment shall be processed and approved following the provisions of Division 1, Section 01311, Project Schedule for any adjustment to time. Adjustments to Contract Sum shall be determined in one or more of the following ways:
  - 12.2.1.1 By mutual acceptance of a lump sum price properly itemized in accordance with Subparagraph 12.2.2 and supported by sufficient data to permit evaluation;
  - 12.2.1.2 In the event that unit prices are included in the bid and accepted by the Owner, payment for the Work performed shall be at the unit price amount for each item of Work accepted by the Owner and conforming to the contract requirements. Such prices shall be additive and deductive and include all costs necessary to complete the Work, inclusive of overhead costs and profit.
  - 12.2.1.3 If prior to the commencement of the Work the Contractor has not provided a lump sum price, or the Contractor and the Owner have not agreed on a lump sum price as described in Subparagraph 12.2.1.1 above, the price shall be established in one of the following ways, as determined by the Project Manager;
    - 1. on a lump sum basis following completion of the Work. The lump sum price shall be properly itemized in accordance with Subparagraph 12.2.2. and supported by sufficient data to permit evaluation;
    - 2. on a time and materials basis, with or without a maximum not-to-exceed price, at the discretion of the Project Manager. Costs will be accumulated on a time and materials basis as described in Subparagraph 12.2.3 and presented daily (the day after the Work is performed) for approval by the Owner on the forms provided by the Owner. The daily report will be signed by the Contractor and the Owner.
- 12.2.2 For Work proceeding on a lump sum basis. In accordance with Subparagraph 12.2.1.1 or 12.2.1.3.1, the Contractor shall provide a detailed breakdown of the costs as described herein and submit the costs and substantiating data in a proposal to the Owner:
  - Direct Costs: Direct costs shall be limited to the following: cost of materials, including sales tax and cost of delivery to the project; cost of labor (from apprentice level up through and including the general foreman classification) comprising of the base wage plus fringe benefits, including burden (Social Security, Worker's Compensation, and Unemployment Insurance, etc.); rental rate including fuel and maintenance for any power tools valued at over \$3,000 and equipment as described below, under "Equipment Rates;" bond premiums and additional cost of Builder's Risk Insurance, at rates equal to the amount billed for the base contract or the actual rate as supported by an invoice.
    - 12.2.2.1.1 Equipment Rates: For any machinery or special equipment (other than small tools) which has been authorized by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall receive the rental rates in the current edition and appropriate volume of the "Rental Rate Blue Book for Construction Equipment," published by K-III Directory Corp., 10 Lake Drive, Highstown, NJ 08520-5397.

Hourly rental rates shall be determined as follows. The established hourly rental rate shall be equal to the adjusted monthly rate for the basic equipment plus the adjusted monthly rate for applicable attachments, both divided by 176, and multiplied by the area adjustment factor, plus the estimated hourly operating costs. The adjusted monthly rate is that resulting from application of the rate adjustment formula in order to eliminate replacement cost allowances in machine depreciation and contingency cost allowances. Attachments shall not be included unless required for the time and materials Work. For equipment not listed in the Blue Book, the Contractor shall receive a rental rate as agreed upon before such Work is begun. If agreement cannot be reached, the Owner reserves the right to establish a rate based on similar equipment in the Blue Book or prevailing commercial rates in the area. These rates shall apply for equipment used during the Contractor's regular shift of 10 hours per day. Where the equipment is used more than 10 hours per day, either on the Contractor's normal Work or on time and materials, and either on single or multiple shifts, an overtime rate, computed as follows, shall apply: The hourly overtime rate shall be equal to the adjusted monthly rate for the basic equipment plus the adjusted monthly rate for applicable attachments, both divided by 352, and multiplied by the area adjustment factor, plus the estimated hourly operating cost.

- 12.2.2.1.2 Equipment which must be rented or leased specifically for Work required under this section shall be authorized in writing by the Project Manager.
- 12.2.2.1.3 When it is necessary to obtain equipment from sources beyond the project limits exclusively for time and materials Work, the actual cost of transferring the equipment to the site of the Work and return will be allowed as an additional item of expense. Where the move is made by common carrier, the move-in allowance will be limited to the amount of the freight bill or invoice. If the Contractor hauls the equipment with his own forces, the allowance will be limited to the rental rate for the hauling unit plus operator wages. In the event that the equipment is transferred under its own power, the moving allowance will be limited to one-half of the normal hourly rental rate plus operator's wages. In the event that the move-out is to a different location, payment will in no instance exceed the amount of the move-in. Move-in allowance shall not be made for equipment brought to the project for time and materials Work which is subsequently retained on the project and utilized for completion of contract items, camp maintenance, or related Work.
- 12.2.2.1.4 Equipment ordered to be on stand-by basis shall be paid for at the stand-by rental rate for the number of hours in the Contractor's normal Work shift, but not to exceed 8 hours per day. The stand-by rental rate shall be computed as follows:

The hourly stand-by rate shall be equal to the adjusted monthly rate for the basic equipment plus the adjusted monthly rate for applicable attachments, both divided by 352, all multiplied by the

area adjustment factor.

Time will be recorded to the nearest one-half hour for purposes of computing compensation to the Contractor for equipment utilized under these rates.

The equipment Direct Cost determination covers all costs for providing required equipment and no additional compensation will be made for other costs such as, but not limited to, fuels, lubricants, replacement parts or maintenance costs. Cost of repairs, both major and minor as well as charges for mechanic's time utilized in servicing equipment to ready it for use prior to moving to the project and similar charges will not be allowed.

- 12.2.2.2 Overhead: Overhead shall include the following: the Contractor's management staff; supervision; superintendence; wages of timekeepers; watchmen and clerks; small tools; incidentals; costs of preparing and responding to Request for Proposals, including estimating; schedule revisions, software costs and clerical expenses; general home and field office expenses; including any financial/financing costs; legal costs; and/or accounting costs; temporary facilities; temporary utilities (power, water, sewer, telephone, etc.) And any utilities used by the Contractor during the construction period; and all other expenses not specifically defined in Subparagraph 12.2.2.1 as direct costs. Unless specifically required or requested, any travel and associated costs from outside of the Municipality of Anchorage is considered as part of the Contractor's project overhead and will not be paid by the Owner.
- 12.2.2.3 The Contractor shall apply a combined percentage rate to the direct costs to compensate it for additional Overhead and Profit associated with the change. The combined rate to the Owner of any change shall not exceed the rates set forth in the following schedule:

For the Contractor, for Work performed by his own forces, up to fifteen percent (15%) of direct costs;

For each Subcontractor involved, for Work performed by the Subcontractor's forces, up to fifteen percent (15%) of direct costs;

For the Contractor, for Work performed by Subcontractors, up to ten percent (10%) of the Subcontractor's direct costs;

For the Subcontractor, for Work performed by the multiple-tier-contractors up to ten percent (10%) of direct costs;

The total Contractor and all-subcontractors overhead allowance shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of direct costs.

- 12.2.3 For Work proceeding on a time and material basis in accordance with Subparagraph 12.2.1.3.2, the Contractor shall be compensated for its costs in accordance with the following:
  - 12.2.3.1 Direct Costs: Direct Costs shall be as defined in Subparagraph 12.2.2.1.
  - 12.2.3.2 Overhead: Overhead shall be as defined in Subparagraph 12.2.2.2.

12.2.3.3 Overhead and Profit combined included in the total costs to the Owner of any change shall not exceed the rates set forth in the following schedule:

For the Contractor, for Work performed by his own forces, up to ten percent (10%) of direct costs;

For each Subcontractor involved, for Work performed by the Subcontractor's forces, up to ten percent (10%) of direct costs;

For the Contractor, for Work performed by Subcontractors, up to five percent (5%) of the Subcontractor's direct cost.

For the Subcontractor, for Work performed by multiple-tier-contractors up to five percent (5%) of direct costs;

The total Contractor and multiple-tier-contractor overhead allowances shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of direct costs.

- 12.2.4 If the net value of a change results in a credit from the Contractor, Subcontractor, or Material Suppliers or Vendors, the credit given shall be the net cost without overhead or profit. The costs as used herein shall include all items of labor, materials, plant and equipment. Credit changes shall include a percentage of the direct costs for overhead and profit at fifty percent (50%) of the rates defined in Subparagraph 12.2.2.3.
- 12.2.5 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if the quantities originally contemplated are so changed in the proposed Change Order that application of the agreed unit prices to the quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or the Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.
- 12.2.6 The Contract Sum, the Contract Time, and the date required for performance of any part of the Work may be changed only by a Change Order to the Contract. Each Change Order will be identified at the bottom of each approved RFP, with a heading of "Change Order Authorization." Change Orders executed pursuant to this article constitute full and final settlement of all aspects of cost and time related to and/or occasioned by the Work (or event) described therein. Costs are defined to include all direct labor costs; all direct materials and equipment expenses; any and all overhead, profit, and commission; any and all impact costs related to and/or occasioned by the Work described herein; as well as all taxes and insurance. All Change Orders shall be approved by the Project Manager and signed by the Owner and Contractor.
- 12.2.7 For accounting purposes, the Change Orders identified in Subparagraph 12.2.6 will be accumulated on a monthly basis or more frequently and summarized in a Summary Change Order. The Summary Change Order shall be approved by the Project Manager and signed by the Owner and Contractor. No claim by the Contractor for or on account of any Change Order shall be due nor shall any such claim appear on an Application for Payment or demand for final payment until the Summary Change Order has been fully executed by the Contractor and the Owner.
- 12.2.8 The Superintendent of Schools and/or the Senior Director of Capital Planning and Construction are authorized to make contract modifications or to execute orders up to one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000) that are within the project's budget. The Superintendent is authorized to make contract modifications in excess of one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000) but not-to-exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars (\$250,000) that are within the project's budget. All contract modifications or change orders

- above two hundred fifty thousand dollars (\$250,000) shall be recommended by the Superintendent to the School Board for its approval.
- 12.2.9 No claim by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment hereunder shall be allowed if asserted after final payment or more than six months after the date of substantial completion, whichever is earlier.
- 12.2.10 Nothing in this Article shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the Contract as changed.

## 12.3 DIFFERING CONDITIONS

- 12.3.1 The Contractor shall promptly, and before the conditions are disturbed, give written notice to the Owner of (1) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ materially from those indicated in this Contract, or (2) unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in Work of the character provided for in the Contract.
- 12.3.2 The Owner shall investigate the site conditions promptly after receiving notice. Work shall not proceed at the affected site, except at the Contractor's risk, until the Owner has provided written instructions to the Contractor. If the conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performing any part of the Work under this Contract, whether or not changed as a result of the conditions, an adjustment shall be made under this Article and the Contract modified in writing accordingly.
- 12.3.3 No request by the Contractor for an adjustment to the Contract under this Article shall be allowed unless the Contractor has given the written notice required.
- 12.3.4 No claim by the Contractor for an adjustment hereunder shall be allowed if asserted after final payment or more than six months after the date of substantial completion, whichever is earlier.

#### 12.4 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COST OR TIME

- 12.4.1 If the Contractor claims that additional cost is involved because of, but not limited to (1) any written interpretation pursuant to Subparagraph 2.2.8; (2) any order by the Owner to stop the Work pursuant to Paragraph 3.4 where the Contractor was not at fault; or (3) any other impacts related to the Work, the Contractor shall make such claim as provided in Subparagraph 12.4.2.
- 12.4.2 If the Contractor wishes to make a claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, and such claim is not barred under Paragraph 8.3, he shall deliver to the Project Manager written notice thereof within fourteen (14) days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim. This notice shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to execute the Work, except in an emergency endangering life or property in which case the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with Paragraph 10.3. No such claim shall be valid unless so made. The written notice shall state:
  - 12.4.2.1 the date, nature and circumstances of the conduct regarded as a change;
  - the name, function and activity of each Contractor official, agent or employee involved in or knowledgeable about such conduct;
  - 12.4.2.3 the identification of any documents and the substance of any communication

involved in such conduct:

- 12.4.2.4 in the instance of alleged acceleration of scheduled performance or delivery, the basis upon which it arose;
- the particular elements of Contract performance for which the Contractor may seek an equitable adjustment under this Paragraph, including:
  - 12.4.2.5.1 what Contract Drawings or Specification have been or may be affected by the alleged change;
  - 12.4.2.5.2 what labor or materials or both have been or may be added, deleted or wasted by the alleged change;
  - 12.4.2.5.3 to the extent practicable, what delay and disruption in the manner and sequence of performance and effect on continued performances have been or may be caused by the alleged change in accordance with Division1, Section 01311, "Project Schedule;"
  - 12.4.2.5.4 what adjustments to the Contract Sum and other provisions of the Contract affected by the alleged change are estimated; and
- 12.4.2.6 the Contractor's estimate of the time by which the Project Manager and Architect must respond to the Contractor's notice to minimize cost, delay or disruption of performance in accordance with Division 1, Section 01311, "Project Schedule."
- 12.4.3. After receipt of a Contractor's claim, the Project Manager may visit the site, schedule an informal review hearing, or request additional information in order to fully evaluate the issues of the claim. The Project Manager has thirty (30) calendar days to review the claim and to send a written decision to the Contractor. If the Project Manager agrees with the Contractor that the issues presented in the Contractor's claim justify a change in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, the Project Manager and the Contractor shall negotiate the amount of the adjustment in the Contract.

If the Project Manager determines that the claim does not justify a change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, of if the Project Manager cannot reach agreement with the Contractor on the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the amount shall be determined in accordance with Paragraph 12.5

12.4.4 In no event shall the Contractor slow or stop the Work while such determination is pending and the Owner shall continue to make payment in accordance with the Contract Documents except as to the amount in dispute. Any change in the Contract Sum resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order.

# 12.5 RESOLUTION OF DISPUTED CLAIMS

- 12.5.1 All disputed claims arising from this contract shall be resolved according to the process identified in this section 12.5. This includes any interpretations of the contract documents, claims for increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or any other issues of equitable adjustment.
- 12.5.2 Disputes between the Owner and the Contractor will be processed through the appeal process described in 12.5.3 and/or through the use of Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) procedures described in 12.5.4.

# 12.5.3 Appeal Process

- 12.5.3.1 If the Contractor does not agree with the decision of the Project Manager, the Contractor may, within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the decision, file a notice of appeal with the Chief Operating Officer. The Chief Operating Officer will then have sixty (60) calendar days to review the appeal and send a written decision to the Contractor.
- 12.5.3.2 If the Contractor does not agree with the final decision rendered by the Chief Operating Officer, it may pursue litigation.

## 12.5.4 ADR Process

- 12.5.4.1 Either the Owner or the Contractor may request, prior to litigation, that a dispute be submitted to mandatory mediation.
- 12.5.4.2 The parties shall jointly select and compensate a third party mediator.
- 12.5.4.3 Both parties shall attend joint mediation sessions and make a good faith effort to reach agreement through this process.
- 12.5.4.4 There is no obligation for either of the parties to accept any agreement during the mediation process.
- 12.5.5 The Contractor shall diligently carry on the Work and maintain the progress schedule during any dispute resolution proceedings, unless otherwise agreed in writing.

**END OF ARTICLE 12** 

#### **ARTICLE 13**

#### UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

#### 13.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK

- 13.1.1 If any portion of the Work should be covered contrary to the request of the Owner, Project Manager or the Architect or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the Project Manager, be uncovered for his observation and shall be replaced at the Contractor's expense.
- 13.1.2 If any other portion of the Work has been covered which the Architect or the Project Manager has not specifically requested to observe prior to being covered, either may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such Work be found in accordance with the Contract Documents, the cost of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be charged to the Owner. If such work be found not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such costs unless it be found that this condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor as provided in Article 6, in which event the Owner shall be responsible for the payment of such costs.

## 13.2 CORRECTION OF WORK

- 13.2.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct all Work rejected by the Project Manager as defective or as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether observed before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional Owner Administrative and legal expenses, and additional compensation for the Architect's and/or Project Manager's additional services made necessary thereby.
- 13.2.2 If, within one (1) year after the Date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or within such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner through the Project Manager to do so unless the Owner through the Project Manager has previously given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. This obligation shall survive the provisions of Subparagraph 9.5.5 and termination of the Contract. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition.
- 13.2.3 The Contractor, unless removal is waived by the Owner, shall remove from the site all portions of the Work which are defective or non-conforming, or if permitted or required, he shall correct such Work in place by and at the expense of the Contractor promptly after receipt of notice, and such rejected Work shall not thereafter be tendered for acceptance unless the former rejection or requirement for correction is disclosed.
- 13.2.4 If the Contractor does not proceed with the correction of such defective or non-conforming Work within a reasonable time fixed by written notice from the Owner, through the Project Manager, the Owner may either:
  - 13.2.4.1 by separate contract or otherwise replace or correct such Work and charge the Contractor the cost occasioned the Owner thereby and remove and store the materials or equipment at the expense of the Contractor, or
  - 13.2.4.2 terminate this Contract for default as provided in Paragraph 14.1. If the Contractor does not pay the cost of such replacement or correction and the

# GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION Division 0 Section 00700

removal and storage within ten (10) days thereafter, the Owner may upon ten (10) additional days' written notice sell such Work at auction or at private sale and shall account for the net proceeds thereof, after deducting all the costs that should have been borne by the Contractor, including compensation for the Owner's administrative and legal expenses, and additional services of the Architect and the Project Manager made necessary thereby. If such proceeds of sale do not cover all costs which the Contractor and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.

- 13.2.5 The Contractor shall bear the cost of making good all Work of the Owner or separate contractors destroyed or damaged by such correction or removal.
- 13.2.6 Nothing contained in this Paragraph 13.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to any other obligation which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents, including Paragraph 4.5. thereof. The establishment of the time period of one (1) year after the date of Substantial Completion or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any warranty required by the Contract Documents relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which his obligation to comply with the Contract documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability with respect to his obligations other than specifically to correct the Work.

## 13.3 ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE OR NONCONFORMING WORK

13.3.1 If the Owner prefers to accept defective or nonconforming Work, he may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect a reduction in the Contract Sum where appropriate and equitable, or the Owner may elect to accept payment in materials or services, in lieu of a reduction in the Contract Sum. If the amount of a reduction is determined after final payment, it shall be paid to the Owner directly by the Contractor.

**END OF ARTICLE 13** 

#### ARTICLE 14

#### TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

#### 14.1 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER

14	1	1	If the	Contracto	r

- 14.1.1.1 is adjudged bankrupt; or
- 14.1.1.2 makes a general assignment for the benefit of his creditors; or
- 14.1.1.3 has a receiver appointed on account of his insolvency; or
- 14.1.1.4 if he refuses or fails to commence the Work within the time required by this Contract; or
- 14.1.1.5 refuses or fails to prosecute the Work or any separable part with the diligence that will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Contract, including any extension; or
- 14.1.1.6 refuses or fails to provide sufficient and properly skilled workmen or proper materials or equipment to complete the Work in an acceptable manner and without delay; or
- 14.1.1.7 refuses or fails to complete the Work in accordance with the Project Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 hereof; or
- 14.1.1.8 fails to make prompt payment to Subcontractors or for materials or labor, or
- 14.1.1.9 persistently disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction; or
- 14.1.1.10 fails or refuses to comply with the requirements of Division 1, Section 01311, "Project Schedule" of the Contract Documents; or
- 14.1.1.11 otherwise is guilty of a substantial violation of a provision of the Contract Documents,

then the Owner, may, without prejudice to any right or remedy and after giving the Contractor and his surety, if any, seven (7) days' written notice, terminate the employment of the Contractor and take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor and may finish the Work by whatever method he may deem expedient. In such case the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished. Such an event of termination shall at the option of the Owner result in the automatic assignment to the Owner of all of the Contractor's subcontracts, and the Owner may thereafter enforce such subcontracts in the prosecution of the Work in the same manner and to the same extent as the Contractor.

14.1.2 If the cost of finishing the Work exceeds the unpaid portion of the Contract Sum, the Contractor or his assigns, heirs or sureties shall pay the difference to the Owner. This obligation shall survive the termination of the Contract.

14.1.3 Nothing contained in this Article 14 shall impair any of the obligations of the surety.

#### 14.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

- 14.2.1 The performance of the Work under this Contract may be terminated by the Owner in whole, or from time to time in part, whenever the Owner shall determine that such termination is in the best interest of the Owner. Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the Contractor of a Notice of Termination specifying the extent to which performance of Work under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- 14.2.2 After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as otherwise directed by the Owner, the Contractor shall:
  - 14.2.2.1 stop Work under the Contract on the date and to the extent specified in the Notice of Termination;
  - 14.2.2.2 place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services or equipment, except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of this Work under the Contract as is not terminated;
  - terminate all orders and subcontractors to the extent that they relate to the performance of Work terminated by the Notice of Termination;
  - 14.2.2.4 assign to the Owner, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the Owner, all of the right, title, and interest of the Contractor under the orders and subcontracts so terminated, in which case the Owner shall have the right, in its discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders and subcontracts;
  - 14.2.2.5 settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the Owner, to the extent he may require, which approval of ratification shall be final for all the purposes of this clause;
  - transfer title and deliver to the Owner, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent, if any, directed by the Owner, (A) the fabricated or unfabricated parts, Work in process, completed Work, supplies, and other material produced as a part of, or acquired in connection with the performance of, the Work terminated by the Notice of Termination, and (B) the completed or partially completed plans, drawings, information, and the property which, if the Contract has been completed, would have been required to be furnished to the Owner;
  - 14.2.2.7 use his best efforts to sell, in the manner, at the time, to the extent and at the price or prices directed or authorized by the Owner, any property of the types referred to in Subparagraph 14.2.2.6 above, provided, however, that the Contractor (A) shall not be required to extend credit to any purchase, and (B) may acquire any such property under the conditions prescribed by and at a price or prices approved by the Owner, and provided further, that the proceeds of any such transfer or disposition shall be applied in reduction of any payments to be made by the Owner to the Contractor under this Contract or shall otherwise be credited to the price or cost of the Work covered by this Contract or paid in such other manner as the Owner may direct;
  - 14.2.2.8 complete performance of such part of the Work as shall not have been terminated by the Notice of Termination and may incur obligations as are

necessary to do so; and

- 14.2.2.9 take such action as may be necessary, or as the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to this Contract which is in the possession of the Contractor and in which the Owner has or may acquire an interest.
- 14.2.3 The Contractor may submit to the Owner a list, certified as to quantity and quality, of any or all items of termination inventory not previously disposed of, exclusive of items the disposition of which has been directed or authorized by the Owner, and may request the Owner to remove such items or enter into a storage agreement covering them. Not later than fifteen (15) days thereafter, the Owner will accept title to such items and remove them or enter into a storage agreement covering the same; provided that the list submitted shall be subject to verification by the Owner upon removal of all items, or if the items are stored within forty-five (45) days from the date of submission of the list, and any necessary adjustment to correct the list as submitted shall be made prior to final settlement.
- 14.2.4 After receipt of a Notice of Termination, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner his termination claim, in the form and with certification prescribed by the Owner. Such claim shall be submitted promptly but in no event later than six (6) months from the effective date of termination. Upon failure of the Contractor to submit his termination claim within the time allowed, the Owner may determine on the basis of information available to him, the amount, if any, due to the Contractor by reason of the termination and shall thereupon pay to the Contractor the amount so determined.
- 14.2.5 Subject to the provisions of Subparagraph 14.2.4 above, the Contractor and the Owner may agree upon the whole or any part of the amount or amounts to be paid to the Contractor by reason of the total or partial termination of Work pursuant to this paragraph, which amount or amounts may include a reasonable allowance of profit on Work done; provided that such agreed amount or amounts, exclusive of settlement costs, shall not exceed the total Contract Sum as reduced by the amount of payments otherwise made and as further reduced by the Contract Sum attributable to that portion of Work not terminated. The Contract shall be amended accordingly, and the Contractor shall be paid the agreed amount. Nothing in Subparagraph 14.2.6 below, prescribing the amount to be paid to the Contractor in the event of failure of the Contractor and the Owner to agree upon the whole amount to be paid to the Contractor by reason of the termination of Work pursuant to this clause, shall be deemed to limit, restrict, or otherwise determine or affect the amount or amounts which may be agreed upon to be paid to the Contractor pursuant to this Subparagraph 14.2.5.
- 14.2.6 In the event of the failure of the Contractor and the Owner to agree, as provided in Subparagraph 14.2.5 above, upon the whole amount to be paid to the Contractor by reason of the termination of Work pursuant to this paragraph, the Owner shall pay to the Contractor the amounts determined by the Owner as follows, but without duplication of any amounts agreed upon in accordance with Subparagraph 14.2.5:
  - 14.2.6.1 with respect to all Contract Work performed prior to the effective date of the Notice of Termination, the total (without duplication of any items) of:
    - 14.2.6.1.1 the cost of such Work;
    - 14.2.6.1.2 the cost of settling and paying claims arising out of the termination of Work under subcontracts or orders as provided in Subparagraph 14.2.2.5 above exclusive of the amounts paid or payable on account of supplies or materials delivered or services

furnished by the Subcontractor prior to the effective date of the Notice of Termination Work under this Contract, which amounts shall be included in the cost on account of which payment is made under Subparagraph 14.2.6.1 above; and

- 14.2.6.1.3 a sum as profit on Subparagraph 14.2.6.1.1 above, determined by the Owner to be fair and reasonable; and
- 14.2.6.2 the reasonable cost incidental to termination of Work including:
  - 14.2.6.2.1 accounting, legal, clerical and other expenses reasonably necessary for the preparation of termination settlement proposals and supporting data;
  - 14.2.6.2.2 the termination and settlement of subcontracts (excluding the amounts of such settlements); and storage, transportation and other costs incurred (pursuant to Subparagraph 14.2.2.9), reasonably necessary for the preservation, protection or disposition of the termination inventory.
- 14.2.6.3 The total sum to be paid to the Contractor under Subparagraph 14.2.6.1 above shall not exceed the total Contract Sum as reduced by the portion of the Contract Sum attributable to that portion of Work not terminated. Except for normal spoilage, and except to the extent that the Owner shall have otherwise expressly assumed the risk of loss, there shall be excluded from the amounts payable to the Contractor under Subparagraph 14.2.6.1, the fair value, as determined by the Owner, of property which is destroyed or lost, stolen, or damaged so as to become undeliverable to the Owner, or to a buyer pursuant to Subparagraph 14.2.2.7.
- 14.2.7 In arriving at the amount due the Contractor under this paragraph, there shall be deducted (1) all unliquidated advance or other payments on account theretofore made to the Contractor, applicable to the terminated portion of this Contract, (2) any claim which the Owner may have against the Contractor in connection with this Contract, and (3) the agreed price for, or the proceeds of sale of, any materials, supplies or other things acquired by the Contractor or sold, pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph and not otherwise recovered by or credited to the Owner.
- 14.2.8 If the termination hereunder be partial, the Contractor may file with the Owner a claim for an equitable adjustment of the price or prices specified in the Contract relating to the continued portion of the Contract (the portion not terminated by the Notice of Termination), and such equitable adjustment as may be agreed upon shall be made in such price or prices. Any claim by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment under this clause must be asserted within ninety (90) days from the effective date of the termination.
- 14.2.9 The Owner may from time to time, under such terms and conditions as it may prescribe, make partial payments and payments on account against costs incurred by the Contractor in connection with the terminated portion of this Contract whenever in the opinion of the Owner the aggregate of such payments shall be within the amount to which the Contractor will be entitled hereunder. If the total of such payments is in excess of the amount finally agreed or determined to be due under this paragraph, such excess shall be payable by the Contractor to the Owner upon demand, together with interest computed at the legal prevailing rate, for the period from the date such excess payment is received by the Contractor to the date on which such excess is repaid to the Owner, provided, however, that no interest shall be charged with respect to any such excess payment, attributable to

# GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION Division 0 Section 00700

a reduction in the Contractor's claim by reason of retention or other disposition of termination inventory until ten (10) days after the date of such retention or disposition, or such later date as determined by the Owner by reason of the circumstances.

14.2.10 Unless otherwise provided for in this Contract, or by applicable statue, the Contractor shall - from the effective date of termination until the expiration of three (3) years after final settlement under this Contract - preserve and make available to the Owner at all reasonable times at the office of the Contractor but without direct charge to the Owner, all his books, records, documents and other evidence bearing on the costs and expenses of the Contractor under this Contract and relating to the Work terminated hereunder, or, to the extent approved by the Project Manager, photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproductions thereof.

**END OF ARTICLE 14** 

## SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS TO THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION

## REFERENCE:

 GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT, ANCHORAGE, ALASKA, constitutes the General Conditions of this Contract, and is further revised and supplemented by the provisions of these Supplementary General Conditions. The General Conditions and the Supplementary General Conditions are applicable to all of the work under this Contract and shall apply to the Contractor and all Subcontractors, Subsubcontractors, and Material Suppliers and Vendors.

# SUPPLEMENTS:

1. The following supplements modify, change, delete, or add to the General Conditions. Where any article of the General Conditions is modified or any paragraph deleted, subparagraph or clause thereof is modified, or deleted by these supplements, the unaltered provisions of such article, paragraph, sub-paragraph or clause shall remain in effect.

## **ARTICLE 4**

#### Add the following new Paragraphs 4.7.1.2 & 4.7.1.3

- 4.7.1.2 Unless otherwise authorized by the Project Manager, successfully obtaining the necessary permits shall be the responsibility of the Contractor and shall constitute a requirement for the issuance of the Notice to Proceed by the Owner.
- 4.7.1.3 Contractor shall submit Fire Alarm shop drawings to the Municipality of Anchorage Building Safety Office.
  - 4.7.1.3.1 Contractor shall pay for the Municipality of Anchorage Fire Alarm permits.
  - 4.7.1.3.2 Contractor shall obtain the permits upon approval.

#### Add the following new Paragraph 4.21, Construction Management Software:

## 4.21 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE

- 4.21.1 The Contractor shall fully utilize the Owner provided construction management software, currently Sage Procore Construction Management for communications, Submittals, Requests for Information, for submission of construction record documents and photographs, and other purposes as directed by the Project Manager.
- 4.21.2 The contractor shall designate a minimum of two (2) people from their internal project staff to access the Construction Management Software. It is incumbent upon the Contractor to ensure these individuals familiarize themselves and become proficient in the use of the Construction Management software utilizing the manuals, help files, training videos, forums and other support services provided by the Construction Management Software.

#### ARTICLE 7

# Add the following new Paragraph 7.12, Fire Alarm System:

## 7.12 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM

- 7.12.1 Before beginning any work that may result in a fire alarm transmission, the contractor shall call both the Anchorage Fire Department dispatcher at 522-1122 and the local fire station which would respond to an alarm and let them know you will be working on the system and for approximately how long. Second the contractor shall call Guardian Security at 277-1975 and notify the dispatcher that you have called the Fire Department, what type of work you are planning to do, and approximately how long before you expect to be completed. After the contractor is completed with your work, you must reverse the process by notifying the Fire Department dispatcher and the ASD Dispatcher that you are finished.
- 7.12.2 The Contractor shall be held responsible for all charges incurred from false fire alarms. Currently the Anchorage Fire Department charges seven hundred fifty dollars and no cents (\$750.00) per false alarm, or current rate charged.

# Add the following new Paragraph 7.13, Apprenticeship Utilization Requirements for Contracts:

#### 7.13 APPRENTICESHIP UTILIZATION REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTS

- 7.13.1 Once awarded a contract by ASD, the prime contractor will be responsible to gather and submit all documentation to ASD to confirm compliance with the Apprenticeship Utilization Policy ("AUP") mandated by Anchorage School Board Policy 3311.1.2. The Prime contractor will provide documentation to ASD to confirm that 15% of the labor hours worked in trades/crafts categories that are included in the Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Program has been executed by certified apprentices enrolled in those programs, and will provide documentation to confirm that the apprentices listed on the documentation submitted are currently in good standing with their Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Program. ASD will provide several forms which the prime contractor will be required to fill out in addition to submitting their certified payroll documents. Also, ASD will audit the prime contractor's documentation on the following schedule. Audits for smaller projects will be conducted every 30 days, audits for larger projects the will be done every 90 days. In addition, ASD will conduct on-site audit at non-scheduled intervals to ensure that the apprentices listed on the written documentation are physically on-site. ASD will give a reasonable notice of 24 hours prior to on-site inspections.
- 7.13.2 The prime contractor will be required to submit the following, at the intervals requested by ASD:
  - Certified Payroll for prime and subcontractors.
  - Apprenticeship Utilization Form for prime and subcontractors.
  - Apprenticeship Utilization Calculation form for prime and subcontractors, which
    demonstrates labor hours worked by apprentices in applicable crafts/trades
    categories, and reports status as to whether the apprentices listed are in good
    standing with their Alaskan Federally Registered Apprenticeship Program.

# Add the following new Paragraph 7.14, Preference for Alaska Forest Products:

7.14 PREFERENCE FOR ALASKA FOREST PRODUCTS

# 7.14.1 Preference for Alaska Forest and Agricultural Products

This project is funded by state money in which the use of timber, lumber, and manufactured lumber products are required, and, therefore, only timber, lumber, and manufactured lumber products originating in this state from local forest products shall be used whenever practical.

Pursuant to AS 36.15.050 and AS 36.30.322, agricultural and timber, lumber and manufactured lumber products harvested in Alaska shall be used in state funded projects whenever they are priced no more than seven percent above agricultural/wood products harvested outside the state and are of a like quality as compared with agricultural/wood products harvested outside the state. The Contractor shall maintain records which establish the type and extent of Alaska agricultural/wood products utilized. When such products are not utilized, the Contractor shall document the efforts the Contractor made towards obtaining agricultural/wood products harvested in Alaska and include in this documentation a written statement that the Contractor contacted the manufacturers and suppliers identified on the Department of Commerce and Economic Development's list of suppliers of Alaska forest products concerning the availability of agricultural/wood products harvested in Alaska and, if available, the product prices. The Contractor shall complete this documentation at a time determined by the district's project manager.

The Department of Commerce and Economic Development's list of suppliers of Alaska forest products is available at:

http://www.commerce.state.ak.us/ded/dev/prodpref/fppproduct.cfm

The Contractor's use of agricultural/wood products that fail to meet the requirements of this section shall be removed and replaced in accordance with **Division 0**, **Section 00700**, **paragraph 13.3** of the contract. In addition, pursuant to AS 36.15.050(d), the district may withhold payment until the Contractor complies with this section.

To clarify, the actions required by the successful bidder awarded the contract are as follows:

- For all lumber items required under the contract the Contractor will contact all applicable suppliers of Alaska forest products to determine availability and cost.
- Contractor must use lumber from the suppliers of Alaska forest products unless the
  cost of the Alaska forest products that are of like quality is seven percent higher than
  non-Alaska produced forest products, or the Alaska forest products are not available.
- Contractor must maintain records showing efforts made in using Alaska forest products or evidence of Alaska forest products not being available or reasonably competitive.
- The records showing compliance with the Alaska forest products preference must be provided to Owner during the submittal process (Division 1, Section 01300).
- Per AS 36.15.010 if the Contractor fails to provide evidence regarding proper sourcing and comparison of Alaska forest products, the District shall withhold payment until the Contractor complies.

#### ARTICLE 9

Add the following new Paragraph 9.12, Liquidated Damages:

## 9.12 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- 9.12.1 Should the Contractor fail to substantially complete the Work on or before any date stipulated for Substantial Completion (or such later date as may result from extension of time granted by the Owner), he shall pay the Owner, as liquidated damages, the sum of one thousand dollars and no cents (\$1,000.00) for each consecutive calendar day that terms of the contract remain unfulfilled beyond the date allowed by the Contract, which sum is agreed upon as a reasonable and proper measure of damages which the Owner will sustain per day by failure of the Contractor to complete work within time as stipulated; it being recognized by the Owner and to the Contractor that the injury to the Owner which could result from a failure of the Contractor to complete on schedule is uncertain and cannot be computed exactly. In no way shall costs for liquidated damages be construed as a penalty on the Contractor.
- 9.12.2 For each consecutive calendar day that the Work remains incomplete after the date established for Final Completion, the Owner will retain from the compensation otherwise to be paid to the Contractor the sum of one thousand dollars and no cents (\$1,000.00). This amount is the minimum measure of damages the Owner will sustain by failure of the Contractor to complete all remedial work, correct deficient work, clean up the project and miscellaneous tasks as required to complete all work specified.
- 9.12.3 In no instance shall more than one thousand dollars and no cents (\$1,000.00) a day are assessed for liquidated damages for work, which remains incomplete.

# **ARTICLE 10**

## Add the following new Paragraph 10.4, Compliance:

## 10.4 COMPLIANCE

- When the school is in session the Contractor will be restricted to the areas, which do not interfere with school operations. These areas shall be safety and security fenced to not impact school operations. Additional areas may be utilized upon concurrence of the Project Manager. The Contractor shall minimize his impact on education while his work is in progress. Workers must stay out of school while school is in session. All renovation work in the existing school, including sprinklers, must be performed while school is not in session. If scheduling pushes this work into the school session, then the work must be performed on nights and weekends.
- 10.4.2 The Contractor must maintain interior building fire exits through the construction areas and maintain these exits during all school operation hours. These exit routes may not be modified without concurrence of the Project Manager and the School Principal.

# **ARTICLE 11**

## Remove and replace Section 11.3.3.1 with the following:

11.3.3.1 The Contractor shall maintain an umbrella liability policy according to the following:

Projects < \$2 million construction cost - \$1,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate.

Projects < \$10 million construction cost – \$5,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate.

Projects > \$10 million construction cost – \$10,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate.

This requirement does not apply to Subcontractors.

# Article 11, 11.4: Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following:

Builders Risk insurance is not required for scope of work identified in this project.

## **ARTICLE 12**

# Article 12, 12.5.2: Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following:

Disputes between the Owner and the Contractor will be processed through the appeal process described in 12.5.3.

# Article 12, 12.5.3: Delete this section in its entirety and replace with the following:

## 12.5.3 Appeal Process

- 12.5.3.1 The contractor will submit in writing the issue(s) being claimed and the Project Manager will review. The Project Manager may visit the site, schedule a review hearing, or request additional information in order to fully evaluate the issues of the claim. The Project Manager will send the written decision to the Contractor within ten (10) days of receipt of claim.
- 12.5.3.2 If the Contractor does not agree with the decision of the Project Manager, within ten (10) days from the receipt of the written decision by the Project Manager, the Contractor may request an appeal of the decision to the Senior Director of Capital Planning & Construction. The Senior Director of Capital Planning & Construction will then have ten (10) days to review the issue(s) and send a written decision to the Contractor.
- 12.5.3.3 If the Contractor does not agree with the decision of the Senior Director of Capital Planning & Construction, within ten (10) days from the receipt of the written decision by the Senior Director of Capital Planning & Construction, the Contractor may request an appeal of the decision to the Chief Operating Officer. The Chief Operating Officer will then have ten (10) days to review the issue(s) and send a written decision to the Contractor.
- 12.5.3.4 If the Contractor does not agree with the final decision rendered by the Chief Operating Officer, it may pursue litigation.
- 12.5.3.5 The Contractor may bring no action on claims unless the claims have been properly raised in accordance with all notice provisions of the conditions and considered in the above dispute-resolution procedures.
- 12.5.3.6 The Contractor shall diligently carry on the Work and maintain the progress schedule during any dispute-resolution proceedings, unless

# SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS TO THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION Division 0 Section 00800

otherwise agreed in writing.

12.5.3.7 Any step in the process identified above can be waived only by explicit written waiver by both parties.

Article 12, 12.5.4: Delete this section in its entirety.

## **WAGE RATES**

## I. GENERAL

# A. STATE OF ALASKA PREVAILING WAGE SCALE AND ALASKA HIRE

Attention of bidders is particularly called to the requirements as to conditions of employment to be observed and minimum wage rates to be paid under the Contract. Among other things, the requirements of Alaska's Little Davis Bacon Act (AS 36.05.010) are applicable to this project. Each bidder must inform himself/herself fully of the conditions relating to the construction of the project and the employment of labor thereon. Failure to do so will not relieve a successful bidder of his/her obligation to furnish all material and labor necessary to carry out the provisions of the Contract.

State Labor Wage and Hour Administration Pamphlets No. 600 for Laborers' and Mechanics' are updated on April 1, and September 1. It is the responsibility of the bidder to obtain the new labor wage and hour rates when available from the State of Alaska Department of Labor, and to use the Prevailing wage scale and hiring requirements when formulating your bid.

For copies of this pamphlet, contact the nearest office of the Division of Labor Standards and Safety, Wage and Hour office or visit the internet site at:

http://labor.state.ak.us/lss/pamp600.htm

## SUMMARY OF WORK

## PART 1. GENERAL

## 1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

#### 1.02 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- A. The Work of this Contract comprises the general construction of the facility identified in the Solicitation including all noted site improvements.
- B. Definition of Site: Wherein the term Site is used in the contract documents, it shall mean the areas where work is to be performed; located as identified in the Solicitation and on the Contract Drawings.
- C. Acceptance of Site: The Contractor shall fully inform himself of the areas in which work is to be processed, material delivered, and limitation in working conditions, and access to work areas.
- D. Existing Conditions: The drawings may not show all arrangements and condition of the site as they now exist. The Contractor shall be responsible for a complete visual inspection.

## 1.03 CONTRACT

- A. Construct the work under a single fixed price contract as bound herein.
- B. It is the intent of these documents to require all work for a complete facility and plant with only minor owner-furnished items to be incorporated. See technical sections for specifics.

## 1.04 WORK FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY OWNER

A. Equipment and furniture as noted in documents. Other Contractors or ASD Maintenance personnel may be performing work at this facility concurrent with this project. See Section 1.07 below for requirements concerning coordination with Contractor's work.

# 1.05 GENERAL PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A. General Description: West-Romig Site Improvements project is located at West Anchorage High School in the north-east corner of campus. The address is 1700 Hillcrest Dr. Anchorage, AK 99517.

#### B. Construction:

Finish labor, supervision, materials, tools, equipment, and other items as necessary to properly site improvements per the project construction documents. Work includes, but is not limited to:

- 1. Remove existing asphalt and concrete walkways and plants. Install new concrete walkways and landscaping project area and new bollards.
- 2. Install new light poles, conduit, and conductors. Provide new LED lighting fixtures.

- Install cameras with security settings.
- 3. Install an underground trench cable from West High School existing CTE building to relocatable classrooms (Relocatable classrooms are not this project scope).
- 4. Reused existing site utility. Install new 200A service meter for providing power to portable classrooms.
- C. Sequence the start, conduct and completion of Work as required in Section 00200, Project Schedule Milestone Dates.

# 1.06 CONTRACTOR'S USE OF PREMISES

- A. Limit use of premises for work and for storage to allow for:
  - Area of site indicated on Contract Drawings
  - 2. Owner occupancy of existing building
  - Public use
  - 4. Coordinated use of premises under direction of Project Manager.
  - 5. Full responsibility for protection and safekeeping of products under this Contract stored at Site.
  - 6. Moving any stored products, under Contractor's control, which interfere with operations of Owner or separate Contractor.

## 1.07 OWNER'S USE OF PREMISES

- A. During the regular school year, conduct operations to minimize interference with normal school operations.
- B. Schedule any work which could interfere with school operations during summer vacation or when the school is not in session during the regular year.
- C. Cooperate with Project Manager in conducting operations to minimize conflict with and to facilitate Owner usage as established by the Project Manager.
- D. Schedule work to maintain Owner's continuous operation. Include in contract sum sufficient funds as may be required for any "after-hours" work caused by this requirement. No additional payment to Contractor will be authorized because of Contractor's failure to anticipate required "after-hours" work.
- E. At all times conduct operation as to insure the least inconvenience to students, staff, visitors, and the general public.
- F. The contractor shall provide advance notice at least 72 hours prior to any utility outages or other operations anticipated to inconvenience the school activities. The Project Manager will review and evaluate the request. The contractor may have to reschedule the operations to another time that will not impact school activities.

## 1.08 COORDINATION OF NOISE, DUST AND FUMES

A. Contain noise, dust and fumes within work area. Notify Project Manager at least 24 hours prior to any necessary excessive noise, dust or fumes. Comply with the Project Manager's instructions.

## 1.09 PRODUCTS FURNISHED BY OWNER AND INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR

A. Owner's Responsibilities:

- 1. Arrange for and deliver necessary shop drawings, product data, and samples to Contractor.
- 2. Arrange and pay for product delivery to Site in accordance with construction schedule.
- 3. Deliver supplier's bill of materials to Contractor.
- 4. Inspect deliveries jointly with Contractor
- 5. Submit claims for Transportation damage.
- 6. Arrange for replacement of damaged, defective, missing or otherwise unacceptable items.
- 7. Arrange for manufacturer's warranties, bonds, service, and inspections as required.

# B. Contractor's Responsibilities:

- 1. Designate delivery date for each product in construction schedule.
- 2. Receive and unload products at Site.
- 3. Promptly inspect products jointly with Owner, record shortages, damaged or defective items.
- 4. Handle products at Site, including uncrating and storage.
- 5. Protect products against damage and discoloration.
- 6. Assemble, install, connect, adjust, and finish products, as stipulated in respective Specification Sections.
- 7. Clean, repair, or replace items damaged by Contractor.

# 1.10 SALVAGE RIGHTS

- A. Except where noted otherwise on contract documents, existing equipment which is removed as a part of the work shall become the property of the Contractor to dispose of as he sees fit.
- B. Remove scheduled materials and equipment without damaging items. Store items in protected environment. Coordinate with Owner for pick up and/or delivery to the owner. If delivered to the owner include project name and school for easy identification.

# 1.11 USE OF OWNER'S PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A. Use of Owner's property or equipment such as tools, ladders, furniture, janitorial equipment and supplies, etc., is strictly prohibited.

## 1.12 PERMITTING

- A. Contractor shall obtain all necessary building permits required to complete the scope of work identified in the contract documents. These include any/all subcontractor or specialty permits.
- B. Contractor shall ensure all required Municipal inspections, in accordance with the aforementioned permits, are requested and conducted prior to covering, closing or concealing the work in the field. Understanding and adhering to all MOA inspection requirements is mandatory. The Owner is not liable for re-inspection or rework costs associated with non-conforming or prematurely concealed work.
- C. Contractor shall maintain an inspection log and retain copies of all inspection reports, on site, for review by inspection officials and district project representatives.
- D. The District will be requiring preconstruction meeting with municipality building safety department.

# PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

# PART 3. EXECUTION

## 3.01 USE OF PREMISES

- A. Contractor shall have primary use of designated site and premises.
- B. When school is in session the Contractor shall coordinate site access around the school day activities.
  - 1. There is to be no construction traffic during peak school traffic hours. These hours are 9:15 AM to 10:30 AM, and 3:00 PM to 4:15 PM.
- C. Contractor shall have limited use of the new site after the date of Substantial Completion.

## PROJECT COORDINATION

## PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 GENERAL CONTRACTOR

- A. Coordinate work of his own employees and subcontractors and coordinate his work with that of other contractors and Owner.
- B. Expedite his work to assure compliance with schedules.
- C. Comply with orders and instructions of the Project Manager.
- D. Monitor and control the use of site:
  - 1. Supervise field engineering and site layout.
  - 2. Allocate space for each subcontractor's use for field offices, sheds, work and storage areas.
  - 3. Establish access, traffic, parking allocations, and regulations.

#### 1.02 GENERAL AND SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL DILIGENTLY COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

- A. Cooperate in planning and layout of the work well in advance of operations. Inform other contractors of requirements at proper time to prevent delay or revisions.
- B. Be informed of the requirements of other contractors and check own work for conflicts with the work of others.
- C. Ensure delivery of materials and performance of work on coordinated schedule with other contractors.
- D. Be responsible for proper layout of the work, and for all lines and measurements for all of the work executed under the contract documents. Verify the figures shown on the drawings before laying out the work and report any inaccuracies in writing to the Project Manager before commencing work. The Owner, Architect or their representative will in no case assume the responsibility for layout of the work.
- E. The mechanical and electrical trades shall be responsible for the layout of the ductwork, piping and conduits based on the reference lines established.

#### 1.03 COORDINATING UTILITIES

- A. Cooperate and coordinate work with all utilities to be installed for service to Project. Utilities may include, but are not limited to water, sewer, natural gas, telephone, electrical, and cable television. Contractor shall maintain communication with utilities in order to coordinate time and requirements of utilities' installation.
- B. Contractor shall provide all work necessary to comply with requirements of Contract Documents for Utility work that does not meet Contract Document requirements, or for work that is disturbed by utility installation.

## 1.04 OWNER NOTIFICATION/REIMBURSEMENT

A. Provide the Owner forty-eight (48) hours advance notice of his intention to work overtime,

nights, Sundays or holidays, or anytime outside the usual working hours. In no case will the Contractor do any such work without first notifying the Owner to permit arrangements for proper inspection. Unless of an emergency nature, work performed in violation of this paragraph will not be paid for.

- B. Reimburse the additional cost to the Owner for inspection work on Sundays or recognized holidays. Such reimbursement shall include all additional costs to the Owner.
- C. Reimbursement for inspection or observation required of the Project Manager or the Engineer on Sundays or recognized holidays shall be at the rate of One Hundred Fifty dollars (\$150.00) per man-hour of work.
- D. The contractor shall reimburse the additional cost to the owner, architect and consultants for inspection work beyond a first substantial of first final completion inspections. The contractor is expected to be virtually complete at time of substantial completion inspection with only minor punchlist items remaining. Should punchlist items remain at time of final inspection and should subsequent inspections be required, the contractor shall pay all costs for all.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

## **CUTTING AND PATCHING**

## PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Cutting and patching is defined to include, but it not necessarily limited to, the cutting and patching of nominally completed work, and is defined to exclude integral cutting and patching during the manufacturing, fabricating, erecting, and installing process for individual units of work.
- B. Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting, and patching required to complete the work or to:
  - 1. Accommodate the coordination of work.
  - 2. Provide for installation of other work.
  - 3. Remove and replace defective work.
  - 4. Remove and replace work not conforming to requirements of Contract Documents.
  - 5. Uncover other work for access or inspection.
  - 6. Obtain samples for testing or similar purposes.
  - 7. Provide routine penetrations of nonstructural surfaces for installation of piping and electrical conduit.

#### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 00700 Article 4.14.
- B. Section 01010 Summary of Work.
- C. Individual Specification Sections:
  - 1. Cutting and patching incidental to work of the Section.
  - 2. Advance notification to other Sections of openings required in work of those Sections.
  - 3. Limitations on cutting structural members.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Ten (10) days prior to beginning any demolition activities, the Contractor shall provide written notification to EPA, in accordance with NESHAP regulations, with copy to Project Manager. Notice shall indicate asbestos containing materials are or are not anticipated to be encountered. If no asbestos is anticipated, a negative declaration is made addressing 40CFR61.146 (a), (b) and (c,1-5).
- B. Submit written request in advance of cutting or alteration which affects:
  - 1. Structural integrity of any element of Project.
  - 2. Integrity of weather-exposed or moisture-resistant element.
  - 3. Efficiency, maintenance, or safety of any operational element.
  - 4. Visual qualities of sight-exposed elements.
  - 5. Work of Owner or separate contractor.
- C. Include in Request:
  - 1. Identification of Project.
  - 2. Location and description of affected work.
  - 3. Necessity for cutting and alteration.
  - 4. Description of proposed work. Designate:

- a. Scope of cutting and patching.
- b. Contractor and trades to execute work.
- c. Products proposed to be used.
- d. Extent of refinishing.
- 5. Date and time work will be executed.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 MATERIALS

- A. For replacement of work removed, comply with specifications for type of work to be done, unless otherwise noted.
- B. Provide materials for cutting and patching which will result in equal to or better than the work being cut and patched in terms of performance characteristics and visual effect where applicable.

## PART 3. EXECUTION

# 3.01 GENERAL

- A. Execute cutting, fitting, and patching to complete Work, and to:
  - 1. Fit the several parts together, to integrate with other Work.
  - 2. Uncover work to install or correct ill-timed Work.
  - 3. Remove and replace defective and non-conforming Work.
  - 4. Remove samples of installed Work for testing.
  - 5. Provide openings in elements of Work for penetrations of mechanical and electrical work.
  - 6. Repair surfaces damaged by removal or relocation of surface mounted or built-in items.

## 3.02 INSPECTION

- A. Inspect existing conditions, including elements subject to damage or movement during cutting and patching.
- B. Do not cut and patch work which is exposed to view in a manner resulting in a reduction of visual qualities or resulting in substantial evidence of the cut and patch work. Remove and replace work judged by Project Manager to be visually unsatisfactory.
- C. After uncovering, inspect conditions affecting performance of work.
- D. Beginning of cutting or patching means acceptance of existing conditions.

## 3.03 PREPARATION

- A. Clean adjacent structures and improvements of dust, dirt, and debris caused by cutting and patching operations, as directed. Return adjacent areas to condition existing prior to start of work.
- B. Provide supports to assure structural integrity of surroundings; devices and methods to protect other portions of Project from damage.

C. Provide protection from elements for areas which may be exposed by uncovering work; maintain openings free of water.

# 3.04 PERFORMANCE

- A. Execute work by methods to avoid damage to other work, and which will provide proper surfaces to receive patching and finishing.
- B. Restore work with new products in accordance with requirements of Contract Documents.
- C. Fit work airtight to pipes, sleeves, ducts, conduit, and other penetrations through surfaces. Maintain all fire assembly rating wall or area separation construction in accordance with applicable codes.
- D. Refinish surfaces to match adjacent finishes. For continuous surfaces, refinish to nearest intersection; for an assembly, refinish entire unit.

## FIELD ENGINEERING

## PART 1. GENERAL

# 1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

A. Provide and pay for field engineering services required for project, i.e., landscape, civil, electrical, or other professional engineering services required to execute Contractor's construction methods.

## 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- Conditions of the contract.
- B. Section 01010: Summary of Work.
- C. Section 01700: Project Close-Out.

## 1.03 QUALIFICATIONS OF SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER

A. Provide Qualified Professional Engineer and Registered Land Surveyor with current Alaska license and acceptable to Contractor and Owner.

## 1.04 SURVEY REFERENCE POINTS

- A. Locate and protect benchmarks, monuments, and other control points prior to starting site work, preserve all permanent points during construction.
  - 1. Make no changes or relocations without prior written notice to Project Manager.
  - 2. Report to Project Manager when any reference point is lost, destroyed or required relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations.
  - 3. Require surveyor to replace project control points which may be lost or destroyed and establish replacements based on original survey control.

## 1.05 PROJECT SURVEY REQUIREMENTS

- A. Establish a minimum of two permanent benchmarks on site, referenced to data established by survey control points.
- B. Record locations, with horizontal and vertical data, on Project Record Documents.
- C. Establish and identify lines, levels, contours, and datum by instrumentation or similar appropriate means for:
  - 1. Stakes for grading, fill, and topsoil placement.
  - 2. Utility slopes and invert elevations.
  - 3. Batter boards for structures.
  - 4. Controlling lines and levels required for mechanical and electrical trades.
- D. From time to time, verify layouts by same methods.

## 1.06 RECORDS

A. Maintain a complete, accurate log of all control and survey work as it progresses.

#### 1.07 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit name and address of Surveyor and Professional Engineer to Project Manager.
- B. On request of Project Manager, submit documentation to verify accuracy of field engineering work.
- C. Submit certificate signed by Registered Engineer and Surveyor certifying that elevations and locations of improvements are in conformance with Contract Documents in the form of an "As-Built" survey.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

## PART 1. GENERAL

# 1.01 BUILDING CODES

- A. Construction which is not governed by a local building code or the Contract Specifications will be governed by the more stringent provisions of the latest published edition of Statute adopted edition with MOA local amendments, of the following applicable codes and regulations:
  - 1. International Building Code (IBC)
  - 2. International Existing Building Code (IEBC)
  - 3. International Energy Conservation Code (IECC)
  - 4. International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC)
  - 5. International Mechanical Code (IMC)
  - 6. International Fire Code (IFC)
  - 7. National Electrical Code (NEC)
  - 8. Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC)
  - 9. ASHRAE 90-75 as applicable to Alaska
  - 10. National Fire Code, Volumes 1-10
  - 11. National Electrical Safety Code
  - 12. NFPA Life Safety Code
  - 13. NFPA National Fire Code
  - 14. ADA Guidelines
  - 15. Accessible and Useable Buildings and Facilities (ICC/ANSI A117.1)

## 1.02 APPLICABLE STANDARDS

- A. Where indicated, comply with the requirements and recommendations of the standards and other publications, except to the extent more detailed or more stringent requirements are indicated, including those of applicable codes and governing regulations.
- B. Where two or more standards or recommendations of trade associations apply to the same quality control requirement for the work, comply with the most stringent. Refer uncertain instances to the Project Manager for a decision.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

## PART 1. GENERAL

## 1.01 ABBREVIATIONS

A. References in the contract documents to publications and recommendations by either name or abbreviation thereof include but are not necessarily limited to the following trade associations, technical societies, government agencies, recognized authorities and standards.

AAMA Architectural Aluminum Manufacturers Association

AASHTO American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials

ACI American Concrete Institute AGA American Gas Association

AGC The Associated General Contractors of America

Al The Asphalt Institute

AIA The American Institute of Architects

AISC American Institute of Steel Construction, Inc.

AISI American Iron and Steel Institute

AITC American Institute of Timber Construction
ANSI American National Standards Institute

APA American Plywood Association

ASAHC American Society of Architectural Hardware Consultants

ASHRAE American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning

Engineers, Inc.

ASME American Society of Mechanical Engineers
ASTM American Society for Testing and Materials

AWI Architectural Woodwork Institute

AWPA American Wood-Preservers' Association
AWPB American Wood-Preservers' Bureau
AWS American Welding Society, Inc.

CPSC Consumer Product Safety Commission
CRA California Redwood Association
CRSI Concrete Reinforcing Steel Institute

CS Commercial Standard of NBS (U.S. Department of Commerce)

CSI The Construction Specifications Institute, Inc.

EPA Environmental Protection Agency
FM Factory Mutual Engineering Corp.
FGMA Flat Glass Marketing Association

FS Federal Specification (General Services Administration)

GA Gypsum Association

HPMA Hardwood Plywood Manufacturers Association

IBC International Building Code

MFMA Maple Flooring Manufacturers Association
MLMA Metal Lath/Manufacturers Association

NAAMM The National Association of Architectural Metal Manufacturers

NBFU National Board of Fire Underwriters
NBHA National Builders Hardware Association

NBS National Bureau of Standards (U.S. Department of Commerce)

NEC National Electrical Code by NFPA

NEMA National Electrical Manufacturers Association

NFPA National Fire Protection Association
N.F.P.A. National Forest Products Association
NRCA National Roofing Contractors Association

NSF National Sanitation Foundation

NWMA National Woodwork Manufacturers Association, Inc. OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration

PCA Portland Cement Association
PCI Prestressed Concrete Institute

RIS Redwood Inspection Service (Grading Rules)

SDI Steel Deck Institute S.D.I. Steel Door Institute

SIGMA Sealed Insulating Glass Manufacturers Association

SJI Steel Joist Institute

SMACNA Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractor's National Association, Inc.

SPR Simplified Practice Recommendation of NBS

SSPC Steel Structures Painting Council
TCA Tile Council of America, Inc.
UL Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc.
WCLA West Coast Lumbermen's Association

WCLB West Coast Lumber Inspection Bureau (Grading Rules)

WRI Wire Reinforcing Institute

WWPA Western Wood Products Association (Grading Rules)

W.W. P.A. Woven Wire Products Association

B. Refer to individual sections for other names and abbreviations of trade associations and standards applicable to specific portions of the work. In particular, refer to Divisions 26 for names and abbreviations applicable to mechanical and electrical work.

#### 1.02 SPECIFICATION EXPLANATION

- A. The specifications are divided into divisions and sections for the convenience of writing and using. The titles of these are not intended to imply a particular meaning nor to fully describe the work of each division or section, nor to define the limits of any subcontract.
- B. These specifications are of the abbreviated, or "streamlined" type, and may include incomplete sentences.
- C. Omissions of words or phrases such as "the Contractor shall", "in conformity therewith", "shall be", "as noted on the drawings", "according to the plans", "a", "an", "the", and "all" are intentional.
- D. Omitted words or phrases shall be supplied by inference in the same manner as they are when a "note" occurs on the drawings.

#### 1.03 DEFINITIONS

- A. Certain terms used generally throughout the specifications (and drawings) are hereby defined as follows:
  - Indicated: A cross reference to details, notes or schedules on the drawings, other paragraphs or schedules in the specifications, and similar means of recording requirements in the contract documents. Where terms such as "shown", "noted", "scheduled", and "specified" are used in lieu of "indicated", it is for the purpose of helping the reader accomplish the cross reference, and no limitation of location is intended except as specifically noted.
  - Installer: The person or entity engaged by the Contractor or his Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor for the performance of a particular unit or work at the project site, including installation, erection, application, and similar required operations. It is a general requirement that installers be recognized experts in the work they are

- engaged to perform.
- 3. Furnish: Except as otherwise defined in greater detail, the term "furnish" is used to mean "...supply and delivery to the project site, ready for unpacking, assembly and installation...".
- 4. Provide: Except to the extent further defined, the term "provide" means to furnish and install, complete and ready for the intended use.

# 1.04 DRAWINGS, DIMENSIONS AND MEASUREMENTS

- A. Where on any of the drawings a portion of the work is drawn out and the remainder is indicated in outline, the parts drawn out shall apply also to all other portions of the work.
- B. Wherever a detail is referenced and developed for a specific condition, same or similar detail shall apply to identical or similar conditions elsewhere on project even though not specifically referenced.
- C. Where the word "similar" occurs on the drawings, it shall be interpreted in its general sense and not as meaning identical, and all details shall be worked out in relation to their location and their connection with other parts of the work.
- D. The figured dimensions on the drawings or notes indicating dimensions shall be used instead of measurements of the drawings by scale, and shall be strictly complied with.
- E. No scale measurements shall be used as a dimension to work with except on "full size" drawings not dimensioned.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### REFERENCED SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS

#### PART 1. GENERAL

## 1.01 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. For products or workmanship specified by Referenced Specification or Standard, comply with requirements of the specification or standard, except when more rigid requirements are specified or are required by governing codes.
- B. Except where a specific date is specified, the date of the referenced specification standard is that in effect as of the bid date.
- C. Obtain a copy of all Referenced Specifications and Standards, and maintain at Jobsite during the specific work until Substantial Completion of the Project.

# 1.02 SCHEDULE OF REGULATORY AGENCY REFERENCES

A.	AASHTO	American Association of State Highway and Trans. Officials 444 North Capitol Street, N.W. Washington, DC 20001				
B.	AAC	Anchorage Administrative Code (and Local Amendments) Municipality of Anchorage 4700 Elmore Rd Anchorage, AK 99507				
C.	ADA	Americans with Disabilities Act The Disabilities Rights Section Civil Rights Division P.O. Box 66738 Washington, DC 20035-6738				
D.	ANSI	American National Standards Institute 1430 Broadway New York, NY 1018				
E.	ASA	American Standards Association Now known as ANSI (See above)				
F.	ASTM	American Society for Testing Materials 1916 Race Street Philadelphia, PA 19103				
G.	ATBCB	The U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barrier Compliance Board Suite 1000, 131 F St. NW Washington, DC 20004-1111				
H.	CS	Commercial Standards of the Commodities Division of the Department of Commerce Washington, DC 20006				
I.	FM	Factory Mutual Engineering and Research Corporation P. O. Box 688 Norwood, MA 02062				
J.	F.S.	Federal Specifications of the United States General Services Administration Specifications and Consumer Information Distribution Section (WFSIS) Washington, DC 20407				

K.	IBC	International Building Code published by the International Code Council (ICC) 4051 West Flossmoor Road Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795
L.	IEBC	International Existing Building Code Published by ICC (See IBC above)
M.	ICC/ANSI A11	7.1-2003 Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities Published by ICC (See IBC above)
N.	IECC	International Energy Conservation Code Published by ICC (See IBC above)
Ο.	IFC	International Fire Code Published by ICC (See IBC above)
P.	IFGC	International Fuel Gas Code Published by ICC (See IBC above)
Q.	IMC	International Mechanical Code Published by ICC (See IBC above)
R.	MOA	Municipality of Anchorage MASS Specifications Public Works Dept. 4700 Elmore Rd Anchorage, AK 99507
S.	NBFU	National Bureau of Fire Underwriters 85 John Street New York, NY 10017
T.	NEC	National Electric Code published by the National Fire Protection Association (See NFPA below)
U.	NFPA	National Fire Protection Association Battery March Park Quincy, MA 02269
V.	PS	Product Standards of the Commodities Division of the Department of Commerce Washington, DC 20203
W.	UPC	Uniform Plumbing Code Published by IAPMO 5001 East Philadelphia Street Ontario, CA 91761-2816
X.	UL	Underwriter's Laboratories 333 Kingston Road Northbrook, IL 60062
Y.	State of AK	State of Alaska Amendments Fire and Life Safety Regulations Juneau, AK

# 1.03 TRADE ASSOCIATION REFERENCES

A. See specific specification sections.

# REFERENCED SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS Division 1 Section 01090

PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **ALTERATION PROCEDURES**

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Part of alteration work may expose portions of the building to the elements. During such periods Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to protect building elements to remain. Any damage due to negligence shall be repaired at no cost to the Owner.
- B. In addition to Cutting and Patching (Section 01045) and cut, move, or remove items as necessary to provide access or to allow alterations and new work to proceed. Include such items as:
  - 1. Repair or removal of hazardous or unsanitary conditions.
  - 2. Removal of abandoned items and items serving no useful purpose such as abandoned piping, conduit, and wiring.
  - 3. Removal of unsuitable or extraneous materials not marked for salvage, such as abandoned furnishings and equipment, and debris such as rotted wood, rusted metals, and deteriorated concrete.
  - 4. Cleaning of surfaces, and removal of surface finishes as needed to install new work and finishes.

#### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 00700 and 00800 General and Supplementary General Conditions.
- B. Section 01045 Cutting and Patching.
- C. Section 01300 Submittals.
- D. Section 01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls.

## 1.03 COORDINATION

- A. Coordinate scheduling, submittals, and Work of the various Sections of Specifications to assure efficient and orderly sequence of installation of interdependent construction elements, with provisions for accommodating items installed later.
- B. Verify that utility requirement characteristics of operating equipment are compatible with building utilities. Coordinate work of various Sections having interdependent responsibilities for installing, connecting to, and placing in service, such equipment.
- C. Coordinate space requirements and installation of mechanical and electrical work which are indicated diagrammatically on Drawings. Follow routing shown for pipes, ducts, and conduit, as closely as practicable; place runs parallel with line of building. Utilize spaces efficiently to maximize accessibility for other installations, for maintenance, and for repairs.
- D. In finished areas, except as otherwise indicated, conceal pipes, ducts, and wiring within the construction. Coordinate locations of fixtures and outlets with finish elements.
- E. Coordinate completion and cleanup of Work of separate sections in preparation for Substantial Completion.
- F. After Owner occupancy of premises, coordinate access to site for correction of defective Work and Work not in accordance with Contract Documents, to minimize disruption of

Owner's activities.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 ALTERATION PROJECT PROCEDURES

- A. Materials: As specified in Product Sections; match existing Products and work for patching and extending work.
- B. Close openings in exterior surfaces to protect existing work from weather and extremes of temperature and humidity.
- C. Remove, cut, and patch Work in a manner to minimize damage and to provide a means of restoring Products and finishes to specified condition.
- D. Refinish visible existing surfaces to remain in renovated rooms and spaces, to specified condition for each material, with a neat transition to adjacent finishes.
- E. Where new Work abuts or aligns with existing, perform a smooth and even transition. Patched Work to match existing adjacent Work in texture and appearance.
- F. When finished surfaces are cut so that a smooth transition with new work is not possible, terminate existing surface along a straight line at a natural line of division and make recommendation for Project Manager review and approval.
- G. Where a change of plane of 1/8 inch or more occurs, submit recommendation for acceptable transition for Project Manager review and approval.
- H. Patch or replace portions of existing surfaces which are damaged, lifted, discolored, or showing other imperfections.
- I. Finish surfaces as specified in individual Product Sections.

# PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### PROJECT MEETINGS

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

## A. Work Included:

- 1. In general, project meetings will be held weekly at the job site in accordance with a mutually acceptable schedule. The Project Manager will conduct project meetings throughout the construction period.
- 2. The purpose of the project meetings is to enable orderly review of progress during construction and to provide for systematic discussion and analysis of problems that might arise between the Owner, Project Architect, Project Manager and/or Contractor relative to execution of the work.

## B. Related Work described elsewhere:

- 1. The Contractor's relations with his subcontractors and material suppliers, and discussions relative thereto, are the Contractor's responsibility as described in the General Conditions and are not part of project meetings content.
- 2. Section 01400 describes the requirements for quality control meetings that will be held in addition to the requirements of this section.

#### 1.02 AUTHORITY DESIGNATION

A. Persons designated by the Contractor to attend and participate in project meetings shall have all required authority to commit the Contractor to solutions as agreed upon in the project meetings.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

# A. Agenda Items:

To the maximum extent possible, advise the Project Manager forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the project meeting regarding all agenda items to be discussed, including tours in advance of the meeting.

#### 1.04 AGENDA

#### A. Preconstruction Meeting

- 1. The Project Manager will conduct this meeting within fifteen (15) days after date of Notice to Proceed.
- Location:

Anchorage School District Capital Planning & Construction 1301 Labar Street Anchorage, Alaska 99515 (907) 348-5190

#### Attendance:

- a. ASD Construction Supervisor
- b. ASD Project Manager
- c. Architect and his Professional Consultants
- d. Contractor's Project Manager and Superintendent

- e. Major Subcontractors, as appropriate
- f. Major Suppliers, as appropriate
- g. Others as appropriate
- 4. Agenda items will include, but not be limited to:
  - a. Designation of responsible personnel
  - b. Distribution (by Contractor) and discussion of list of major Subcontractors and Suppliers with addresses and telephone numbers
  - c. Project coordination
  - d. Procedures and processing of:
    - (1) Field decisions
    - (2) Submittals
    - (3) Proposal requests
    - (4) RFI's Change Orders
    - (5) Applications for Payment
    - (6) Schedules and Reports
  - e. Discussion of initial Project Schedule
  - f. Critical work sequencing
  - g. Major equipment deliveries and priorities
  - h. Adequacy of Contract Documents distribution
  - i. Procedures for maintaining Record Documents
  - j. Use of premises:
    - (1) Office, work, and storage area
    - (2) Owner's requirements
  - k. Construction facilities, controls, and construction aids
  - I. Temporary utilities
  - m. Safety and first-aid procedures
  - n. Security procedures
  - o. Housekeeping procedures

## B. Progress Meetings:

- 1. The Project Manager will conduct weekly meetings as required, at the Project Site to coordinate the work, answer questions, and resolve problems.
- 2. Meeting Agenda will include but not be limited to:
  - a. Attendees:
    - List of attendees and company they represent
  - b. Minutes Review:
    - Corrections, additions, and/or deletions to previous minutes
  - c. Outstanding Action Items:
    - Review of items not resolved from previous meeting
  - d. Submittal status
  - e. Request for Information status
  - f. Request for Proposal Status
  - g. Schedule Review:
  - h. Project job concerns
  - i. Next meeting
  - j. Summarize and Review of all Action Items:
- 3. All items to be discussed shall be addressed at the time scheduled on the agenda. All attendees shall familiarize themselves with the agenda and be prepared in advance with their items for discussion.

# C. Special Meetings:

The Project Manager may call special meetings at the project site or the office of the Project Manager to coordinate the work, answer questions, and resolve problems.

#### 1.05 MINUTES

- A. The Project Manager will compile minutes of each project meeting and will distribute copies to all interested parties within seven (7) calendar days after the meeting. Items in the minutes shall be numbered consecutively and grouped under divisions and sections. Each item shall be carried forward until resolved.
- B. The minutes compiled by the Project Manager will be the official record minutes and all clarifications and/or corrections shall be transmitted in writing to the Project Manager within fourteen (14) days of date of receipt of the minutes or unless noted during the next scheduled meeting under the appropriate agenda item. Transmitted corrections shall be legibly submitted on company letterhead.
- C. At least one (1) bound volume of all minutes shall be maintained by the Contractor in the job office until project completion.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SUBMITTALS**

## PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Procedures
- B. Construction Progress Schedules
- C. Schedule of Values
- D. Shop Drawings
- E. Product Data
- F. Samples
- G. Manufacturer's Instructions
- H. Manufacturer's Certificates

#### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 01010 Summary of Work
- B. Section 01311 Project Schedule
- C. Section 01340 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
- D. Section 01370 Schedule of Values
- E. Section 01400 Quality Control
- F. Section 01630 Substitution and Product Options
- G. Section 01700 Project Close-Out
- H. Section 01710 Cleaning
- I. Section 01720 Project Record Documents
- J. Section 01730 Operating and Maintenance Data
- K. Section 01750 Close-Out Forms

## 1.03 PROCEDURES

A. Deliver submittal documents to the Project Manager using the ASD Procore Construction Management Program. Number each submittal with the section number, dash, numerical order of the submittal, example 03300-1. Add an alpha to each resubmittal, example, 03300-1A. Deliver samples to the Project Manager or Architect as directed to the address listed on the cover of the project manual.

- B. Transmit each item with company submittal. Identify Project, Contractor, subcontractor, major supplier; identify pertinent Drawing sheet and detail number and specification section number, as appropriate. Identify deviations from Contract Documents. Provide space for Contractor and Architect/Engineer review stamps.
- C. Submit initial progress schedules and schedule of values in duplicate prior to issuance of Notice to Proceed. After review by the Architect/Engineer, revise and resubmit as required. Submit revised schedules with each application for payment, reflecting changes since previous submittal.
- D. Comply with progress schedule for submittals related to work progress. Coordinate submittal of related items.
- E. Distribute copies of reviewed submittals to concerned persons. Instruct recipients to promptly report any inability to comply with provisions. Review with subconsultants/suppliers any inability to meet requirements of project. Find solutions with subconsultants/suppliers making conformance with documents possible. Review solutions with owner and architect for acceptance prior to proceeding with work.

## 1.04 CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES

A. Submit Project Schedule as called for in Section 01311, Project Schedule.

#### 1.05 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

A. Submit Schedule of Values as called for in Section 01370, Schedule of Values.

## 1.06 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA & SAMPLES

A. Submit in the form as called for in Section 01340.

#### 1.07 MANUFACTURERS' INSTRUCTIONS

A. When required in individual specification section, submit manufacturers printed instructions for delivery, storage, assembly, installation adjusting and finishing, in quantities specified for product data.

# 1.08 FIELD SAMPLES

- A. Provide field samples of finishes at project site as required by individual specification sections. Install sample complete and finishes. Acceptable samples in place may be retained in completed work.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

## PROJECT SCHEDULE

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. The work under this Section consists of Project Schedule ("Schedule") requirements including the preparation of a Schedule and Schedule Revisions. The Schedule shall be developed by the Contractor and shall be in accordance with the requirements of this Section 01311. No direct payment will be made to the Contractor for performing and complying with the requirements of this Section 01311.
- B. The Schedule will be prepared by the Contractor for this Project and made available to the Owner. It is intended that the Schedule will reflect the Contractor's actual construction plan. The existence of schedules, networks, vector charts or any other charts or services, shall in no way relieve the Contractor of the responsibility of the Contract Document including, but not limited to the responsibility of completing the Work within the contract time and the responsibility of planning, scheduling and coordinating the Work.
- C. The Schedule shall be in the form of a bar chart or other format approved by the project manager.

#### 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. Associated General Contractors of America, "Construction Planning & Scheduling," Copyright January 1994 (AGC's Manual), also referred to as AGC Publication No. 1107.1. The general principles stated in the AGC's Manual shall be used in preparing and updating the Project Schedule, except that the requirements of this Section shall govern.
- B. Related Requirements:
  - 1. Section 00200 Project Schedule Milestones Dates
  - 2. Section 00700 and 00800 General Conditions and Supplementary General Conditions
  - 3. Section 01370 Schedule of Values

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 PROJECT SCHEDULE

- A. Within fourteen (14) calendar days following the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall submit for the Project Manager's review, comment and acceptance, a Project Schedule ("Schedule"). The Schedule shall show the activities of work in sufficient detail to demonstrate that the Contractor has a reasonable and workable plan to complete the Project in accordance with the Project Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall submit two (2) prints of the Schedule, which shall be neatly organized and time scaled from left to right on 11 in. x 17 in. sheets, or 24 in. x 36 in. sheets, at the Contractor's discretion.
- B. Within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the Schedule, the Project Manager shall meet face to face with the Contractor to review the plan and to determine if there are any concerns regarding the Contractor's plan to execute the work. If a resubmittal of the Schedule is required by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall revise and resubmit the Schedule incorporating the Project Manager's comments within seven (7) calendar days after this review meeting. Progress payments will be withheld until the Contractor submits

an approvable Schedule.

C. Revisions to the Schedule shall be done in accordance with paragraph 2.02.

#### 2.02 PROJECT SCHEDULE REVISIONS

A. Should the Contractor, after acceptance of the Schedule, desire to change his plan of construction, he shall submit his proposed revisions to the Project Manager, along with a written rationale for the revisions. Only the requested changes accepted by the Project Manager will be incorporated into the Schedule in the next reporting period.

## 2.03 TIME IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR CONTRACT MODIFICATIONS, CHANGES OR DELAYS

- A. If the Contractor believes that a change under Article 12 Paragraph 12.1 causes an increase or decrease in the Contractor's time for completing the Work, he shall complete a Time Impact Analysis that demonstrates how the Contractor proposes to incorporate or has incorporated the Change into the Schedule and the time impact, if any, on the Schedule Milestone Dates set forth under Section 00200 of the Contract Documents.
  - The Time Impact Analysis shall demonstrate the time impact based upon the date the Change in Work is directed by the Project Manager; the status of construction at that point in time; and the event time computations of all affected activities. The event times used in the Time Impact Analysis shall be those set forth in the update of the Schedule in effect at the time the Change in Work is directed by the Project Manager.
  - 2. The Time Impact Analysis is based on an "as-planned" to "as-built" comparison of the event times. In developing an as-built schedule of performance, the Contractor shall utilize actual daily performance data from Schedule Updates and the Contractor's daily construction reports to graphically depict the sequence and manner in which the Contractor actually performed the Work under the Contract.
- B. Activity delays shall not automatically mean that an extension of the Contract Time is warranted or due the Contractor. It is possible that a modification, change or delay will not affect projected or as-built critical activities or cause non-critical activities to become critical. A modification, change or delay may result in only absorbing a portion of the available total float that may exist within an activity chain of the Schedule, thereby not causing any effect on the Contract Time.
- C. Each Time Impact Analysis shall be submitted as follows:
  - 1. Within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of a written order designated or indicated to be a change in accordance with Article 12, Changes in the Work;
  - 2. Within fourteen (14) calendar days after the furnishing of written notice by the Contractor:
  - 3. Within fourteen (14) calendar days from the commencement of a delay related to unforeseeable conditions; provided the Contractor complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents regarding said condition.
- D. In cases where the Contractor does not submit a written request for extension of time and Time Impact Analysis within the time stated above in Paragraph 2.03, it is mutually agreed that the Change in the Work does not require an extension of the Contract Time.
- E. Acceptance or rejection of each Time Impact Analysis which requests an extension of the Contract Time shall be made by the Project Manager within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of each Time Impact Analysis, unless subsequent meetings and negotiations

are necessary. Upon acceptance, the Time Impact Analysis shall be incorporated into the Schedule.

- F. Time Impact Analysis related to requests for an extension of the Contract Time and/or Change Order work shall be incorporated into and attached to the applicable Change Order(s).
- G. No revision to any Schedule Milestone Date or contractually mandated schedule provisions will be permitted without authorization from the Project Manager.

#### 2.04 COMPLIANCE WITH THE SCHEDULE

- A. The Contractor shall furnish sufficient labor and equipment resources, offices, and facilities, and shall work such hours, including night shift and overtime operations as necessary, to ensure the prosecution of the Work in accordance with the Schedule. If the Contractor falls behind in meeting the Schedule, the Contractor shall take such steps as may be necessary to improve its progress. If the Contractor fails to take such steps, the Project Manager may require the Contractor to increase the hours of work, the number of shifts, overtime operations, the number of workers and/or the amount of construction plant and equipment without additional cost to the Owner. The provisions of this subsection shall not be construed as prohibiting work on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, if the Contractor so elects and gives 24 hours' notice to the Project Manager.
- B. Failure of the Contractor to comply with the requirements of this Subsection 2.04 shall be a basis for determination by the Project Manager that the Contractor is not prosecuting the Work with such diligence as will ensure completion of the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Upon such determination, the Project Manager may terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the Work or any separable part thereof, in accordance with the clause entitled "Termination of Contract" of the Contract Documents, or may take such other actions as he may deem appropriate.

PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

#### 1.02 DESCRIPTION

- A. Prepare and submit to the Project Manager with the Construction Schedule, a separate schedule listing dates for submission and of review for shop drawings, product data, and samples, refer to General Conditions 4.12.13.1. Include installing Subcontractors name responsible for that portion of the Work.
- B. Submit Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples as may be required, whether mentioned specifically in Contract Documents or not.
- C. Individual submittals shall not include material covering more than one section of the specifications.
- D. Products fabricated and/or installed prior to approval of submittals are subject to demand for removal and replacement with approved products by the Contractor at no additional cost to the Owner.
- E. Shop drawing submittal cannot be used for product substitution submittal. See Section 01630 for required procedure.

#### 1.03 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 01311: Project Schedule
- B. Section 01630: Substitution and Product Option
- C. Section 01720: Project Record Documents

# 1.04 SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. Prepare original drawings (by Contractor, subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor), which illustrate some portion of the work; showing fabrication, layout, setting or erection details.
- B. Prepare shop drawings for this particular project. Drawings prepared for other projects and revised for this project will be rejected.
- C. When necessary, base shop and setting drawings upon actual measurements taken at site and other job conditions. Show any variations and revisions to Contract Documents that are necessary for proper installation of work. Fabrication or installation of work shall not be started until shop or setting drawings have been reviewed and returned by Architect, with his stamp and comments.
- D. Identify details by reference to sheet and detail, schedule or room numbers shown on Contract Drawings.

E. Minimum sheet size: 8 ½" x 11". Note: Submit fill-size sheet submittals. Use of 8 ½ " x 11" format subject to readability and approval of architect.

#### 1.05 PRODUCT DATA

- A. Manufacturer's standard schematic drawings:
  - 1. Modify drawings to delete information which is not applicable to project.
  - 2. Supplement standard information to provide additional information applicable to project.
- B. Manufacturer's catalog sheets, brochures, diagrams, schedules, performance charts, illustrations, and other standard descriptive data.
  - 1. Clearly mark each copy and identify pertinent materials, products or models.
  - 2. Show dimensions and clearances required.
  - 3. Show performance characteristics and capacities.
  - 4. Show wiring diagrams and controls.
  - 5. Catalog cuts and descriptive data sheets shall include a complete listing of repair and replacement parts for all equipment and the name and address of a source of supply for parts and service.

#### 1.06 SAMPLES

- A. Physical examples to illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and to establish standards by which completed work is judged.
- B. Office Samples: Of sufficient size and quantity to clearly illustrate:
  - 1. Functional characteristics of product or material, with integrally related parts and attachment devices.
  - 2. Full range of color, texture and pattern.
- C. Field Samples and Mock-Ups:
  - 1. Erect at project site at location acceptable to Project Manager.
  - Construct each sample or mock-up complete, including work of all trades required in finished work.
  - 3. After review, samples may be used in construction of Project.

### 1.07 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Make all submittals far enough in advance of scheduled dates for installation to provide all required time for review, for securing necessary approvals, for possible revision and resubmittals and for placing orders and securing delivery. Submission of all shop drawings shall be through the General Contractor.
- B. The contractor shall allow at least 14 days for review of original submittals or resubmittals except as follows:
  - Coordination shop drawings 21 days
  - 2. Division 26
    - a. Special Systems shop drawings 21 days
- C. Submit one (1) reproducible unfolded transparency print of shop drawing. Upon Architects approval, Contractor shall provide five (5) opaque prints for owners use. Transparency will be returned to Contractor for printing and distribution as needed. Additional copies will be returned without review or mark-ups.

- D. Submit four (4) each of samples.
- E. Unless otherwise specifically permitted by the Project Manager, make all submittals in groups containing all associated items. Partial submittals may be rejected.
- F. Accompany submittals with transmittal letter, in duplicate, containing:
  - 1. Date
  - 2. Project Title and number
  - 3. Contractor's name and address
  - 4. The number of each shop drawing, product data and sample submitted
- G. Submittals shall include:
  - Date and revision dates
  - 2. Project title and number
  - 3. The name of:
    - a. Architect
    - b. Contractor
    - c. Subcontractor
    - d. Supplier
    - e. Manufacturer
    - f. Separate detailer when pertinent
  - 4. Identification of product or material
  - 5. Relation to adjacent structure or materials
  - 6. Field dimensions, clearly identified as such
  - 7. Specification section number
  - 8. Applicable standards, such as ASTM number or Federal Specifications.
  - 9. A blank space, for Architect's review stamp

#### 1.08 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Review shop drawings, product data, and samples prior to submission.
- B. Include noted and required corrections and indicate by stamp and signature that submittal is acceptable to Contractor. Submittals without stamp and signature will be rejected.
- C. Verify:
  - 1. Field measurements.
  - Field Construction criteria.
  - 3. Conformance with specifications.
- Coordinate each submittal with requirements of work and Contract Documents.
- E. Contractor's responsibility for errors and omissions in submittals is not relieved by Architect's review and approval.
- F. Contractor's deviations in submittal requirements shall not relieve Contractor from completing Contract requirements.
- G. The submittal documents shall be transmitted using the ASD Procore Construction Management Program. Number the submittals with the CSI Section then a dash then the numerical order (01650-1). Resubmittals shall have the same number with an alpha at the end. (01650-1A).

H. Contractor shall update the Procore Submittal Log on a weekly basis until Submittal Process is complete.

#### 1.09 RESUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Revise initial drawings as required and resubmit as specified for initial submittal.
- B. Indicate on drawings any changes which have been made other than those requested by the Architect.
- C. Project data and samples: Submit new data and samples as required for initial submittal.

## 1.10 ARCHITECT'S DUTIES

- A. Review submittals with a turn-around time for review of original or resubmittal of no more than fourteen (14) calendar days, except as indicated in paragraph 1.07 B above.
- B. The review will be for conformance to the design concept and compliance with information given in the Contract Document. The Architect will make notations directly on the reproducible.
- C. The review is intended to foresee unacceptable products to avoid the possibility of their rejection at the site. The review shall not be construed as:
  - 1. Permitting a departure from the Contract Documents, unless specifically so noted.
  - 2. Relieving the Contractor of the responsibility for errors or omissions.
  - 3. Acceptance of an assembly in which an approved item is a part.
  - 4. Approval of variations from previously approved items.
  - 5. Approval of dimensions.
- D. The Architect will review all samples. Such review will be for appearance only. Compliance with all other requirements is the responsibility of the Contractor.
- E. Affix stamps and initials or signatures certifying the review of submittal.
- F. Where the Contract Documents require the design of the structural, mechanical, or electrical systems or components of systems by a supplier, such systems or components shall be designed by a registered professional engineer and all calculations submitted to the Architect for his records, prior to starting fabrication or installation of the work. The Architect will not be responsible for the designs of such other Professionals.

#### 1.11 VARIATIONS FROM CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- A. See Section 01630 for procedure.
- B. If the Contractor fails to mention variations from the Contract Documents, he will not be relieved of the responsibility for executing the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

## 1.12 SUBMITTALS FOR COLOR SELECTION

A. The Contractor shall take particular note that color selections cannot be made for the project until such time as all items requiring color selection have been submitted. After such submittal has been made, the Architect with Owner's concurrence will within fourteen (14) days, make a complete color selection for the entire project.

B. It will be the contractor's responsibility to review the Contract Documents completely to determine items requiring color selection, obtain color samples from the manufacturer and submit to the Architect at the earliest possible date.

#### 1.13 DISTRIBUTION OF SUBMITTALS AFTER REVIEW

- A. Contractor shall distribute copies of shop drawings and product data which carry Architect's stamp, to:
  - 1. Contractor's file (required)
  - 2. Job-site file (required)
  - 3. Record Documents file (required)
  - 4. Other prime Contractors (as required)
  - 5. Subcontractors (as required)
  - 6. Supplier (as required)
  - 7. Fabricator (as required)
  - 8. Others (as required)
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### AIRBORNE CONTAMINANT CONTROL

#### PART 1. GENERAL

## 1.01 SUMMARY:

- A. Related sections:
  - 1. Section 02050 Demolition
- B. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building and site that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminants, including asbestos and lead, are also present in settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0, 1 and 2 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

# 1.02 DEFINITIONS:

- A. "Airborne Contaminants" are those contaminants listed in 29 CFR 1926.55 and 8 AAC 61.1100 that have the potential to become airborne due to various work activities being performed by the Contractor. Additionally, airborne contaminants include those fumes and odors that may be objectionable to personnel in Occupied Areas of the facility even though they are not listed in the reference regulations. Airborne contaminants may be broadly categorized as Pre-Existing or Activity Generated. Contaminant producing activities include, but are not limited to:
  - 1. Demolition, removal, installation and disposal of walls, floors, ceilings, steel, and other architectural or structural materials.
  - 2. Disturbance or removal of existing settled and concealed dusts.
  - 3. Demolition, relocation, installation and disposal of plumbing, mechanical and electrical systems and equipment.
  - 4. Finish operations such as sanding, preparation, painting, and application of special surface coatings.
  - 5. Any construction activity, which can generate aerosols, dust, smoke, or fumes.
  - 6. Temporary heat sources.
  - 7. Other on-site work operations not described above.
- B. "Pre-Existing Contaminants" are those contaminants that are present in the facility prior to the start of any work. These contaminants, including asbestos and lead, are also present in settled and concealed dust throughout the building in areas not subject to routine cleaning, including the roof and inside and on top of architectural, mechanical, electrical and structural elements. The dust generally contains several common components including, but not limited to asbestos, cellulose, cotton, fiberglass, lead, silica and other Particulates Not Otherwise Regulated. Representative dusts throughout the facility have been examined and previously sampled by an EPA Certified Building Inspector and determined not to be "asbestos debris" from adjacent "Asbestos-Containing Building Materials" (ACBM). Based on similar sampling from similar buildings, the inspector also determined that the dusts do not contain more than one percent (1%) asbestos by weight, and therefore are not an asbestos-containing material (ACM). Reference 40 CFR 763.83 for asbestos, and 29 CFR 1926.1153 for silica. Refer to Section 02 26 00, Hazardous Materials Assessment. Dust and debris related to adjacent damaged asbestos containing materials are addressed in Section 02 82 33, Removal and Disposal of Asbestos Containing Materials.

- C. "Activity Generated Contaminants" are those contaminants generated by the various demolition or construction related activities of the Contractor. Examples of typical Activity Generated Contaminants include wood dust (cellulose), cement dust (silica), gypsum dust (particulates not otherwise regulated), paint fumes, and welding fumes. A complete list of regulated air contaminants is available in 29 CFR 1926.55 and 8 AAC 61.1100.
- D. "Work Areas": Areas of demolition, renovation, construction, adjacent staging and storage areas, and passage areas for workers, supplies, and waste. This may include but is not limited to attic spaces, spaces above ceilings, crawl spaces, mechanical and electrical spaces, confined spaces and other spaces not normally accessed or occupied.
- E. "Occupied Areas": Areas as determined by Owner's Representative and as shown on contract drawings. Typically these include areas adjacent to Work Areas or containment areas, either occupied or used for passage, as well as areas connected to construction area by mechanical system air intake, exhaust, and ductwork. Contaminant control procedures may be relaxed during periods when school is not in session as allowed by the Contractor's approved work plan.
- F. "Critical Clean Areas": Areas inside or outside the Work Area with equipment or occupants that cannot tolerate airborne contamination, and are to be maintained under positive pressure by High-Efficiency, Particulate, Air (HEPA) filtered equipment relative to the surrounding air. These areas will be described or shown in contract documents or drawings.
- G. "Contractor" is defined to include all trades and all subcontractors performing work on the work site.
- H. "Negative Initial Determination" is a determination made either through air monitoring or other objective data that indicates worker exposure to regulated airborne contaminants are below or expected to be below the regulated limits.

## 1.03 AIRBORNE CONTAMINANT CONTROL

- A. There is no requirement to remove Pre-Existing Contaminants from the facility. The Contractor may remove Pre-Existing Contaminants from their work areas if they determine that to be a more cost effective means of completing the work.
- B. The Contractors shall establish and maintain control over the generation and containment of all potential airborne contaminants so that workers, facilities, students, staff, educational programs, equipment, and operations are not adversely affected, including adverse effects on air monitoring. Construction activities that disturb existing materials or create airborne contaminants must be conducted in Work Areas specifically constructed, ventilated, and/or equipped to prevent the movement of contaminants into Occupied or Critical Clean Areas.
- C. The Contractor shall establish and maintain control over Activity Generated Contaminants within the Work Area to prevent abnormally high levels of airborne contaminants from settling on architectural, mechanical, electrical or structural components within the work areas, or interference with monitoring conducted for other work. The Contractor shall be required to clean all surfaces within a work area where abnormally high levels of Activity Generated Contaminants are deposited.
- D. The Contractor shall ensure that all workers are aware of the Occupied and Critical Clean Areas, the potential air contaminants present and the means and methods established in the work plan to control those contaminants.
- E. The Contractor shall ensure workers have the proper protective equipment needed for the job being performed.

#### 1.04 TRAINING

A. The Contractor shall ensure that all workers/trades performing work on the project site are trained in accordance with OSHA standards for hazard communication (29 CFR 1910.1200) and proper protective equipment (29 CFR 1926), as well as engineering controls and work methods required to prevent exposure to regulated air contaminants that might be generated or encountered as a result of their work, including 29 CFR 1926.1153.

#### 1.05 RESPONSIBILITY:

## A. Owner's Responsibilities

1. The Owner shall identify in contract documents Occupied Areas and Critical Clean Areas prior to allowing the Contractor to begin work. The Contractor shall be notified of all changes to these areas as work progresses.

# B. Contractor's Responsibilities:

- 1. Preparing proposed work plans and procedures for control of airborne contaminants during demolition and construction.
- 2. Identifying and implementing specific means and methods of achieving and maintaining control of airborne contaminants.
- 3. Controlling the generation and spread of airborne contaminants from the Contractor's Work Areas.
- 4. Cleaning and decontaminating all areas contaminated as the result of their operation. The Owner has the right to review and approve of any and all clean-up and decontamination procedures, chemicals, and processes.
- 5. Notifying Owner's Representative a minimum of 48 hours prior to starting construction activities that might be expected to produce excess levels of airborne contaminants in Work Area so that precautions may be taken.

## 1.06 SUBMITTALS:

- A. Submittals Required: Submit the following documentation to the Owner for approval. The submittal shall be coordinated with all the Contractor's subcontractors and trades and be submitted as one submittal for all work covered by this section. WORK SHALL NOT PROCEED UNTIL THE SUBMITTAL PACKAGE IS APPROVED, AND THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING HAS BEEN HELD.
  - 1. Shop Drawings: Make all shop drawings accurately and to a scale sufficiently large to show all pertinent features of the work. Shop Drawings shall show:
    - a. Boundaries of each Work Area, Occupied Areas and Critical Clean Areas.
    - b. Location of barriers, negative pressure areas, positive pressure areas, and exhaust fan units (if required).
    - c. Locations of windows, louvers, ducts and other penetrations into Occupied Areas and/or Critical Clean Areas that need to be protected from airborne contamination.
    - d. Disposal Routes.
    - e. Locations of contaminant producing operations like painting or sanding which could be moved away from Occupied Areas.
  - 2. Work Plan: The Work Plan shall be prepared for this specific job in the form of checklists and shall include:
    - a. Work area set-up and protection procedures during occupied times.
    - b. Work area set-up and protection procedures during periods of limited occupancy (vacation and holidays).
    - c. Work procedures to minimize generation of airborne contaminants, including a written exposure control plan.
    - d. Worker protection procedures.
    - e. Daily cleanup procedures and activities.

- f. Procedures to follow if air contaminants enter Occupied or Critical Clean Areas.
- g. Exposure assessment procedures if a "negative initial determination" has not been completed (note that negative initial determinations are not allowed related to silica exposure). A record of "negative initial determinations" shall be maintained by the Contractor and be available on the job site for review by the Owner or regulatory agencies.
- 3. Safety Data Sheets (SDSs): The Contractor shall maintain on the job site, at a location approved by the owner, SDSs for each encapsulant, surfactant, solvent, detergent, and other material proposed to be used.
- B. Monitoring Results: The Contractor shall submit copies of all air monitoring and testing results to the Owner within 24 hours of receipt of results.

# 1.07 WORKER PROTECTION:

- A. The Contractor shall review the SDS's for the substances that will be used, data provided by these specifications, proposed means and methods, manufacturers data and other available data to determine the potential for worker exposure.
- B. Conduct air monitoring of worker exposures as necessary to show that workers are not being exposed above the permissible exposure limits established by 29 CFR 1926 and 8 AAC 61.1100 (negative initial determination). Not all contaminants or substances will require exposure monitoring. All sampling by the Contractor shall be at their own cost.
- C. In lieu of worker exposure monitoring, the Contractor may rely on objective data from recognized trade groups, manufacturer or previous exposure monitoring data that establish that worker exposure above the permissible exposure limits is not probable under conditions "closely resembling" the processes, types of materials, control methods, work practices and environmental conditions in the current job.

# PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 WORK PRACTICES:

- A. General: All construction/demolition work shall be isolated, either by enclosures, and/or work practices and equipment to prevent worker exposures above the permissible exposure limit(s), and prevent the migration of contaminants (dust, fumes, smoke, etc.) into Occupied Areas and Critical Clean Areas of the facility. Exposures to occupants shall be maintained at least 10 times lower than the permissible exposure limit(s) for airborne contaminants. Conduct disturbance of concrete, brick, stone, mortar, etc. in accordance with 29 CFR 1926.1153 related to crystalline silica. If the Contractor's work practices are not effective in controlling airborne contaminants, as evidenced by dust, fumes, smoke, odors, etc. in Occupied or Critical Clean Areas, the Contractor shall provide a sealed barrier at the perimeter of the work area and exhaust the work area to maintain a negative pressure and/or provide a filtered positive pressure to Critical Clean and Occupied areas to keep airborne contaminants out. Maintain a positive pressure of 0.05 inches of water column relative to the air outside the Critical Clean Areas, with a minimum 100 feet per minute velocity through cracks, openings, etc.
- B. Direct exhaust from fume or smoke producing equipment away from building air intakes, windows and other penetrations into Occupied and Critical Clean Areas.
- C. The Contractor shall provide "walk-off" mats, at all connections between Work Areas and Occupied Areas, vacuumed or changed daily when there is traffic between the Work Area and the Occupied Areas.

- D. Enclosures, where used, shall be dust tight and withstand air pressure.
- E. Prohibited Materials: The use or application of the following materials is prohibited:
  - 1. All cleaners and aerosol products not submitted and approved by the Owner.
  - 2. All flammable or chlorinated hydrocarbon solvents, unless approved by the Owner.
- F. Any dust or debris tracked outside of Work Areas into Occupied Areas shall be cleaned up immediately. Contractor shall have the necessary manpower and equipment (dust and wet mops, HEPA vacuums, buckets and clean wiping rags) to keep adjacent Occupied Areas clean at all times.
- G. Dry Sweeping is prohibited. All vacuums used for cleaning shall be equipped with HEPA filters.
- H. Traffic between Work Areas and Occupied Areas shall be kept to a minimum. Keep doors between such areas closed at all times. Transport refuse through Occupied Areas in covered containers.
- I. Notify the Owner's Representative immediately of any release of airborne contaminants into Occupied Areas.

#### 3.02 ENFORCEMENT:

- A. The Contractor shall periodically inspect Occupied Areas at the perimeter of the work area and Critical Clean Areas to verify that airborne contaminants have not spread into those areas.
- B. Failure to properly maintain airborne contaminant control in Work Areas, Occupied or Critical Clean Areas will result in issuance of a written warning. If the problem is not corrected immediately, the Owner will have cause to stop work.
- C. Failure of the Contractor to correct deficiencies in controlling airborne contaminants will result in corrective action taken by the Owner and deduction of all costs from the Contract.

#### 3.03 WORK STOPPAGE:

- A. The Contractor shall stop work and notify the Owner whenever his work has caused visible dust, smoke, fumes or objectionable odors in Occupied or Critical Clean Areas.
- B. When such work stoppage occurs, the area shall be restored to its original condition by the Contractor at no expense to the Owner. The Contractor is responsible for removing dust, fumes and debris that were generated as a result of his work.

#### 3.04 WORK COMPLETION:

- A. Provide thorough cleaning of finished surfaces that become exposed to dust or other airborne contaminants. Cleaning of Pre-Existing contaminants is not required.
- B. Removal of construction barriers and airborne contaminant control equipment shall be performed in a manner to minimize disturbance of airborne contaminants into occupied spaces. HEPA vacuum and clean all finished surfaces free of dust after the removal of barriers and equipment.

#### SCHEDULE OF VALUES

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

#### 1.02 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

A. Procedures for preparation and submittal of Schedule of Values.

#### 1.03 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 00700 General Conditions and Section 00800 Supplemental Conditions of the Construction Contract.
- B. Section 01311 Project Schedule.

#### 1.04 FORMAT

A. Schedule of Values shall be submitted on ASD Form 100B.

#### 1.05 CONTENT

- A. List installed value of each major item of work and each subcontracted item of work as a separate line item to serve as a basis for computing values for progress payments. Round off values to nearest dollar.
- B. For each major subcontract, list products and operations of that subcontract as separate line items.
- C. Include work allowances within line item of work.
- D. Coordinate listings with progress schedule.
- E. Component listings shall each include a directly proportional amount of Contractor's overhead and profit.
- F. For items on which payments will be requested for stored products, list the cost of stored products.
- G. The sum of values listed shall equal total contract sum.
- H. In addition to the above, values shall be listed for the following close out items.
  - 1. As-builts.
  - 2. O & M Manuals.
  - Warranties.
  - 4. Landscape Maintenance Warranty.
  - 5. Owner Training.
  - 6. Demobilization (If mobilization is itemized).
  - 7. Project close-out must retain a minimum of \$25,000.00.

## 1.06 SUBMITTAL

A. Transmit under transmittal letter. Identify project by title and contract number.

# 1.07 SUBSTANTIATING DATA

- A. When the Project Manager requires substantiating information, submit data justifying line item amounts in question.
- B. Provide one copy of data with cover letter for each copy of application. Show application number, date and line item by number and description.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### CONSTRUCTION PHOTOGRAPHS

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Construction Photographs.
- B. Submittals.

# 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 01720 - Project Record Documents

## 1.03 PHOTOGRAPHY

- A. Provide photographs of construction throughout progress of work.
- B. Take photographs prior to covering completed work.
- C. Take photographs at beginning and completion of elements of construction.
  - 1. Asbestos Abatement process indicating the phases of abatement including:
    - a. Existing Conditions
    - b. Preparation Prior to Start of Work
    - c. Work in Progress
    - d. Completed Work
    - e. Equipment used for Abatement Processes

### 2. Roof demolition

- a. Repairs
- b. Documentation of interim building protection measures
- c. Work in Progress
- d. Completed work
- e. Include roof designation and locations
- 3. Air infiltration and/or vapor barrier installation
- 4. Insulation installation
- 5. Final completion.
- D. The Contractor, on a daily basis, shall photograph the demolition and abatement process. For their own use and distribution, the Project Manager shall on a regular basis, direct photographs and/or video recordings of construction operations and work in progress.

# 1.04 IMAGES

- A. Digital images to be uploaded to the ASD Procore Construction Management Program Project Folder daily.
- B. Photo file name to include location, item photographed and orientation of view.

## 1.05 TECHNIQUE

- A. Provide factual presentation.
- B. Provide correct exposure and focus, high resolution and sharpness, maximum depth of field and minimum distortion.
- C. The Contractor shall furnish access, labor and facilities to assist photographer(s). Photographs shall be taken with a Digital type camera with flash attachment in working order.
  - 1. Furnish the Project Manager with a quantity equal to minimum ten (10) photographs per work area per day ISO appropriate to lighting conditions.

## 1.06 VIEWS

- A. Consult with Project Manager for instructions on views required.
- B. Locations of photos. It is preferred to have similar angles and locations of existing conditions, in progress and complete photos.

#### 1.07 SUBMITTALS

- A. All photos to be loaded in Procore and labelled.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **QUALITY CONTROL**

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 00700 General Conditions and Section 00800 Supplemental Conditions to the Construction Contract.
- B. Section 01090 Reference Specifications and Standards.
- C. Section 01300 Submittals.
- D. Section 01410 Testing Laboratory Services.
- E. Section 01420 Special Inspections

## 1.02 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

A. The contractor is responsible for quality control and shall establish and maintain an effective quality control system in compliance with this section. The quality control system shall consist of plans, procedures, and organization necessary to produce an end product which complies with the contract requirements. The system shall cover all construction operations, both onsite and offsite, and shall be keyed to the proposed construction sequence.

#### 1.03 QUALITY CONTROL PLAN

- A. The Contractor shall furnish for review by the Owner, not later than 30 days after receipt of notice to proceed, the Contractor Quality Control (CQC) Plan proposed to implement the requirements of this section. The plan shall identify personnel, procedures, control, instructions, tests, records, and forms to be used.
  - Content of the CQC Plan: The CQC Plan shall include, as a minimum, the following to cover all construction operations, both onsite and offsite, including work by subcontractors, fabricators, suppliers, and purchasing agents:
    - a. A description of the quality control organization, including the name, qualifications (in resume format), duties, responsibilities, and authorities of each person assigned a CQC function, including the person assigned responsibility of CQC manager.
    - b. Control, verification, and acceptance testing procedures for each specific test to include the test name, specification paragraph requiring test, feature of work to be tested, test frequency, and person responsible for each test. (Laboratory facilities will be approved by the Owner.)
    - c. Procedures for tracking preparatory and follow-up control phases, verification, and acceptance tests, including documentation.
    - d. Procedures for tracking construction deficiencies from identification through acceptable corrective action. These procedures shall establish verification that identified deficiencies have been corrected.
    - e. Reporting procedures, including proposed reporting formats.
    - f. A list of the definable features of work. A definable feature of work is a task which is separate and distinct from other tasks, has separate control requirements, and may be identified by different trades or disciplines, or it may be work by the same trade in a different environment. Although each section of the specifications may generally be considered as a definable feature of work, there are frequently more than one definable features under a particular section.

- 2. Acceptance of Plan: Acceptance of the Contractor's plan is required prior to the start of construction. Acceptance is conditional and will be predicated on satisfactory performance during the construction. The Owner reserves the right to require the Contractor to make changes in the CQC Plan and operations including removal of personnel, as necessary, to obtain the quality specified.
- 3. Notification of Changes: After acceptance of the CQC Plan, the Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing of any proposed change. Proposed changes are subject to acceptance.

#### 1.04 COORDINATION MEETING

A. After the Preconstruction Conference and before start of construction, the Contractor shall meet with the Project Manager to discuss the Contractor's quality control system. The CQC Plan shall be submitted for review a minimum of 15 calendar days prior to the Coordination Meeting. During the meeting, a mutual understanding of the system details shall be developed, including the forms for recording the CQC operations, control activities, testing, administration of the system for both onsite and offsite work, and the interrelationship with the Owner's special inspection personnel. Minutes of the meeting shall be prepared by the Contractor and signed by both the Contractor and the Project Manager.

#### 1.05 QUALITY CONTROL ORGANIZATION

- A. CQC Manager: The Contractor shall identify as CQC Manager an individual within the onsite work organization who shall be responsible for overall management of CQC and have the authority to act in all CQC matters for the Contractor. The CQC Manager shall be a person with a minimum of ten (10) years' experience in construction with a minimum of three (3) years' experience in Quality Control Management or Construction Inspection, preferably with some formal Quality Control training. This CQC Manager shall be on the site at all times during construction and shall be employed by the prime Contractor.
- B. CQC Personnel: In addition to CQC personnel specified elsewhere in the contract, the Contractor shall provide as part of the CQC organization specialized personnel to assist the CQC Manager for the following areas: electrical, mechanical, structural, and architectural. Each of these individuals must have either an engineering degree in their respective field and two years of experience or five (5) years of related experience. These individuals are to be responsible to the CQC Manager; be physically present at the construction site during work on their areas of responsibility; have the necessary education and/or experience in accordance with this section. These individuals may perform other duties but must be allowed sufficient time to perform their assigned quality control duties as described in the Quality Control Plan.
- C. ASD CQC Testing Requirements: See Attachment 1 below.

# **ASD CQC TESTING REQUIREMENTS**

Attachment	1
DEDODT DI	16

	ASD CQC	TESTING REQUIREMENTS	Attachment 1	
MATERIAL TESTED	CHARACTERISTIC TESTED	SAMPLE FREQUENCY	SAMPLING POINT	REPORT DUE
CLASSIFIED FILL MATERIAL AND BACKFILL (TYPE II, TYPE IIA, BLENDED, ETC.)	GRADATION	1 PER SOIL TYPE AND NOTABLE	PRIOR TO	BEFORE USE ON
	MOISTURE DENSITY (PROCTOR)	CHANGE IN CHARACTERISTICS	PLACEMENT	PROJECT
	COMPACTION/DENSITY	STRUCTURAL = 1 PER LIFT & PER 500 S.F. TRENCHES = 1 PER LIFT & PER 150 L.F. FLATWORK = 1 PER LIFT & PER 5000 S.F.	IN PLACE	PRIOR TO NEXT LIFT
	GRADATION	1 DED COULTYDE AND MOTADLE	DDIOD TO	DEFODE LICE ON
LEVELING COURSE	MOISTURE DENSITY (PROCTOR)	1 PER SOIL TYPE AND NOTABLE CHANGE IN CHARACTERISTICS	PRIOR TO PLACEMENT	BEFORE USE ON PROJECT
(D-1, RAP, ETC.)	COMPACTION/DENSITY	FLATWORK = 1 PER LIFT & PER 5000 S.F.	IN PLACE	PRIOR TO NEXT LIFT
	GRADATION	1 PER IN-SITU STRUCTURAL		BEFORE
STRUCTURAL IN-SITU BASE OF EXCAVATION	MOISTURE DENSITY (PROCTOR)	BOTTOM OF HOLE AND NOTABLE CHANGE IN CHARACTERISTICS	PRIOR TO PLACEMENT	BUILDING UPON
(BOTTOM OF HOLE)	COMPACTION/DENSITY	BASE OF EX. = 1 PER FOUNDATION AREA	IN PLACE	BEFORE BUILDING UPON
	SAMPLING	1 MINIMUM PER PLACEMENT,	POINT OF PLACEMENT (NOT @ TRUCK)	DEDORT 24 LIDS
	SLUMP	PER DAY (1-25 C.Y.), 1 EVERY		REPORT-24 HRS VERBAL-TIME
STRUCTURAL	AIR CONTENT	50 C.Y. THEREAFTER. 1 AFTER		OF TEST
CONCRETE	TEMPERATURE	EACH ADDITION OF ADMIXTURE OR WATER		OI ILJI
	COMP. STRENGTH	(SLUMP AND AIR ONLY AFTER ADDING ONLY WATER)		7 & 28 DAYS
	SAMPLING		POINT OF	
	SLUMP			REPORT-24 HRS
ARCHITECTURAL	AIR CONTENT	1 MINIMUM PER PLACEMENT,	PLACEMENT	VERBAL-TIME
& CIVIL CONCRETE	TEMPERATURE	PER DAY (1-25 C.Y.), 1 EVERY 100 C.Y. THEREAFTER.	OR TRUCK CHUTE	OF TEST
	COMP. STRENGTH			7 & 28 DAYS
	SAMPLING		BATCH POINT (ENSURE BATCH CONFORMS TO MFR SPECS)	DEDODT 24 LIDS
STRUCTURAL GROUT (BASEPLATES, CMU, ETC.)	SLUMP			REPORT-24 HRS VERBAL-TIME
	AIR CONTENT	1 PER PLACEMENT, PER DAY		OF TEST
	TEMPERATURE			020.
Civio, LTC.)	COMP. STRENGTH			7 & 28 DAYS

MATERIAL TESTED	CHARACTERISTIC TESTED	SAMPLE FREQUENCY	SAMPLING POINT	REPORT DUE
	GRADATION	1 PER PLACEMENT, PER DAY	BEHIND PAVER &	
	CONTENT	AND EVERY 700 TONS THEREAFTER.	PRIOR TO COMPACTION	
AC DAVING	COMPACTION/DENSITY	1 PER 5000 S.F.	AFTER FINAL ROLL	REPORT-24 HRS VERBAL-TIME
AC PAVING	VISUAL	OBSERVE & DOCUMENT DEPTH, AGGREGATE SIZE, VOIDS IN AGGREGATE, OIL POOLING, ETC. VERIFY BATCH TICKET MIX DESIGN & PROJECT	DURING PLACEMENT	OF TEST OR OBSERVATION

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL COSTS INCURRED FOR RETESTS, REINSPECTIONS, REPLACEMENT OF NON-CONFORMING PRODUCTS.

OWNER EMPLOYED SPECIAL INSPECTION VERIFICATION AND TESTING IS IN ADDITION TO THE CONTRACTOR'S QUALITY CONTROL TESTING. SPECIAL INSPECTION IN NO WAY DIMINISHES OR REDUCES THE CONTRACTOR'S QUALITY CONTROL OBLIGATIONS.

#### 1.06 CONTROL

- A. Contractor Quality Control is the means by which the Contractor ensures that the construction, to include that of subcontractors and suppliers, complies with the requirements of the contract. At least two phases of control shall be conducted by the CQC Manager for each definable feature of work as follows:
  - 1. Preparatory Phase: This phase shall be performed prior to beginning work on each definable feature of work, after all required plans/documents/materials are approved, and after copies are at the work site. This phase shall include:
    - a. A review of each paragraph of applicable specifications, reference codes, and standards. A copy of those sections of referenced codes and standards applicable to that portion of the work to be accomplished in the field shall be made available by the Contractor at the preparatory inspection. These copies shall be maintained in the field and available for use by the Owner until final acceptance of the work.
    - b. A review of the contract drawings.
    - c. A check to assure that all materials and/or equipment have been tested, submitted, and approved.
    - d. Review of provisions that have been made to provide required control inspection and testing.
    - e. Examination of the work area to assure that all required preliminary work has been completed and is in compliance with the contract.
    - f. A physical examination of required materials, equipment, and sample work to assure that they are on hand, conform to approved shop drawings or submitted data, and are properly stored.
    - g. Discussion of procedures for controlling quality of the work including repetitive deficiencies. Documentation of construction tolerances and workmanship standards for that feature of work.
    - h. A check to ensure that the portion of the plan for the work to be performed

- has been accepted by the Project Manager.
- i. Discussion of the initial control phase.
- j. The Owner shall be notified at least 48 hours in advance of beginning the preparatory control phase. This phase shall include a meeting conducted by the CQC Manager and attended by the Superintendent, other CQC personnel (as applicable), and the foreman responsible for the definable feature. The results of the preparatory phase actions shall be documented by separate minutes prepared by the CQC Manager and attached to the daily CQC report. The Contractor shall instruct applicable workers as to the acceptable level of workmanship required in order to meet contract specifications.
- 2. Follow-up Phase: Daily checks shall be performed to assure control activities, including control testing, are providing continued compliance with contract requirements, until completion of the particular feature of work. The checks shall be made a matter of record in the CQC documentation. Final follow-up checks shall be conducted, and all deficiencies corrected prior to the start of additional features of work which may be affected by the deficient work. The Contractor shall not build upon nor conceal non-conforming work.

### 1.07 TESTS

- A. Testing Procedure: The Contractor shall provide inspections, tests, and similar quality control services, specified in individual Specification Sections, and required by governing authorities, (Costs for these services shall be included in the Contract Sum). Upon request, the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner duplicate samples of test specimens for possible testing by the Owner. Testing includes operation and/or acceptance tests when specified. The Contractor shall perform the following activities and record and provide the following data:
  - 1. Verify that testing procedures comply with contract requirements.
  - Verify that facilities and testing equipment are available and comply with testing standards.
  - 3. Check test instrument calibration data against certified standards.
  - 4. Verify that recording forms and test identification control number system, including all of the test documentation requirements, have been prepared.
  - 5. Results of all tests taken, both passing and failing, shall be recorded on the CQC report for the date taken. Specification paragraph reference, location where tests were taken, and the sequential control number identifying the test shall be given. If approved by the Project Manager, actual test reports may be submitted later with a reference to the test number and date taken. An information copy of tests performed by an offsite or commercial test facility shall be provided directly to the Project Manager. Failure to submit timely test reports as stated may result in nonpayment for related work performed and disapproval of the test facility for this contract.
- B. Retesting: The Contractor is responsible for retesting where results of required inspections, tests, or similar services prove unsatisfactory and do not indicate compliance with Contract Document requirements, regardless of whether the original test was the Contractor's responsibility. Cost of retesting construction revised or replaced by the Contractor is the Contractor's responsibility, where required tests were performed on original construction.
- C. Associated Services: The Contractor shall cooperate with agencies performing required inspections, tests, and similar services and provide reasonable auxiliary services as requested. Notify the agency sufficiently in advance of operations to permit assignment of personnel. Auxiliary services required include but are not limited to:

- 1. Providing access to the Work, approved plans, and furnishing incidental labor and facilities necessary to facilitate inspections and tests.
- 2. Providing facilities for storage of all special inspection reports at the Project site and make available for review by the authorities having jurisdiction.
- 3. Taking adequate quantities of representative samples of materials that require testing or assisting the agency in taking samples.
- 4. Providing facilities for storage and curing of test samples, and delivery of samples to testing laboratories.
- 5. Providing the agency with a preliminary design mix proposed for use for materials mixes that require control by the testing agency.
- 6. Security and protection of samples and test equipment at the Project site.
- D. Correction of Work: The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting all Work identified as defective or as failing to conform to the Contract Documents, including any additional Owner Inspection Costs, and additional compensation for the Architect's and/or Project Manager's additional services made necessary thereby.
- E. Qualification for Laboratory Agencies: Engage inspection and testing service agencies, including independent testing laboratories free of conflict on interests with the General Contractor, which are prequalified as complying with "Recommended Requirements for Independent Laboratory Qualification" by the American Council of Independent Laboratories, and which specialize in the types of inspections and testing to be performed.
  - 1. Each independent inspection and testing agency engaged on the Project shall be authorized by the authorities having jurisdiction to operate in the State of Alaska and the Municipality of Anchorage.
  - 2. The Owner reserves the right to direct the specific location or area of work to be tested in accordance with contract requirements.

#### 1.08 SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

- A. The Owner will provide Special Inspections, tests, and similar quality control services as identified in Section 01420, "Special Inspections". Costs for the Special Inspection services are not included in the Contract Sum.
- B. Duties of the Testing Agency: The independent testing agency engaged to perform inspections, sampling, and testing of materials and construction specified in individual Specification Sections shall cooperate with the Owner's Representative and Contractor in performance of its duties and shall provide qualified personnel to perform required inspections and tests.
  - 1. The agency shall notify the Project Manager, and Contractor promptly of irregularities or deficiencies observed in the Work during performance of its services.
  - 2. The agency is not authorized to release, revoke, alter, or enlarge requirements of the Contract Documents, or approve or accept any portion of the Work.
  - 3. Special Inspection agency shall not perform any duties of the Contractor, nor be under contract to perform testing services required of the Contractor.
- C. Coordination: The Contractor and each agency engaged to perform inspections, tests, and similar services shall coordinate the sequence of activities to accommodate required services. In addition, the Contractor and each agency shall coordinate activities to avoid the necessity of removing and replacing construction to accommodate inspections and tests.

- 1. The Contractor is responsible for scheduling times for inspections, tests, taking samples, and similar activities.
- 2. The Contractor shall notify the Owner's Special Inspectors, and the Owner, in writing 72 hours prior to required special inspection and coordinate with these inspectors so there are no additional project costs, schedule impacts or delays. The Contractor shall also be responsible to coordinate with the special inspectors and the Owner to identify on the construction schedule when these inspections shall occur.

#### 1.09 WORKMANSHIP

- A. Comply with industry standards except when more restrictive tolerances or specified requirements indicate more rigid standards or more precise workmanship.
- B. Perform work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality.
- C. Secure products in place in positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand stresses, vibration, and racking.

#### 1.10 MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

A. Comply with instructions in full detail, including each step in sequence. Should instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from the Project Manager before proceeding.

### 1.11 MANUFACTURER'S FIELD SERVICE

- A. When required by individual Specifications Section, submit manufacturer's certificate, signed by responsible officer of the Manufacturer, that products meet or exceed specified requirements.
- B. When required by manufacturer, have manufacturer provide qualified representative to observe field conditions, conditions of surfaces and installation, quality of workmanship, start-up of equipment, test, adjust, and balance of equipment as applicable. Manufacturer Field Representative shall make a written report of observations and recommendations to the Project Manager.

### 1.12 SAMPLE PANELS AND MOCK-UPS

- A. Sample panels and/or mock-ups shall be used to establish uniform level of workmanship and finish color and texture. Accepted sample or mock-up shall serve as minimum standard of quality for subsequent work.
- B. Work on any Section requiring a sample panel or mock-up shall be approved in writing by the Owner.
- C. Sample panels or mock-ups may be requested by the Owner even though not specifically required of Specification Section to clarify level of workmanship, color, or texture.
- D. Tests shall be performed in accordance with Section 01410 and this section.

## 1.13 OBSERVATION

The following stages of construction specifically require observation by the Architect, Owner, and

other Authorities having jurisdiction. Provide the indicated notice to the Project Manager prior to commencing work on the phase or upon completion as appropriate:

- A. Stages that require two day notice include:
  - 1. Completion of utility trench excavation prior to placement of bedding.
  - 2. Completion of utility pipe installation prior to backfill.
  - Completion of subdrain system's drainage mat and perforated pipe prior to backfill.
  - 4. Completion of driveway, parking lot and sidewalk excavation, installation of geotextile fabric and backfill prior to placement of pavement.
  - 5. Completion of asphalt concrete pavement placement.
  - 6. Completion of portland cement concrete pavement placement.
  - 7. Completion of building excavation, geotextile fabric installation, and backfill prior to placement of concrete floor slab.
  - 8. Completion of excavation forming prior to concrete placement.
  - 9. Completion of concrete masonry, as damp-proofing work is beginning.
  - 10. Wall framing and sheathing completed, observation of shear wall fastening and connections.
  - 11. Mechanical and electrical rough-in and wall blocking, prior to cover.
  - 12. Insulation and vapor barrier installation prior to cover, observation required as work progresses, notify as phases are complete.
  - 13. Completion of mock-ups and finishes as mock-ups and areas are completed.
  - 14. Prior to beginning roofing.
- B. Stages that require five day notice include:
  - 1. Substantial Completion.
  - 2. Operational instructions.
  - 3. Final Completion.

#### 1.14 COMPLETION INSPECTION

- A. Punch-Out Inspection: Near the end of the work, or any increment of the work established by a time stated in the specifications, the CQC Manager shall conduct an inspection of the work. A punch list of items which do not conform to the approved drawings and specifications shall be prepared and included in the CQC documentation, as required by Section 01400, paragraph 1.15 A.4. The list of deficiencies shall include the estimated date by which the deficiencies will be corrected. The CQC Manager or staff shall make a second inspection to ascertain that all deficiencies have been corrected. Once this is accomplished, the Contractor shall notify the Owner that the facility is ready for the Owner Substantial inspection.
- B. Final Inspection: The Contractor's Quality Control Inspection personnel shall be in attendance at the final inspection.

### 1.15 DOCUMENTATION

- A. The Contractor shall maintain current records providing factual evidence that required quality control activities and/or tests have been performed. These records shall include the work of subcontractors and suppliers and shall be on an acceptable form that includes, as a minimum, the following information:
  - 1. Contractor/Subcontractor and area of responsibility.
  - 2. Operating equipment with hours worked, idle, or down for repair.
  - 3. Work performed each day, giving location, description, and by whom.

- 4. Test and/or control activities performed with results and references to specifications/drawings requirements. The control phase shall be identified. List of deficiencies noted, along with corrective action.
- 5. Quantity of materials received at the site with statement as to acceptability, storage, and reference to specifications/drawing requirements.
- 6. Offsite surveillance activities, including actions taken.
- 7. Instructions given/received and conflicts in plans and/or specifications.
- 8. Any other remarks impacting quality control.
- 9. Contractor's verification statement.
- B. These records shall indicate a description of trades working on the project; the number of personnel working; weather conditions encountered; and any delays encountered. These records shall cover both conforming and deficient features and shall include a statement that equipment and materials incorporated in the work and workmanship comply with the contract. The original and one copy of these records in report form shall be furnished to the Owner on a weekly basis within 24 hours after the date covered by the report, except that reports need not be submitted for days on which no work is performed. As a minimum, one report shall be prepared and submitted for every 7 days of no work and on the last day of a no work period. All calendar days shall be accounted for throughout the life of the contract. Reports shall be signed and dated by the CQC Manager. The report from the CQC Manager shall include copies of test reports and copies of reports prepared by all subordinate quality control personnel.

#### 1.16 NOTIFICATION OF NONCOMPLIANCE

- A. The Project Manager will notify the Contractor of any detected noncompliance with the foregoing requirements. The Contractor shall take immediate corrective action after receipt of such notice. Such notice, when delivered to the Contractor at the work site, shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of notification. If the Contractor fails or refuses to comply promptly, the Project Manager may issue an order stopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. No part of the time lost due to such stop orders shall be made the subject of claim for extension of time or for excess costs or damages by the Contractor.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

### **TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES**

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Contractor will employ and pay for the services of an independent testing laboratory, free of conflict of interests with the General Contractor, to perform specified testing.
- B. Employment of the laboratory shall in no way relieve Contractor's obligations to perform the work of the contract.
- C. Inspection, sampling and testing required as called for in the following technical sections.
- D. The Contractor shall pay for re-inspections and re-testing required because of defective work or ill-timed notices.

### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 00700, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, Article 7.7.
- B. Inspections and testing required by laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, project Contract Documents, or approvals of public authorities.
- C. Certification of Products: Respective Sections of Specifications.
- D. Test, Adjust, and Balance of Equipment: Respective Sections of Specifications.
- E. Each Specification Section Listed: Laboratory test required, and standards for testing.

## 1.03 QUALIFICATIONS OF LABORATORY

- A. Independent laboratory acceptable to Owner, Architect and Building Official.
- B. Meet "Recommended Requirements for Independent Laboratory Qualification" latest edition, published by American Council of Independent Laboratories, 1300 "I" Street N.W., Washington, D.C. 20005.
- C. Meet ASTM E-329 latest edition, "Standards of Recommended Practice for Inspection and Testing Agencies for Concrete and Steel as used in Construction."

## 1.04 LABORATORY'S DUTIES

- A. Laboratory authorized to operate in Alaska, with a full-time engineer registered in Alaska on staff to review services.
- B. Ascertain and certify compliance with Contract Documents.
- C. Promptly submit, unless otherwise indicated, written Inspection and Test Report to each of the following within forty-eight hours of inspection:

1. Owner: Two (2) copies

2. Architect: Two (2) copies

3. Contractor: Two (2) copies or as required

- D. Include the following on Test Reports:
  - 1. Date issued.
  - 2. Project title and location.
  - 3. Testing Laboratory name and address.
  - 4. Inspector's name.
  - 5. Date of inspection or sampling.
  - 6. Record of temperature and weather.
  - 7. Date of test.
  - 8. Identification of product tested.
  - 9. Test location in Project.
  - 10. Type of inspection or test.
  - 11. Observations regarding compliance with Contract Documents.
- E. Laboratory is not authorized to:
  - 1. Release, revoke, alter, or enlarge on Contract Document requirements.
  - 2. Approve or accept any portion of work.
  - 3. Assume any duties of Contractor.
  - 4. Stop Work.

## 1.05 CONTRACTOR'S DUTIES

- A. Cooperate with laboratory personnel, provide access to work, and to Manufacturer's operations.
- B. Secure and deliver to the laboratory adequate quantities of representation samples of materials proposed to be used and which require testing.
- C. Provide to the laboratory the preliminary design mix proposed to be used for concrete, and other materials mixes which require control by the testing laboratory.
- D. Furnish copies of products test reports as required.
- E. Furnish incidental labor and facilities:
  - To provide access to work to be tested.
  - 2. To obtain and handle samples at the project site or at the source of the project to be tested.
  - 3. To facilitate inspections and tests.
  - 4. For storage and curing of test samples.
- F. Notify laboratory sufficiently in advance of operations to allow for laboratory assignment of personnel and scheduling of tests. Twenty-four hour minimum notification.
  - When tests or inspections cannot be performed after such notice, reimburse Owner for laboratory personnel and travel expenses incurred due to Contractor's negligence.
- G. Notify Architect and Owner a minimum twenty-four hours in advance of any testing.
- H. Repair test holes to match original conditions.
- I. Quality Control is the responsibility of the General Contractor. The General Contractor should employ a testing firm to provide testing as required to monitor and maintain his own

quality control program, as well as satisfy the specific requirements of the Contract Documents.

### 1.06 OWNER'S TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

- A. The Owner may also employ and pay for the services of an Independent Testing Laboratory to perform specified testing as indicated in the Supplementary General Conditions and in this section. This testing service will be employed for Quality Assurance Only. QUALITY CONTROL IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.
- B. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Owner's laboratory to facilitate the execution of its services.
- C. A copy of the Owner's laboratory written report of each test will be distributed to the Contractor.
- D. When initial tests indicate work does not comply with the Contract Document, all additional tests required, until tests pass, shall be at the expense of the Contractor.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

### SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Purpose
- B. Types of Work
- C. Owner Responsibilities
- D. Engineer or Architect of Record Responsibilities
- E. Contractor Responsibilities
- F. Special Inspector Responsibilities

#### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Drawings and general provisions of Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.
  - Section 00700 General Conditions and Section 00800 Supplemental Conditions of the Construction Contract.
  - 2. Section 01090 Reference Specifications and Standards
  - 3. Section 01300 Submittals
  - 4. Section 01400 Quality Control Services

### 1.03 REFERENCES

- A. International Building Code (IBC) SECTION 1704 SPECIAL INSPECTIONS
- B. Uniform Administrative Code (UAC) SECTION 306 SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

## 1.04 PURPOSE OF SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

A. In accordance with IBC Section 1704.1 General "In addition to the inspections required by Section 109, the owner or the engineer or architect of record acting as the Owner's agent shall employ one or more special inspectors who shall provide inspections during construction on the types of work listed under 1704."

#### 1.05 TYPES OF WORK

- A. Except as provided in IBC Section 1704, the types of work listed below shall be inspected by a Special Inspector.
  - 1. Concrete.
  - 2. Bolts installed in concrete.
  - 3. Reinforcing steel in concrete.
  - 4. Structural welding.
  - 5. High-strength bolting.
  - 6. Structural masonry.
  - 7. Spray-applied fireproofing.
  - 8. Special grading, excavation, and filling.

B. Continuous and Periodic Special Inspection and Approved Fabricators shall be a part of the Special Inspection requirements.

### 1.06 OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. The Owner or the Engineer or Architect of Record acting as the Owner's agent shall employ one or more Special Inspectors who shall provide inspections during construction on the types of work listed.
- B. The Owner shall be responsible for providing a full set of drawings and specifications to each Special Inspector.

### 1.07 ENGINEER OR ARCHITECT OF RECORD

- A. The Engineer or Architect of Record, under the Owner's direction, may be required to employ one or more Special Inspectors who shall provide inspections during construction on the types of work listed under IBC Section 1704.
- B. The Engineer or Architect of Record, under the Owner's direction, may be responsible for coordinating the Pre-Construction Meeting, with the Contractor, to include Special Inspectors for the purpose of reviewing the Special Inspection Program and responsibilities of each member.
- C. The Engineer or Architect of Record is responsible for clearly indicating the design parameters and material selection on the project plans and/or specifications.
- D. The Engineer or Architect of Record shall determine when and where Special Inspection is necessary in order to meet requirements of the Code.
- E. It shall be the responsibility of the Architect or Engineer of Record to prepare a typewritten Special Inspection Program for submittal to the Building Official for review and approval (UAC 302.5). Such approval shall be obtained prior to issuance of a Building Permit.
- F. Design changes required to correct non-conforming work already incorporated into the completed construction, shall be identified to the Building Official for review and approval as a Change Order. Such Changes shall be generated by the Engineer or Architect of Record.

#### 1.08 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for calling a Pre-Construction meeting to review Special Inspection requirements as they pertain to the project. Attendees shall include the Contractor's Construction Supervisor, ASD Project Manager, the Engineer or Architect of Record, the Building Safety Division Inspector assigned to the project, all Special Inspectors, and any subcontractors who will actually be constructing items requiring Special Inspection. This meeting shall not be considered a substitute for any preconstruction meeting held between the Contractor and the Owner and Engineer or Architect of Record although they may coincide.
- B. The Contractor shall be responsible for notifying the Special Inspector or special inspection firm regarding required special inspections. Notice shall be a minimum of 24 hours in advance.

- C. The Contractor shall have on site at all times, an approved set of plans and construction documents available to the Special Inspector for the purpose of reference or clarification.
- D. The Contractor shall be responsible for retaining, on site, a copy of all Special Inspection records submitted by the Special Inspector.

#### 1.09 SPECIAL INSPECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. The Special Inspector shall observe the work assigned for conformance with the approved design drawings and specifications.
- B. Special Inspectors requiring certification by an agency such as ICBO, ACI, or AWS shall carry current certification with them while performing the Work on site.
- C. The Special Inspector shall remain on site at all times when work requiring Special Inspection is in progress.
- D. The Special Inspector shall immediately bring all nonconforming items of work or material to the immediate attention of the Contractor for correction.
- E. The Special Inspector or Inspection Firm shall submit required written reports to the Building Official (two copies), the Owner, and the Engineer or Architect of Record within 48 hours of inspection.
- F. Special Inspectors or Inspection Firms shall submit a final signed report to the Building Safety Division stating that all items requiring Special Inspection were, to the best of their knowledge, in conformance with the approved design drawings, specifications, approved change orders and the applicable workmanship provided in the International Building Code. Items not in conformance, unresolved items, and any discrepancies in inspection coverage shall be specifically itemized in the final report.
- G. Special Inspectors shall meet all certification requirements stated in the Special Inspection Program and required by the Municipality of Anchorage Building Safety Division and shall maintain certification at all times throughout the project.

### TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 DESCRIPTION OF REQUIREMENTS

A. Definitions: Specific administrative and procedural minimum actions are specified in this section as extensions of provision in General Conditions and other Contract Documents. These requirements have been included for special purposes as indicated. Nothing in this section is intended to limit types and amounts of temporary work required, and no omission from this section will be recognized as an indication that such temporary activity is not required for successful completion of the work and compliance with requirements of Contract Documents. Provisions of this section are applicable to, but not by way of limitation, utility services, construction facilities, support facilities, and security-protection provisions.

### 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. In addition to compliance with governing regulations and rules/recommendations of utility companies, comply with specific requirements indicated and with applicable local codes and industry standards for construction work.

### 1.03 JOB CONDITIONS

- A. General: Establish and initiate use of each temporary facility at time first reasonably required for proper performance of the work. Terminate use and remove facilities at earliest reasonable time, when no longer needed or when permanent facilities have, with authorized use, replaced the need.
- B. Conditions of Use: Install, operate, maintain, and protect temporary facilities in a manner and at locations which will be safe, non-hazardous, sanitary, and protective of persons and property, and free of deleterious effects.
- C. Pay all costs for such general services and temporary facilities, except as otherwise specified, until final acceptance of the work and/or Owner's beneficial occupancy of completed portions of the work.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Materials may be new or used but must be suitable and adequate in capacity for the required usage, must not create unsafe conditions, and must not violate requirements of applicable codes and standards.
- B. A new electrical utility drop and new transformer will be installed by local electric utility and is not a part of the scope of work. Permanent electrical service and distribution from the new transformer is required and made a part of Scope of Work to be complete for Substantial Completion.

### PART 3. EXECUTION

## 3.01 TEMPORARY FACILITIES

### A. Field Offices

1. Provide and maintain Contractors field office at the job site. Construction shanties, sheds, and temporary facilities provided as required above shall be maintained in good condition and neat appearance.

### B. Staging Area

- 1. All Contractor's storage, staging, field fabrication and field office operations shall be confined to the staging area shown on drawings.
- 2. Staging area shall be kept clean and orderly.

## C. Sanitary Facilities

1. Provide and maintain temporary sanitary toilets in number required, location directed, and types approved by the regulatory authorities.

## D. Electricity

- Make all arrangements and pay for temporary electrical service to the construction area. Provide all equipment necessary for temporary power and lighting, and pay all charges for this equipment, and the installation thereof. Verify that electrical service is of adequate capacity for all construction tools and equipment without overloading the facilities.
- Provide power distribution as required throughout for construction operations of all trades. The termination of power distribution shall be at convenient locations in the building. Terminations shall be provided for each voltage supply complete with circuit breakers, disconnect switches, and other electrical devices as required to protect the power supply system.
- 3. A temporary lighting system shall be furnished, installed and maintained as required to satisfy minimum requirements of safety and security. The temporary lighting system shall afford general illumination in all building areas and shall supply no less than 1-watt per square foot of floor area for illumination in the areas of the building where work is being performed.
- 4. All temporary equipment and wiring for power and lighting shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the governing codes. All temporary wiring shall be maintained in a safe manner and utilized so as not to constitute a hazard to persons or property.
- 5. When permanent electrical power and lighting systems are in operating condition they may be used for temporary power and lighting for construction purposes, provided that Contractor assumes full responsibility for the entire power and lighting systems and pays for power consumption until final acceptance or beneficial occupancy, whichever is first.
- 6. At the completion of the construction work all temporary wiring, lighting and other temporary electrical equipment devices shall be removed.
- E. Heating, Cooling and Ventilation: Furnish by approved methods, temporary heat including fuel and power as required to protect materials and work from dampness and cold and to dry out the facility. If the permanent heating is used for temporary heat, ducts shall be completely cleaned of dust and dirt and all filters replaced if "throw-away" type or cleaned if permanent type prior to occupancy.

### F. Water Service

- 1. Provide all water necessary for construction purposes.
- 2. Furnish drinking water with suitable containers and cups for use of employees.

#### 3.02 TEMPORARY CONTROLS

#### A. Access Provisions

 Provide ramps, stairs, ladders, and similar temporary access elements as reasonably required to perform the work and facilitate its inspection during installation. Comply with reasonable requests of governing authorities performing inspections.

### B. Environmental Control

 Provide and maintain all fences, barricades, lights, shoring and other protective structures or devices necessary for the safety of workmen, equipment, the public and property as required by state or municipal laws and regulations, and local ordinances, laws and other requirements of the municipality, state, and other authorities having jurisdiction with regard to safety precautions, dust control, and fire hazards.

## C. Security and Protection Provisions.

- The types of temporary security and protection provisions required include, but not by way of limitation, fire protection, personnel security program (theft prevention), and similar provisions intended to minimize property losses, personal injuries, and claims for damages at project site throughout construction period.
- 2. Site Enclosure and Lock-up: At earliest possible date secure site against unauthorized entrance at times when personnel are not working. Provide secure temporary enclosures at locations of possible entry, with locked entrances.
- 3. Fire Extinguishers: Provide types, sizes, numbers, and locations as would be reasonably effective in extinguishing fires during early stages by personnel at project site. Provide Type ABC dry chemical extinguishers; comply with recommendations of NFPA 10. Post warning and instructions at each extinguisher location, and instruct all personnel at project site, at time of their first arrival, on proper use of extinguishers and other available facilities at project site. Post local fire department call number on each telephone at project site.
- 4. Before beginning any work that may result in a fire alarm transmission, the contractor shall call both the Anchorage Fire Department dispatcher at 907-522-1122 and the local fire station which would respond to an alarm and let them know you will be working on the system and for approximately how long. Second, the contractor shall call Guardian Security at 907-274-5275 and notify the dispatcher that you have called the Fire Department, what type of work you are planning to do, and approximately how long before you expect to be completed. After the contractor is completed with your work, you must reverse the process by notifying the Fire Department dispatcher and the ASD Dispatcher that you are finished.

#### D. Traffic

1. Conduct operations and the removal of debris to ensure minimum interference with adjacent occupied facilities.

- Do not close or obstruct other occupied facilities without required permission.
   Provide alternate and safe routes around closed or obstructed traffic ways if required.
- 3. Whenever Contractor's operations affect public vehicular or pedestrian traffic, Contractor shall be responsible for installation and maintenance of any and all traffic control devices as seemed necessary by authority having jurisdiction.
- 4. Reference also Section 01502, "Maintenance of Traffic", for additional information and requirements.

### 3.03 TEMPORARY EQUIPMENT

- A. Protective Headgear:
  - 1. Provide for visitor's use six (6) new adjustable OSHA-approved hard hats.

### 3.04 REMOVAL

A. Maintain all temporary facilities and controls as long as needed for safe and proper completion of Work. Remove all such temporary facilities and controls as rapidly as progress of the Work will permit, or as directed by Project Manager. Clean and repair damage caused by temporary installations or use of temporary facilities. Restore existing facilities used for temporary services to specified or original condition.

### MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. When working adjacent to school playgrounds, provide flagmen. Payment for such flagging and protective flagmen services shall be borne by Contractor.
- B. Contractor shall retain responsibility for traffic operations and protective measures to assure safe flow of traffic. Contractor shall cooperate with Owner so that traffic flow is minimally impeded by execution of work under this Contract.

## 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Prior to starting any work, Contractor shall submit to the Authority having Jurisdiction and the Project Manager, detailed plan of his proposed method for controlling traffic at each affected location. Proposed traffic control plan shall show and describe proposed locations and time durations covering the following:
  - 1. Vehicular traffic routing including School Buses.
  - 2. Traffic blockage anticipated to be caused by work under this contract.
  - 3. Address conflicts between Pedestrian and vehicular traffic.

### 1.03 TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE FACILITIES

- A. Other than as shown on approved traffic control plans, at no time shall Contractor's operations interfere with safe and orderly operation of school. Encroachment by Contractor's operations will not be permitted.
- B. For duration of Contract, Contractor shall immediately repair or replace any and all appurtenances damaged or destroyed in performance of work included herein.
- C. Upon completion of work, temporary traffic maintenance items furnished by Contractor shall remain his property and shall be removed from site by Contractor.
- D. Contractor shall utilize dust control methods to control dust on access streets and project site to satisfaction of the Project Manager.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

### **PROJECT SIGN**

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Furnish, install, and maintain project identification sign.
- B. Project sign must be approved and permitted, prior to erections. Allow no other signs to be displayed.

### 1.02 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION

- A. Painted sign of 32 sf. area with painted graphic, or printed vinyl sign, content to include:
  - 1. Title of project
  - 2. Name of Owner.
  - 3. Names of professional consultants
  - 4. Prime contractor.
  - 5. Major subcontractors.
  - 6. An area 18" square for Owner logo.
- B. Graphic design, style of lettering, and colors: As shown in this section.
- C. Erect on the site at a lighted location of high public visibility as approved by Project Manager.

### 1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Sign Painter: Professional experience in type of work required.
- B. Finishes, Painting: Adequate to resist weathering and fading during scheduled construction period.

## PART 2. PRODUCTS

## 2.01 SIGN MATERIALS

- A. Structure and Framing: may be new or used, wood or metal, in sound condition structurally adequate to work and suitable for specified finish.
- B. Sign Surfaces: Exterior softwood plywood with medium density overlay, standard large sizes to minimize joints. Thickness as required by standards to span framing members, to provide even, smooth surface without waves or buckles.
- C. Rough Hardware: Galvanized.
- D. Paint: Exterior quality semi-gloss Alkyd, as specified in painting specification.
- E. Vinyl Lettering and Graphics may be considered upon submittal to Project Manager.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

## 3.01 PROJECT SIGN

- A. Paint exposed surfaces of supports, framing, and surface material; one coat of primer and one coat of exterior paint.
- B. Paint graphics in styles, sizes and colors selected.

## 3.02 MAINTENANCE

A. Maintain sign and supports in a neat, clean condition; repair damages to structure, framing or sign.

# 3.03 REMOVAL

A. Remove sign, framing, supports, and foundations at completion of the project.



**END OF SECTION** 

### MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Materials and Equipment incorporated into Work shall:
  - 1. Conform to applicable specifications and standards.
  - 2. Comply with size, make, type, and quantity specified, unless otherwise approved in writing.
- B. Manufactured and Fabricated Products:
  - 1. Manufacture like parts of duplicate units to standard size and gauges, and to be interchangeable.
  - 2. Two or more items of same kind shall be identical, and by same Manufacturer.
  - 3. Products shall be suitable for service conditions.
  - 4. Equipment shall comply with capacity, sizes, and dimensions shown or specified, unless otherwise approved in writing.
- C. Do not use materials or equipment for any purpose other than that for which designed or specified.

## 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 01010: Summary of Work
- B. Section 01340: Shop Drawing, Product Data and Samples.
- C. Section 01630: Substitution and Product Option
- D. Section 01710: Cleaning

### 1.03 CONTRACTOR'S OPTIONS

- A. For products specified only by reference standard, select any product meeting standard.
- B. For products specified by naming several products, select any of such products.
- C. For products specified by naming one or more products and "or approved", select any one specified product or submit request for substitution as specified.

#### 1.04 INAPPROPRIATE PRODUCTS AND METHODS

- A. If Contractor believes that any specified product, method, or system is inappropriate for use, he shall, if possible, so notify the Project Manager at least ten (10) working days prior to bid opening, and if not possible, such notice shall be given before performing work in question. If notice of objection is not received within the specified time limits, it will be assumed that Contractor agrees that specified products, methods, and systems are not inappropriate for use.
- B. No asbestos containing materials are to be incorporated into the project. Certification signed by the General Contractor shall state that Asbestos Containing materials have not been installed under this project. Turn certification in to Project Manager no later than first

payment application submittal. Recertify to Owner at substantial completion inspection.

### 1.05 PRODUCT SUBSTITUTIONS

A. Refer to Section 01630.

### 1.06 NUMBER OF PRODUCTS REQUIRED

A. Whenever in specifications a product is referred to in singular number, such reference shall include as many such products as are shown on Drawings are required to complete the Work.

## 1.07 PRODUCTS LIST

A. Submit to Project Manager complete list of major products proposed for use; Specification Section, include proprietary product name, manufacturer's name, and installing Subcontractor's name in accordance with requirement of Section 01340 Shop Drawing, Product Data and Samples.

#### 1.08 MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

- A. Perform work in accordance with Manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Do not omit preparatory or installation procedures required by Manufacturer, unless specifically modified by Contractor Documents.
- C. When Contract Documents require Work to comply with Manufacturer's instruction, obtain and distribute such instructions to parties performing work, including copies to Architect and Project Manager. Maintain one set at job site during installation and until acceptance.
- D. Handle, install, connect, clean, condition, and adjust products in strict accord with such instructions and in conformance with specified requirements.
- E. Should job conditions or specified requirements conflict with Manufacturer's instructions, consult Project Manager for further instructions.
- F. Do not proceed with work without clear instructions.

PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

## DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Provide for expeditious transportation and delivery of products to project site undamaged, on schedule to avoid delay of the Work.
- B. Providing equipment and personnel at site to unload and handle products in manner to avoid damage to products.
- C. Provide secure storage and protection for products to be incorporated into the Work, and maintenance and protection for products after installation and until completion of the Work.

### 1.02 DELIVERY

- A. Arrange deliveries of products in accord with construction schedules and in ample time to facilitate inspection prior to installation.
- B. Coordinate deliveries to avoid conflict with work and conditions at site. Contractor deliveries must not conflict with:
  - 1. Work of other Contractors, or Owner.
  - 2. Limitations of storage space.
  - 3. Availability of equipment and personnel for handling products.
  - 4. Owner's use of premises.
- C. Deliver products in undamaged condition in original containers or packaging, with identifying labels intact and legible.
- D. Partial deliveries of component parts of equipment shall be clearly marked to identify equipment, to permit easy accumulation of parts and to facilitate assembly.
- E. Immediately upon delivery, inspect shipment to assure:
  - Product complies with requirements of contract documents and reviewed submittals.
  - 2. Quantities are correct.
  - 3. Containers and packages are intact, labels are legible.
  - 4. Products are protected and undamaged. Minor damages may be repaired, provided finish items are equivalent in all respects to new work.

#### 1.03 PRODUCT HANDLING

- A. Provide equipment and personnel necessary to handle products, including those provided by Owner, by methods to prevent soiling or damage to products or packaging.
- B. Provide additional protection during handling as necessary to prevent scraping, marring, or otherwise damaging products or surrounding surfaces.
- C. Handle products by methods to prevent bending or over-stressing.
- D. Lift heavy components only at designated lifting points.

#### 1.04 STORAGE

- A. Store products immediately on delivery and protect until installed in the Work. Store in accord with manufacturer's instructions, with seals and labels intact and legible.
- B. Store products subject to damage by elements in substantial weather-tight enclosures.
  - 1. Maintain temperatures with ranges required by manufacturer's instructions.
  - 2. Provide humidity control for sensitive products, as required by manufacturer's instructions.
  - 3. Store unpacked products on shelves, in bins, or in neat piles, accessible for inspection.

# C. Exterior Storage

- 1. Provide substantial platforms, blocking, or skids to support fabricated products 4" above ground, prevent soiling or staining.
- 2. Cover products, subject to discoloration or deterioration from exposure to elements, with impervious sheet coverings. Avoid use of non-vented plastic or canvas shelters which could create humidity chambers. Provide adequate ventilation to avoid condensation.
- 3. Store loose granular materials in solid surfaces such as paved areas or provide plywood or sheet materials to prevent mixing with foreign matter.
  - a. Provide surface drainage to prevent flow or ponding of rainwater.
  - b. Prevent mixing of refuse or chemically injurious materials or liquids.
- 4. Provide exterior storage area within Contractor Secure area.
- D. Arrange storage in manner to provide easy access for inspection.

#### 1.05 MAINTENANCE OF STORAGE

- A. Maintain periodic system of inspection of stored products on scheduled basis to assure that:
  - State of storage facilities is adequate to provide required conditions.
  - 2. Required environmental conditions are maintained on continuing basis.
  - 3. Surfaces of products exposed to elements are not adversely affected. Any weathering of products, coatings, and finishes is not acceptable under requirements of contract documents.
- B. Mechanical and electrical equipment which requires servicing during long-term storage shall have complete manufacturer's instructions for servicing accompanying each item, with notice of enclosed instructions shown on exterior of package.

## 1.06 PROTECTION AFTER INSTALLATION

- A. Provide protection of installed products to prevent damage from subsequent operations, usage or vandalism. Remove when no longer needed, prior to completion of work.
- B. Control traffic to prevent damage to equipment and surfaces.
- C. Provide coverings to protect finished surfaces from damage.

- 1. Cover projections, wall corners, jambs, sills, and soffits of openings, in areas used for traffic and for passage of products in subsequent work.
- 2. Protect finished floors and stairs from dirt and damage.
  - a. In areas subject to foot traffic, secure heavy paper, sheet goods, and other materials in place.
  - b. For movement of heavy products, lay planking or similar materials in place.
  - c. For storage of product, lay tight wood sheathing in place.
- D. Waterproofed and Roofing Surfaces
  - 1. Prohibit use of surface for traffic and any kind, or for storage of any products.
  - 2. When some activity must take place in order to carry out Contract, obtain recommendations from installer for protection of surface.
    - a. Install recommended protection, remove on completion of that activity.
    - b. Restrict use of adjacent unprotected areas.

### 1.07 DAMAGED PRODUCTS

- A. Remove damaged or deteriorated materials from the premises. Replace materials which have been damaged.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

### SUBSTITUTION AND PRODUCT OPTION

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

### 1.02 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Contractor's options in selection of products.
- B. Requests for substitution of products.

## 1.03 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 00100 Instruction to Bidders.
- B. Section 00700 and 00800 General Conditions and Supplementary General Conditions.
- C. Section 01340 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples.

## 1.04 CONTRACTOR'S OPTIONS

- A. Reference to any equipment, material, article, or patented process by trade name, make or catalog number shall be regarded as establishing a standard of quality and characteristics of products that will be satisfactory and shall not be construed as limiting competition.
- B. Whether or not specifically named equipment or material is followed by the term "equivalent" or "equivalent product" or "approved equal", it shall not exclude other manufacturer's equipment or materials from consideration, unless "NO SUBSTITUTIONS" called out in the specification sections. In this usage, the terms "equivalent" and "equal" or "approved equal" are interchangeable though a product or method considered for substitution may be equivalent to a specified product or method without actually being equal, by virtue of performance, appearance, and meeting specified or implied criteria.
- C. No item will be considered for substitution prior to the bid opening. Consequently, the Bidder shall make its own determination if a substituted item will be equivalent to or better than that specified or indicated in regard to quality, workmanship, finish, space requirements, electrical requirements, performance and guarantees or warranties. Any change in bid and/or contract amount due to any subsequent rejection of product found "not equivalent" will not be considered.
- D. After the Notice to Proceed the Contractor shall submit sufficient data in accordance with this Section to establish equality. The Owner's Representative shall be the sole judge of equality and acceptability.
- E. Acceptance of substitute materials will not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for any changes in the Contractor's own work or in the work of other trades caused by the substitution. Any additional costs resulting from substitutions are the responsibility of the Contractor.

### 1.05 SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURE

A. Requests for substitutions of products will be considered only within 90 calendar days after Notice to Proceed. Subsequent requests will be considered only when judged to be in the best interest of the Owner.

- B. Substitutions will not be considered when indicated on shop drawings or product data submittals without separate formal request, when requested directly by subcontractor or supplier, or when acceptance will require substantial revision of Contract Documents.
- C. Substitute products shall not be ordered or delivered without written acceptance.
- D. Submit separate request for each substitution. Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of proposed substitution with requirements of Contract Documents.
- E. Identify products by specifications section and article numbers. Provide manufacturer's name and address, trade name of product, and model or catalog number. List fabricators and suppliers as appropriate.
- F. Attach product data as specified in Section 01340 and the following:
  - 1. Give itemized comparison of proposed substitution with specified product and listing variations.
  - 2. Give quality and performance comparison between proposed substitution and specified product.
  - 3. List availability of maintenance services and replacement materials.
  - 4. State effect of substitution on construction schedule, and changes required in other work or products.
- G. If no requests for substitutions have been received within time frame stated above, it will be assumed that construction will proceed with equipment, materials and products called for in Contract Documents.

If this is subsequently found not to be the case, the Owner reserves the right to demand that unapproved item be removed and replaced with specified item.

#### 1.06 CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATION

- A. Request for substitution constitutes a representation that Contractor has investigated proposed product and has determined that it is equal to or superior in all respects to specified product.
- B. Contractor shall provide same warranty or bonds for substitution as for specified product.
- C. Contractor shall coordinate installation of accepted substitute, making such changes as may be required for work to be complete in all respects, specifically including any related redesign costs.
- D. Contractor waives claims for additional cost caused by substitution which may subsequently become apparent.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **END OF SECTION**

(Except for "Substitution Request Form," 1 page)

# SUBSTITUTION REQUEST FORM

TO:				
PROJECT:				
We hereby s project:	submit for your co	nsideration the following	product instead of the	specified item for the above
Section	Page	Paragraph	Specified Item	
Proposed Su	ubstitution:			
	olete Product de necessary for eval		otographs, performance	e and test data, and other
Will ch Yes	nanges be requir No If Yes	ed to building design s, explain: (Add second	in order to properly in sheet).	stall proposed substitution?
Will the caused	e undersigned pay d by requested su	of for changes to the build bstitution? Yes No	ling design, including en	gineering and drawing costs,
What o	differences exist b	etween proposed subst	tution and specified iter	n?
Does s	substitution affect	Drawing dimension? Ye	es No If Yes,	explain: (Add second sheet.)
What a	affect does substit	ution have on other trad	les?	
Does M Yes	Manufacturer's wa No If Yes	arranty of proposed subs s, explain: (Add second	stitution differ from that s sheet.)	specified?
Will su	bstitution affect P	rogress Schedule? Yes	No If Yes, e	xplain: (Add second sheet.)
Will su sheet.)		ore than specified Produ	ct? Yes No	If Yes, explain: (Add second
Do sub No approv	If any, attach a	ne Commissioning proce marked-up copy of the a	ess and checklists includappropriate Checklist(s)	led in Division 17? Yes_ from Division 17 for Owner's
	aintenance and s n: (Add second sh		vailable for substitution	? Yes No If Yes,
Submitted by	<b>/</b> :		For Owner's Repres	entative's Use Only:
Signature:			Accepted ( ) Not Accepted ( )	Accepted as Noted() Received Too Late()
Firm:			, , ,	,
Address:				
City:				
Date:				
			Phone:	

### PROJECT CLOSE-OUT

### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 GENERAL CONDITIONS

A. Definitions: Close-out is hereby defined to include general requirements near the end of contract time, in preparation for final acceptance, final payment, normal termination of contract, occupancy by Owner and similar actions evidencing completion of the work. Specific requirements for individual units of work are specified in sections of Division 2 through 16. Time of Close-out is directly related to "Substantial Completion".

### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

- A. Section 00700 and 00800 General and Supplementary General Conditions
- B. Section 01750: Warranty of Work after Final Payment
- C. Section 01750: Certificate of Compliance

### 1.03 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. When Contractor considers work substantially complete as defined in contract conditions, he shall submit to the Project Manager:
  - 1. Written notice that work, or designated portion thereof, is substantially complete.
  - 2. List of items to be completed or corrected.
  - 3. Conditional Certificate of Occupancy from governing authorities.
  - 4. Project Records and Contract Record Drawings.
- B. Project Manager will at the mutually agreed time, make inspection to determine completion status.
  - 1. Should Project Manager determine that work is not substantially complete:
    - a. Project Manager will promptly notify Contractor, in writing, giving reasons therefore.
    - b. Contractor will remedy work deficiencies, and send second notice of substantial completion to Project Manager.
    - c. Project Manager will re-inspect work, with his cost and/or expense for such to be the Contractor's responsibility.
  - 2. When Project Manager concurs that work is substantially complete, the Architect will:
    - a. Prepare Certificate of Substantial Completion accompanied with Contractor's list of items to be completed or corrected, as verified and amended by the Project Manager and Architect.
    - b. Submit certificate to Owner and Contractor for their written acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in the certificate.

## 1.04 FINAL INSPECTION

- A. When Contractor considers work complete, he shall submit written certification that:
  - 1. Contract documents have been reviewed.
  - 2. Contractor has inspected work for compliance with contract documents.

- 3. Work has been completed in accordance with contract documents.
- 4. Equipment and systems have been tested and operated in presence of Owner's representative and are operational.
- 5. Copy of substantial completion punch lists stating that each item has been completed or otherwise resolved for acceptance.
- B. Project Manager will, at the mutually agreed time, inspect the work to verify completion status.
  - 1. Should the Project Manager consider work incomplete or defective:
    - Project Manager will promptly notify Contractor in writing of any incomplete or defective work.
    - b. Contractor shall immediately remedy deficiencies, and send written certification to Project Manager that work is complete.
    - c. Project Manager will re-inspect work.
  - 2. When Project Manager finds the work acceptable under contract documents, he will request Contractor to make closeout submittals.

## 1.05 RE-INSPECTION FEES

A. Should Project Manager and or Engineer be required to make more than one substantial and/or final inspection due to Contractor's failure to correct specified deficiencies, the Contractor shall bear all costs made necessary by such additional inspections.

### 1.06 SUBMITTALS

- A. Record Drawings
  - 1. Prior to Final Completion of the Project, the Contractor and/or Subcontractors under his direction, shall submit records of changes on prints to Project Manager.
  - 2. Accompany submittal with transmittal letter, to Project Manager, containing:
    - a. Date
    - b. Project title and number
    - c. Contractor's name and address
    - d. Title and number of each record document
    - e. Certification that each document as submitted is complete and accurate.
    - f. Signature of Contractor, or his authorized representative.
  - 3. Provide drawings and special system drawings on CD in AutoCad format.
- B. Project Record Documents
- C. Operating and Maintenance Data
- D. Building Official's Certificate of Occupancy (MUST BE RECEIVED IN TIME TO ALLOW OCCUPANCY ON DATE REQUIRED IN CONTRACT DOCUMENTS).
- E. Warranty of Work after Final Payment Section 01750
- F. Certificate of Compliance Section 01750
- G. AHERA Exclusion document Section 01750
- H. Department of Revenue Tax Clearance Section 01750

- I. Department of Labor Tax Clearance Section 01750
- J. Department of Labor Notice of Completion of Public Works Section 01750
- K. Certificate of Domestic water disinfection.
- L. Evidence of Payments and Release of Liens
  - 1. Contractor's Affidavit of Payment of Debt and Claims.
  - 2. Contractor's Affidavit of Release of Liens including the following:
    - a. Consent of Contractor's Surety to Final Payment.
    - b. Contractor's Release of Waiver of Liens.
    - c. Separate releases of Waivers of Lien for each subcontractor, supplier, and others with lien rights against Owner's property.
- M. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and associated documents.
  - 1. A copy of the Notice of Intent (NOI) and the plan review location notice shall be posted in the project office on site.
  - 2. A copy of the SWPPP shall be retained in the project office during construction.
  - 3. All records relating to the SWPPP, as well as the Plan, the NOI, and NOT shall be retained by the Contractor and the Municipality of Anchorage for three years after the NOT is issued.
  - Copies of all SWPPP documents are to be delivered to the Municipality of Anchorage and the Anchorage School District upon completion of the project and before final closeout.
- N. Closeout Checklist Section 01750
  - 1. A closeout checklist is provided for convenience in tracking the necessary documentation and deliverables for project closure. This checklist should be updated and submitted with each closeout deliverable.

# 1.07 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

- A. Follow procedures specified in General and Special Conditions, and also note miscellaneous prerequisites for final payment noted in this section.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **CLEANING**

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Execute cleaning, during progress of the work, and at completion of the work.

### 1.02 DISPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Conduct cleaning and disposal operations to comply with codes, ordinances, regulations, and anti-pollution laws.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 MATERIALS

A. Use only those cleaning materials which will not create hazards to health or property and which will not damage surfaces.

### PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 DURING CONSTRUCTION

- A. Execute periodic cleaning to keep the work, the site, and adjacent areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and debris, resulting from construction operations.
- B. Provide on-site containers for the collection of waste materials, debris, and rubbish.
- C. Remove waste materials, debris, and rubbish from the site periodically and dispose of.

#### 3.02 DUST CONTROL

- A. Clean interior spaces prior to the start of finishing painting and continue cleaning on an asneeded basis until painting is finished.
- B. Schedule operations so that dust and other contaminants resulting from cleaning process will not fall on wet or newly coated surfaces.

#### 3.03 FINAL CLEANING

- Employ skilled workmen for final cleaning.
- B. Remove grease, mastic, adhesives, dust, dirt, stains, fingerprints, labels, and other foreign materials from sight-exposed interior and exterior surfaces.
- C. Prior to final completion, or Owner occupancy, the Contractor shall conduct an inspection of sight-exposed interior surfaces and all work areas to verify that the entire work is clean.

#### PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Maintenance of record documents and samples.
- B. Submittal of record documents and samples.

### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Document 00700 General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.
- B. Section 01300 Submittals.
- C. Section 01340 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples.
- D. Section 01700 Project Close-Out.
- E. Individual Specifications Sections: Manufacturer's certificates and certificates of inspection.

#### 1.03 MAINTENANCE OF DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES

- A. In addition to requirements in General Conditions, maintain at the job site for Owner's use one record copy of:
  - 1. Contract Drawings.
  - 2. Specifications.
  - 3. Addenda.
  - 4. Change orders and other modifications to the Contract.
  - 5. Reviewed shop drawings, product data and samples.
  - 6. Field test records.
  - 7. Inspection certificates.
  - 8. Manufacturer's certificates.
  - 9. Request for Information (RFI)
  - 10. Request for Proposal (RFP)
  - 11. Current Construction Network.
- B. Store record documents and samples in the field office apart from the documents used for construction.
- C. Label and file record documents and samples in accordance with Section number listings in Table of Contents of this Project Manual. Label each document "PROJECT RECORD" in neat, large, printed letters.
- D. Maintain record documents in a clean, dry and legible condition. Do not use record documents for construction purposes.

Keep record documents and samples available for inspection by the Project Manager.

### 1.04 RECORDING

- A. From the copies of Contract Documents to be furnished by Project Manager, the Contractor and/or Subcontractors shall record on a set of clean, new prints each and every change that is made, at time it is made, in red. This includes any changes that are made in partitions, doors, or otherwise in arrangement of construction of buildings as well as a complete record of exact manner in which electrical and mechanical work, piping, etc., are installed. All Change Orders, RFI's, and Information Bulletins shall be incorporated. Dimensions shall be included where necessary to accurately locate piping and other items that will be concealed underground or in finished building that may later be necessary to service.
- B. Contract Drawings: Legibly mark to record actual construction.
  - 1. Horizontal and vertical location of underground utilities and appurtenances referenced to permanent surface improvements.
  - 2. Field changes of dimensions and detail.
  - 3. Changes made by Change Order and other modifications.
  - 4. Details not on original contract drawings.
  - 5. References to related shop drawings and modifications.
- C. Shop Drawings: Maintain as record documents, legibly annotate appropriate drawings to record changes made after review.
- D. Specifications and Addenda: Legibly mark up each section to record:
  - 1. Changes made by Change Order.
  - 2. Manufacturer, trade name and catalog number of each product actually installed, particularly optional items and substitute items.
  - 3. Changes made by addenda and modifications.
  - 4. Other matters not originally specified.
- E. Label each document "PROJECT RECORD" in printed letters.
- F. Keep record documents current. No progress payments will be made until record documents are verified by the Project Manager as being current.
- G. Do not permanently conceal any work until required information has been recorded.
- H. Methodology:
  - 1. Changes to Work are described by source documents, including, but not limited to, Field Directives (FD), Information Bulletins (IB), Requests for Information (RFI), and Requests for Proposals (RFP), and their attachments. (Reference Section 00700, Article 12.)
  - 2. Project Record drawings are to completely and clearly reflect all Changes to Work by graphically showing actual changes to dimensions, locations, materials, assemblies, and other conditions; by graphically deleting conditions replaced by such changes; and by indicating applicable source document's reference number. Such reference number shall not be the sole representation of Changes to Work shown on Project Record drawings.
  - 3. Where A/E furnishes supplemental drawings, Project Record drawings are to show both the A/E's supplemental drawing reference number and the source document's reference number at the affected location.
- 1.05 SUBMITTAL

- A. Prior to Final Completion of the Project, the Contractor and/or Subcontractors under his direction, shall submit records of changes on prints to Project Manager.
- B. Accompany submittal with transmittal letter, to Project Manager, containing:
  - 1. Date
  - 2. Project title and number
  - 3. Contractor's name and address
  - 4. Title and number of each record document
  - 5. Certification that each document as submitted is complete and accurate.
  - 6. Signature of Contractor, or his authorized representative.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

### OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE DATA

### PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Format and content of manuals.
- B. Instruction of Owner's personnel.
- C. Schedule of submittals.

# 1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 01300 Submittals
- B. Section 01400 Quality Control
- C. Section 01410 Testing Laboratory Services
- D. Section 01420 Special Inspections
- E. Section 01600 Material and Equipment
- F. Section 01700 Contract Close-Out
- G. Section 01750 Close-Out Forms
- H. Individual Specifications Sections: Specific requirements for operation and maintenance data.

#### 1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Prepare instructions and data by personnel experienced in maintenance and operation of described products.

### 1.04 FORMAT

- A. Prepare data in the form of an instructional manual.
- B. Electronic: Optical Character Recognition (OCR) formatted pdf document.
- C. Cover: Identify each pdf with a title "OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS"; identify title of Project; identify subject matter of contents.
- D. Provide bookmarked pdf for each separate product and system, with typed description of product and major component parts of equipment.
- E. Text: Manufacturer's printed or typewritten data.
- F. Drawings: Provide with O&M documents.
- G. Contents: Prepare a Table of Contents for each volume, with each Product or System description identified, in three parts as follows:

- 1. Part 1: Directory, listing names, addresses, and telephone numbers of Architect/Engineer, Contractor, Subcontractors, and major equipment suppliers.
- 2. Part 2: Operation and maintenance instructions arranged by and subdivided by specification section. For each category, identify names, addresses, and telephone numbers of Subcontractors and suppliers. Identify the following:
  - a. Significant design criteria.
  - b. List of equipment.
  - c. Parts list for each component.
  - d. Operating instructions.
  - e. Maintenance instructions for equipment and systems.
  - f. Maintenance instructions for finishes, including recommended cleaning methods and materials, and special precautions identifying detrimental agents.
- 3. Part 3: Project documents and certificates, including the following:
  - a. Shop drawings and product data.
  - b. Air and water balance reports.
  - c. Certificates.
  - d. Photocopies of warranties and bonds.

# 1.05 CONTENTS, EACH VOLUME

- A. Table of Contents: Provide title of Project; names, addresses, and telephone numbers of Architect/Engineer, Subconsultants, and Contractor with name of responsible parties; schedule of products and systems, indexed to content of the volume.
- B. For Each Product or System: List names, addresses and telephone numbers of Subcontractors and suppliers, including local source of supplies and replacement parts.
- C. Product Data: Mark each sheet to clearly identify specific products and component parts, and data applicable to installation. Delete inapplicable information.
- D. Drawings: Supplement product data to illustrate relations of component parts of equipment and systems, to show control and flow diagrams. Do not use Project Record Documents as maintenance drawings.
- E. Typed Text: As required to supplement product data. Provide logical sequence of instructions for each procedure, incorporating manufacturer's instructions specified in Section 01400.
- F. Warranties and Bonds: Bind in copy of each.

# 1.06 MANUAL FOR MATERIALS AND FINISHES

- A. Building Products, Applied Materials, and Finishes: Include product data, with catalog number, size, composition, and color and texture designations. (Provide information for re-ordering custom manufactured Products.)
- B. Instructions for Care and Maintenance: Include manufacturer's recommendations for cleaning agents and methods, precautions against detrimental agents and methods, and recommended schedule for cleaning and maintenance.

- C. Moisture Protection and Weather Exposed Products: Include product data listing applicable reference standards, chemical composition, and details of installation. Provide recommendations for inspections, maintenance, and repair.
- D. Additional Requirements: As specified in individual Product specification sections.
- E. Provide a listing in Table of Contents for design data.

#### 1.07 MANUAL FOR EQUIPMENT AND SYSTEMS

- A. Each Item of Equipment and Each System: Include description of unit or system, and component parts. Identify function, normal operating characteristics, and limiting conditions. Include performance curves, with engineering data and tests, and complete nomenclature and model number of replaceable parts.
- B. Panelboard Circuit Directories: Provide electrical service characteristics, controls, and communications; typed
- C. Include color coded wiring diagrams as installed.
- D. Operating Procedures: Include start-up, break-in, and routine normal operating instructions and sequences. Include regulation, control, stopping, shut-down, and emergency instructions. Include summer, winter, and any special operating instructions.
- E. Maintenance Requirements: Include routine procedures and guide for trouble-shooting; disassembly, repair, and reassembly instructions; and alignment, adjusting, balancing, and checking instructions.
- F. Provide servicing and lubrication schedule, and list of lubricants required.
- G. Include manufacturer's printed operation and maintenance instructions.
- H. Include sequence of operation by controls manufacturer.
- I. Provide original manufacturer's parts list, illustrations, assembly drawings, and diagrams required for maintenance.
- J. Provide control diagrams by controls manufacturer as installed.
- K. Provide Contractor's coordination drawings, with color-coded piping diagrams as installed.
- L. Provide charts of valve tag numbers, with location and function of each valve, keyed to flow and control diagrams.
- M. Provide list of original manufacturer's spare parts, current prices, and recommended quantities to be maintained in storage.
- N. Include test and balancing reports as specified.
- O. Additional Requirements: As specified in individual Product specification sections.
- P. Provide a listing in Table of Contents for design data, with tabbed (fly sheet indexed) and space for insertion of data.

# 1.08 MANUALS

- A. Operating and Maintenance Manuals: Submit electronic manual for each identified category.
  - 1. Materials and Finishes Manual
  - Equipment and Systems Manual
  - 3. Digital Controls Manual
  - 4. Fire and Security Systems Manual
- B. Warranty and Special Warranty Manual: Submit electronic manuals.

### 1.09 INSTRUCTION OF OWNER PERSONNEL

- A. Before final inspection, instruct Owner's designated personnel in operation, adjustment, and maintenance of products, equipment, and systems, at agreed upon times.
- B. For equipment requiring seasonal operation, provide instructions for all seasons
- C. Use operation and maintenance manuals as basis for instruction. Review contents of manual with personnel in detail to explain all aspects of operation and maintenance.
- D. Prepare and insert additional data in Operating and Maintenance Manual when need for such data becomes apparent during instruction.

### 1.10 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit copies of preliminary draft or proposed formats and outlines of contents before start of Work. Project Manager will review draft and return copy with comments.
- B. For equipment, or component parts of equipment put into service during construction and operated by Owner, submit advance copy of documents within ten days after acceptance. Include same information within final Operations and Maintenance documents.
- C. Submit draft copy of completed volumes 60 days following acceptance of Project Submittals. Allow 20 days for Architect review and return to Contractor. Provide Contractor resubmittal within 14 days. Allow 14 days for Architect review of resubmittal. Revise content of all document sets as required prior to final submission.
- D. Submit fully approved volumes within 115 days after acceptance of Submittals or 10 days prior to Substantial Completion, whichever occurs first.
- PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### CLOSE-OUT FORMS

### PART 1. GENERAL

- 1.01 The following forms are to be submitted by the Contractor prior to final project closeout.
- 1.02 CERTIFICATION OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
  - A. Use Anchorage School District Form 101 attached herein.
- 1.03 CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DEBTS AND CLAIMS
  - A. Use Anchorage School District Form 102 attached herein.
- 1.04 RELEASE ON CONTRACTS
  - A. Use Anchorage School District Form 103 attached herein.
- 1.05 CONSENT OF SURETY COMPANY TO FINAL PAYMENT
  - A. Use Anchorage School District Form 104 attached herein.
- 1.06 CONSENT OF SURETY TO REDUCTION IN OR PARTIAL RELEASE OF RETAINAGE
  - A. Use Anchorage School District Form 105 attached herein.
- 1.07 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
  - A. The Contractor shall submit a notarized Certificate of Compliance, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.
- 1.08 WARRANTY OF WORK AFTER FINAL PAYMENT
  - A. The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a notarized Warranty of Work after Final Payment, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.
- 1.09 AHERA EXCLUSION DOCUMENT
  - A. The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a signed AHERA Exclusion Document, contained in this section, with his application for Final Payment.
- 1.10 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS
  - A. The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a Notice of Completion of Public Works form approved by the Department of Labor with his application for Final Payment.
- 1.11 DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE TAX CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM
  - A. For projects funded through the Department of Education (debt reimbursement or DEED grants), the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a Tax Clearance Request Form approved by the Department of Revenue with his application for Final Payment.
- 1.12 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR TAX CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM
  - A. For projects funded through the Department of Education (debt reimbursement or DEED

grants), the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a Tax Clearance Request Form approved by the Department of Labor, with his application for Final Payment.

# 1.13 CLOSEOUT CHECKLIST

A. The closeout checklist is designed to assist the contractor and project manager in the process of completing the project.

# **CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION**

Project:			Contract N	umber:
Contractor:			Contract D	ate:
Architect:			Date of Iss	uance:
Owner:	ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRIC 1301 Labar Street Anchorage, Alaska 99515	Т		
Project Desc	ription:			
The work perf	ormed under this contract has been re	viewed and for	und to be substantia	ally complete. The date
of Substantial	Completion is hereby established as:			
The date of susubstantially of A list of items is appended in Contractor to The Contractor date of substantial The responsibility of the Substantial Contractor of Substantial	Date of Substantial Completion: ubstantial completion of the project is the complete in accordance with, and define to be completed or corrected, prepare nereto. The failure to include any items complete the project in accordance with or will complete or correct the work on antial completion.  Dilities of the Owner and the Contractor	ded in the Control d by the Owne s or such list do th the Contract the list of items	ract Documents.  r and verified and a  pes not alter the res  Documents.  appended hereto v	mended by the Architect ponsibility of the within 30 days from the
	on the certification of the Contractor ar			
				elects to assume
			a.m./p.m. on	
	HORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT			
Ву:	Title:			Date:
Architect:				
Ву:	Title:		<del> </del>	Date:
Contractor: By: ASD 101 (01/03)	Title:			Date:

# CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DEBTS AND CLAIMS ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, by the terms of a contrac Anchorage School District, and	t dated	entered into by the for the construction of
The undersigned, pursant to the Gene		
performed, and for all known indebtr	gations for all materials and equipmen ness and claims against the Contrac	s that, except as listed below, he has paid t furnished, for all work, labor, and services tor for damages arising in any manner in the District or his property might in any way
EXCEPTIONS:		
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal of	the undersigned Contractor have bee	n hereunto set this
	day of	
, at	•	
	Ву	
	Бу	
	_ ·	n, say that I am the agent for and executed
		same, know the contents thereof, and the
matters set forth therein are as I truly	believe.	
	Ву	
Subscribed and sworn to before me the	nis	day of
1	, at	•
N	otary Public in and for	
	ly Commission Expires	
	,	
ASDF Form 102		

# RELEASE ON CONTRACT ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, by the terms of	a contract dated	entered into by the Ar	nchorage School District,
and	for the c	onstruction of	
			, it is provided that:
	or the remaining retained percenta liens, on the forms provided by the	ge shall become due until the	Contractor shall provide the Owner (1)
	sideration of the premises and the ue under the contract and any cha		
of \$			<u>Dollars,</u>
		(Numbers)	<b>.</b>
the undersigned Contractor that real property known as:	hereby releases and forever disch	In Words) arges the Anchorage School	) District including its property, particularly
			of the Anchorage
Law and in equity, under or	by virtue of said contract, and war	ants good title to all material,	, claims, and demands whatsoever, in supplies and equipment installed or nents and appurtenances constructed
		to the Anchora	ge School District free of any claims,
	ther the undersigned nor any pers	on, firm or corporation furnish	ing material or labor for any work
covered by this Contract has	s any right to a lien upon the premi	ses nor improvement thereon	i, except:
			<del> </del>
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, th	ne signature of the undersigned Co	ntractor has been hereunto s	et this
day of	20 ot	Alaaka	
uay oi	, 20_, at	_, Alaska.	
	Signature:		
	Printed Name:		
1	haing first di	ly sworn say that I am the ac	gent for and executed the foregoing
under authority of said comp as I truly believe.	pany to do so; that I have read the	same, know the contents the	gent for and executed the foregoing reof, and the matters set forth therein are
	Signature:		
	Signature.		<del></del>
Subscribed and sworn to be	fore me thisday of	, 20_, at	, Alaska.
	Notary Public in and f	or	
	My Commission Expir	es: .	ASD Form 103

# CONSENT OF SURETY COMPANY TO FINAL PAYMENT

PROJECT:I		_PROJECT NUMBER:	
TO:	Anchorage School District	CONTRACT DATE:	
		CONTRACTOR:	
In acco	•	ract between the Owner and the Contractor as indicated	
(Suret	y Company)		
on bor	nd of		
(Contra	actor)		
Contra Owner of sub-	ctor shall not relieve the Surety Compa r as set forth in said Surety Company's	e Contractor, and agrees that final payment to the ny of any of its obligations to <b>Anchorage School District,</b> bond. Surety expressly agrees that any and all valid claims abor or materials to the project will be satisfied by	
IN WIT	NESS WHEREOF, the Surety Compan	ny has hereunto set its hand this	
day of	, 20	•	
	Name of Surety Company		
Attest			
	Signature of Authorized Representative	<u> </u>	
	Title		

ASD 104

# CONSENT OF SURETY TO REDUCTION IN OR PARTIAL RELEASE OF RETAINAGE ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROJECT:	PROJECT NUMBER:
TO: Anchorage School District	CONTRACT DATE:
CONTRACTOR:	
In accordance with the provisions of the Contract between the:	n the Owner and the Contractor as indicated above,
	(Surety Company)
on bond	of
	(Contractor)
HEREBY APPROVES OF THE REDUCTION IN OR PAR as follows:	RTIAL RELEASE OF RETAINAGE to the Contractor
The surety agrees that such reduction in or partial release Surety of any of its obligations to ANCHORAGE SCHOOL	e of retainage to the Contractor shall not relieve the DL DISTRICT, OWNER
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Surety Company has here	eunto set its hand this
day of	
	Name of Surety Company
Attest	Signature of Authorized Representative
	Title
ASDF Form 105	

#### CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

No final payment shall be made until the Contractor shall file with the Owner, prior to acceptance of the work, a notarized Certification of Compliance in the following form:

\*\*\*\*\*\*

The Contractor does hereby certify that all work has been performed and materials supplied in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications and Contract Documents for the above work, and that:

No less than the prevailing rates of wages as ascertained by the governing body of the Contracting Agency has been paid to laborers, workmen and mechanics employed on this work;

There have been no unauthorized substitutions of Subcontractors; nor have any subcontracts been entered into without prior notice having been submitted to the Owner prior to the start of such subcontracted work;

No subcontract was assigned or transferred or performed by any Subcontractor other than the original Subcontractor, without prior notice having been submitted to the Owner together with the names of all Subcontractors;

All claims for material and labor and other paid service performed in connection with these specifications have been paid;

All monies due the State Industrial Accident Fund, the State Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund, the State Tax Commission, Hospital Associations and/or others have been paid.

day of	, 20
	(Firm Name)
	(Signature)
	(Title)
(Attest)	
(SEAL IF BIDDER IS A COR	PORATION)

In WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has signed and sealed this instrument this

As determined necessary, evidence of compliance may be required to be submitted with and made a part of this Certificate of Compliance.

#### WARRANTY OF WORK

Prior to Final Payment, the Contractor shall furnish t	o the Owner a Warranty of Work in the following form:
*****	******

The Contractor does hereby warrant all work and materials to be in full and complete accordance with the Contract Documents and Agreement between Owner and Contractor, and requirements appertaining thereto; that all work and materials are free from any and all defects and imperfections, and fully suitable for the use and purposes for which each and every part is intended. The Contractor also agrees that, should any defect develop or appear which the Project Manager or Owner's Representative finds was Not caused by improper use, the Contractor shall promptly, upon demand, fully correct, substitute and make good any such defective material without any cost to the Owner and will save the Owner harmless against any claim, demand, loss or damage by reason of any breach of this warranty.

The period of this warranty shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion.

The warranty shall continue to be in full force and effect for the period of one (1) year, except for those items for which a longer period of warranty is specifically stated in the Warranties for work in Technical Sections of the Specifications.

Warranties for work stated in Technical Section shall continue in full force and effect for the respective periods expressly stated.

In WITNESS WHERE, the $\ensuremath{\text{\textbf{u}}}$	undersigned has signed and sealed this instrument this
day of	, 20
	(Firm Name)
	(Signature)
	(Title
(Attest)	
(SEAL IF BIDDER IS A CO	RPORATION)

# **AHERA Exclusion Document**

Contractor's Verification of Asbestos-Free Construction

Projec	t:	Project Number:
Contr	actor:	Date:
То:	Anchorage School District Facilities Coordinator, AHERA LEA Designated Person	
To the	best of our knowledge, no asbestos-contagoject.	ining building materials were installed in
Attest:	Signature of Authorized Representative	-
	Title	
	•	

Department of Labor and Workforce Development Labor Standards and Safety Division Wage and Hour Administration www.labor.state.ak.us/lss/lss.htm



- This form must be typed or printed in ink.
- Fill in all blanks or form will be returned for correction (see back).
- Please allow a minimum of 30 working days for processing.

	$\downarrow$
ENTER YOUR FAX #	
AND LIST YOUR MAILING ADDRESS BELOW	

Contractor, company or agency name, address, city, state & ZIP + 4

# NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS

Additional Filing Fee May Be Required		
Project Name		Contract #
Contract awarding agency		
Address		
City	State	ZIP + 4
Contract awarding agency contact p	person	Phone #
Location and city where work was	performed	
DOLWD Project #		

Project Completion Date

Primary contractor (has contract with the public agency)

IF YOU HAVE ALREADY PAID \$5,000 IN FEES FOR THIS PROJECT, OR IF YOU PREVIOUSLY PAID ALL FEES DUE AND DID NOT HAVE ANY INCREASES IN CONTRACT AMOUNTS ENTER "NONE" AND, SKIP TO CERTIFICATION. OTHERWISE, DESCRIBE ADDITIONAL WORK.

DESCRIBE ADDITIONAL WORK:				
Description of additional contract/subcontract work performed	Name of contractor who performed this work	Amount of subcontract		
CERTIFICATION: I hereby certify that the above information is correct. Enclosed is the additional filing fee	Total value of additional subcontracts	s		
computed at 1% of the total amount of all new contracts on this project, including the contract price of new work	Additional value of work performed by primary contractor +	\$		
performed by the primary contractor not previously reported	Amount subject to fee	s		
on the Notice of Work, up to a maximum of \$5,000. I also certify that all contractors who worked on this project		Multiply by .01		
complied with prevailing wage requirements as described in	Supplemental fee enclosed =	s		
AS 36.05.010110 and AS 36.10.007990.	ROUND FEES TO NEAREST DOLLAR			
	For Dept. Use Only			
Signature Date				
Title	Amount: Check Number:			
Title	Received By:I	Date:		
Fax # Phone #	Credit Card Confirmation			
_	Visa MC			
For Dept. Use Only	Project Name			
T-36 Clearance Approved	DOLWD Project #			
By	Wage & Hour date-stamped copy of this form veceipt.	will serve as temporary		

D:\ie-temp\Temporary Internet Files\OLKF4\noticecompletionpublicworks.doc

(6/27/03)

# How to expedite the processing of your form:

### ERRORS THAT CAUSE REJECTION

No fee included or incorrect amount. If total contract amount is less than \$25,000 no filing fee is required. Contract amounts paid to owner/operators with no employees are exempt from the fee. The maximum total filing fee for any one project is \$5,000.00.

Missing - Value of work performed by primary contractor.

Missing – The name of each **NEW** subcontractor and the amount of the contract OR the name of existing subcontractors and the amount of any **NEW** work not previously reported on the Notice of Work.

Missing - Notice of Completion of Public Works must be signed by an authorized representative.

# FILING INSTRUCTIONS

Additional fees are required for any increase in contract value, unless the maximum fee (\$5,000) has been paid.

If there is not enough space to list all required information on one form, use additional sheets. Please indicate at the top of each sheet "Page 1 of 2", "Page 2 of 2", etc. No other attachments will be accepted.

A Wage and Hour Administration (WH) date-stamped copy of this form will serve as a temporary receipt, while the acceptance of fees is processed. WH will mail or fax the approved copy of this form to the organization provided on the front of this form. Make a copy for your records. This will serve as your notice that the fees paid have been accepted by WH.

For questions call the nearest WH office:

Juneau: (907) 465-4842 Anchorage: (907) 269-4900 Fairbanks: (907) 451-2886

For more forms, see www.labor.state.ak.us/lss/lssforms.htm

Submit the notice and the appropriate filing fee to:

Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development Wage and Hour Administration 3301 Eagle Street, Ste. 301 Anchorage, AK 99503-4149

If no fee is required, you may fax the notice to (907) 269-4915

D:\ie-temp\Temporary Internet Files\OLKF4\noticecompletionpublicworks.doc

(6/27/03)

# Alaska Department of Revenue TAX CLEARANCE REQUEST FORM

N6SN:	
lailing Address;	
lity/State/Zip Code:	
hereby authorize the Alaska Department of Revenue to release to	
(Name of Department or Agency)	_
Departments Statute on fax elearance:	
whose facsimile number or email address is	
confirmation that all taxes, penalties and interest due the Department of Revenue have	ь Бееті
oaid and that there are no outstanding amounts due.	
Signed:	
Printed Name:	
Title*:	
If tax elearance is being requested on behalf of a corporation/LLC/partnership, must be signed by afficer/member/partner.  Send completed form by email to the Department of Revenue at DOR fax accounting:	
DEPARTMENT USE ONLY	
The above applicant is current on all taxes, penalties and interest due and is in good standing with the Alaska Department of Revenue.	
The above applicant is not current on all taxes, penalties and interest due and is not in good standing with the Alaska Department of Revenue.	
Department of Revenue Representative Date	



# Department of Labor and Workforce Development

Division of Employment and Training Services Employment Security Tax

P.O. Box 115509 Juneau, AK 99811-5509 Relay Alaska (In state): (800) 770-8973 or 7.1.1 Relay Alaska (out of state): (800) 770-8255 Toll free: (888) 448-2937 Phone: (907) 465-2787 Fax: (907) 465-2374

# Tax Clearance Request Form for Contractors

Date of request:			
Business name of the contractor a Tax Clearance is being requested for:			
Business address:			
Business contact phone number:			
Federal Identification Number:			
Alaska Employer Account Number:			
Specific time period a tax clearance is being requested for (i.e. beginning and ending date of a subsantra	at agreement);		
Subcontract project name:			
Name and address of the person this Tax Clearance is to be returned to:			
Comments or additional information:			
For agency use only:			
☐ Tax Clearance is granted			
Tax Clearance is not granted (please base employer contact the department)			
No account on file, liability unknown (please base employer contact the department)			
Employer has stated no employees, Tax Clearance not required.			
Agency representative signature:	Date:		
Agency representative title:			

We are an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. Jabor.alaska.gov/estax

Rev. 8/2018

Project Title:	Project Number:

PROJECT CLOSEOUT CHECKLIST	Number Required	Number & Date Delivered
Inspection Documents		
Substantial Completion Inspection Documents	1	
Substantial Completion Punch List	1	
Final Inspection Documents	1	
Final Inspection Punch List	1	
Certificate of Substantial Completion (ASD Form 101)	1	
Contractor Submittals		
As-built drawings to Engineer of Record (Section 01700)	1	
All project record documents (Section 01720)	1	
Maintenance and Operations Manuals – Electronic version – OCR pdf (Section 01730)	1	
Warranty and Special Warranty Manuals (Section 01730)	4	
Certificate of Domestic Water Disinfection (Section 01700)	2	
Warranty of Work (Section 01750)	1	
Certificate of Compliance (Section 01750)	1	
Building Officials Certificate of Mechanical and Electrical Inspection	3	
Building Official's Certificate of Occupancy	3	
Building Official's Certificate of Completion	3	
AHERA Response Action Report (RAR)	1	
AHERA Exclusion Document (Section 00630)	1	
Return school keys to lock shop	1	
Lock Shop Release Form (signed)	1	

Project Number:\_\_\_\_\_

PROJECT CLOSEOUT CHECKLIST	Number Required	Number & Date Delivered
Contractor's Affidavit of Payment of Debts and Claims ASD Form102)	1	
Consent of Surety Company to Final Payment (ASD Form 104)	1	
Release on Contract (ASD Form 103)	1	
Consent of Surety to Reduction in/or Partial Release of Retainage (ASD Form 105)	1	
Engineered As-built drawings and special system drawings on reproducible CD's (not zipped)	1	
Engineered As-built drawings and special system drawings on bond/blacklines	2	
Spare Parts deliverables	1	
Copy of Warranty for all items with Extended Warranty	1	
Notice of Completion of Public Works (Section 00630) (Approved DOL Clearance Form)	1	
Dept. of Revenue Tax Clearance Form (Section 00630) (Approved DOR Tax Clearance Form)	1	
Dept. of Labor Tax Clearance Form (Section 00630) (Approved DOL Tax Clearance Form)	1	
Apprenticeship Program - Purchasing release for final payment (projects over \$100,000)		
Final Application and Certificate for Payment (ASD Form 100A-C)	1	
Base Access Pass(s) returned to Project Manager		NA
Project Manager Signature		Date

Project Title:

#### UTILITY LOCATION REQUIREMENTS

### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Upon receipt of written notification from any of public agencies or utilities that Contractor has caused damage to any facility, equipment or installation of agency, and Contractor failed to request a utility locate service from said utility at least two (2) normal business days prior to damage, or if locate services was properly requested, that damage was not approximately caused by error in locate service, Owner will withhold from forthcoming or accrued Contract payment, including advances, a sum sufficient to protect agency or utility from loss. Public agencies or utilities that provide notice of facility damage under this paragraph are:

Anchorage Water and Wastewater Utility Alaska Communications Systems Alaska Fiber Star Alaska Native Medical Center Alaska Railroad Corporation Alyeska Cable / TelAlaska Anchorage School District Aircraft Service International Group AT&T Alascom Chugach Electric Association, Inc. Department of Transportation Street Lights, State of Alaska Enstar Natural Gas Company Flint Hills Resources/Williams Alaska Pipeline GCI Cable Matanuska Electric Association Matanuska Telephone Association Municipality of Anchorage/Department of Public Works Municipal Light & Power Utility Tesoro Alaska Inc.

B. Upon receipt of release of claim by notifying utility or upon judgment of a court having jurisdiction in matter and having established that Contractor is liable for a lesser amount or is not liable for damage, Owner will release excess funds to Contractor. Funds withheld pursuant to this provision shall not bear interest. Upon receipt of satisfactory evidence against Contractor in court of competent jurisdiction within sixty (60) days after discovery of damage, Owner shall release funds withheld pursuant to this provision.

#### 1.02 PROTECTION OF UTILITIES

- A. Any pipes or other utilities encountered in excavation shall be shored up and cared for by Contractor as to leave them in a proper working condition until such times as Owner determines what shall be done with them.
- B. Any utilities mislocated or inadequately located by appropriate utility company which are damaged by Contractor shall not constitute reimbursement or time extensions to Contractor from Owner for repair(s) of work that Contractor performs.
- C. Contractor shall coordinate his work to cooperate with original utility service installed.

# PART 2. PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3. EXECUTION (NOT USED)

### **DEMOLITION**

## PART 1. GENERAL

### 1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

A. The extent of building demolition work is shown on drawings.

#### 1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 01010: Summary of Work.
- B. Section 01045: Cutting and Patching (where required).
- C. Section 01120: Alteration Project Procedures (where required).

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

A. Submit proposed methods and operations of demolition for review prior to start of work. Include in schedule coordination for shut-off and continuation of utility services as required.

### 1.04 JOB CONDITIONS

- A. Occupancy: Areas to be demolished are or will be vacated and discontinued in use prior to start of work. However, where applicable other parts of the building or site project may remain occupied, requiring contractor to conduct demolition to minimize interference with adjacent areas. Maintain protected egress and access at all times.
- B. Conditions of Structures: The Owner assumes no responsibility for actual condition of structures to be demolished.
- C. Conditions existing at the time of inspection for bidding purposes will be maintained by Owner insofar as practicable. However, variations may occur by removal and salvage operations by Owner prior to the start of the demolition work.
- D. Traffic: Conduct demolition operations and removal of debris to ensure minimum interference with adjacent occupied or used facilities.
- E. Protections: Ensure safe passage of persons around area of demolition. Conduct operations to prevent injury to adjacent structures to prevent excess dust and debris from entering occupied areas.
- F. Damages: Promptly repair damages caused to adjacent facilities by demolition operations at no cost to the Owner.
- G. Utility Services: Maintain existing utilities which must remain operational and protect them against damage during demolition operations.

# PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 SALVABLE MATERIALS

A. Where the documents indicate a reuse of existing materials or equipment, the Contractor may furnish similar and equal new materials or equipment at his option.

- B. Items to be reused shall be removed, stored, and protected until reuse. Care shall be taken to prevent excessive damage to salvable materials. Items to be reused are shown on the drawings.
- C. Items of salvable value to be removed and not noted to remain the property of the Owner will belong to Contractor, with salvage value of substantial items to be reflected in proposal.
- D. Reuse items may be stored on site in locations as directed by Owner.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

### 3.01 PREPARATION

- A. Pollution Controls: Use temporary enclosures and other suitable methods to limit dust and dirt rising and scattering in air.
- B. Protect existing items which are not indicated to be altered, and promptly repair damage caused by demolition operation.
- C. Disconnect, remove, and cap designated utility services. Identify and indicate capping locations on Project Record Documents.

### 3.02 PERFORMANCE

- A. Demolish in an orderly and careful manner. Where applicable protect existing supporting structural members and adjacent areas not affected by this work.
- B. Immediately remove demolished materials from site.
- C. Materials for salvage may not be sold on the site.
- D. Do not burn or bury materials on site.
- E. Clean adjacent structures and improvements of dust, dirt, and debris caused by demolition operations, as directed. Return adjacent areas to condition existing prior to the start of work.

### COMMON WORK RESULTS FOR ELECTRICAL

### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. General Requirements specifically applicable to Division 26, in addition to MASS B Division 10 provisions.
- B. The electrical system equipment and installation shall comply with all provisions and requirements of this specification, as well as any and all applicable national, state and local codes and standards.

### 1.03 WORK SEQUENCE

A. Construct Work in sequence under provisions of MASS B Division 10.

# 1.04 COORDINATION

- A. Coordinate the Work specified in this Division under provisions of MASS B Division 10.
- B. Prepare drawings showing proposed rearrangement of Work to meet job conditions, including changes to Work specified under other Sections. Obtain permission of Architect prior to proceeding.

#### 1.05 REFERENCES

- A. ANSI/NFPA 70 National Electrical Code, latest adopted edition including all state and local amendments.
- B. NECA Standard of Installation.
- C. NETA ATS Acceptance Testing Specifications for Electrical Power Distribution Equipment and Systems.
- D. ANSI/IEEE C2 National Electrical Safety Code latest adopted edition.
- E. Electrical Reference Symbols: The Electrical "Legend" on drawings is standardized version for this project. All symbols shown may not be used on drawings. Use legend as reference for symbols used on plans.
- F. Electrical Drawings: Drawings are diagrammatic; complimentary to the Architectural drawings; not intended to show all features of work. Install material not dimensioned on

drawings in a manner to provide a symmetrical appearance. Do not scale drawings for exact equipment locations. Review Architectural, Civil, Structural, and Mechanical Drawings and adjust work to conform to conditions shown thereon. Field verification of dimensions, locations and levels is directed.

#### 1.06 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

- Conform to ANSI/NFPA 70.
- B. Conform to the latest adopted edition of the International Building Code and the International Fire Code including all state and local amendments thereto.
- C. Obtain electrical permits, plan review, and inspections from authority having jurisdiction.

## 1.07 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittal review is for general design and arrangement only and does not relieve the Contractor from any requirements of Contract Documents. Submittal not checked for quantity, dimension, fit or proper operation. Where deviations of substitute product or system performance have not been specifically noted in the submittal by the Contractor, provisions of a complete and satisfactory working installation are the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- B. In addition to requirements referenced in MASS B Division 10, the following is required for work provided under this division of the specification.
  - Provide material and equipment submittals containing complete listings of material and equipment shown on Electrical Drawings and specified herein. Separate from work furnished under other divisions.
  - 2. Submittals shall be provided in PDF format with each section indexed in the PDF document. Submittals for Division 26 shall be complete and submitted at one time. Unless given prior approval, partial submittals will be returned unreviewed.
  - 3. Clearly identify all material and equipment by item, name or designation used on drawings and in specifications.
  - 4. Submit only pages which are pertinent; mark catalog sheets to identify pertinent products, referenced to Specification Section and Article number. Show reference standards, performance characteristics, and capacities; wiring diagrams and controls; component parts; finishes; dimensions; and required clearances.
  - 5. Modify manufacturer's standard schematic drawings and diagrams to supplement standard information and to provide information specifically applicable to the work. Delete information not applicable.
  - 6. Review submittals prior to transmittal; determine and verify field measurements, field construction criteria, manufacturer's catalog numbers, and conformance of submittal with requirements of Contract Documents.
  - 7. Coordinate submittals with requirements of work and of Contract Documents.
  - 8. Certify in writing that the submitted shop drawings and product data are in compliance with requirements of Contract Documents. Notify Architect/Engineer in writing at time of submittal, of any deviations from requirements of Contract Documents.
  - 9. Do not fabricate products or begin work which requires submittals until return of submittal with Architect/Engineer acceptance.
  - 10. Equipment scheduled by manufacturer's name and catalog designations, manufacturer's published data and/or specification for that item, in effect on bid date, are considered part of this specification. Approval of other manufacturer's item proposed is contingent upon compliance therewith.

# 1.08 SUBSTITUTIONS

A. In accordance with the General Conditions and the General Requirements, Substitution and Product Options, all substitute items must fit in the available space, and be of equal or

better quality including efficiency performance, size, and weight, and must be compatible with existing equipment.

# 1.09 PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS

- A. Maintain project record drawings in accordance with MASS B Division 10.
- B. In addition to the other requirements, mark up a clean set of drawings as the work progresses to show the dimensioned location and routing of all electrical work which will become permanently concealed. Show routing of work in permanently concealed blind spaces within the building. Show complete routing and sizing of any significant revisions to the systems shown.
- C. Record drawing field mark-ups shall be maintained on-site and shall be available for examination by the Owner's Representative at all times.

### 1.10 OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS

- A. Provide operating and maintenance manuals for training of Owner's Representative in operation and maintenance of systems and related equipment. In addition to requirements referenced in MASS B, the following is required for work provided under this section of the specifications.
- B. Manuals shall be separate from work furnished under other divisions. Prepare a separate chapter for instruction of each class of equipment or system. Index and clearly identify each chapter and provide a table of contents.
- C. Unless otherwise noted in MASS B Division 10, provide one copy of all material for approval.
- D. The following is the suggested outline for operating and maintenance manuals and is presented to indicate the extent of items required in manuals.
  - List chapters of information comprising the text. The following is a typical Table of Contents:
    - a. Electrical power distribution.
    - b. Lighting.
    - c. IP Videop system.
    - d. Other chapters as necessary.
  - Provide the following items in sequence for each chapter shown in Table of Contents:
    - a. Describe the procedures necessary for personnel to operate the system including start-up, operation, emergency operation and shutdown.
      - 1) Give complete instructions for energizing equipment and making initial settings and adjustments whenever applicable.
      - 2) Give step-by-step instructions for shutdown procedure if a particular sequence is required.
      - 3) Include test results of all tests required by this and other sections of the specifications.
    - b. Maintenance Instructions:
      - 1) Provide instructions and a schedule of preventive maintenance, in tabular form, for all routine cleaning and inspection with recommended lubricants if required for the following:
        - a) Lighting fixtures.
        - b) Distribution equipment.
        - c) IP Video systems.

- 2) Provide instructions for minor repair or adjustments required for preventive maintenance routines, limited to repairs and adjustments which may be performed without special tools or test equipment and which requires no special training or skills.
- 3) Provide manufacturers' descriptive literature including approved shop drawings covering devices used in system, together with illustrations, exploded views, etc. Also include special devices provided by the Contractor.
- 4) Provide any information of a maintenance nature covering warranty items, etc., which have not been discussed elsewhere.
- 5) Include list of all equipment furnished for project, where purchased, technical representative if applicable and a local parts source with a tabulation of descriptive data of all electrical-electronic spare parts and all mechanical spare parts proposed for each type of equipment or system. Properly identify each component by part number and manufacturer.
- c. Inspection Certificate: Include copy of certificate of final inspection and acceptance from the Authority Having Jurisdiction.

### 1.11 DEMONSTRATION OF ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

- A. During substantial completion inspection:
  - Demonstrate installation to operate satisfactorily in accordance with requirements of Contract Documents.
  - Should any portion of installation fail to meet requirements of Contract Documents, repair or replace items failing to meet requirements until items can be demonstrated to comply.
  - 3. Have instruments available for measuring light intensities, voltage and current values, and for demonstration of continuity, grounds, or open circuit conditions.
  - 4. Provide personnel to assist in taking measurements and making tests.

# 1.12 WARRANTY

- A. In addition to the requirements of MASS B Division 10, or as specified in other sections. Warrant all materials, installation and workmanship for one (1) year from date of acceptance.
- B. Copies of manufacturer product warranties for all equipment shall be included in the operation and installation manuals.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

# 2.01 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

- A. All Materials and Equipment shall be new.
- B. All Materials and Equipment shall be listed by Underwriter's Laboratories or equivalent third party listing agency for the use intended.
- C. Materials and Equipment shall be acceptable to the authority having jurisdiction as suitable for the use intended when installed per listing and labeling instructions.
- D. No materials or equipment containing asbestos in any form shall be used. Where materials or equipment provided by this Contractor are found to contain asbestos such items shall be removed and replaced with non-asbestos containing materials and equipment at no cost to the Owner.
- E. In describing the various items of equipment, in general, each item will be described singularly, even though there may be numerous similar items.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

# 3.01 WORKMANSHIP

A. Install Work using procedures defined in NECA Standard of Installation and/or the manufacturer's installation instructions.

# 3.02 PENETRATIONS OF FIRE BARRIERS

- A. All holes or voids created to extend electrical systems through fire rated floors, walls or ceiling shall be sealed with an asbestos-free intumescent fire stopping material capable of expanding 8 to 10 times when exposed to temperatures 250°F or higher.
- B. Materials shall be suitable for the fire stopping of penetrations made by steel, glass, plastic and shall be capable of maintaining an effective barrier against flame, smoke and gases in compliance with the requirements of ASTM E814 and UL 1479.
- C. The rating of the fire stops shall be the same as the time-rated floor, wall or ceiling assembly.
- D. Install fire stopping materials in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.

# LOW-VOLTAGE ELECTRICAL POWER CONDUCTORS AND CABLES

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Building Wire.
- B. Cable.
- C. Wiring Connections and Terminations.

#### 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

A. Section 26 05 53 – Identification for Electrical Systems.

#### 1.04 REFERENCES

- A. ANSI/NEMA WC 70-2021 Power Cables Rated 2000 Volts or Less for the Distribution of Electrical Energy.
- B. NETA ATS Acceptance testing specifications for Electrical Power Distribution and Systems.
- C. NFPA 262 Standard Method of test for flame travel and smoke of wires and cables for use in air-handling spaces.
- D. UL 83 Thermoplastic Insulated Wire and Cable.
- E. UL 1063 Standard for Machine and Tool Wire and Cable.
- F. UL 1479 Standard for Fire Tests of Through Wall Penetration Fire Stops.
- G. UL 1581 Reference Standard for Electrical Wires, Cables and Flexible Cords.

#### 1.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit data under provisions of MASS B Division 10 and Section 26 05 00.
- B. Product Data: Submit product data for all components provided which fall under this section showing configurations, finishes, and dimensions. Each catalog sheet should be clearly marked to indicate exact part number provided, including all options and accessories.

#### 1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Provide wiring materials located in plenums with peak optical density not greater than 0.5, average optical density not greater than 0.15, and flame spread not greater than 5 feet (1.5m) when tested in accordance with NFPA 262.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 BUILDING WIRE

- A. Thermoplastic-insulated Building Wire: NEMA WC 70.
- B. Feeders and Branch Circuits Larger Than 6 AWG: Copper.
- C. Feeders and Branch Circuits 6 AWG and Smaller: Copper conductor, 6 and 8 AWG, stranded conductor; smaller than 8 AWG, solid or stranded conductor.
- D. Insulation Type: 600 volt insulation.
  - 1. Interior Locations: THHN/THWN or XHHW-2. THW may be used for feeders and branch circuits larger than 6AWG.
  - 2. Exterior Locations: XHHW-2.

#### E. Branch Circuit Wire Color Code:

- 1. Color code wires by line or phase as follows:
  - a. Black, red, blue and white for 120/208V systems.
  - b. Brown, orange, yellow and gray for 277/480V systems.
- 2. For conductors 6 AWG and smaller, insulation shall be colored. For conductors 4 AWG and larger, identify with colored phase tape at all terminals, splices, and boxes.
- 3. Grounding conductors 6 AWG and smaller shall have green colored insulation. For 4 AWG and larger, use green tape at both ends and at all other visible points in between, including pull and junction boxes.

# 2.02 WIRING CONNECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS

- A. For conductors 8 AWG and smaller:
  - 1. Dry interior areas: Spring wire connectors, pre-insulated "twist-on" rated 105 degrees C per UL 468C. Where stranded conductors are terminated on screw type terminals, install crimp insulated fork or ring terminals. Thomas & Betts Sta-Kon or equal.
  - 2. Wet or exterior: Spring wire connectors, pre-insulated "twist-on", resin filled rated for direct burial per UL 486D.
  - 3. Luminaires: UL listed, 4A, 600V, luminaire disconnect with tin-plated brass contacts, finger-safe polycarbonate female housing, 105° C temperature rating, and two or three-pole configuration to match load served.
- B. For conductors 6 AWG and larger:
  - 1. Bus lugs and bolted connections: 600 V, 90 degrees C., two hole long barrel irreversible compression copper tin plated. Thomas & Betts or approved equal.
  - 2. Two way connector for splices or taps: 600 V, 90 degrees C., compression long barrel, copper tin plated. Thomas & Betts or approved equal. Insulate with Scotch 23 rubber insulating base covering and Scotch 33+ outer wrap.

# PART 3. EXECUTION

# 3.01 GENERAL WIRING METHODS

A. Use no wire smaller than 10 AWG for power and lighting circuits.

- B. Splice only in junction or outlet boxes.
- C. Neatly train and lace wiring inside boxes and equipment.
- D. Make Conductor lengths for parallel circuits equal.
- E. Wiring in lighting fixture channels shall be rated for 90° C minimum.
- F. Do not share neutral conductors. Provide a dedicated neutral conductor for each branch circuit that requires a neutral.

#### 3.02 WIRING INSTALLATION IN RACEWAYS

- A. Pull all conductors into a raceway at the same time. Verify that raceway is complete and properly supported prior to pulling conductors.
- B. Install wire in raceway after interior of building has been physically protected from the weather and all mechanical work likely to injure conductors has been completed.
- C. Do not install XHHW-2 conductors when ambient temperatures are below 23F and THHN/THWN conductors when ambient temperatures are below 32F.
- D. Conductors shall be carefully inspected for insulation defects and protected from damage as they are installed in the raceway. Where the insulation is defective or damaged, the cable section shall be repaired or replaced at the discretion of the Owner and at no additional cost to the Owner.
- E. Place an equal number of conductors for each phase of a circuit in same raceway or cable.
- F. Route conductors from each system in independent raceway system and not intermix in the same raceway, enclosure, or junction box as another system unless otherwise shown on the plans.
- G. No more than six current carrying conductors shall be installed in any homerun unless otherwise indicated on the drawings or without prior approval from the Engineer.
- H. Completely and thoroughly swab raceway system before installing conductors.
- I. When two or more neutrals are installed in one conduit, identify each with the proper circuit number in accordance with Section 26 05 53.

#### 3.03 CABLE INSTALLATION

- A. Provide protection for exposed cables where subject to damage.
- B. Support cables above accessible ceilings; do not rest on ceiling tiles. Use spring metal clips or cable ties to support cables from structure. Do not support cables from ceiling suspension system. Include bridle rings or drive rings.
- C. Use suitable cable fittings and connectors.

#### 3.04 WIRING CONNECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS

- A. Stranded wire shall not be wrapped around screw terminals.
- B. Splice only in accessible junction boxes.
- C. Thoroughly clean wires before installing lugs and connectors.
- D. Make splices, taps and terminations to carry full ampacity of conductors without perceptible temperature rise.
- E. Terminate spare conductors with twist on connectors or heat shrink insulation to proper voltage rating.
- F. Control systems wiring in conjunction with mechanical, electrical or miscellaneous equipment to be identified in accordance with wiring diagrams furnished with equipment.

# LOW-VOLTAGE ELECTRICAL POWER CONDUCTORS AND CABLES Division 26 Section 26 05 19

- G. Code sound and signal systems wiring and any special equipment in accordance with manufacturer's diagrams or recommendations.
- H. Do not exceed manufacturer's recommended pull tensions.
- 3.05 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL
  - A. Field inspection and testing will be performed under provisions of Mass B Division 10.
  - B. Inspect wire and cable for physical damage and proper connection.
  - C. Torque conductor connections and terminations to manufacturer's recommended values.
- 3.06 WIRE AND CABLE INSTALLATION SCHEDULE
  - A. All Locations: Building wire in raceways.

#### GROUNDING AND BONDING FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Power System Grounding.

#### 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. The Work under this section is subject to requirements of the Contract Documents including the General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and sections under MASS B Division 10, Section 26 05 00 Common Work Results for Electrical, Division 27 and Division 28.
- B. Section 26 05 19 Low-Voltage Electrical Power Conductors and Cables.

#### 1.04 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ANSI/NEMA GR-1, Ground Rod Electrodes and Ground Rod Electrode Couplings.
- B. ASTM B 3 Standard Specification for Soft or Annealed Copper Wire.
- C. AWS A5.8/A5.8M Specification for Filler Metals for Brazing and Braze Welding.
- D. IEEE Std 81 Guide for Measuring Earth Resistivity, Ground Impedance, and Earth Surface Potentials of a Ground System.
- E. IEEE Std 142 Recommended Practice for Grounding of Industrial and Commercial Power System.
- F. UL 467 Standard for Grounding and Bonding Equipment.

# 1.05 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

A. Provide a complete grounding system for services and equipment as required by State and Local Codes, NEC, applicable portions of other NFPA codes, and as indicated herein.

#### 1.06 SUBMITTALS

Section 26 05 26

A. Product Data: Submit product data for all components provided, showing material type and dimensions. Each catalog sheet should be clearly marked to indicate exact part number provided, including all options and accessories.

#### 1.07 COORDINATION

A. MASS B Division 10 Requirements for Coordination.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

# 2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Solid Ground Rods: ANSI/NEMA GR-1, copper-encased steel, ¾ inch diameter, minimum length 10 feet. Ground rods shall be clean and smooth.
- B. Bonding Conductors: Solid bare copper wire for sizes No. 8 AWG and smaller diameter. Stranded bare copper wire for sizes No. 6 AWG and larger diameter. Conductors may be insulated conductors if used provide green insulation.
- C. Grounding Conductors: Copper conductor bare or green insulated.
- D. Mechanical Grounding and Bonding Connectors: Non-reversible crimp type lugs only. Use factory made compression lug for all terminations.
- E. In external locations, clamping shall be used only where a disconnect type of connection is required. Connection device may utilize threaded fasteners and shall be constructed such that positive contact pressure shall be maintained at all times. Machine bolts with lock washers shall be used.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Provide a separate, insulated equipment-grounding conductor in all feeder and branch circuits. Terminate each end on a grounding lug, bus, or bushing. Multiple conductors on single lug not permitted. Each grounding conductor shall terminate on its own terminal lug.
- B. Supplementary Grounding Electrode: Use driven ground rod in main service equipment area.
- C. Provide grounding and bonding at Utility Company's metering equipment.
- D. Bond together system neutrals, service equipment enclosures, exposed non-current carrying metal parts of electrical equipment, metal raceway systems, grounding conductor in raceways and cables.
- E. Grounding conductors for branch circuits shall be sized in accordance with NEC, except minimum size grounding conductor shall be No. 10 AWG.
- F. Grounding conductor is in addition to neutral conductor and in no case shall neutral conductor serve as grounding means.
- G. Ground rods shall be installed so that the top of the rod is not less than 12 inches below finished grade. Conceal after inspection.

#### 3.02 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A. Inspect grounding and bonding system conductors and connections for tightness and proper installation.

# HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 and MASS B for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Section included hangers and supports for Power Systems, Communication Systems and and IP Video Systems.
- B. Conduit Supports.
- C. Formed Steel Channel.
- D. Spring Steel Clips.
- E. Sleeves.
- F. Mechanical Sleeve Seals.
- G. Equipment Bases and Supports.

#### 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

A. The Work under this section is subject to requirements of the Contract Documents including the General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and sections under MASS B Division 10, and Section 26 05 00 – Common Work Results for Electrical, Division 27 and Division 28.

# 1.04 REFERENCES

A. International Building Code (IBC), Chapter 16 – Structural Design.

## 1.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. MASS B: Requirements for submittals.
- B. Product Data: Submit product data for specialty supports.

#### 1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Support systems shall be adequate for weight of equipment and conduit, including wiring, which they carry.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

# 2.01 CONDUIT SUPPORTS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Allied Tube & Conduit Corp.
  - 2. Minerallac Fastening Systems.
  - 3. O-Z Gedney Co.
  - 4. Substitutions: per Division 1
- B. Hanger Rods: Threaded high tensile strength galvanized carbon steel with free running threads.
- C. Beam Clamps: Malleable Iron, with tapered hole in base and back to accept either bolt or hanger rod. Set screw: hardened steel.
- D. Conduit clamps for trapeze hangers: Galvanized steel, notched to fit trapeze with single bolt to tighten.
- E. Conduit clamps general purpose: One-hole malleable iron for surface mounted conduits.
- F. Cable Ties: High strength nylon temperature rated to 185 degrees F. self-locking.

# 2.02 FORMED STEEL CHANNEL

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. B-Line Systems.
  - 2. Allied Tube & Conduit Corp.
  - 3. Unistrut Corp.
  - 4. Substitutions: per Division 1.
- B. Product Description: Galvanized 12 gage thick steel. With holes 1-1/2 inches on center.

#### 2.03 SLEEVES

- A. Sleeves Through Non-fire Rated Floors: 18 gage thick galvanized steel.
- B. Sleeves Through Non-fire Rated Beams, Walls, Footings, and Potentially Wet Floors: Steel pipe or 18 gage thick galvanized steel.
- C. Sleeves Through Fire Rated and Fire Resistive Floors and Walls, and Fire Proofing: Prefabricated fire rated sleeves including seals, UL listed.
- D. Fire-stopping Insulation: Glass fiber type, non-combustible.

# 2.04 MECHANICAL SLEEVE SEALS

A. Product Description: Modular mechanical type, consisting of interlocking synthetic rubber links shaped to continuously fill annular space between object and sleeve, connected with bolts and pressure plates causing rubber sealing elements to expand when tightened, providing watertight seal and electrical insulation.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

## 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Division 1: Verification of existing conditions before starting work.
- B. Verify openings are ready to receive sleeves.

## 3.02 PREPARATION

A. Obtain permission from Owner's Representative before using powder-actuated anchors.

B. Obtain permission from Owner's Representative before drilling or cutting structural members.

## 3.03 INSTALLATION - GENERAL

- A. Fasten hanger rods, conduit clamps, and outlet and junction boxes to building structure using precast insert system, expansion anchors, preset inserts, beam clamps, or spring steel clips.
- B. Use toggle bolts or hollow wall fasteners in hollow masonry partitions and walls; expansion anchors or preset inserts in solid masonry walls; self-drilling anchors or expansion anchor on concrete surfaces; sheet metal screws in sheet metal studs; and wood screws in wood construction.
- C. Do not support raceways, low voltage pathways, cables, telecommunication pathways or boxes from ceiling suspension wires or suspended ceiling systems. Provide support from building structure independently to allow ceiling removal and replacement without removal of electrical system. If dedicated support wires are used, wires and wire clips must be painted or color-coded.
- D. Do not fasten supports to piping, ductwork, mechanical equipment, conduit, or ceiling suspension system.
- E. Fabricate supports from structural steel or steel channel, rigidly welded or bolted to present a neat appearance. Use hexagon head bolts with spring lock washers under all nuts.
- F. Install surface-mounted cabinets and panelboards with minimum of four anchors.
- G. Bridge studs top and bottom with channels to support flush-mounted cabinets and panelboards in stud walls.
- H. Securely fasten fixtures and equipment to building structure in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations and to provide necessary earthquake anchorage.
- I. Provide wall attached fixtures and equipment weighing less than 50 pounds with backing plates of at least 1/8" x 10" sheet steel or 2" x 10" fire retardant treated wood securely built into the structural walls. Submit attachment details of heavier equipment for approval.
- J. Earthquake Anchorages:
  - 1. Equipment weighing more than 50 pounds shall be adequately anchored to structure to resist lateral earthquake forces.
  - 2. Total lateral (earthquake) forces shall be 1.5 times the equipment weight acting laterally in any direction through the equipment center of gravity. Provide adequate backing at structural attachment points to accept the forces involved.

# 3.04 INSTALLATION - SLEEVES

- A. Exterior watertight entries: Seal with adjustable interlocking rubber links.
- B. Conduit penetrations not required to be watertight: Sleeve and fill with silicon foam.
- C. Set sleeves in position in forms. Provide reinforcing around sleeves.
- D. Size sleeves large enough to allow for movement due to expansion and contraction. Provide for continuous insulation wrapping.
- E. Extend sleeves through floors 1 inch above finished floor level. Caulk sleeves.
- F. Where conduit or raceway penetrates floor, ceiling, or wall, close off space between conduit or raceway and adjacent work with insulation and caulk.

# HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS Division 26 Section 26 05 29

#### RACEWAY AND BOXES FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- Conduit.
- B. Boxes.

#### 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. The Work under this section is subject to requirements of the Contract Documents including the General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and sections under MASS B General Requirements, Division 26, Division 27 and Division 28.
- B. Section 26 05 19 Low-Voltage Electrical Power Conductors and Cables.
- C. Section 26 05 26 Grounding and Bonding for Electrical Systems.
- D. Section 26 05 29 Hangers and Supports for Electrical Systems.
- E. Section 26 05 53 Identification for Electrical Systems.
- F. Section 27 05 28 Pathways for Communication Systems.
- G. Section 27 10 00 Structured Cabling.

#### 1.04 REFERENCES

- A. American National Standards Institute (ANSI):
  - 1. ANSI C80.1 Rigid Steel Conduit, Zinc Coated.
  - 2. ANSI C80.3 Electrical Metallic Tubing, Zinc Coated.
- B. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM):
  - 1. ASTM A 123 Specification for Zinc Coatings on Products Fabricated from Rolled, Pressed, and Forged Steel Shapes, Plates, Bars and Strip.
- C. National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA):

- 1. NEMA FB 1 Fittings, Cast Metal Boxes, and Conduit Bodies for Conduit and Cable Assemblies.
- 2. NEMA OS 1 Sheet-Steel Outlet Boxes, Device Boxes, Covers, and Box Supports.
- 3. NEMA TC 3 PVC Fittings for Use with Rigid PVC Conduit and Tubing.
- 4. UL651B Continuous Length HDPE Conduit.
- 5. NEMA 250 Enclosures for Electrical Equipment (1000 Volts Maximum).
- D. Telecommunications Industry Association (TIA) and Electronics Industries Association (EIA):
  - 1. ANSI/TIA/EIA 568 Commercial Building Telecommunications Cabling Standard.
- E. Building Industry Consulting Service International (BICSI):
  - 1. BICSI Telecommunication Design Methods Manual.

#### 1.05 RACEWAY AND BOX INSTALLATION SCHEDULE

- A. Underground more than 5 feet from foundation wall:
  - 1. Raceway: Provide rigid steel conduit, intermediate metal conduit, PVC or HDPE. Schedule 40 PVC or HDPE shall be used in non-traffic areas, schedule 80 shall be used where subject to vehicle traffic.
  - 2. Boxes and Enclosures: Provide concrete type 1A handhole.
- B. Under concrete slab, or underground within 5 feet of foundation wall:
  - 1. Raceway: Provide rigid steel conduit, intermediate metal conduit, PVC or HDPE. All metal conduit in contact with concrete or block shall be rigid steel conduit half lapped wrapped with pipe wrap or be plastic-coated conduit. Provide transition to rigid steel conduit 12 inches prior to exit penetration through foundations, concrete walls, or block walls. Provide transition to rigid steel conduit elbow and riser for penetration through slab. Arrange raceway so the curved portion of bend is not visible above finished slab.
  - 2. Boxes and Enclosures: Provide concrete tight cast and listed sheet metal boxes.
- C. Outdoor Above Grade, Damp or Wet Interior Locations:
  - 1. Raceway: Provide rigid steel conduit or intermediate metal conduit.
  - 2. Boxes and Enclosures: Provide weatherproof malleable iron for branch circuit junction and outlet boxes. Provide weatherproof NEMA 3R sheet metal enclosures for safety and disconnect switches and NEMA 4 sheet metal enclosures with gaskets for motor controllers and control panels.
  - 3. Fittings: Provide galvanized malleable iron with gaskets. Provide Myers threaded hubs for all conduit entries into top and side of sheet metal enclosures.
- D. Concealed Dry Locations:
  - Raceway: Provide rigid steel conduit, intermediate metal conduit, or electrical metallic tubing.
  - 2. Boxes and Enclosures: Provide sheet-metal boxes.
  - 3. Fittings: Provide galvanized malleable iron and steel.
- E. Exposed Dry Locations:
  - 1. Raceway: Provide rigid steel conduit, intermediate metal conduit, or electrical metallic tubing.
  - 2. Boxes and Enclosures: Provide sheet-metal boxes with raised steel covers.
  - 3. Fittings: Provide galvanized malleable iron and steel.
- F. Branch Circuits and Feeders 100 Amperes or Larger:

- 1. Raceway: Provide rigid steel conduit or intermediate metal conduit.
- 2. Boxes and Enclosures: Provide sheet-metal boxes.
- 3. Fittings: Provide galvanized malleable iron and steel.

#### 1.06 DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

- A. Raceway Minimum Size:
  - 1. Below Grade: Provide 1 inch minimum, unless otherwise noted.
  - 2. Above Grade: Provide 1/2 inch minimum, unless otherwise noted.
  - 3. Line Voltage Circuits: Raceway is sized on the drawings for copper conductors with 600-Volt type XHHW insulation, unless otherwise noted. Where a raceway size is not shown on the drawings, it shall be calculated to not exceed the percentage fill specified in the NEC Table 1, Chapter 9 using the conduit dimensions of the NEC Table 4, Chapter 9 and conductor properties of the NEC Table 5. Chapter 9.
  - 4. Telecom and other Low-Voltage Circuits: Raceway size shall be calculated to not exceed the percentage fill specified in the NEC Table 1, Chapter 9, using the conduit dimensions of the NEC Table 4, Chapter 9, and cable diameter provided by the manufacturer.
- B. Box Minimum Size: Provide all boxes sized and configured per NEC Article 370 and as specified in this section.
- C. Telecommunication Pathways Layout and Configuration: BICSI Telecommunication Design Methods Manual and ANSI/TIA/EIA 568 Commercial Building Telecommunications Cabling Standard.

#### 1.07 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit product data under provisions of MASS B.
- B. Product Data: Submit data for products.
- 1.08 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING
  - A. Protect conduit from corrosion and entrance of debris by storing above grade. Provide appropriate covering.
  - B. Protect PVC conduit from sunlight.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

- 2.01 RIGID METAL CONDUIT (RMC)
  - A. Rigid Steel Conduit: ANSI C80.1, UL 6.
  - B. Fittings and Conduit Bodies: NEMA FB 1, UL 514B; Galvanized malleable iron with threaded hubs for all conduit entries. Provide threaded connections and couplings only. Set Screw and running thread fittings are not permitted.
  - C. Provide insulated throat bushings at all conduit terminations.
- 2.02 INTERMEDIATE METAL CONDUIT (IMC)
  - A. Product Description: ANSI C80.6, UL 1242; Galvanized Steel Conduit.
  - B. Fittings and Conduit Bodies: NEMA FB 1, UL 514B; use fittings and conduit bodies specified above for rigid steel conduit.
  - C. Provide insulated throat bushings at all conduit terminations.
- 2.03 LIQUIDTIGHT FLEXIBLE METAL CONDUIT (LFMC)

- A. Product Description: UL 360, flexible metal conduit with interlocked steel construction and PVC jacket.
- B. Fittings and Conduit Bodies: ANSI/NEMA FB 1; liquid tight steel or malleable iron with insulated throat bushings. Die cast fittings are not acceptable.

# 2.04 ELECTRICAL METALLIC TUBING (EMT)

- A. Product Description: ANSI C80.3, UL 797; galvanized steel tubing.
- B. Fittings and Conduit Bodies: ANSI/NEMA FB 1; steel or malleable iron, compression or set screw type with insulated throat bushings. Zinc die cast or indentor fittings are not acceptable.
- C. Provide factory elbows on sizes 1-½" and larger.

## 2.05 HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE CONDUIT (HDPE)

- A. Conduit: NEMA TC 7; HDPE conduit rated for 90° C cable. Provide Schedule 40 conduit for trade sizes up to 2" and Schedule 80 conduit for trade sizes above 2".
- B. Provide conduit with pullstring installed.
- C. Fittings and Conduit Bodies: NEMA TC 7.
- D. HDPE to RMC Couplings: Basis of design is Duraline "Shur-Lock II" or equal.
- E. HDPE to HDPE Couplings: Butt-fusion, electro-fusion couplers, self-threading couplings, or drive-on couplings. All couplings shall be UL listed for the intended purpose.

#### 2.06 OUTLET BOXES

- A. Sheet Metal Outlet Boxes: ANSI/NEMA OS 1, UL514A galvanized steel, with plaster ring where applicable.
  - 1. Minimum Size: 4 inches square or octagonal, 1-1/2 inches deep, unless otherwise noted.
  - 2. Equipment Supporting Boxes: Rated for weight of equipment supported; furnish 1/2 inch male fixture studs where required. Minimum Size: 4 inches square or octagonal, 2-1/8 inches deep.
- B. Cast Boxes: NEMA FB 1, Type FD, galvanized malleable iron or copper-free cast aluminum. Furnish gasketed cover by box manufacturer. Furnish threaded hubs. "Bell" boxes are not allowed.

#### 2.07 PULL AND JUNCTION BOXES

- A. Sheet Metal Pull and Junction Boxes: ANSI/NEMA OS 1, UL514A galvanized steel.
  - Minimum Size: 4 inches square or octagonal, 1-1/2 inches deep, unless otherwise noted.
- B. Sheet Metal Boxes Larger Than 12 Inches in Any Dimension: Hoffman or approved equal.
- C. Boxes for Outdoor and Wet Location Installations: NEMA 250, Type 3R; flat-flanged, surface mounted junction box:
  - 1. Material: Galvanized cast iron.
  - Cover: Furnish with ground flange, neoprene gasket, and stainless steel cover and screws.
- D. Type 1A Junction Box: Fiberglass Concrete composite Type 1A Handholes: Die-molded glass-fiber concrete composite hand holes with pre-cut 6 x 6 inch cable entrance at center bottom of each side:

- 1. Cover: Cast steel, weatherproof cover with non-skid finish.
- 2. Cover Legend: "ELECTRIC, LIGHTING, or COMM" to match load shown on plans.

#### 2.08 BUSHINGS

- A. Non-grounding: Threaded impact resistant plastic.
- B. Grounding: Insulated galvanized malleable iron/steel with hardened screw bond to raceway and conductor lug.

#### 2.09 LOCKNUTS

A. Threaded Electro Zinc Plated Steel designed to cut through protective coatings for ground continuity.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Ground and bond raceway and boxes in accordance with Section 26 05 26.
- B. Provide support and fasten raceway and box supports to structure and finishes in accordance with Section 26 05 29.
- C. Identify raceway and boxes in accordance with Section 26 05 53.
- D. Unless otherwise noted, do not inter-mix conductors from separate panelboards or any other system in the same raceway system or junction boxes.

#### 3.02 INSTALLATION - GENERAL RACEWAY

- A. Install raceway for all systems, unless otherwise noted.
- B. Install an equipment grounding conductor inside of all raceways containing line voltage conductors.
- C. Provide raceways concealed in construction unless specifically noted otherwise, or where installed at surface cabinets, motor and equipment connections and in Mechanical and Electrical Equipment rooms. Do not route conduits on roofs, outside of exterior walls, or along the surface of interior finished walls unless specifically noted on the plans.
- D. Raceway routing and boxes are shown in approximate locations unless dimensioned. Where raceway routing is not denoted, field-coordinate to provide complete wiring system.
- E. Do not route raceways on floor. Where surface raceways are allowed in equipment rooms, arrange raceway and boxes to maintain a minimum of 6 feet 6 inches of headroom and present a neat appearance. Install raceways level and square. Route exposed raceways and raceways above accessible ceilings parallel and perpendicular to walls, ceiling, and adjacent piping.
- F. Maintain minimum 6-inch clearance between raceway and mechanical and piping and ductwork. Maintain 12-inch clearance between raceway and heat sources such as flues, steam pipes, heating pipes, heating appliances, and other surfaces with temperatures exceeding 104 degrees F.
- G. Where raceway penetrates fire-rated walls, seal raceway penetrations of fire-rated walls, ceilings in accordance with the requirements of Section 26 05 00.
- H. Raceways and boxes penetrating vapor barriers or penetrating areas from cold to warm shall be taped and sealed with a non-hardening duct sealing compound to prevent the accumulation of moisture, and shall include a vapor barrier on the outside.

- I. Route conduits in slabs to have 1 inch minimum cover. Conduits in slab shall not compromise the structural integrity of the slab.
- J. Arrange raceway supports to prevent misalignment during wiring installation.
- K. Do not attach raceway to ceiling support wires or other piping systems and do not fasten raceway with wire or perforated pipe straps. Remove all wire used for temporary raceway support during construction, before conductors are pulled. Raceway shall be installed to permit ready removal of equipment, piping, ductwork, or ceiling tiles.
- L. Cut conduit square; de-burr cut ends. Bring conduit to the shoulder of fittings and couplings and fasten securely.
- M. Use threaded raintight conduit hubs for fastening conduit to cast boxes, and for fastening conduit to sheet metal boxes in damp or wet locations. Sealing locknuts are not acceptable.
- N. Install no more than 360-degrees of bends between boxes.
- O. Install conduit bodies to make sharp changes in direction, such as around beams. "Goosenecks" in conduits are not acceptable.
- P. Use hydraulic one-shot conduit bender or factory elbows for bends in conduit larger than 2 inch size.
- Q. Provide protective plastic bushings or insulated throat bushings at each raceway termination not installed to an enclosure. Bushings shall be threaded to the raceway end or connector.
- R. Avoid moisture traps; install junction box with drain fitting at low points in raceway system.
- S. Install fittings and flexible metal conduit to accommodate 3-axis movements where raceway crosses seismic joints.
- T. Install fittings designed and listed to accommodate expansion and contraction where raceway crosses control and expansion joints.
- U. Use cable sealing fittings forming a watertight non-slip connection to pass cords and cables into conduit. Size cable sealing fitting for the conductor outside diameter. Use Appleton CG series or equal cable sealing fittings.
- V. Use suitable caps to protect installed raceway against entrance of dirt and moisture.
- W. Provide nylon "jet-line" or approved equal pull string in empty raceway, except sleeves and nipples.
- X. Paint all exposed conduit in finished spaces to match surface to which it is attached or crosses. Clean greasy or dirty conduit prior to painting in accordance with paint manufacturer's instructions. Where raceway penetrates non-rated ceilings or walls, provide patching, paint and trim to retain architectural aesthetics similar to surroundings.

#### 3.03 INSTALLATION – GENERAL BOXES

- A. Provide electrical boxes as shown on Drawings, and as required for splices, taps, wire pulling, equipment connections, and code compliance. All electrical box locations shown on Drawings are approximate unless dimensioned.
- B. Install pull boxes and junction boxes above accessible ceilings and in unfinished areas only. Where installation is inaccessible, install outlet and junction boxes no more than 6 inches from ceiling access panel.
- C. Do not fasten boxes to ceiling support wires or other piping systems.
- D. Support boxes independently of conduit.

- Section 26 05 33
- E. Clean interior of boxes to remove dust, debris, and other material and clean exposed surfaces and restore finish.
- F. Provide blank covers or plates for all boxes that do not contain devices.

#### 3.04 INSTALLATION – BURIED CONDUITS

- A. Excavation and backfilling shall be in accordance with these specifications and the applicable portions of MASS B:
  - 1. Excavate and backfill as necessary for proper installation or work.
  - 2. Provide bracing and shoring as necessary or required.
  - 3. Compact backfill under footings and paving using materials and methods specified under MASS B.
  - 4. All conduits outside the building perimeter shall be buried a minimum of 24 inches below grade or as shown on Plans. Bottom of trench shall be smoothed and all rocks and cobbles 3 inches and larger shall be removed. Provide 3/4 inch minus material 6 inches above and below conduit. Backfill remaining trench with non-frost susceptible material free of debris or rocks greater than 1 inch in diameter. Provide detectable warning tape over raceways per Section 26 05 53.
  - 5. Conduits shall be bedded in a minimum of 2 inches of sand and shall have a cover of 2 inches minimum of sand. Trench shall be backfilled with non-frost susceptible material and compacted.
  - 6. Damage to existing underground utilities shall be repaired immediately by the Contractor at no cost to the Owner.

#### 3.05 INSTALLATION – TELECOMMUNICATION RACEWAYS AND SLEEVES

- A. Provide continuous pathway system for all telecommunication cables. Provide cable pathway support in accordance with Section 26 05 29.
- B. Provide separation clearances in accordance with Section 27 10 00.
- C. Install the telecommunication pathways in accordance with requirements for Installation of General Conduit and General Boxes above unless superceded by more stringent requirements of this section or ANSI/TIA568-D and the latest published edition of the BICSI Telecommunication Distribution Methods Manual guidelines and recommendations.
- D. Provide pathways for all telecommunication cables with Surface Raceway, Conduit, Cable tray, J-hooks, and chases for the entire length of each cable. Provide pathway capacity throughout entire system for each telecommunication outlet served sized to accommodate a minimum of four (or more where shown on the Plans) 4-pair 100-Ohm UTP cables from each outlet location to telecommunication room denoted on the plans.

# E. Conduit Pathways:

- 1. Install pull boxes in continuous straight runs of conduit longer than 100 feet.
- 2. Maximum allowable continuous conduit section length of 100 feet between pull boxes.
- 3. Contain no more than two 90-degree bends or de-rate conduit capacity 15% for up to one additional 90-degree bend. Conduits less than 33 feet long, oversized one trade size or with one of the 90-degree bends within 12 inches of a pull box may have up to three 90 degree bends without de-rating.
- 4. Rate each offset as a 90-degree bend.
- 5. Bond each conduit to telecommunication ground system.
- 6. Do not use flexible metal conduit unless specifically noted on the plans or approved by the engineer where it is the only practical alternative. Increase raceway one trade size above required size where flexible metal conduit is used.

- 7. Terminate conduits routed to cable trays within 6 inches of tray. Provide conduit support to building structure within 24 inches of cable tray.
- 8. Provide bend radius of 6 times of the internal conduit diameter of conduits up to 2 inches; 10 times of the internal conduit diameter of conduits above 2 inches and for all fiber optic raceways.
- 9. Provide conduit pathways through walls with insulated bushings on each end for all wall penetrations of cables.
- 10. Size all conduits, sleeves and chases according to the following table:

Conduit Trade size	Conduit Maximum Cable Capacity Based on two 90 degree bends and < 100 ft (Inches OD of Cable)									
	(0.13")	(0.18")	(0.22")	(0.24")	(0.29")	(0.31")	(0.37")	(0.53")	(0.62")	(0.70")
0.75"	6	5	4	3	2	2	1	0	0	0
1"	8	8	7	6	3	3	2	1	0	0
1.25"	16	14	12	10	6	4	3	1	1	1
1.5"	20	18	16	15	7	6	4	2	1	1
2"	30	26	22	20	14	12	7	4	3	2
2.5"	45	40	36	30	17	14	12	6	3	3
3"	70	60	50	40	20	20	17	7	6	6
3.5"							22	12	7	6
4"							30	14	12	7

- F. Provide J-Hooks in accordance with Section 26 05 29 to provide telecommunication pathway anywhere cable tray, conduit, or ladder rack is not denoted on the plans and one or more telecommunication cables are routed.
- G. Provide innerduct the entire length in conduits denoted to contain innerducts. Size innerducts to use entire available capacity of the outer conduit.
- H. Do not install innerduct and other cables in the same raceway.

#### **IDENTIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS**

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Nameplates
- B. Tape Labels.
- C. Wire and Cable Markers.
- D. Underground Warning Tape.

#### 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. The Work under this section is subject to requirements of the Contract Documents including the General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and sections under MASS B Division 10, and Section 26 05 00 Common Work Results for Electrical.
- B. Section 26 05 19 Low-Voltage Electrical Power Conductors and Cables.
- C. Section 26 05 33 Raceway and Boxes for Electrical Systems.
- D. Section 27 10 00 Structured Cabling.

#### 1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 1 and Section 26 05 00 Common Work Results for Electrical.
- B. Product Data:
  - 1. Submit manufacturer's catalog literature for each product required.
  - 2. Submit electrical identification schedule including list of wording, symbols, letter size, color-coding, tag number, location, and function.

#### 1.05 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Install labels and nameplates only when ambient temperature and humidity conditions for adhesive are within range recommended by manufacturer.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 NAMEPLATES

- A. Product Description: Laminated three-layer plastic with engraved white letters on black background. Nameplate for service disconnect shall be engraved white letters on red background.
- B. Letter Size:
  - 1. 1/4-inch high letters for identifying individual panel or equipment.
  - 2. 1/8-inch high letters for remaining lines with 1/8 inch spacing between lines.
- C. Minimum nameplate size: 1/8 inch thick with a consistent length and height for each type of nameplate wherever installed on the project.

#### 2.02 TAPE LABELS

- A. Product Description: Adhesive tape labels, with 3/16 inch Bold Black letters on clear background made using Dymo Rhino series label printer or approved equal.
- B. Embossed adhesive tape will <u>not</u> be permitted for any application.

#### 2.03 WIRE AND CABLE MARKERS

- A. Power and Lighting Description: Machine printed heat-shrink tubing, cloth or wrap-on type, for all neutrals and Phase conductors.
- B. Low Voltage System Description: Self-adhesive machine printed label with unique wire number that is shown on shop drawing for system.
- C. Telecommunications Cable Markers: Self-laminating vinyl with translucent band and minimum 1"W x .5"H printable area with matte white finish. Brady #B-427 series or approved equal.

## 2.04 UNDERGROUND WARNING TAPE

- A. Product Description: Red, 6-inch wide, detectable.
- B. Wording to read "Caution Buried Electric Line Below".

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 GENERAL INSTALLATION

- A. Degrease and clean surfaces to receive nameplates and tape labels.
- B. Install nameplates and tape labels parallel to equipment lines.
- C. Underground Warning Tape Installation: Install underground warning tape along length of each underground conduit, raceway, or cable 6 to 8 inches below finished grade, directly above buried conduit, raceway, or cable.

#### 3.02 NAMEPLATE INSTALLATION

- A. Secure nameplates to equipment fronts using machine screws tapped and threaded into panelboard, or using rivets. The use of adhesives is not acceptable. Machine screws to not protrude more than 1/16 inch on back side.
- B. Service Disconnect Nameplate: Provide nameplate on exterior service disconnect that reads "SERVICE DISCONNECT".

#### 3.03 LABEL INSTALLATION

A. Low-Voltage System Device Labels: Provide label on each device, denoting device ID or address where applicable. Affix label to device faceplate for ceiling-mounted devices or wall-mounted devices above 8'-0" AFF. Affix label inside backbox for exterior devices.

#### 3.04 WIRE IDENTIFICATION

- A. Provide wire markers on each conductor in pull boxes, outlet and junction boxes, and at load connection. Identification shall be as follows:
  - 1. Each wire and cable shall carry the same labeled designation over its entire run, regardless of intermediate terminations.
  - 2. Color code phases, neutral, and ground per NEC requirements and Section 26 05 19.
  - 3. Color-code all low-voltage system wires and cables in accordance with the individual sections in which they are specified.
  - 4. For power and lighting circuits, identify with branch circuit or feeder number.
  - 5. Provide cable markers on each cable, indicating device designation (e.g. "Camera 27") for all security, intercom, door control, CCTV, MATV, and CATV systems. Cables shall be labeled at each end, as well as at any intermediate junction boxes or pullboxes.
- B. Provide pull string markers at each end of all pull strings. Marker shall identify the location of the opposite end of the pull string.

#### 3.05 JUNCTION BOX IDENTIFICATION

- A. Paint all junction boxes designated for future expansion with blue spray paint.
- B. Label each lighting and power junction box with the panelboard name and circuit number.
- C. Label all junction boxes for intercom, door control, CCTV, MATV, and CATV systems with the type of system cables contained in the box.
- D. For junction boxes above ceilings, mark the box cover with the circuit or system designation using permanent black marker. For junction boxes in finished areas, mark the inside of the cover with the circuit or system designation using permanent black marker.

## 3.06 DEVICE PLATE IDENTIFICATION

- A. Label each receptacle device plate or point of connection denoting the panelboard name and circuit number.
- B. Install adhesive label on the top of each plate.

#### LOW-VOLTAGE ELECTRICAL SERVICE ENTRANCE

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Arrangement with Utility Company for permanent electric service including payment of Utility Company charges for service.
- B. Underground service entrance.

## 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. The Work under this section is subject to requirements of the Contract Documents including the General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and sections under MASS B Division 10 and Section 26 05 00 Common Work Results for Electrical.
- B. Section 26 05 26 Grounding and Bonding for Electrical System.
- C. Section 26 05 33 Raceway and Boxes for Electrical Systems.
- D. Section 26 05 53 Identification for Electrical Systems.

# 1.04 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. NEMA 250 2003 Enclosures for Electrical Equipment (1000 Volts Maximum).
- B. UL 50 1995 Enclosures for Electrical Equipment.
- C. UL 414 1999 Standard for Meter Sockets.

#### 1.05 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

- A. System Voltage: 208 volts, three phase, four-wire, 60 Hertz.
- B. Service Entrance: Underground.

#### 1.06 SUBMITTALS

A. Product Data: Submit product data for all components provided, showing electrical characteristics, material, finishes, and dimensions. Each catalog sheet should be clearly marked to indicate exact part number provided, including all options and accessories.

B. Shop Drawings: Submit shop drawings and manufacturer's literature for self-contained meter base with circuit breaker disconnecting means.

# 1.07 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Utility Company: Chugach Electric Association (CEA)
- B. Install service entrance in accordance with Utility Company's rules and regulations.

## PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 METERING EQUIPMENT

- A. Meter: Furnished and installed by the Utility Company.
- B. Current Transformer Cabinet: NEMA 3R, UL 414 listed, minimum size as shown on the drawings. All current transformer cabinets and compartments shall have hinged front cover access to the current transformers. The hinged front cover shall be lockable and shall accept a padlock with a shackle diameter of not less than 5/16 inch. Current transformer cabinets for services from 201 Amperes to 800 Amperes shall have ½ x 20 mounting studs on the enclosure body spaced to accept a current transformer mounting base.
- C. All removable covers for compartments containing un-metered conductors shall be sealable or lockable with sealable latches, stud and wing-nuts, sealing screws, or slot and tab devices. All top cover panels, side cover panels and rear cover panels providing access to un-metered conductors shall be secured in place with devices that cannot be loosened from the outside, screws or bolts requiring special tools for installation or removal are not acceptable alternates. No removable panel or cover requiring sealing or locking shall be located behind other panels, covers or doors except for rain-tight enclosures. Hinged cover panels shall be lockable on the side opposite the hinges. Hinged panel covers shall accept a padlock with a shackle diameter of not less than 5/16 inch. Stud and wing-nut sealing assemblies shall consist of a ¼ inch x 20 (minimum) stud and associated wing-nut, each drilled 0.0635 inch (minimum) for sealing purposes. The stud shall be securely attached so as to not loosen or back out when being fastened. Sealing screws shall be drilled 0.0635 inch (minimum) for sealing purposes. All securing screws for removable panel covers shall be captive.
- D. Current Transformer: Provided by Utility.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

# 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Make arrangements with Utility Company to obtain permanent electric service to the Project.
- B. Underground: Install service entrance conduits from Utility Company's pad-mounted transformer to service entrance equipment. Utility Company will connect service lateral conductors to service entrance conductors.
- C. Meter sockets shall be installed with the centerline of the socket opening no more than 72 inches and no less than 60 inches above finished grade. The meter socket shall be installed with a minimum 10 inches of side clearance to each side of the socket. On current transformer rated meter sockets, the conduit connecting the meter socket and the current transformer cabinet shall be rigid steel or IMC and have a minimum diameter of 1 inch, shall not be longer than 25 feet, shall have no access points (junction boxes, condulets, etc.), and shall connect to the meter socket at a factory supplied knockout located below the test switch mounting provisions.
- D. Self-contained meter sockets equipped with a 5<sup>th</sup> jaw for network service but served from

- a single phase, 3-wire 120/240 Volt source shall have the  $5^{\text{th}}$  jaw and its associated wiring removed from the socket.
- E. Wall mounted current transformer enclosures shall be mounted with the top of the cabinet no more than 96 inches above grade and the bottom of the cabinet no less than 16 inches above grade.
- F. Current transformer cabinets shall not be used as a junction point to service other metered services or as a splicing chamber.
- G. All service entrance equipment shall have signage for arc hazard installed. The marking shall be located to be clearly visible to qualified personnel before examination, adjustment, servicing or maintenance of the equipment. At a minimum the signage shall state the following:

Warning

Arc Flash and Shock Hazard
Appropriate PPE Required

#### **ENCLOSED SWITCHES AND CIRCUIT BREAKERS**

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- Enclosed Switches.
- B. Enclosed Circuit Breakers
- C. Enclosures.

## 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. The Work under this section is subject to requirements of the Contract Documents including the General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and sections under MASS B Division 10 and Section 26 05 00 Common Work Results for Electrical.
- B. Section 01400 Quality Control.
- C. Section 26 05 26 Grounding and Bonding for Electrical Systems.
- D. Section 26 05 53 Identification for Electrical Systems.

#### 1.04 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ANSI/UL 98 Enclosed and Dead Front Switches.
- B. NEMA KS 1 Enclosed and Miscellaneous Distribution Equipment Switches (600 Volts Maximum).
- C. UL 489 Molded Case Circuit Breakers and Circuit Breaker Enclosures.
- D. NEMA AB-1 Molded Case Circuit Breakers and Molded Case Switches.
- E. NEMA 250 Enclosures for Electrical Equipment (1000 Volts Maximum).
- F. NETA ATS Acceptance Testing Specifications for Electrical Power Distribution Equipment and Systems.

# 1.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. Product Data: Submit product data for all components provided, showing electrical characteristics, material, and dimensions. Each catalog sheet should be clearly marked to indicate exact part number provided, including all options and accessories.
- B. Shop Drawings: Submit shop drawings include outline drawings with dimensions, and equipment ratings for voltage, capacity, horsepower, and short circuit current interrupting rating.

#### 1.06 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

A. Project Record Drawings: Accurately indicate actual location of enclosed switches, circuit breakers and ratings of actual installed fuses.

# 1.07 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years experience.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS - ENCLOSED SWITCHES

- A. Square D.
- B. Siemens.
- C. Cutler Hammer.
- D. General Electric.
- E. Substitutions: Under provisions of Division 1.

# 2.02 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS - ENCLOSED CIRCUIT BREAKERS

- A. Square D.
- B. Siemens Energy & Automation.
- C. Cutler Hammer.
- D. Substitutions: Under provisions of Division 1.

#### 2.03 MOLDED CASE CIRCUIT BREAKERS

- A. Molded case circuit breakers shall provide circuit overcurrent protection with inverse time and instantaneous tripping characteristics.
- B. All circuit breakers shall have a quick-make, quick break over center toggle type mechanism and the handle mechanism shall be trip free to prevent holding contacts closed against a short circuit or sustained overload. All circuit breaker handles shall assume a position between "ON" and "OFF" when tripped automatically. Multiple pole circuit breakers shall be common trip such that an overload or short circuit on any one pole will result in all poles opening simultaneously. Arc extinction is to be accomplished by magnetic arc chutes. All ratings are to be clearly visible.
- C. Circuit breakers shall have a minimum symmetrical interrupting capacity as indicated on the drawings. The interrupting rating of the circuit breakers shall be at least equal to the available short circuit current at the line terminals of the circuit breaker. Where indicated or allowed, circuit breakers shall be UL listed for series application.
- D. Where indicated, circuit breakers shall be current limiting. Current limiting circuit breakers shall limit the let-through I<sup>2</sup>t to a value less than the I<sup>2</sup>t of one-half cycle wave of the symmetrical prospective current without any fusible elements when operating within its current range.

- E. Unless otherwise noted on the drawings, all circuit breakers 250A ampere frame and below shall have thermal-magnetic trip units, with inverse time-current characteristics.
  - 1. Automatic operation of all circuit breakers shall be obtained by means of thermalmagnetic tripping devices located in each pole providing inverse time delay and instantaneous circuit protection. Instantaneous pick-up settings for each phase shall be individually adjustable on all frames 250A and above.
  - 2. Circuit breakers shall be ambient compensating in that, as the ambient temperature increases over 40° C, the circuit breaker automatically derates itself to better protect its associated conductor.
- F. Circuit breaker enclosure assembly shall be listed as service entrance rated.

#### 2.04 **INTERNAL ACCESSORIES**

- Unless otherwise noted, mechanical lugs shall be provided with all Molded Case Α. Breakers.
- B. Compression lugs shall be provided on 1200A frame and below circuit breakers. All compression lugs shall be supplied by the circuit breaker manufacturer.
- C. All accessories shall be UL Listed for field installation.

#### 2.05 **ENCLOSURES**

A. Enclosed circuit breaker shall have NEMA 3R general-purpose ratings unless otherwise noted. Provide enclosure suitable for locations as indicated on drawings.

#### PART 3. **EXECUTION**

#### 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install enclosed switches and circuit breakers were indicated on Drawings, and where required for NEC required disconnect of equipment specified under other divisions, but installed under Division 26.
- В. Install fuses in fusible disconnect switches.
- C. All enclosed switches and enclosed breakers shall have signage for arc hazard installed. The marking shall be located to be clearly visible to qualified personnel before examination, adjustment, servicing or maintenance of the equipment. At a minimum the signage shall state the following:

# Warning

#### Arc Flash and Shock Hazard

# Appropriate PPE Required

#### 3.02 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Field inspecting, testing, adjusting and balancing.
- B. Inspect and test in accordance with NETA ATS, exception Section 4.
- C. Perform inspections and tests listed in NETA ATS, Section 7.5.

#### 3.03 **ADJUSTMENTS**

Α. The Contractor shall perform necessary field adjustments of the circuit breakers to place the equipment in final operating condition. The settings shall be in accordance with the approved protective device coordination study or as directed by the Engineer.

# ENCLOSED SWITCHES AND CIRCUIT BREAKERS Division 26 Section 26 28 16

#### LIGHTING

#### PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Exterior Luminaires and Accessories.
- B. Lamp Modules.
- C. Drivers.
- D. Light Poles

#### 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. The Work under this section is subject to requirements of the Contract Documents including the General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and sections under General Conditions of the Contract General Requirements, and Section 26 05 00 Common Work Results for Electrical.
- B. Section 26 05 19 Low Voltage Electrical Power Conductors and Cables.
- C. Section 26 05 26 Grounding and Bonding for Electrical Systems.
- D. Section 26 05 33 Raceway and Boxes for Electrical Systems.
- E. Section 26 05 53 Identification for Electrical Systems.

# 1.04 DEFINITIONS

- A. CCT: Correlated Color Temperature.
- B. CRI: Color Rendering Index.
- C. Driver: LED Power Supply.
- D. Fixture: See "Luminaire."
- E. IES: Illuminating Engineering Society of North America
- F. IP: International Protection or Ingress Protection Rating.
- G. Lamp Module: Replaceable LED board array/light engine including a plug-in connector.

- H. LED: Light-emitting diode.
- I. Lumen: Measured output of lamp and luminaire, or both.
- J. Luminaire: Complete lighting unit, including lamp or lamp module, driver, reflector, and housing.
- K. THD: Total Harmonic Distortion.

#### 1.05 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. NECA/IESNA 500 Recommended Practice for Installation Indoor Commercial Lighting System.
- B. IES TM-21-11 Projecting Long Term Lumen Maintenance of LED Light Sources.
- C. IES LM-80 IES Approved Method: Measuring Luminous Flux and Color Maintenance of LED Packages, Arrays and Modules.
- D. UL 924 Emergency Lighting and Power Equipment.

#### 1.06 SUBMITTALS

- A. Product Data: Submit the following:
  - 1. Luminaires: Include manufacturer's product data sheets and/or shop drawings including outline drawings showing support points, weights, and accessory information for each luminaire type. Clearly indicate all options being provided. Arrange data for luminaires in the order of fixture designation.
  - 2. Prior to preparing submittals, coordinate with the reflected ceiling plan for ceiling finishes and provide all necessary kits, brackets, stems, trim, etc. to install the specified fixtures in the ceilings provided. Clearly note these configurations on the product data sheets.
- B. Shop Drawings: Provide detailed shop drawings for specialty luminaires as required by the manufacturer.
- C. Warranty: Provide copies of manufacturer's warranty information for each luminaire. If warranty information is the same for a group of manufacturer's luminaires, provide a letter or schedule clearly indicating what warranty applies to each fixture.
- D. LED Luminaire Substitutions: Due to the constantly evolving technology, it is difficult to evaluate a true "equal" LED luminaire since the wattage, LED life, lumen output, etc. vary significantly from fixture to fixture, even for luminaires that have a similar shape and style. The luminaires shown on the Plans in the Fixture Schedule are not intended to be sole sourced but are considered a Basis of Design. If a substitution is proposed by the contractor, it will be evaluated based on the following criteria:
  - 1. Does it have the same basic shape/style and characteristics? Note that there may be space constraints above the ceiling.
  - 2. Does the luminaire have the same (or superior) light output and distribution? If not, would it still produce enough light to illuminate the space per minimum IES recommendations or other project specific lighting levels? Note that the Engineer may request .ies files or lighting calculations be provided by the Contractor to evaluate substitution requests.
  - 3. Does it use the same (or less) wattage than the specified fixture? If it uses slightly more power, does it provide enough value to the Owner by adding additional light to offset the additional power used? Is that appropriate for the project compliance requirements. (LEED, ASHRAE 90.1, etc.)
  - 4. Does it have the same nominal color temperature and CRI values? Note that for certain luminaires this may be more important where [medical procedures are being performed or where] artwork or merchandise is illuminated.

- 5. Does it have an equal or better lamp life as calculated in accordance with IES TM-21 and LM-80?
- 6. Does the manufacturer offer an equal or better warranty than the specified fixture?
- 7. Are the LED lamps modules and LED boards field changeable? What guarantees does the manufacturer have that replacement parts will be available in the future?

#### 1.07 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Project Record Drawings: Indicate actual locations and mounting heights of all lighting fixtures and accessories on the project record drawings. Update part numbers and description on the Lighting Fixture Schedule to match the actual luminaires installed. Submit under Section 26 05 00.
- B. Operation and Maintenance Manuals:
  - 1. Provide recommended luminaire cleaning and re-lamping schedule. If any luminaire lenses require special lubricants for cleaning, include this in the schedule.
  - 2. Provide detailed bill of materials for all items purchased in this section including distributor's contact name, phone number and pertinent information.
  - 3. Provide luminaire manufacturer's installation instructions.
  - 4. Provide manufacturer's step-by-step installation instructions showing how to replace the LED lamp modules and drivers for each luminaire.
  - 5. Include any specific warranty information provided by the manufacturer for luminaires, LED boards and drivers.

#### 1.08 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A. Deliver products to site, store and protect in a clean, dry environment under provisions of General Conditions of the Contract.

#### PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 EXTERIOR LUMINAIRES AND ACCESSORIES

- A. Luminaires: Provide UL listed luminaires as scheduled on the drawings or as approved equal.
- B. Listing: Luminaires shall be listed for use in the environment in which they are installed. For example, luminaires installed in return air plenums, direct contact with insulation, or in hazardous, wet, damp, or corrosive locations shall be UL listed for such application.
- C. Accessories: Provide all mounting kits, supports, interconnecting wiring, power supplies, trim kits, gaskets, etc. for a complete installation.
- D. Housing:
  - 1. Metal parts shall be free of burrs and sharp corners and edges. Form and support to prevent warping and sagging.
  - 2. Doors, Frames and Other Internal Access: Smooth operating, free of light leakage under operating conditions. Designed to prevent doors, frames, lenses, diffusers, and other components from falling accidentally during relamping and when secured in operating position.
  - 3. Luminaires shall be factory painted and free of discoloration. Color as scheduled.

# 2.02 LAMP MODULES – LED

A. All LED's shall be nominal 4000 degrees Kelvin (nominal) within a 3-step MacAdam Ellipse unless special circumstances require a different color temperature application, see Luminaire Schedule on Plans.

- B. Color Rendering: Minimum CRI as scheduled on the Plans for each fixture. Under no circumstances shall the CRI be less than 70.
- C. Lamp Life: Minimum lamp life shall be calculated in accordance with IES LM-80. Lamp life for each luminaire shall be equal or greater than scheduled on the Plans. Under no circumstances shall an interior luminaire have a minimum rated life (L70) less than 50,000 hours at 75 degrees F average indoor ambient temperature and an outdoor luminaire less than 75,000 hours at 40 degrees F average outdoor ambient temperature.
- D. Replaceable: Unless otherwise scheduled, all LED modules shall be field replaceable with quick disconnect connections.
- E. Luminaires and lamps installed outdoors shall be rated for starting and operating at a minimum of -40F.

#### 2.03 DRIVERS - LED

- A. LED Driver: Provide UL listed power supply as recommended by the LED fixture manufacturer for operation of the specified LED lamps. Power supply shall be integral to the luminaire unless otherwise noted on the Plans. Power supply shall be dual voltage (120/277V) where available or operate at the supply voltage indicated on the Plans.
- B. LED Dimming Driver: UL listed 0-10V dimming driver as recommended by the LED fixture manufacturer for operation of the specified LED lamps, fully compatible with the dimming system or dimming switch controlling the fixture. Driver shall be integral to the fixture and capable of dimming the luminaire down to 1% output unless otherwise scheduled on the Plans. Power supply shall be dual voltage (120/277V) where available and operate at the supply voltage indicated on the Plans.

#### PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Unless otherwise noted on Plans, provide drivers integral to luminaires, pre-wired and installed at the factory, suitable for use with the selected LED lamps.
- B. Luminaire Pole Bases: Size and constructed as indicated on Drawings. Project anchor bolts 2 inches minimum above base. Install poles on bases plumb; provide double nuts for adjustment and pole base covers. After adjusting of pole to be vertical, pack grout under pole base to provide full contact with the foundation.

#### 3.02 RELAMPING

A. Re-lamp or replace luminaires that have failed lamps at completion of work.

# 3.03 ADJUSTING AND CLEANING

- A. Clean lenses and diffusers at completion of work. Clean paint splatters, dirt, and debris from installed luminaires.
- B. Touch up luminaire finish at completion of work.

#### 3.04 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Tests: Perform tests listed below according to manufacturer's written instructions. Test unit functions, operations, and protective features. Adjust to ensure operation complies with Specifications. Perform tests required by NFPA 70, Articles 700 and 701. Perform tests on completion of unit installation and after building circuits have been energized. Provide instruments to permit accurate observation of tests. Include the following tests:
  - 1. Simulate power outage: Verify proper operation of each individual emergency power supply.
  - 2. Verify emergency supply duration.

- 3.
- Verify operation of remote test switches. Provide reports for load test conducted on individual batteries. 4.
- B. Retest: Correct deficiencies identified by tests and observations and retest until specified requirements are met.

## PATHWAYS FOR COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS

## PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

A. J-Hooks.

### 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 26 05 26 Grounding and Bonding of Electrical Systems.
- B. Section 26 05 29 Hangers and Supports for Electrical Systems.
- C. Section 26 05 33 Raceway and Boxes for Electrical Systems.
- D. Section 27 10 00 Structured Cabling.

## 1.04 REFERENCES

- A. National Electric Code (NFPA 70) Article 250 Grounding.
- B. National Electric Code (NFPA 70) Article 770 Optical Fiber Cables and Raceways.
- C. National Electric Code (NFPA 70) Article 800 Communications Circuits.
- D. ANSI/TIA/EIA-568-B -- Commercial Building Telecommunications Cabling Standards.
- E. BICSI Telecommunications Distribution Methods Manual Latest published edition.
- F. UL Standards UL 94HB, UL 723, and UL 2043.

#### 1.05 SUBMITTALS

A. Submit product data under provisions of MASS B.

# 1.06 OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE DATA

- A. Submit operating and maintenance data under provisions of MASS B.
- B. Include cleaning and bolt-tightening procedures for cable tray.

# PART 2. PRODUCTS

## 2.01 J-HOOKS

A. All cables not installed in conduit shall be supported using Caddy CableCat series or approved equal J-hooks with galvanized finish. J-hooks shall have a cable retainer strap to provide containment of cables within the hanger. The cable retainer strap shall be removable and reusable and be suitable for use in air handling spaces. The minimum J-hook size shall be equivalent to Caddy #Cat32. Size all J-hooks to support the quantity of cables installed, plus a minimum of 25% spare capacity. Fiber optic cables shall be routed in 1" innerduct that is supported on a separate J-hook above the J-hook supporting the copper cables.

## PART 3. EXECUTION

# 3.01 INSTALLATION - GENERAL

- A. Provide continuous pathway system for all low voltage cable systems. Where multiple cable systems (e.g. telecom, security, intercom) are installed along the same J-hook pathway, provide separate J-hooks for each system. J-hooks may utilize the same vertical support.
- B. Coordinate all pathway runs with other trades prior to installation. Report conflicts to Owner.
- C. Maintain a minimum EMI separation clearance in conformance with Section 27 10 00.
- D. Support pathway from building to support structure or sub structure in accordance with Section 26 05 29. Do not support pathway from ceiling tiles, ceiling grid, hanger wires, ductwork, piping, or other equipment hangers that are not part of the cable pathway support system.
- E. In classrooms and other areas with accessible ceilings where cable is not installed in cable tray, provide J-hooks spaced every 4 to 5 feet, varying the distance between each support.
- F. Provide a minimum of 12 inches headroom above all types of cable supports.
- G. Provide a minimum of 3 inches clear vertical space above ceiling system at cable lowest point.
- H. Provide cable support within 18 inches of each transition of pathway system types. This includes transitioning from any one to any other of the following cable support systems such as raceway, sleeves, chases, cable trays, cable runways, or J-hooks.
- I. Set J-hooks so that changes in direction do not exceed 45 degrees.

## STRUCTURED CABLING

## PART 1. GENERAL

#### 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0, 1 and 2 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0, 1 and 2 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Requirements for the design and installation of a complete and functional telecommunications cabling system including communications cable, equipment racks, patch panels, telecommunications jacks, raceways, and other equipment or components as required to achieve the specified function.

## 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 26 05 29 Hangers and Supports for Electrical Systems.
- B. Section 26 05 33 Raceway and Boxes for Electrical Systems.
- C. Section 26 05 53 Identification for Electrical Systems.
- D. Section 27 05 28 Pathways for Communications Systems.

## 1.04 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

- A. Submit documents under the provisions of Division 1.
- B. Accurately record location of jacks, pull boxes, and routing of all telecommunications raceways and cables, numbering scheme and identification number of all cables and jacks.
- C. Provide AutoCAD drawings of the facility on contract size sheets and on CD showing the following:
  - 1. Show each telecommunication jack location and indicate each jack and cable number by the jack location.
  - 2. Show all cable counts at all cable junction boxes, sleeves, and J-hook intersections.
  - 3. Show the cable path from the telecommunications equipment room to the end jack location.
- D. Submit test results for all cables prior to Substantial Completion.

## 1.05 LISTINGS AND STANDARDS

- A. Furnish products listed and classified by Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. and suitable for purpose specified and indicated.
- B. Where a UL Standard is in effect equipment shall meet that standard and shall bear the UL label.

### 1.06 REFERENCE CODES AND STANDARDS

- A. The publications listed below form a part of the specification to the extent referenced. The publications are referred to in the text by basic designation only. The reference codes and standards are minimum requirements:
  - 1. ANSI/NFPA 70 National Electrical Code, latest adopted version.
  - 2. BICSI Telecommunications Distributions Methods Manual, current version.
  - 3. ANSI/TIA 568-CCommercial Building Telecommunications Cable Standard, current version.
  - 4. ANSI/TIA 569-CCommercial Building Standard for Telecommunications Pathways and Spaces, current version.
  - 5. ANSI/TIA 606-AAdministration Standards for the Telecommunications Infrastructure of Commercial Buildings, current version.
  - 6. J-STD-607-A Commercial Building Grounding and Bonding Requirements for Telecommunications, current version.

## 1.07 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Install all work in accordance with the above reference standards and codes. The Owner reserves the right to reject all or a portion of the work performed either on technical or aesthetic grounds.
- B. All Telecommunications cabling system layout and installation shall be overseen by a BICSI-certified Registered Communications Distribution Designer (RCDD). The installer shall either have an RCDD on permanent staff or shall have an RCDD on contract for the duration of the project. The RCDD shall sign and attest to all cable distribution design submittals and project record drawings and shall attest to the completeness and accuracy of the system layout and installation. There shall be a BICSI-certified technician on-site or on-call during installation.
- C. All workmen employed for installation of equipment and cabling specified under this section shall be specifically trained and certified in the installation of the specified Category 6 UTP and fiber optic cabling systems, and shall have at least three years of experience installing, terminating, and testing Category 6 UTP and fiber optic cable on this size and complexity of project.
- D. The intended function of the telecommunications cable system is to transmit voice and data signals from a central location to individual telecommunications outlet locations. Upon completion of the work, the UTP cable system shall be capable of transmitting a data signal that meets and exceeds the following requirements:
  - 1. Category 6: Supports data rates up to and including 1 Gb/s.
  - Singlemode Fiber: Supports data rates of 10 Gb/s at 1310 nm and 1550 nm up to distances greater than 10,000 meters. The loss of each strand of fiber shall not exceed 1.0 dB per kilometer at 1310/1550 nm and the loss of each connector pair shall not exceed .75 dB.

## 1.08 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit product data under provisions of MASS B. Provide factory test results for cables and connectors. Provide product data for the following products:
  - UTP and Fiber Telecommunications Cable.

- 2. UTP Telecommunications Jacks.
- 3. Fiber Connectors.
- 4. Fiber Connector Housings and Panels.
- 5. UTP and Fiber Patch Cables.
- 6. Cable Management Panels.
- 7. UTP and Fiber Telecommunications Cable Tester.
- 8. UTP and Fiber Sample Test Report (with all required testing parameters shown).
- B. Submit certification for BICSI/RCDD.
- C. Submit qualifications and certifications to install the specified cabling system.
- D. Submit scaled drawings showing the locations of all telecommunications jacks, equipment racks, telecommunications pullboxes, raceway and cable routing, and all penetrations of fire-rated walls and ceilings. Drawings shall show jack labels and cable counts. Submit elevations of each equipment rack. Provide a complete schedule of all telecommunications jacks with their jack numbers and associated cable number. Shop drawings shall be approved prior to installation of any portion of the telecommunications system. Electronic AutoCAD® drawings of the facility are available upon request for preparation of the shop drawings.

## 1.09 LABELING SYSTEM

- A. Labeling shall conform to ANSI/TIA-606-B standards, Section 26 05 53, and this Section.
- B. Copper Horizontal Cable:
  - Label the end of each cable with the same designation used on the equipment where the cable is terminated (i.e. the patch panel or telecommunications outlet). Labels shall be installed within one inch of the end of the cable insulation, after the insulation has been cut back to allow for termination.

## 1.10 PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS

- A. Submit documents under the provisions of MASS B. Provide drawings in printed, PDF, and CAD formats.
- B. Update the approved shop drawings to produce record drawings that include all changes made during the construction process, as well as all final jack ID numbers.
- C. Turn these drawings over to the Owner's Representative two (2) weeks prior to substantial completion, to allow the Owner's Personnel to connect and test Owner-provided equipment in a timely fashion.

## PART 2. PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS – STRUCTURED CABLING SYSTEM

- A. Throughout this specification, specific manufacturers and manufacturer's catalog numbers are cited. These citations are for the purpose of establishing quality and performance criteria and are not intended to be proprietary. All products in the structured cabling system shall be provided from one of the approved manufacturing partnerships listed below, or an alternate system shall be substituted under the provisions of MASS B. All decisions regarding approval of non-specified manufacturers and products will be at the discretion of the Owner.
  - 1. Ortronics/Superior Essex.
  - 2. Belden.
  - 3. Corning Cable Systems (fiber products).
  - 4. Hubbell/Mohawk.
  - 5. TE Connectivity (formerly ADC/Krone/Amp).
  - 6. CommScope Uniprise.

- 7. Leviton/Berk-Tek.
- 8. Substitutions: Under provisions of Division 1.
- B. Structured Category 6 cabling systems shall include, but not be limited to, UTP telecommunications cable, UTP jacks, faceplates, modular patch panels, and UTP patch cables.

## 2.02 UTP TELECOMMUNICATIONS CABLE

- A. All Horizontal UTP telecommunications cables that stay within the building envelope shall be UL listed, plenum-rated CL2P, Category 6 (except as noted below), 4 pair, 23-24 AWG, solid copper conductor, blue jacket.
  - 1. Superior Essex "DataGAIN" CMP or approved equal.
  - 2. IP Video System: Provide green jacket.
- B. All UTP telecommunications cables that exit the building envelope or are run in underslab raceway shall be UL listed, outside plant rated, Category 6, 4 pair, 23-24 AWG, solid copper conductor cable, injected with water-resistant flooding compound and jacketed with UV-resistant polyethylene jacket.
  - 1. Superior Essex "OSP Cat 6" or approved equal.

## 2.03 UTP TELECOMMUNICATIONS JACKS

- A. All UTP telecommunications jacks shall be Category 6, T568A/B, 8P8C, single, white finish, telecommunications jack with flush exit. Unless otherwise noted on the drawings, install each telecommunications jack in a single gang faceplate at each telecommunications outlet. The quantity of faceplate openings shall match the quantity of jacks at each location. All jacks shall be wired using the T568B wiring configuration.
- B. UTP Jacks:
  - 1. Ortronics "TracJack Clarity 6" #OR-TJ600 or approved equal.

## 2.04 UTP PATCH CABLES

- A. All patch cables shall be factory manufactured to match the applicable cable/connectivity solution (i.e. the Ortronics/Superior Essex system shall use Ortronics manufactured patch cords, etc.).
- B. Network Equipment Connections: Provide Category 6 patch cables with blue jacket for installation between network equipment in the rack and dedicated data ports in the telecommunications patch panels. Provide one patch cable for each port in all the telecommunications patch panels. Where the patch panels and switches are in the same rack, provide 7' cables. Where the patch panels and switches are in different racks, provide 15' cables. (xx in part numbers = cable length)
  - 1. Ortronics #OR-MC6xx-06 or approved equal.

## 2.05 SINGLEMODE FIBER OPTIC BACKBONE CABLE

- A. Indoor/Outdoor Singlemode Fiber Cables (Relo Runs over 500 Meters): All singlemode fiber optic backbone cables that exit the building envelope shall be UL listed, plenum-rated, loose tube, indoor/outdoor, fiber optic cable meeting National Electrical Code plenum (OFNP) standards. The cable shall utilize dry water-blocking technology, have a UV-stabilized, flame-resistant PVC outer jacket, and operate in a range from -40°C to 70°C. (xx in part numbers = fiber count, as shown on Drawings)
  - 1. Corning "FREEDM" series #0xxEWP-T4101D20 or approved equal.

#### 2.06 FIBER CONNECTORS

A. All fibers shall be field-installable with duplex LC UPC type connectors with ceramic ferrule.

- 1. Singlemode: Ortronics "OptiMo" #205KAS9GA-09 or approved equal.
- B. Gigabit-capable Passive Optical Network fusion splice, AFL #FUSE-SC9SMA or approved equal

## 2.07 FIBER CONNECTOR PANELS

- A. All fiber connector panels shall have LC fiber adapters with ceramic sleeve and fiber designation strip.
  - 1. Singlemode: Corning #CCH-CP06-6C or approved equal panel with 6 simplex OS2 adapters.

## 2.08 FIBER STORAGE RING

A. Leviton #48900-IFR or approved equal 12-inch diameter inside plant fiber storage ring with Velcro retaining loops. Provide one storage ring in each closet, adjacent to the rack where the fiber cables are terminated.

#### 2.09 FIBER PATCH CORDS

- A. Where the fiber connector housings and network switches are in the same rack, provide 2-meter cords. Where the fiber connector housings and network switches are in different racks, provide 3 or 4-meter cords as required. (x in part numbers = cable length)
- B. All singlemode fiber optic patch cords shall be UL listed, 3-meter fiber cords with flame-resistant PVC outer jacket. Cables shall have duplex LC type connectors with ceramic ferrule. Patch cords shall be factory terminated and tested to 10 Gb/s data rates. Include copy of factory test report with submittal.
  - Ortronics #OR-P1DC2IRSZSZ00xM or approved equal.

# 2.10 Gigabit-capable Passive Optical Network Splitter

A. AFT Titan RTD FTTx System or approved equal GPON 8-port splitter with pig tail by manufacturer.

## 2.11 Long Span Ethernet Extender

- A. Veracity #VLS-LSM-B or approved equal, 100Base-TX, high-power POE up to 60W at 200m over CAT6 cable.
- B. Veracity #VPSU-POE-100 or approved equal, 100W power supply.
- C. Veracity # VLS-LSM-CXT or approved equal IP66, NEMA 4X, long span ethernet adapter.

### 2.12 CABLE SUPPORT

A. All cables not installed in conduit shall be supported in accordance with Section 27 05 28.

## PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXAMINATION

A. Verify that surfaces are ready to receive work.

## 3.02 GENERAL INSTALLATION

- A. Incoming outside plant telephone cable shall be terminated on punchdown blocks located on the telecommunications backboard. One or more multi-pair cables shall be routed from the cross-connect blocks to the telephone patch panel in the telecommunications rack. Patch cords shall be used between the telephone and telecommunications patch panels to connect a telephone line to a specific jack in the building.
- B. Follow cable manufacturer's specification regarding handling methods, retaining/support methods, bending radius and maximum pulling tension limitations. Where manufacturer

does not provide bending radius information, minimum bending radius shall be 10 times the diameter of the cable. Use a tension-monitoring device to ensure that the maximum pulling tension that may be applied to the cable to be pulled into a conduit section is not exceeded. Provide replacement cable if cable manufacturer's maximum pulling tension is exceeded at any time during a pull.

- C. Cable shall be carefully inspected for sheath defects or other irregularities as it is paid out from the reel. When defects are detected, pulling shall stop immediately and the cable section shall be repaired or replaced at the discretion of the Owner. A system of communications shall be maintained between pulling and feed locations so that pulling can be stopped instantly, when required.
- D. Adequate care shall be exercised when handling and storing reels of cable to prevent damage to the cable. Cable with dents, flat spots, or other sheath distortions shall not be installed.
- E. Install termination backboards plumb, and attach securely at each corner.
- F. Store a maximum of one foot of slack UTP cable for each UTP jack at each telecommunications outlet.
- G. Provide 5RMU open space at the top of all racks for installation of ASD network equipment.
- H. In the telecommunications closet, ten feet of slack UTP cable shall be provided at the racks. Route the service loop around the cable runway above the racks. No cables shall encroach or interfere with rack equipment space. All cables shall be protected from physical damage and should not be routed on the floor. Coiling the slack cable adjacent to the rack is not acceptable. The intent of this installation method is to provide slack cable for future work without causing increased inductance by coiling the cables.
- I. In the telecommunications closet, a twenty-foot service loop for each fiber cable shall be provided on the fiber storage ring adjacent to the rack. All incoming fiber cables shall be stored on this ring to maintain the minimum bending radius of the fiber cable.
- J. All cabling shall be run continuous with no splices from each telecommunications jack to the cable connector at the patch panels. Telecommunications cables shall be terminated at each end on their respective jack. No cable run shall exceed 90 meters (295 feet) in length from the jack on the peripheral end to the patch panel.
- K. All fiber optic cables shall be run continuous with no splices from rack to rack.
- L. All cable shall be routed in such a way as to minimize EMI and RFI interference. Cables shall be routed to maintain the following minimum distances from noise producing devices:
  - 1. Open or Nonmetallic Communications Pathways:
    - a. 12 inches from electrical equipment and power lines of 3 kVA or less.
    - b. 18 inches from fluorescent and HID ballasts.
    - c. 36 from electrical equipment and power lines greater than 5 kVA.
    - d. 48 inches from transformers and motors.
  - 2. Grounded Metal Conduit Communications Pathways:
    - a. 3 inches from electrical equipment and power lines of 2 kVA or less.
    - b. 6 inches from electrical equipment and power lines of 2 kVA to 5 kVA.
    - c. 12 inches from 5 kVA or greater power lines.

## 3.03 TERMINATIONS

A. All strands of all fiber cables shall be terminated at each end on their respective connectors.

- B. The jacket of UTP cables shall be maintained to a point within one inch of the telecommunications jack. The twists on the individual pairs shall be maintained as close as possible to the contacts of the termination points but shall in no case exceed 1/2 inch.
- C. Pairs from each cable shall be terminated sequentially from left to right, top to bottom starting with the lowest assigned number at the upper left-hand corner of the panel.
- D. Fibers shall be terminated sequentially from left to right in connector housing, based on standard color code sequence of individual fiber coatings.

#### 3.04 PATHWAYS AND RACEWAYS

- A. Unless otherwise noted, all cables shall be installed in conduit from the telecommunications jack to the space above the accessible ceiling, within 18" of the J-hook or cable tray pathway. Portions of cables not installed in conduit shall be supported in accordance with ANSI/TIA standards at intervals not exceeding four (4) feet in length using J-hooks. The cable shall not be supported from ducts, pipes, conduits, ceiling grid hangar wires, etc. At any point where the cable changes direction, slack shall be provided to prevent rubbing or binding on the corner supports,
- B. Extreme care shall be taken to ensure that the cable is not compressed, kinked or otherwise deformed during installation. Any cable that is stretched, compressed, kinked or otherwise deformed shall be replaced at no cost to the Owner.
- C. Cables to be installed in raceway, cable tray, continuous cable support system or J-hooks (as specified above) for the entire length of each cable. Provide raceway through areas that will not be accessible for future cable replacement or additions.
- D. Provide pathway capacity throughout entire system for each telecommunication outlet served, sized to accommodate a minimum of four 4-pair cables from each outlet location to the designated telecommunication room, as shown on the plans. Minimum conduit size is 1". Provide equivalent minimum capacity for equivalent surface raceway.
- E. Telecommunication cables shall not be installed in the same raceway or pathway as power cables.
- F. Provide dedicated optical fiber raceway pathway for all optical fiber cable.
- G. Install polyethylene pulling string in each empty conduit containing a bend or over 10 feet in length.
- H. Install all telecommunications outlets in outlet boxes under the provisions of Section 26 05 33. Unless otherwise noted on the Drawings or in the Specifications, outlets shall be mounted at 18 inches above floor, 4 inches above counters or backsplash, with the jacks oriented in the standard "pins down" position.
- I. Support raceways, junction boxes and equipment racks under the provisions of Section 26 05 29.

# 3.05 LABELING

- A. Label equipment racks as noted here-in and under the provisions of Section 26 05 53.
- B. Furnish and install labels and documentation to identify all cables, jacks, and connections in accordance with ANSI/TIA standards, as shown on the Drawings, and under the provisions of Section 26 05 53. As a minimum each jack in each faceplate shall have a unique identifier that matches the identifier at the patch panel. Identifiers shall be installed on the front of the telecommunications faceplate, on the cable behind the faceplate, and on the front of the patch panel at the associated jack.

## 3.06 CABLE ACCEPTANCE TESTING

- A. Each UTP cable shall be tested for compliance with ANSI/TIA 568C Category 6 standards after installation using a Fluke DSX Series or approved equal tester that has been factory calibrated within the last year. At a minimum, the Contractor shall perform the following tests with the maximum frequency of the tester set at 350MHz:
  - Signal Attenuation / Insertion Loss.
  - 2. Near End Cross Talk (NEXT).
  - 3. Power Sum Near End Cross Talk (PS-NEXT).
  - 4. Attenuation to Crosstalk Ratio Near End (ACR-N)
  - 5. Attenuation to Crosstalk Ratio Far End (ACR-F).
  - 6. Power Sum Attenuation to Crosstalk Ratio Near End (PSACR-N).
  - 7. Power Sum Attenuation to Crosstalk Ratio Far End (PSACR-F).
  - 8. Propagation Delay.
  - 9. Delay Skew.
  - 10. Return Loss.
  - 11. Wiremap.
  - 12. Overall Cable Length.
- B. Test, analyze, and record compliance for the following network protocols:
  - 1. 10 Base-T.
  - 2. 100 Base-T.
  - 3. 1000 Base-T (1 Gb/s).
  - 4. Fiber: 10 Gb/s
- C. The Contractor shall provide 100% testing for each "permanent link" (i.e. from the work area outlet to the patch panel). Provide test results for all tests noted above in the form of printouts from the test equipment and provide an electronic copy of the test data for each cable on CD. If proprietary software is used, the submitted CD shall include any necessary software required to view test results. If the results are delivered in a standard format such as Excel or Access, the viewing software need not be provided. At the front of the test report, the Contractor shall provide an index showing the pass/fail results of each cable, along with the cable length and a corresponding cable label.
- D. Initially test each fiber optic cable with a light source and power meter. Field test instruments for singlemode fiber cabling shall meet the requirements of ANSI/TIA-526-7. Measured results shall be plus/minus 1dB of submitted loss budget calculations. If loss figures are outside this range, test cable with an Optical Time Domain Reflectometer (OTDR) in accordance with ANSI/TIA 455-61 to determine the cause of variation. Improper terminations shall be re-done and damaged cable shall be replaced at no additional cost to the Owner. The maximum acceptable signal loss through the entire fiber path, including cable, couplings, and jumpers shall not exceed ANSI/TIA 568-C standards.
- E. Where any portion of the system does not meet the Specifications, the Contractor shall correct the deviation and repeat any applicable testing at no additional cost to the Owner.
- F. Provide three working days advance notice of tests. The Owner's Representative shall reserve the right to be present during the testing of any or all cables in the system. Submit a copy of the test report for each cable prior to substantial completion of the project.
- G. Acceptance of the telecommunications system shall be based on the results of the above tests, functionality, and the receipt of documentation.

## VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS

## PART 1. GENERAL

## 1.01 NOTIFICATIONS OF POTENTIAL HAZARDS

- A. Notification of Potential Hazards: Asbestos, lead and other potentially hazardous materials are present in the building that may impact the work of all trades. Regulated air contaminates, including asbestos and lead are also present in the settled and concealed dust in and on architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical components or systems throughout the building. All trades shall coordinate with other trades and conduct their work to prevent worker exposure or site contamination. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of these materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with the EPA and OSHA requirements.
- B. Notification of Child Occupied Facility: Portions of this building are classified as a Child Occupied Facility in accordance with 40 CFR 745 and lead-based paints may be present on components to be disturbed in those areas. Personnel performing work in these areas must comply with the requirements of 40 CFR 745, including training, work practices and cleaning of the work area. Refer to Specification Divisions 0 for specific information concerning disturbing, removing and disposing of lead materials and the installation of new materials or components. This notification is provided in accordance with EPA and OSHA requirements.

#### 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Video Surveillance Cameras.
- B. UTP Cabling.
- C. UTP Components.

## 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 26 05 33 Raceway and Boxes for Electrical Systems.
- B. Section 26 05 53 Identification for Electrical Systems.

## 1.04 REFERENCE CODES AND STANDARDS

- A. The publications listed below form a part of the specification to the extent referenced. The publications are referred to in the text by basic designation only, latest edition. The reference codes and standards are minimum requirements:
  - 1. ANSI/NFPA 70 National Electrical Code, latest adopted edition.
  - 2. BICSI Telecommunications Distributions Methods Manual.
  - 3. ANSI/TIA 568-B.1 Commercial Building Telecommunications Cable Standard, Part 1: General Cabling System Requirements (including Addendums).
  - 4. ANSI/TIA 568-B.2 Commercial Building Telecommunications Cable Standard, Part 2: Balanced Twisted-Pair Cabling Components (including Addendums).
  - 5. ANSI/TIA 569-A Commercial Building Standard for Telecommunications Pathways and Spaces
  - 6. ANSI/TIA 606 Administration Standards for the Telecommunications Infrastructure of Commercial Buildings.

### 1.05 SUMMARY OF WORK

- A. Provide new cameras, cabling, and all work included under assignment by ASD Integrator as noted below. All other tasks as applicable shall be performed as noted in table below.
- B. The ASD Integrator may act as a supplier to the Contractor, but <u>may not</u> act as either the general contractor or a sub-contractor for the camera installation contract. At the contractor's option, the ASD Integrator is allowed to create shop drawings if acting in the role of a supplier.
- C. All new equipment <u>and assemblies</u> shall be Underwriters Laboratories approved if applicable.
- D. New IP Camera Configuration Scope of Work (Pre-Installation)
  - Assign via utility ASD-provided IP address, subnet and gateway into each camera
  - Make IP address label and affix to each camera.
  - Provide installation location on box for installation contractor.
- E. Video Management System (VMS) Camera Set Up Scope of Work (Post Installation)
  - Run VMS Wizard to enroll cameras.
  - 2. Enroll and label cameras into specific recorder.
  - 3. Identify cameras into specific group parameters.
  - 4. Create naming convention for each specific camera IP address.
  - 5. Configure the following parameters for each camera based on actual installed field of view via VMS programming interface:
    - a. Live and recorded bit rate settings.
    - b. Frames per second
    - c. Motion sensitivity
    - d. Quality settings
    - e. Compression method
    - f. Pre post alarm buffer options
    - g. Schedule recording & archiving
    - h. Assign permissions per cameras
  - 6. Configure the following parameters based on the actual installed camera field of view for each camera via the camera manufacturer's installation utility:
    - a. White balance
    - b. Zoom / Focus
    - c. Aspect ratio 16:9 HD or 4:3 megapixel
    - d. Color correction
    - e. Day night settings
    - f. E-flip if necessary
    - g. Synchronize cameras to clock
    - h. Any manufacturer specific cameras setting such as "LightFinder".

## 1.06 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Technical Support: All new components shall be provided with the availability of a toll free 24-hour technical support phone number from the manufacturer. The phone number shall allow for immediate technical assistance for either the dealer/installer or the end user at no charge.
- B. All video cabling system layout and installation shall be overseen by a BICSI-certified Registered Communications Distribution Designer (RCDD). The installer shall either have an RCDD on permanent staff or shall have an RCDD on contract for the duration of the project. The RCDD shall sign and attest to all cable distribution design submittals and project record drawings and shall attest to the completeness and accuracy of the system layout and installation.

- C. All workmen employed for installation of telecommunications equipment and cabling specified under this section shall be specifically trained and certified in the installation of the specified Category 6 UTP cabling systems, and shall have at least three years of experience installing, terminating, and testing Category 6 UTP on this size and complexity of project.
- D. Video System Equipment Manufacturers: Companies specializing in the specified equipment with a minimum of three years documented experience.
- E. Video System Equipment Suppliers: Companies specializing in supplying the products specified in this Division with minimum three years documented experience and authorized by product manufacturers.
- F. All components shall be provided with an explicit manufacturer warranty.

### 1.07 SUBMITTALS

- A. Shop Drawings: Submit under provisions of Mass B Division 10 and Section 260500. All video surveillance system shop drawings must be approved by ASD prior to start of work. Electronic AutoCAD® drawings of the facility are available upon request for preparation of the shop drawings. Provide contract-size shop drawings that include the following information:
  - One-line diagrams for the video system that show the signal relationships of all devices within the system.
  - 2. Floor plan drawings showing the locations of all cameras, along with camera name, camera type and mounting (i.e. wall or ceiling), lens selection, conduit routing, and telecom closet/rack assignment.
  - 3. Floor plan drawings shall show entire cable pathway, including existing sections of pathway (i.e. cable tray) that are used for the video system. Show sizes of all conduit sleeves along the pathway.
  - 4. Indicate electrical characteristics and connection requirements, including line voltage and low voltage wiring, and logic diagrams or block diagrams where required.
  - 5. Show scaled, pictorial layout drawings of the new video head-end equipment, including rack elevations and wire/cable designations as shown on the one-line diagrams or elsewhere in the shop drawings.
  - 6. Drawings shall be done in a scale that allows the smallest text on the drawing to be legible when the drawing is reduced to 11" x 17".
- B. Product Data: Provide data for each component specified, showing electrical characteristics and connection requirements.
- C. Calculations: Coordinate product data information with the ASD Integrator, who will provide bandwidth and storage calculations for all cameras, based on the parameters specified in this section. These calculations will be used by ASD to order all servers, workstations, and network switches, so that the overall system will perform as expected.

## 1.08 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Deliver products to site, store and protect under provisions of Mass B Division 10.
- B. Store products in clean, dry area; maintain temperature to NEMA ICS 1.

## 1.09 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Maintain area free of dirt and dust during and after installation of products. Protect other surfaces against damage and discoloration caused by work of this section.

### 1.10 COORDINATION

A. Coordinate work under provisions of Mass B Division 10.

- B. IP Addresses: Acquired by the ASD Integrator.
- C. Coordinate all camera locations with the ASD Project Manager prior to rough-in and avoid conflicts with existing equipment and objects that may obstruct the field of view or, in the case of light fixtures, may affect the camera performance and quality of the video image.
- D. Coordinate all camera outlet box, J-hook, conduit, and cable tray locations to avoid conflicts with mechanical piping and ductwork, structural members, and other materials above the accessible ceilings and along the entire cable pathway.
- E. Any camera that is located so that camera performance or field of view is adversely affected shall be relocated by the Contractor at no additional cost to the Owner.
- F. Continuity of Service:
  - 1. Take no action that will interfere with, or interrupt, any existing building services unless previous arrangements have been made with the Owner. If system shutdown is required arrange the work to minimize shutdown time.
  - 2. Owner's personnel will perform shutdown of operating systems. The contractor shall give three (3) days advance notice for systems shutdown.
- G. Should services be inadvertently interrupted, immediately furnish labor, including overtime, material, and equipment necessary for prompt restoration of interrupted service.

## 1.11 SYSTEM DEMONSTRATION AND ACCEPTANCE

- A. Provide systems demonstration under provisions of Mass B Division 10 and Division 26.
- B. At the time of the Substantial Completion Inspection, the Contractor and ASD Integrator shall be on-site to demonstrate the operation of the video surveillance system to the Owner's Representatives and Engineer. All system components shall be installed and fully operational at the time of the demonstration.
- C. The Engineer shall review the demonstration with the Owner's Representatives and provide the Contractor with a list of modifications and/or adjustments deemed appropriate for the proper operation of the system. The Contractor shall make all modifications prior to final completion and at no additional cost to the Owner.
- D. System demonstration shall be conducted as directed by the Owner and Engineer but generally described as follows:
  - 1. Call up each camera on the local workstation(s), using the VMS client software.
  - 2. Call up each camera on a remote laptop or workstation, using the browser interface of the VMS software.
  - 3. By the ASD Integrator: Demonstrate search and review of video segments using both the keyboard controller and the remote viewing software.
  - 4. By the ASD Integrator: Demonstrate search and review of video segments using the VMS software. Download a selected video segment to a DVD or flash drive and demonstrate that it can be viewed on another computer.
- E. After all changes have been made to the system, the ASD Integrator shall provide the Owner's authorized personnel with operation and maintenance training for the video surveillance system, as specified in this section.

#### 1.12 SYSTEM TRAINING

- A. Training shall be provided by the ASD Integrator, as defined under that contract.
- B. The Contractor shall have approved operation and maintenance manuals, parts lists, and project record drawings for all equipment on hand at time of instruction. Coordinate with the ASD Project Manager and ASD Integrator for schedule requirements.

## 1.13 PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS

- A. Submit documents under provisions of Mass B Division 10.
- B. Accurately indicate actual locations of all cameras, switches, servers, etc.
- C. Show the actual installed cable pathway route, including type and size of pathway.
- D. Include a reduced set (11" x 17") set of the video surveillance system project record drawings in the operation and maintenance manual.

#### 1.14 OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE DATA

- A. Submit under provisions of Division 1.
- B. Document ratings of system and of each major component.
- C. Include instructions for starting, re-starting, and operating the computers and network switches.
- D. Identify operating limits, which may result in hazardous or unsafe conditions, or in equipment damage.
- E. Include routine preventive maintenance schedule.
- F. List special tools, maintenance materials, and replacement parts.
- G. Include repair instructions for procedures to check, repair, and test equipment during typical malfunctions.
- H. For all components provided by ASD and installed by the ASD Integrator, coordinate with the ASD Integrator for the necessary documentation to be included in the O&M manual.
- I. Include a printed "cheat sheet" for operation of the VMS, as provided by the ASD Integrator. Provide a printed sheet in the O&M manual a laminated sheet for use at each client workstation.

## 1.15 WARRANTY

- A. Warranty all materials, installation and workmanship for one (1) year from date of acceptance.
- B. Copies of manufacturer product warranties for all equipment shall be included in the operation and installation manuals.

# PART 2. PRODUCTS

## 2.01 PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS

- A. Throughout this specification, specific manufacturers and manufacturer's catalog numbers are cited. Unless otherwise noted, these citations are for the purpose of establishing quality and performance criteria and are not intended to be proprietary. All decisions regarding approval of non-specified manufacturers and products will be at the discretion of the Owner.
- B. Where no manufacturer is specified, provide products of manufacturers in compliance with requirements. Any item of equipment or material not specifically addressed on the drawings or in this document and required to provide a complete installation shall be provided in a level of quality consistent with other specified items.
- C. The Contractor shall provide the latest product model and software version available from each manufacturer at the time of installation. No "beta version" or "test software" products will be accepted. The Contractor shall verify that the hardware provided, including all cameras, has the most recent firmware installed. All proposed and provided equipment and products shall be from the specified and approved manufacturers only, unless previously approved by the Engineer or Owner.

- D. All products and materials are to be new and free of defects, damage and corrosion. All materials shall be in compliance to all applicable codes and designed specifically for the function intended.
- E. Quantity and location of all devices and equipment shall be as specified in Contract Documents or as required for a complete and operable system.
- F. The Owner reserves the right to request a sample camera within (5) business days and a reference for an installation within the State of Alaska utilizing any proposed substitute camera manufacturer.

## 2.02 VIDEO MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (VMS) SOFTWARE

A. Existing. Licenses and integration shall be provided by the ASD Integrator.

## 2.03 FIXED CAMERAS

- A. Basis of Design Cameras:
  - See camera schedule on drawings for basis of design camera models.
  - 2. Exterior cameras shall be rated -20F or lower operating temperature.
  - 3. Cameras shall be rated IK10 unless basis of design model is less.
  - 4. All cameras shall have vari-focal lenses unless basis of design model is fixed.

## 2.04 GENERAL CAMERA HARDWARE AND MOUNTS

- A. Mounting: Provide mounting arm were indicated on the Drawings.
- B. Anchoring:
  - 1. Anchoring shall be rated for the load and mounting surface.
  - 2. All anchoring sets shall be installed per manufacturers' instructions and be appropriate for the surface to which they are mounted.
  - 3. All manufacturers' torque specifications shall be adhered to as applicable and be appropriate for the surface to which the anchoring sets are mounted.
  - 4. Mounts shall be rated for the weight, external weight (i.e., snow or rain), twist, and wind loading of the equipment used.
  - 5. All hardware shall be installed so that it cannot be removed without the use of hand tools.
  - 6. Exterior Cameras: All fasteners used to secure camera wall brackets shall be tamperproof, such as Torx or center-pin allen screws.

#### 2.05 PoE NETWORK SWITCH

A. PoE Switch: Most locations shall utilize existing PoE Network Switches. Where new switches are required, they shall be provided by ASD and configured and installed by the ASD Integrator.

# PART 3. EXECUTION

#### 3.01 GENERAL INSTALLATION

- A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Provide cable pathway system under provisions of Sections 26 05 33.
- C. Provide boxes for mounting devices, cable pulling, and splicing cables under provisions of Section 26 05 33.
- D. Exterior Cameras: Video cables shall be installed in conduit from the exterior camera to the outlet box with the UTP jack. The outlet box shall be located within the building envelope and as close as possible to the camera, while still being readily accessible. Patch cables to exterior cameras shall be exterior-rated. For exterior cameras mounted on

parapet arms, provide ductseal in the top of the camera housing where it attaches to the parapet arm. The intent is to prevent condensation in the dome housing.

## 3.02 VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM BACK-CHECK

- A. Ninety days after Substantial Completion, the Contractor shall meet at each school with the Owner's Representatives to make any adjustments to the operation of the video surveillance system. This may include, but is not limited to the following
  - 1. Adjusting the aiming point and/or field of view for any of the installed fixed cameras.